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GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

Rule as to Use of Form 6-K

This form shall be used by foreign private issuers which are required to furnish reports pursuant to Rule 3a- 16 or 5d- 16 under

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Information and Documentation Required to be Furnished

Subject to General Instruction herein an issuer furnishing report on this form shall furnish whatever information not required

to be furnished on Form 40-F or previously furnished such issuer makes or is required to make public pursuant to the law of the

jurisdiction ofits domicile or in which it is incorporated ororganized orii files or is required to file with stock exchangeon which

its securities are traded and which was made public by that exchange or iii distributes or is required to distribute to its security

holders

The information required to be furnished pursuant to iioriii above is that which is material with respect to the issuer and

its subsidiaries concerning changes in business changes in management or control acquisitions or dispositions of assets

bankruptcy or receivership changes in registrants certifying accountants the financial condition and results ofoperations material

legal proceedings changes in securities or in the security for registered securities defaults upon senior securities material increases

or decreases in the amount outstanding of securities or indebtedness the results of the submission of matters to vote of security

holders transactions with directors officers or principal security holders the granting ofoptions or payment ofother compensation

to directors or officers and any other information which the registrant deems of material importance to security holders

This report is required to be furnished promptly after the material contained in the report is made public as described above

The information and documents furnished in this report shall not be deemed to be filed for the purposes of Section 18 ofthe Act

or otherwise subject to the liabilities of that section

If report furnished on this form incorporates by reference any information not previously filed with the Commission such

information must be attached as an exhibit and furnished with the form

Preparation and Filingof Report

The Form 6-K report shall consist of cover page the report or document furnished by the issuer and signature page

An issuer must submit the Form 6-K report in electronic format via the CommissionsElectronic Data Gathering Analysis

and Retrieval EDGAR system in accordance with the EDGAR rules set forth in Regulation S-T 17 CFR Part 232 except

as discussed below An issuer submitting the Form 6-K in electronic format must provide the signatures required for the

Form 6-K report in accordance with Regulation S-I Rule 30217 CFR 232.302 For assistance with technical questions about

EDGAR or to request an access code call the EDGAR Filer Support Office at 202 942-8900 For assistance with the EDGAR

rules call the Office of EDGAR and Information Analysis at 202 942-2940

An issuer may submit Form 6-K in paper under

Regulation S-T Rule 101 b1 17 CFR 232.101 bl ifthe sole purpose ofthe Form 6-K is to furnish an annual report

to security holders

Regulation S-T Rule 101 b7to provide report or other document that the issuer must furnish and make public under

the laws of the jurisdiction in which it is incorporated domiciled or legally organized the issuers home country

or under the rules of the home country exchange on which the issuers securities are traded as long as the report or

other document is not press release is not required to be and has not been distributed to the issuers security holders

and ifdiscussing material event including the disclosure ofannual audited or interim consolidated financial results

has already been the subject of Form 6-K submission or other Commission filing on EDGAR or

hardship exemption provided by Regulation S-TRule 201 or 20217 CFR 232.201 or232.202

Note to paragraph An issuer that is or will be incorporating by reference all or part ofan annual or other report to security

holders or of any part ofa paper Form 6-K into an electronic filing must file the incorporated portion in electronic format as

an exhibit to the filing in accordance with Regulation S-T Rule 303b 17 CFR 232.303b

When submitting Form 6-K in paper under one of the above rules an issuer must check the appropriate box on the cover

page ofthe Form 6-K When submitting Form 6-K in paper under hardship exemption an issuer must provide the legend

required by Regulation S-T Rule 201 a2 or 202c 17 CFR 232.201 a2 or 232.202c on the cover page
ofthe Form 6-



An issuer furnishing the Form 6-K in paper under one ofthe above rules or as otherwise permitted by the Commission must

deposit with the Commission eight complete copies of the Form 6-K report An issuer must also file at least one complete

copy of the Form 6-K with each United States stock exchange on which any security of the issuer is listed and registered

under Section 12b of the Exchange Act The issuer must have signed at least one of the paper copies deposited with the

Commission and one filed with each United States stock exchange in accordance with Exchange Act Rule 2b- 11d 17 CFR

240.l2b-1 1dwhen submittingthe Form 6-K in papertothe Commission An issuersubmittingthe Form 6-K in paper must

also conform the unsigned copies When submitting the Form 6-K in electronic format to the Commissionan issuer may

submit paper copy containing typed signatures to each United States stock exchange in accordance with Regulation

Rule 302c 17 CFR 232.302c

XBRL-Related Documents Only registrant that prepares its financial statements in accordance with Article of Regulation

S-X 17 CFR 210.6-01 et seq is permitted to participate in the voluntary XBRL eXtensible Business Reporting Language program and

as result may submit XBRL-Related Documents 232 11 ofthis chapter XBRL-Related Documents submitted as an exhibit to Form

6-K must be listed as exhibit 100 Rule 401 of Regulation 232.401 ofthis chapter sets forth further details regarding eligibility to

participate in the voluntary XBRL program

Interactive Data File An Interactive Data File 232 11 ofthis chapter is

Required to be submitted and posted Required to be submitted to the Commission and posted on the registrants corpo

rate Web site ifany in the manner provided by Rule 405 of Regulation S-T 232.405 of this chapter and as submitted listed as exhibit

101 ifthe registrant does not prepare its financial statements in accordance with Article of Regulation S-X 17 CFR 210.6-01 et seq

and is described in subparagraph ai iior iiiofthis paragraph except that an Interactive Data File first is required for periodic

report on Form 0-Q 249.308a ofthis chapter Form 20-F 249.220fofthis chapter or Form 40-F 249.240fofthis chapter as

applicable and is required for Form 6-K 249.306 of this chapter only when the Form 6-K contains either ofthe following audited

annual financial statements that are revised version of financial statements that previously were filed with the Commission that have

been revised pursuant to applicable accounting standards to reflect the effects of certain subsequent events including discontinued

operation change in reportable segments or change in accounting principle or current interim financial statements included

pursuant to the nine-month updating requirement of Item 8.A.5 of Form 20-F and in either such case the Interactive Data File would be

required only as to such revised financial statements or current interim financial statements regardless whether the Form 6-K contains

other financial statements

large accelerated filer 240 2b-2 of this chapter that had an aggregate worldwide market value of the voting

and non-voting common equity held by non-affiliates of more than $5 billion as of the last business day of the second fiscal quarter of

its most recently completed fiscal year that prepares
its financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting prin

ciples as used in the United States and the filing contains financial statements of the registrant for fiscal period that ends on or after

June 152009

ii large accelerated filer not specified in subparagraph aiof this paragraph that
prepares

its financial

statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as used in the United States and the filing contains financial

statements of the registrant for fiscal period that ends on or after June 15 2010 or

iii filer not specified in subparagraph aior ii of this paragraph that prepares its financial statements in

accordance with either generally accepted accounting principles as used in the United States or International Financial Reporting

Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and the filing contains financial statements of the registrant for

fiscal period that ends on or after June 15 2011

Permitted to be submitted Permitted to be submitted to the Commission in the manner provided by Rule 405 of Regulation

S-T 232.405 ofthis chapter ifthe

Registrant prepares its financial statements

In accordance with either

Generally accepted accounting principles as used in the United States or

International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards

Board and

Not in accordance with Article of Regulation S-X 17 CFR 210.6-01 et seq and

ii Interactive Data File is not required to be submitted to the Commission under subparagraph aiof this paragraph

Not permitted to be submitted Not permitted to be submitted to the Commission if the registrant prepares its financial

statements in accordance with Article ofRegulation S-X 17 CFR 210.6-01 et seq.

Treatment of Foreign Language Documents



An issuer must submit the Form 6-K report in electronic format in the English language in accordance with Regulation

Rule 30617 CFR 232.306 and Exchange Act Rule 2b-1 2d 17 CFR 240.1 2b- 12d as referenced in Regulation S-T Rule 306a

17 CFR 232.306a except as otherwise provided bythis Form An issuer submitting the Form 6-K in paper must meet the requirements

of Exchange Act Rule 2b- 12d 17 CFR 240.1 2b-1 2d In accordance with or in addition to the list of documents specified in

Exchange Act Rule 2b- 2d2 17 CFR 240.1 2b- 2d2 an issuer must provide afull English translation ofthe following documents

furnished under cover of Form 6-K whether submitted electronically or in paper

press releases

communications and other documents distributed directly to security holders for each class of securities to which

reporting obligation under Exchange Act Section 13a or 15d pertains except for offering circulars and prospectuses

that relate entirely to securities offerings outside the United States foreign offerings and

documents disclosing annual audited or interim consolidated financial information

In addition to the documents specified in Exchange Act Rule 2b- 2d3 17 CFR 240.1 2b- 2d3 an issuer may furnish

under cover of Form 6-K whether submitted electronically or in paper an English summary instead of full English

translation of report required to be furnished and made public under the laws of the issuers home country or the rules

of the issuers home country stock exchange as long as it is not press release and is not required to be and has not been

distributed to the issuers security holders Such document may include report disclosing unconsolidated financial

information about parent company

An issuer is not required to submit under cover ofForm 6-K an offering circular or prospectus that pertains solely to foreign

offering even when an English translation or English summary is available if the issuer has already submitted Form 6-

or filed Form 20-F or other Commission filing on EDGAR that reported material information disclosed in the offering

circular or prospectus If an issuer has not previously disclosed this material information to the Commission it may submit

in electronic format under cover of Form 6-K an English translation or English summary ofthe portion ofthe foreign offering

circular or prospectus that discusses the new material information

Any submitted English summary must meet the requirements of Exchange Act Rule 12b-12d3ii 17 CFR 240.l2b-

l2d3ii An issuer may submit the unabridged foreign language report or other document along with the English

summary or English translation as permitted by Regulation S-I Rule 306b 17 CFR 232.306b for electronic filings and

Exchange Act Rule 12b-12d4 17 CFR 240 12b-12d4 forpaper filings
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Reed Elsevier is worLd

professionaL informationsoLutions

We provide solutions that help professional customers

across industries make better decisions get better

resuLts and be moreproductive We do this by Leveraging

deep customer understanding to combine content

data with anaLytics technoLogy in globaL pLatforms

sharing institutionaL skiLLs assets and resources

across Reed ELsevier
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Forward4ooklnqstatements
The Reed EtseverAnnuat Reports and Fnancia Statements 2012 cantarn forward tooking statementswithir the meaning ofSectton 27Aof
the Us SecurtiesAct of 1933 as amended and Section 21 of the US $ocuntes Exchange Act of 1934 as amended These statements are

subject to number of rskand uncertamtes that couLd cause actuat resutts or outcomes to differ materially from those curreritty being

anticipated Theterms estimate project plan intend expect shouldbe wiLtbe believe andsimitarexpressionsidentify

forward tookingstatements Factors which may cause future outcomesto differfrom those foreseen in fureard Looking statementsare

referenced the fihngs of Reed Etsevierwith the US Securities and Exchange Commission



Reed Eleevier

Chairman statement

We cc utir ued to itt engthen our balance sheet while air tainnq

org ir investment and st arpcning the torus ot our biiiness

We cc rnmend ng ncr aso ri the fullyear vidends for

both ad Etsevier PLC and Reed Etsevier NV etlect nq our

confidencc the tong terr outlook for Reed Llsev

Jndcrtyi ig revenues whirl exclude the effects ot curt ncy
tranlatio acgusit on and disposals grew or exclud rig

tIe ycbng ftc Ct ot biennial exhinitions with fivc bet iness area

cent butino too crrng gro vth Our report td revenues gr cv

as to 1611cm xpr sseo in ctert
rig and to C7asdm

xp edo euro r3 at constant earha
rge as

Urnd fyi adjusted per atirrg pr ofit gre witf tt

pr ov mci rn profitab lity dr vcr by combiriat on
pr oces

nnovat on arid portfrt volopme nt across aft bus near areas

Expressed inst rUng rdjusted operat rrg proOfs grew te

13m or 13 to 2107m expresed in euros

Adjustcd earn
rigs pershire grew to 5O.lp or Rec sovier

PLC md 14 to 00 95 for Reed Elsev er NV Repor tcd earnings

per fare urew a42 to 46 Opt ir ed El evier PLC arid 53O4uRr3 NV

Share buybacks

Derring the year wed sposc jot umbe of husrness that no

cager fit our str ategy and used tIre
gr oar proceed to buy back

haros In 20 2wc dcployed totatoff2b0m on share huybac ks

nd tie and Eebrua 2013 eve had deptovcd ar iditnonal

lOOm Based on our strong na ic al position planned

disposal we intc rid to ompltc fu thcr 1300 not share

buyback in he emaiudcr of 2013

Dvdends

The Do ards are ecom end
rig equal sed nal div rends

for Reed lacy er PLC mOO 337 to Reed scvier NV up

espectivly and agak sttl
Pr

or year ris br ngs he tota

dividends for tf year to Op for Reed Elsev er P1 up

C0.46 to evier NV ilso up The dirfer
rig grarath ates

the inter and final dia dend to th to pa ent cornpan

effect novemcnt in tne star
lirrg cr0 ax hange rat we

dividend nr ounrerre it date

Balance sheet

Na debt was lbn/C3 8br on 31 Decembcr 201 down tro

13 4brr/C4 hn fast yedr Net debt/LB DAft 2L1 wa 2x

down from 23x astye rr and err ur ad usted basis it wa cx

wn tror 8x ast year The rate of adjusted opera ig ca5b Im
cc nyc sie tests 94 up frorr 93 rio 2011 with capntul experrditu

itS ofreverue

Board succession

Ir Decerirber ou long tanding Chief inanc al Offic Mark

Armour tired from tIe Boards of ad Llcevier lv uld Ike

tha ik ii for fris outst anding se vice over years aid avis

cv ry good fo tune ir cruet ollowing rigc rc us scarer

process Duncan Palmer joined in a\ugust and was apponrrted

Ch ef Finarici lOtficer rr Noveniber as eviouslyat

Owen Corning wfrere ie as chieffinan ialeffrcerand sen

president from 2007 vi iq pn viously reId various senior ia rca

positions withirr Royal 13 Sfrel for 20 irs in the UK tlt

Nether nds and th we uld kate we conic Duncan too

Boards enormou breadth cif obal business exper ci

gainedwrnite ving ii our me ta stottice loca err srake ft

uniquely qualified to be Chief nanc alOft ear ot React EIsev ci

Dur
irrg

the year we alsa ontir ued the proce ref pr agres vely

raft esf
rig

the non cxc cutnse eler iernt ofth Beam Mare Ill

and Sin Day Reid will retire as iron exec utive Di cetera fte ten

years ofv Actable service following the conclusion the Annual

neral Meet rigs in A1 12013 After sear ft procss us ng

exter nal consultants nda Sa ford oined the Boards

Dee ember She ov 3a fears exper nec global

executive miff lBM and with her xpe ne tee pa ticu arly in

leveraginq technology achieve busness tr ansfermaton

ilr eudv ng to be cv aluab anon executive Director Afler

fri ther earch in Eel uary 2013 we anne inced th it Dr Wolfhar

Hauao wlljo the Boards subject to sha mholder approval at our

AOMs in Ap il th his me than 30 years ser cc tie xc mt ye

arrd non cxc utive 05 tions internat onialte ch to ogy and

service bcisinesaes ar data backgrour in scnencand mcdi tie

he will be an excel ent ddition to our Be would tot iank

Mark and David for the wise advice arid issistar cc over many

year arid toy dc me In ida arid Wolth rrtto Reed say er

Corporate responsibBrty

Or toa er oar itc apons Lty is wu angr
Reed Elsevner

fully suoport all rafter Is to ensu the
qf

eP

vets of ethical marnag mc it Our actions ndncate hatwe

impte niertnng our em nitmer Ito nicrease tIe dnve sity of our

Boa

Anthony Habgood
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Anthony Habgood
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OVERVIEW
REED ELSEV1ER

2012 Financial highlights

Underlying revenue up 4% 3% excluding biennial exhibition cycling

Underlying adjusted operating profit up 6% up 6% at constant currencies

Adjusted EPS up 7% to SOip for Reed Elsevier PLC up 14% to 0.95 for Reed Elsevier NV

Reported EPS up 42% to 46Op for Reed Elsevier PLC up 53% to 0.90 for Reed Elsevier NV

Full year dividend up 7% to 23.Op for Reed Elsevier PLC and up 7% to 0467 for

Reed Elsevier NV

Return on invested capital up by 0.7 percentage points to 11.9%

Net debt 03bn lower at 3.lbn 22x EBLIDA pensions and lease adjusted 17x unadjusted

Em Em

Undertyng Growth 4%

69D2
7523

0D2

2011

Adjusted EPS Dmdend

pence pence

Growth 7% Growth 7%

467
50i

2011 2012

00

2012

Em Sm

UndorLj4ng Growth 6%

1626

21 2011 2012

Adjusted EDO Disidend

Growth 14% Growth 7%

083
095

2q11

0436

2011 2012



Rndttesvssr flL epi inir it tue Mi

2012 2012 21 tan hi

itysasud mba Cm En hang Cm Li Onj ti pig

Revenue 6116 6.002 2% 7523 6.902

Operating profit 1358 1205 13/ 1670 1386 .20 13
Profitbeforetax 1187 948 259 1460 1090 .34/ 26
Netpioft 1069 760 41 1315 874 50 40

Netborrowiigs 3127 3433 3846 4.119

i.ga
2012 21 2012 ij

tgcvercS3t Cm Cm La irtr utdityj

Operatingproflt 1713 1626 2107 1870 .13%

Operating margin 20.0% V.1 0.9 pts 28.0% 271 0.9 pts

Profitbeforstax 1497 139 8/ 1841 1600 415

Netpiofit 1138 1060 1400 1.219 If

Opeiatingc.ashfLow 1603 1515 1972 1741 13%

Operating ash flow convcrsion 94% 93 94% 93
Returnon nvestedc.aptat 11.9% 112 0./ pts 11.9% 11.2k sO.7 opts

R..dEtsevisrPLC RndttassrNV

2012 11 Ciug 2012 Pij aunt

Adjusted earnings per share 50.lp 46.lp 00.95 083 14

Reportedearningspersl aic 46.Op 32.4p 441 00.90 059 53

Ordinary div dend per share 23.OOp 21 SSp 00.467 436

Ihe Reed Elsevier combined bust esses encompass the busine.ses of Reed Etsevier Group plc and evier Reed Finance By together

wan their two parent companies Reed rtsser PLC and Reed Etsevier NV the Reeo Elsevier combined busi esse The resutta of

Reed Etsevici PLC reftcct its sharehotder .23% economic interest in the Reed Etsevier combined bucineses Tht reutts of Reed

Etevier NV eftect its shareholders 50 economic interest in the Reed Elsevier combined businesses The respective economic

interests of the Reed Etscvier PLC and Reed Etscvior NV shareholder stake account of Reed Etsevier PLCs indirect interest

in Reed Elsevier NV

Adjusted ar underlying figures are addit onatperfoi iiance measures used by management ar dare econcited to the reported figures

in note lOb he combined financ ial.statementsand noto tc the respective parent companyfinanctatstatements Underlyng growth

rates are calculated at constant currencies and exclude the results of alt acquis tions and disposals made in both the year and prior

year and assts held for sale Cc nstanl urrencygrowth rate ire based on 2011 futtyeiraverageand hedgi ex hange rates
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Chief Executive Officers report

Strategc direction

Our tratcgy is to come true profeacion information

solutions provider Acompanythatdebver improved outcomes

to profcssionaf cus omers across industr cc to he th mak

better deciion get better resulta and bc nore productive

We to do this by Leveraging deep custom underst inding

to combine content CA with ar alytic tm hn Aogy ri gLob it

platforms Our soLution often accountfor abort of our

cu torners totaL cost base but can have significant po itive

rnpact on the remaining 990 We seekto build Leading positions

Long term oLobai orowch market by lever iqi ig or ri tOuts niL

0krlLs asets resources across Reed sevim both to bu Id

soLutionsfor custorr crs arid to pur 0u cost effic encies

We rc continuing to systematicalLy migrate toward thi type of

business across all of Re edt fevier prima ity through organic

investment We suppLer lent our organic dove oprner twith

selective acquisitions when we are the nate rat owner arid

am mlerate our strateqywith good eturn We continuc to divest

assetsthatwe are not ableto migr ate orvvherm we do iot em

significant future vaLue crourtion for Reed Llsovie

Byf cusinq err evoLving the funda sientaLo of our bus we

believe that ov me we wiLl improvethe bus ne o5 profit of

Reed sevier and tfie quality of our ear ning wiLlIe rd to

more predictabLe revenues through better asset mix and

geographic balan higher growth pro ile iyexpa iding ri

higher growth segments ox ting from structuralLyc hallenige

businesses and gre dually reducing the drag from prinf for mat

dccLinies and improved returns byfo usi
ig err or genie

veLopmerrtwith tr ng cash generation

Ovc raIL we believe that Reed Elsevier ha better businw

profile today than it had fire year ago and it is our bect veto

rnak sr that has better busirc profiLe thr ye irs fr are

rnowtharr it fiastod
iy



Reed Etsevie

2012 progress

In 2012 we made good progres both on our organru

transl rr ma on arrd on roshaprng our portfoho Organrcatly

we extended our solution sets across customer workflows

taurrching ii Pr oducts and rottrng out new te hnotogy ptatforn

and we runt ued to burtd out new
pr

odu ts in adjacent mar kets

and geographic

Bythe end of 2012 approxrmatety 80 of our revenues wer rn

our targete formats of etectr on and face to face generatrng

avc rage undertyrng rover ue growth ro ccc Li

We amted ouracqursrtronsto smalL data and content assets

ac oss bui as areas and assets rn hrgh growth mar kets and

geographres Over the pastthreeyear ouraverageanrruat

acqurs hon upend has beerr around 030dm per year ust eve half

of our typrcatf oecashf.owafterdiv dr ds Ontyoneacqurs tron rn

the past three years has been rn the undreds of mr trorrs of pounds

stertrng Accu ty gtt rn the nter sect on of Rrsk Sotutrons and

RBIs Major Data Servrces other rn Svrduattransactrons havc

requrred cash soend in the pIe dig nrtl onc or ten of rr rltrors

of poLrnds stertrng

Our acqursr ens have berr focused on eLectron and face to face

for mats wrth Les ian 10 of the acqlrrred revenue being in prrnt

format They have atso bc heavrty werghted towards gher

growth mar kets and geograph wrtl onLy 10 of acqurr ed

revenue Fur ope arrd vrrtually no acqurred adver trs ng reverrrres

In 2012 we rrrcreased our drsposatactrv ty cx trrrg
busrnesses that

are not Lrketyto transfer rnto the type of bus ness that we want to

bern or where we do not sees grrifrcar
tfuture value creatron for

Reed Elsevrer We atso exited busrnesss where we we iado

decision not to nvest furth rto pursux obal leadershrp

posrtron desprte havrnq successfulLy ansformed an asset

Forexamptc in recruitment and pre rerptoymerit servrces

we decided to drspose of both our Totaljobs onLine recrr rtment

busir oscar do ir employment screen rig
busrness

Over the last three yearswe have exrted busrnesseswth Iota

eve nues of approxrmatelyf600r nclrrdrng sign cant rmounts

of prrnt and advert smng related evenu rn ELrr ope

Wrth strong balance sheet arid strorrg caLm fLow
jerrc ratron arid

average acqurs tron spc nd corrrfortabty covered by free cash ftc

we are able to cent nue to usc the gross cash proceeds tr em

drsposats to buy back shares to rnrtigate the lutron

associated wrth ongoing sposak

Financial performance

Ur derlymng revenue growtt reached or ox Luding the

effects of brenni il exfrrbit on cyctrng idertyrng operatmng prof

grew arid adjusted earnmngs per slrar grew by at

constant exchange rates Desprte contrnued organre nvestment rn

our busrness arid there nptetror of number of small acqu srtron

our return on nvosted caprtal mncreased byariotl er 70 basrs pomnL

tcr 11.9 Bythe errd of 2012we had redLmced our rret debt/FBITDA

atro to ti sies on pens on and lease adjusted ba as or

1.7 mes or an unadjusted basis arid we remain mn overage

range with which we are vc ry cornfortablc

Atlfrve business areas contrrbuted to underty ng evenue and

adjusted operating protrt growtf 2012

Elsevierachroved good revenue growt in pr maryrc-earch and

databases tools across screritifre medreal segments wrth

part cutar strength rr emergrng markc ts Research artrrte

submrss ens and usage grew doLrbte drg ts lectronr revi nues

which now account fur approx mately 70 of total revc nue

grew strongly across alt segmerts

LexsNexis Risk Solutions urrdertying rever ue growth

aceeteratd strghtly rn 2012 Sotrd
gr

owth rn the Irrurance

busrrress was driven bytt extension of products and cc

across rnsurance car erwor kflows In Busrness Serv ees

anti rnoriey laur derrng fraud deteetron and credr dec crc
nrrig

solutrons all performed well

Tire urruer Lyirry
rate of ruvunue yrowtf rmp uved at Reed Business

Information drrverr by at ong growth from most of our Malor Data

-rervrees busmnesses Market
rig

Solutroris and eadrng Brands

grew modestly and the rate of deelmne ii Other Busrnc

Mngazines 8cr vrcc moderated We ontrnued to transform the

bus ness ir 2012 exiting burr esces that no longer trt our str iteqy

3%

209 211 2H 2012

2032 urrd ely rig
reveries growrt cx tn nj cy

sire udrng yct rig
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December ar nou xci that wc ore ing ng exisNexis Rick

Solutions and Reed Businr s- nloi motion mm cloely together

We intend to lever age Risk Solution trengths in data analytics

Th tc Thnology in cm nation with RBI broadr geographic

ootprinl and it induetrypocitic databaes

Uric ty evc nue gr wth at LexisNexs LegaL ProfessionaL

was pc otive dc pite cut lued legal rn thc US and Europe

Growth was driven byelectronic rEvc nuc which account to

approximately of total revenurx Ir l2we continued to

teae rrew product and plattor mc which Fr we been wrIt

icc oived

Reed Exhbtons pertoi med strongly 201 driven bystr ong

growth ntho nd Japan rrodcrate growth Europe and

doublc digit owth in ernerg ng mar kets Wr continued to invest

Throughout they lau ching 30 ncw shows and sti enqthened

poition in gti growth marketsthrough partriershipsand

gutod acquixtinn

OutLook

In 2013 we will rernaintccu ed oct Gomatic tr anstor motion

of ur bucinessand on improving thequa ityofourcarnings

While the or tlooktor the macru environ Tiont and its npact on

utomer markets is mixed and Ol3wil be cycling out ycor tom

our exhibitions busirress we have enterud the ye rr th positive

momentum and expect 2013to bc another year of under lying

mve ue profit and earning growth

Erik Engstrom

Chief Executive Officer
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In Scientificjechnicat Medicat mar kets we provide

information and tools to help customers improve scientific

and healthcare outcomes

Revenue

Sc nt c3echnical Medcal

Ri Solutions

BUU nes Informal on

eqal

bitions

Ad usted operating profit

Sc cntif Iechr Medical

Risk Solo dons

Rosiness Information

jal

Ex tibitions

Un tllocated Sen

rid cr1
ir rirq bi Ii

id rericd Illito

ci

/ri ar

di ttra Cr tcxpet1
Sd qi /11 pt iS

rot 11 tatci

JU

01 cocci

ra ry re rt dirx

IS ircr it

i.iy Xc

jyr
crIb ar

ar rW

ci

act ci

ci ii

11 rid

ii

In Risk SoLutions Business nformation we provide data

analytics and insight that enable customers to evaluate and

manage risks and develop market intelligence supporting

more confident decisions impt oved economic outcomes

and enhanced operational efficiency

In LegaL markets we are world leading ovider of legal

regulatory and news business information and analysis

to lcrgal con porate government and academic customers

In Exhibitions we arethe worlds leading events business

wit almost 500 events in over 30 countries

Shepards

2012

Len

2063

926

663

10

854

6116

780

392

119

234

210

22

71

CLUE
Reed Business Information

LmxisNexiy Lcxis

Reed Exhibitions T1IIIfl mket

ye liii

tar

2058

908

695

1634

707 21 25 15

6002

768

362

110 e8 10 10

229

26 30 20

10

1626

ar ye
oil rd db Sir Ia ct

ftc cxcc rip rry ft o- or oi

Ii Sc ii wi av 1w

iUr ri iwc ar/au to

ii rta ocr dx dcilc ciii Li

UI or CU rUl ye IlL rye

El 71 3m

crrtri cci or

Modrcat
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CU rcs iot it

ICy/Il

Lxhrbr
cr1

LEft/ito

Sccrrtt To Ii at

Med

RcrcS crtr icr
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Scientific Technical Medical

lscver ithc world leading provider of ienbhc tE chnical and

med rate hrrrratian arrd erves erteta health professiar ais

and etudenh war ldwidc objective to help tar Ltomc rs

advance once nd improve heatthcarc by providnrg world class

infor motion and innovative intor ration olutionr that enable

them tom iks Cheat deces an enhance produchvity and

mprove utcome

Revenuestor the year ended 31 December 2012 were L2063m

Levier is global bu in with principal ape rho is in

Amsterdam Dci np Boton hennai Delhi London Madrid

Munh wyork 3xrd Paris Pllad IFlia Pie JJareiro

Louis Can cg ingopore id Tokyo It has 1000 employees

Levi serves thc needs of the ienc tee inology and health

sarkets by publishing mary csearcrr refere ice md

educatior antrnt aswe lasbyprov dna range of database

andwarkflowsalution llsrv erscustomersares ientists

acrdern in stitution ressar leader and administrators

rrred eLi earcher doctor nurses allied health professiorrals

and tudents aswella hasp tals reearch institutions health

insurers rrranagcd hcalthcarc orgs iisation researchHntensive

car poratio and overnmerL All oft sese customers rely on

Levier ovide high quahtyonterrt and critical information

for rrrekin sciontitir and medical decisiorr to review publish

disseminate mrid preserve rescai ch finding to create innovative

tools to help tocus research strategies increase rescarc 11

effectiveness improve rood ml outcomes and nharrc et so

efficierrcyaf healthcare and healthcarc education

In the pr mary research sarket dur
rig

20 over lii resear

papers were ibmitted to scvier double
digit increao orr tIre

Pr ioryear Dye 10000 editors managed the peer reviewan

selection at these papers resulting 1k publicat on of more

than 330000 articles in almost 2000 jour rials many at which

are lb foremast pubIc stions in their field arid primary pan tat

reference tar new eaearch this earrtr ntwo acrea ed by around

liar people with nearly 700mfulltextarticle downloads laJyear

Content is provided free or at very law cast in mast of the world

paarr caursti ice Flsev er sjaurnais are pr irror ity published arid

deliver through the Ccienreflrreef alatfo the world large

database of cerstitic arid rrredical re ear ch hostino over urn

art des and over 11000 full text books lagshipjaurnal

irrelude Cefland LAo ancettomilie at titles Is vier cant nuously

innovates to impmavthe utnlity
snd effective sess of it journals

Far example its Article afthc Future enha cc th traditiariml

scierrtific paperwith new arid broadc rtype at content such

lirksto exper mental data related conIc it and errharreed medr

to supplernentthe article stext

Levier is also global mder in the cic ntific chn ealand

medicoli eference mar ket Pr avidinrj authoritative and cirrc rt

prafeesiona reference content Whils reference has traditionally

been print indutry Eloevier has bees leader ri driving

shift from print to elretr inic ELev Er 1ubliho aver 20000

refer erice titles with 1400 new titles publistred arrnually ala

with supporting bibliographic daIs indices and abstr met

Approximately 8oo of ttresetitlesare available ect rnsically

laoshio titles include wo ks such am Dr mes Anrfamv Nelson

Podia fries and Netter Aflms olHurrrarr Anafomy
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Elsev erlau ched ClinicalKcy 202 produ tthatatfows

physi inns to acce the leading reference ar evidence based

medic ne content single fully integrated ate Clinical Key

ire udes ful taxonomyand improved smart ontent search to

hetp din cians took up detaited nformat on on highty specihc

tc cc as they seek to answer in at questio is The platform

covers Elsevier oswcltas etevantthird pa ty heclth content

Clinic elKyhaa itready been deptoyed at toad ng teac rig

hosp tate such as Oxford Un versitys Johr Radcliffe tI

Clevetand Ctin and the US Department of Veterans Affair

In ncdicaleducation Flaevierservesstudorisot medicine

nurs
ig

and allied health professic ns th ough print ar ole ctronic

books as well as electronic solutions For ox imple its Evolve

pc rtal provides ich msour toe pportfac utty and students

and now has over 3bm registered users Evolve Rear/i provide

onli review nd oct rig
toots/or nurs ng ar the allied health

pro/c sions Evolv Teach provide online resources and solLit oils

to support faculty

fsov ers database arid workflow products provide range of

tools and solutions for professionaL in the science technical

ad med ca1 f.d Cisfnmor ncledo academ and coroorato

resoarcho rescar adrrcnistrators and althcai

professionals

adem and corporate rosear chore significant products

include Scopus Ge ofacete and Roaxys Scopu is the largest

abstract and citat On database of research literature in the

wo It th ahstrcts arid bibliograph infor mation on ilmost

50 cientific research articles frcim 19500 peer reviewed

our rats endS 001 nternatiorcal publishers Goofacots is coil and

ga exploration toolwhich packages research relevant

and cird erty geological content arid tags that conto itto enable

re earcfl nunctionaiity Roaxys is leading wlutiurn fon uythecu

chemists integrating chemical reaction and compound data

sear hirig
wit/c synthesis planning

ri
Do embe 2012 Elsev or acquired Knovel web based

provider of
pr

oductivitytoolefor the engineer ng ommi ity

intograt ng
technical infoi rriation with analytic sand sea ch to

delivertrusted answers and drive ircriovatio

Elsovier erves ac adomic and gover nme nt research

adminisfratorsthrough its SciValsuito of productsthat help them

ova uato their stitutioris research performance deter iii nc

research strategies and increase intitufional officienci

Leveraging bhometi ic data such as tation from Scopus

Sc/Val5potlighttolps nefitut onsand governments tc dent fy

their dist nc tive rose irctc sti engtris evaiuare performance

and increase the focus of their esearcfi and development

inveLmonfs SciValFunding assists researchers and nstitcitioris in

identifying grants that are most relevant in th ar research areas

In August 2012 Fleecier bolstered its rosearch management

por tfolio by acqu ring A/ira provider of software and tools that

compleme nf the Sc Valp atlorm and help academic iritilut one

and researchers mprove their research outcomes

For healthcare professionals Levier develops prcducts to

deliver pat ent specific solutions at the point of care to improve

patient outcomes Its clirnicacsulutiu include GuL Standd

which provides critical infor mat on on drug interact onsto assist

effect ye treatment and CPM Resource Cocifek which Pr ovidos

data dr von framework to support nurses in under taking

procedures

fcir thor boktered its clinical solcitio is por tfolio with fhe

ac quisit on in September 2012 of ExitCare provider of patient

education arid discharge instructior ExitCaros products

incor porated into Llseviors fin cal decision uppoi confer

and tools will help hea thcare providers improve the del very

of healfhcare informat on arid services across alt care

environments

063m

nni On cc

32

2O63n

Rrciwo

Cioic arc

68

50lh An
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Cc nbf technical nd Medical nfor ma ronn ar kets have good

Long terre growth char icier trcs Thr importo icc search

md dovE Loprnenttc onon por for moo and competitive

po ition ig wel undo stood by gover nm nt academic

rnstrtutions nd cci pci trons this is roller ted in the Long term

growth eo ch ii Jopment spend and in the number

of eec hr or tdwrde Cr owth rrr th rrkr to rs driven

byageing popu rhons in devetopcd mar ket rising prosperity

in deveLop ng mar kets aid thc inc rca ing focus on improving

mdicatoutconi and off ie icy Givcri that sgnificant

proportio mof scientrh so rrch and hcatthcare Junded

drier tty or nidir Cc ity oy qovor nr mont pending is mt uenced

by govc nmcnt budge or ms dci atronc The cor mmitment

rosear Li nd hr atth
pr ovison doe iowever erain high

ver in ore difficu budget try environment

ev or Jrato grc goa to Lead thc way in pr ovid ng inforrrration

ot itic Lb it advorcr science arid impr cve health lo act ieve

hr Iso vier rtc so utio that refLect dec ri ight nto the

ay rowo kand the outcomes thry coking to achieve

rivestorexcellence orrtenrt cc and tec mnotogy

tar ttyadapt and revitaLrse
pr

odor soLutions arid

ho ones modeLs and Levcriaes it sh tred resources and

knn vtedg to pror motc irirrova ion elf rency and excetlenco rr

Ox ccitio

or road rnrc arid cc po ito ice arc tic prrorrt are to

ontrnueto trerigthenjourna hi ands and the goat tyof pub is med

ir Li tcs and to forthc
rnmpr

ove scientific communication and

user xp err with crur tour nat content tsevrer orused on

Leliver rngc urrra con erit go kty making itavmilabtc through

differ ent ir rr channels or ii cxnlcring my of nnov rtiv eew

ho in modei LLscv wilL aLso buiLd new services and add

gre ito rnctron ility nd utiLity tot xistrnig soLutions to improve

researct ci productivity

or science md tic mtth
pr

ole ionats
Pr or rtre are no coritinuc

tho qu ility id retevanc cit our content md our

workftowtoc Is whto ac lively mmanaginj the ongorig crrmat

mit ror pr nt tic Lect ormic ml in mm mtio

or students prior tics ar etc onti more to provid tIro trighe

guabty cdurat onal cci tent arid toot and to deve op an cven bettc

utorimer experience Inadditron tsevrcn wittdevr toptooLto

ack student pert or trar co Li am rrewfa utty memb and

rmprc so the offectiveness of exrstrr faculty staff

Ccience and medical re rear hi
pr rrrcrpalty dissenr rioted on

paid sub cr rptron basis to there carrh fa atitie of acmdemrc

institutions qoven nmonrt md corpor it ons arid the cas cit

medicaL and heatttmcare jour riots oto rrrdrvrdcraL prac tnt oner

arid rr edicalooc ety rrrembers Fer nurriher ofjou riots

advertising arid promotional income repr ee ml mall

proportion of revenues predomrnaritlyfron ph mrmacecitic

companies in ho mLtlmcar trtte

Ovcrtho past ibyc ire alto ni rye payment modr for the

di err matron rc sca ch soc mae called muthor pay pci

acc or acrthor fundere pays ray onion god While it is

expected that paid subscriptionwillremain thr rimary

drstr rb ition model Levier has tong rnrvestod in altei nato

buorrmc so models to addressthme needs of custo Tiers aid

ro cachcr Ovr 1100 oIL cvrc jocrr nralo irowuffor rnne opr on

of fundrrrg research publishing arid diJribution via sponsored

article fee In addrt roil lsovrer now pubLishes in unrd 311

author pays too male

lectr on products such is ScrenceDirecl coopos sir Cf/nrca1Ky

ore gorier aLly oLd din ectto customer throuqh dedrca od ale

force that has offices arcr md th world Cubscr ptron mgent

faciltate theml arid administrative
pm 0cc es for

pn nt jour na

Book ar sold tfrrough trmditio maL and mIme book stores

whoLesalerarid particularlyin medrcalanr healthcare mnai kets

direotlyto end user

Compotrtronm within ience arid medical pcrbtishmng gener Llyomr

title by lit and prodcrct by product basis Compctrng journal

books and dat ml aces are typically published byte mmcd soc retr

and othc proteseronalpub rsher Workflowtoolsfmce ernmrlar

corntretrtronr as welL forn oftwar mpanro and iter nat

solutions developed bycustomire
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Elsevier achieved good revenue growth in pnmary research

and databases tools across scentfic methcal segments

with particular strength in emerging markets Research arhcle

submissions and usage grew double digts Etectromc revenues
whch now account for approximately 78% of total revenues

grew strongly across all segments Pnnt book and pharma

promotion revenues contmued to dechne

Unoerlying revenues grew and undorly rig adjusted operating

tsgrewe4

Good ur derlynq revenue qrowth pr mary research soluhons

across the ocien tic arid med at segments was dr yen by double

digi growth in beth ubmissions and ret downloads with

par icularly stro
ig growth in laster grow ecunomie outide

Europe and the US lhc number of arbcle scAre issionsto our

our oats xceedc br the first me in 20 with over 11

use sdowntoadnrrg nearly700n- artictesduringtheyear

at viers over all relative irrrpactfactor arid citaton share

con inued to grow in the yea as we to used on providing our

custorrrers with high quality conIc at embedded sophiats ated

onli retools

ldtion to good owA 1radtiorat uF ribepayc art
volurics author pays or authors funder pays artclevolumes

increased dur ng the year albeit from rn it base sponsored

article opt on is cunr ently available 500 of our tour oat and

30 and al inejc urnals operate Linder this payment model

rn

1985

Good growth ri databases tool reverru was dr yen by str ong

nuw sales rod cisaqu growth

Sa es ut
pri

books to mAy duals continued to decline ri 2112

reflecting tormat mqration ard subdued refer nre and education

markets Print phir ma promoton revenues so con nued to

decline reflecting indutrytrer ds

In August 2012 tIre management structure of Elsev wa
reorganised rombroing ience technologyarrd hea

iences Had these evonuu str cams still been
rr anagcd

separately tht ir pro forrira underlying ever ue growtf would

have been and flat respect vely

In iu adlustod operating prot margin cent nued to mprove

driven by continued process etfmcieneies arid cci ency hedging

bene its

2013 Outlook

The customer eriv ronment is broadly unr hanged on tasty

th var aliens bygeographyand customer cegment We expect

volurrie growth in research arid strong demand for el ctronic

products and solutions to conti rue acros scientific and modica

markets with continued declines in print book ar
pfrar na

promotion revenues Overallwe expect another year of ra oclest

underlying revenun guwthi 02013

2012

Cm

Revenue 2063 2058

Adj isted operat ng profit 780 768 42

009 2009 2010 2011 2012
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Risk Solutions Business Information

cxisNexi Risk Solu ion leading provider of olutions that

ombine pr apr ietar public and th rd party infer lion with

advancs deed notogyand analytics these solutions asi at

ustom in rvaluating pr edicting and managing ik and

mprovinj opeiation toffee iveness predo ninantlyin the US

ovenues forth yer aded 31 December 2Ut2weraf926m

LexisNexi ReP elutions is headquartered AIph aretta

Oeorg hat pr inc aloperations ir Ucerqia Plorida and Ohio

and has 4100 employees

cxi Ncxis Risk Soli tions is rgan sod around market facing

indu trydc ctur green insurance buines services including

lheti iai alserviccr rccoivableriianagementaedcorporate

qr oups and government he rnostsignilicant of these is

insurrn die gr ups are suppc ted by shared infrastructure

for technology operatien data rnanaoement and othe support

functions inc udirig compliance and marketing number of

transactional upport act vitie ml ludinq come firranc at

proccse are provided from shared set vict sum qanisation

manaqed bylhe LexisNcxis cgal Profesiona bu ar p55

he Legal Pr ofts aenat business at ditributes Risk Solution

produc Is into ft gal market in the US and inter nationally

nsurance SoLutions provides coinpr ehensiv combi ation of

data and analyUcto proper tyand casu attyPC po sor al arid

commercial nsurance and life insurance nt is inth UStu

improve cr licataspectna of their business from utemer

acqucation and undt writing to ctaims haridbng Information

solutions including the US must ernprehens ye pcrsonaltess

history dat ibase Of help in ers as cks and uvide

important inputste pri ing and undorwritinq inurancc policim

Additional key products nctudo Data Prof/ti wt cli prov des tic at

infor malion on cutomn potential customersand then auft

ownership directly into the insurar cewe kftow or Current

Carr/er whc identifies cur rent or previous irisur ance welt

as any lapses in roverage

8usrnessServces prcividefinanc iatinatitutienswith ri

man gcment idt ntity ma lagement aid te tier rrcd risk

mariagementandcomphance elutien these include krrow

your customer and arti morreytaander rig products

business ada provides rik and identity rnanagementelutiens

for cci per alec usterners in retail telecemmnurScatiens and

utilities sector Rec eivabtes management solutions help debt

recovery pr ofessi anats ra the aug nentatier rrkmnagemcrit arid

altection cit con umei arad business debt

Government SoLutwns provides data and araalyh to US federal

state arid local tawcrrt rcernentarid government agoracit ste help

solve criminal and ntetligence cases arid to ideratitytraud warie

and abuoe in government programmes

he Risk Selritrur buanes also uvides iskr alated infer rn alien

tethc legal industi ythrough existSexis egal Pr oft asionat

CLUE0
Most comprehensive US pci enat insurance

taims datciba

LexisNexis Data Preflfl

leotto automate insurance apptinatiora

process providing critical information

inurers need to quote arid underwrite

policy

LexisNexis Current Carner

Database that identities the exiatence of

current or previous insurance and whether

or notthe applicant has had possible lapse

in coverage

LexisNexis AnthMoney

Laundering Soutions

Content md inter mation fm anti money

taunder inca emptianc risk mitiqatien

and enh anced due diligence

Accurint for Collections

The leading online US solution to help tecate

debtors quicktyarrd accur atety

LexisNexis

Identity Management

Ranqe of solutions to help clientsver ify ttmat

an identity exists and authenticate ndivideals

LexisNexsD RiskView

Com creh nave suite nf credit risk

man agenient tools to help assess ensurner

cred tworthirie cc arid risk potential

LexisNexis Revenue Recovery and Discovery

Suite effects to enable governments to lever age public records and

analytics to identity instances ot fraud and to none etticiently collect

on outstanding debts
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Risk Solutions co ti neC to focus on dove oping pehne of

newm utionsto orive growth in selected ad acent mar kets and

geographies For cxarnple the UK Risk tutions has launched

anew product that uses pub ic information to he insurers assess

and egra crrt risk more effectively among rr tor insurance

customerr and is planning to launch addit or al innovative

pr
oductC to facilitate sha ong ot data across otor insurers

improv ng nsurei abilityto understarrd underwriting risks

In thi government segnient customers are adopting fraud

dote tiori waste and abuse solutions which enabla government

ager ice to dentifv inc idenca sot tax and benefits fraud arrd boosf

rove me collectio as Risk Solutions has also continued to hr oaden

its por tfolio of do itity mariagenient solutor ncludi ig

orret me password and brometi it solut on and has made

cx sting identity products more configurablc to address tho

poc tic need of customers at ross our market segments

ffie identityvor fkotion and risk evaluation olutiorrs provided by

Risk Solutions utiase comprehensive database of
pLiblic

records

and proprietary infer mation with more than i000 ferabytes of

un que data which makes it the largest databae of its kind in the

US mar ket today LexisNexie Accurintis flagship product

powered by the Hgh Performance Computing Cluster HvCC
tech io ogy This market loading technology enables Risk

SolLi otis to provide its customers witfr highly relevant sear cli

rose ts swiftly and to create new low cost sclut one qn kly and

eftic ontly It is also increas ngly used acros tither Reed Elsevier

markets such iC egal arid Sciont tic fechr cal Med cal

In Jo mary 2013 Risk Solutions onnouriced the sale of its

Screan
rag

business his will allow Ito incrc ace its bc us or

high at growth seqrrients leveraging its corc data technology and

analytical apab ties The 5cr eeninrg business presented hi ted

opportunities to applythcse capabilitiesto gorier ate unique

customervalue Costa md growth arid supenio mar gins

92Cm

Pr at/Other

Risk Solutions operates in markets with sIr iq long term

unde lying growth di vers including insuran underwriting

transactions inst rance healthcar tax arid entitlement fraud

credit defaults and nancialfraud regulatonycomplianrce and

due dil genre reqLurements urr ounding custorrier enr olment

and security consider atioris

thc insurance segment growth is suppor lcd by increasing

transactional activity ira the auto property dl fe insLirance

markets and the increas ng adoption by nsurance rarric of

mo sophist rated data and analytics in the
pr ospccting

underwr
itirrg

and aims evaluation proces es assess

under writing risk increase cornpet tiveness and improve

operating cost of icien iransactional activity driven by

product extensions across insuranre carriers wor kflow and

growth nrsurance quoting as consumers eek better policy

Ic ms his activrty stimulated by increasing ompet lion

between insurance onrpanirs high levrlsofcarrieradvertising

and ricing levels of internet quoting arid polity binding

nLiriiber of factors support growth for risk solutions irr tha

financialservices mar ket includ nq newcredit originations

continued high fraud losses sIr ngent regulatory ompliancc

requirements arid incre
isirig

ant money La jndering fines Ii

receivables management demand is driven mainly by levels of

consumer debt and the prospect of recovering that debt wf rh

impacted by employment conditions tithe US ri corpor ate

iarkets demand supported by growth in online retail sals arid

continued high levcls of credit card fraud Growth govc nmerit

markets is driven by the increasing use of data and analytics to

combat criminal activity fraud arid tax evasiorr and to addr es

security issues The leveland timing of demand ii this market iC

influ nced by governmen funding and evenije considerationa

Oover nmeni

Electronic

96
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Rr otc one tr ateqc qua1 is to make bu nesseo nd

qovc nnrcnt mom eltc ctivc It ough abc tter under etandnq

of ih coo iated with individua cmli besine seo and

rnu is and by provding the highe qual ty toots to help

iranmigeiho ri keelfic ontlyand cost eetivetyToachwvethic

Sotut on focued on dehver ing nnovative new pr oducis

croo cucto workflowc expanding the ange cf risk

manage ientso ho macre sadjacent markets adressinq

ntorn iNc nato portunities in or tooted ma ket to meet ucal ok

oanaqcr ient inc or tinuinq to str iqtoc its ontent

tee iotoqy ano rnalyhcat aoabilities

Rik Sot ition products ire predoroinantlymtct dir ectty with

pr icing nic tty on tr in actionai hasi for insurance car iers

rd ii poration md
pr marty on subccr iptiori basis for

gov rn ricnt end ties

Rck Solution and Veri am ompetitor ea sell data and

analytics otutioris to inurance car er but largely addre

differ ent ret vitiec Rick Solutions principal competitors in

qv mgm sit
ii

clda Thor uson Reuto

anc roaj edit burr au ru maiiy addre inq different

tivit ii the segrne ruts us weti
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Underlymg revenue growth accelerated slightly 2012 as we

extended our data analytics solutions across nsk markets

dnvng strong growth both insurance and Business Services

and return to growth in the Government segment The

improvement in adjusted operating profit margmlargely

reflects the impact of disposals with underlying cost growth

broadly matching revenue growth reflecting ongomg spend

on new product development

Und lying rcvenue arid adjusted operating ofits both orew e6

fc nu ance business
gr nJur np rvcnxcs wrh

colic growth ret ect ng the extens on of products and services

across tte insurance carrierwor kf ow and expansion in new

mar Pet segrr ent The intei nationat launches progressed welt

in 211 albeit or scale that was not crater ralto Risk Solutions

over at

Bus ices Se vice ci evenue growth acce crated to In fnarrciat

sei ces the ant money launder ng iud detect on arid credit

dec aonng otut ons alt perfor med SI and revorrues were

pcs vcly rnpactcd bysorne temporary effects of rcreased

mor gage rehnarcing tivities Our receivables marragerrent

husi ices emaine ci soft

it Govrnmerrt busines returned to growth in 2012 reflecting

poor demand for newfr aud detection produ the state

bra segment with cont nu ng mode rate de Ii aes ri
the

fede al segment

92/ 908

sk Solutions market segr rents now leverage HPCC
our proprietary Dig oana tecnnotogy cor aD ne proprietary

public and th rd party nforra ation with advanced ama yt cc to

help customer in evalu rling predicting and managing en

and improving efficiency 31 busines is atreadyvir tuattv

100 electronic

In January 20ldweannounced the disposalof the Screcr rig

business which has been excluded fr em underlying revenue

growth figures If Scr eening had been included in the under ly rig

resuLts the underlying revenue growth rate for Riok Sc tutrons

as whote would still have been

Undorlpi ry ot growth was Lii uadly ii
hire wirh revenuc growrh

2012 ref ect
rig spend on new products and contnt sets

the adjusted operating profit mar increased by 2.4
pi rcentage

points lar gely reflecting the impact ot per tfc tic char gee in 20

2013 Outlook

Risk Solutions oper ats markets with st ong tong rr

underlying growth drivers and we will continue to inve stir

new prodcicts that yr rage our loading content and expert so

in big data analytics and cxerid our services acres custome

wor kflows We expect ontirrued good growth ii the In ira rc

end Bus niece Servirn market cogmonto ar mxed

Rover nmerit mar kets

Sri

Cxx So xxx ego re .o edo

xxxro in poIi 2010 rx xix or ix bon

Cr pnxc Tiohis

2012

Cm

Revenue 926 908

Adj sted operati ag Pr
out 392 367

2010 Or

362

2010 2011 2012

xl oNex Cu ii lov on do 1w xi rb -c fron nix
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Reed Pure rcss InlorrTiaton RBIJ pr
vidr data cervices

in or ition and mar cc brig solutions tc busne profe sionals

et rdutriesgloba ly tproduce ndustrycri icaldata

ervices idle gener its ool online cc mmunity sites

welles bu nec rnegtz rim with market leading positions in

rranyse lois

venuE to the year or ded 311 combs 2812 were 663in

P81 is yR bal husine cc headqu ir tred in Sutton ir the UK and

in addition is principal operations in London Arnt rdam
kokie bnoi Norci orgra and Boston Massachusett

the US wet Par is Milan and Shar ghai P81 has 4800

employee worldwide

Pill br icr nose data ervices to help make key

atcgic dcci on and reduce risk to rn rove productivity and

perform ince end ide iti new bunines opportunities PBI

riagazinei indwebsi esdelive highvalue news information

and opin onto bu inc ca profe iVonals across many industry

ector wni1e al providing an cffm live marketing channelfor

osborne rs P81 onh re marketi iq solulior bring buyers and

llor tog the hrc ugh ang of innovat vt digital chan iels

Reed Burdness Information

P81s market leading data servicer include IC/ti rir irriorma ion

and pricing sd vice in chemicals her tilisera and energy

BankerAcr urly pr iv dci oh payrmic nh outing data ati money

laundering AMI rvice and sun ptiance irifor mation to the

banking and orporatc cc tor XperlHR an online ervice

providing regulatcrry guidanc be pra tices arid tool for h/P

professionaL and Ree IConstr uction Oaf apr wider of online

ronstruction data and irrlor mationto the constr uction industry

P81 leading brands include Newtieientist Carrneis Weekly

states Gazelle tIne ski magazine nd Boerderp Online market ng

solutions include emedra enema bulletin based tead gene lion

servi and Boyr/orrc aweb based request for quotation RIO

service

In 2012 P81 continued to reshape it portfolio sigrrific cOy

addressing continued grcwth oppu tur itie in data erve en while

exiting areas not core to Is paid cor tent strategy In addition

the business continued to focus on rust effi rem acro the

traditional publishing bosirresse

As pert ofthi atrategy P81 sold lotaljobs Group ornpr rig
seven

recro trnenl job boards creates organically by PSI PSI cent nued

to ream value fr ore irexisting maga ne or ano whine exiting

riumbc oh titles including Variety the entertainment rarer ket titl ii

In US and those nlhe electronic and cater
rig

market in the

UK In January2013 P81 anrrcrunced that illiad completed he sale

of P81 Australia P81 is id Pr
ocesslo cx its op rra ions in Span

tas
Global provider of new price hcnchrnar kc

dale anialynics md research to the energy

chernicel and rib er ndotr icc

Data newa and advisory services for

professronatsworkrng in the global

avretion industry

Payrnent retiring data API scrvrr

and cornpl ance toots for the banking

and cor porate sectors worldwide

Prey dci etactronab err igfrt for the

cernCr crctron industry througt cot data

project beads market intelligence arid

nrai ket iq solution

Xpert
tint as HR intelligence

Online servrceswifh reference dat

cempirance inlormafren and good pr
act cc

gurdes far HP professionals

estatesgazette

News data and reseat cli services for the

Ulcenrmnencr0tpropertyrndcrst

NewSdenDst
World leading crcnce and techneloqy

inedrin brand

LSFVI
Leading news and oprnren mniagazinre

in thc Netherlands

media
Digital lead generatrerr servrcos Sr tlr US
UKand Europe
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RDI tr ategic goats to help business profe ssior ale achieve

bett outcorTies with niormahon and decis on ipport its

idi dual marke Its arc as of strateoicfocus are furthoi

growing the data so vices businesses estr ucturing the

busa eec magasi ros and adverti ng driven portfol

deve top ng pa ontwrt sorvicc sin koy mar et and

sup or tirig pr nt ranchises through brand extens one md
rede sign and drising further organiationa offertivenes

Acrc ss the RHI pc tlolio user and subscr ption revenum now

accou ml for 69 cfthe tota busines with th emaining 31

dci ived from
pr ir md onl ne advert sing ar Lead genei atior

RBI Gecti onic rerenue st cam now accoui for 54 of eta

evonue

0c5 Bus

Mag 11 1-ervvjes

The growing noed for gh quatity industr data arid infoi matior

driv ng domind for ontine subscr
iptioi

data ervicm and pi ov ng

nc upportun Business to bus ness mrketing spend has

historcaltybeen driven by levels rf corporate profitabil ty whic

ifsof ha followe DDE orowth and busines investment

25

Data services are typically sold directLy on ubs
iptior oi

transactional basis Bus essi magazinc are mainly disti butcd

on paid isic Adver tising and Lead generati in evenu

sold directly orthrough agents

PHIs data sc rv ces and tIes ompete with nun ben of pubIc her

service and title by titLe basis including UBM McGraw

and Wotten Kluwer as wolf as many nicE arid privately owro

competitors PHI ompetos for onL no advor tisir witf ott er

bus ness to bu inos websites as welt as Google and other

search engines

46

38

51

11
CCII

54% 69%
62

00 21 2012

rE dHrlgpl no Sorotu cui2uhs iptul Jr by 011

growit ur p1 bu es drd cr11 II

rnandi dis cv

poll vuflue

662v

lit Air
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mproved undertymg revenue growth 2012 ref Lects strong

growth from most of ow Major Data Servces busmesses

modest growth Marketmg SoLutons and Leadmg Brands

and moderation the rate of decline mOther Busmess

Magazmes Serv ces 2012 we continued the transformatmn

of the business exiting businesses that no Longer fit our

strategy We hay remarned focused on process efftciencms

which together wth portfolio deveLopment benefts drove

percer tage pomt margmmprovemenL

Underlying revenues crew r2 and under lying adjusted

operating profit grewIUT

Doubled growth at Banker sAc cortyond /0/8 hr Iped to dr ye

growth ir Major Data Rer vic cc on held back by continued

weaknc on tr uction data Major Data Service now

accoc ntal approxiinatoly4M/o ofc ontinuing portfoho pr
oforma

revonue indtho jor ity
of Reed Busnc cc Inform tion

opr stino rohL

Mar Pete 3olutio is dehvercd modest growth 2012 and

following the disposal of Tolaljobs and Hotfrog accounts for

only matl
pr opartion of ontrnuing portfolio eve ues

cad ng trand also cOvered mo lcd arid tying revenue

gi
owth Id perform nrc si the UK aor ultur and props rty

cectorewero off et byadver to ng dectinea olcowho

Other Bus nec Magasinc Services aw moderals rg underlying

reven ie dechrre and ontin ed portl000 reshaping

We have continued to ext busirressc tha no longer ht ir str stogy

inch ding Iota/robs Marketcast VarieR RBI Austraha RF3I Spain

and number of smallt usineses in other markets

rr 2012 we continued to focus on process in sow lion which together

with the benefits of portfolio development helped to inc case the

adjusted open atirig profIt rnargrrr by 12 per entage poi rtr to rr

hi tor Ic high of 18%

These actions have contributed to the tr arm ormation of Reed

Busines Intor IT ation
pr

ohlc witf user and subsc ption con vice

now accounting for nearly 70% of evenues and electronic reven ie

troamsrrowaccountingforover half of the total

In Deceniber su were srganiseu uur uk uuayuuuuc ut ctr uctu

bring exisNexis Risk Sotuhorrs sd Rer Ru Infor nat on

together more closely orderto ont rrue to old nut sk

hotuhons rapid growing business globally plan to leve agc

Risk Rotutions strength in data an ilytir and technology in

ombination wbh Reed Busirres In ormaDon broader geogu iphic

footpr nt and industry ecific databases

2013 OutLook

Demand for data analytic sin our rrrarketseg nenrts continues to

grow although pr
ntand advertising revenues rcmain wock In 2013

wt LxpeLt curt uud guud growth in MaR Data Rcrvcc stabl

Leading andsandturther benefi%frompor tfoliore hap ng

2012

venur

Adju ted operatlsg profil

663 695

119 110

ruugrcrn
cui cC urci ii

2%

0%
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Legal

nLcoa narkt weareawo Id

Lcadng ov der of Ic gal

corporate govcrnmcnt nd

aciu Ifl Cli Full

ei ng cc em cm more than I/b countr roe cxicNex cLog it

ProfeA monet ovmde esc coand or rvmc ethat inform

do omen mere productmv ty arid drive business

Rcvenu efor th year ended 31 Decenrl or 2012 were L16lOrn

exieN xi lqal Pr efee mo 13110 hoedi uerto md in New York

end hac
pr ncmpol operilmoim in the New Yor korea Ohio and North

rrohn ir the Und State Toronto in Canada London and Pare

urope and citrec cove ii other en ri re in Africa and Ama

ito hi in 1i lnye 11 mc1

exioNe ro Legs Profess neal mc orga ired in arket facing

nope he ignmfii rn ore PeA irch ligation Solutions

md Pu so oil aw Software Solutions in the US md LexisNexic

Internal erral and xc Nexo Acia outside the US Th so are

uppOr td by globel hared ocr vicea organicationo providing

p1 itlor in md produc develop mierit poratiorral arid dictributiori

serv ceo arid othr suppor llmnctione

ii Resear 1mg ition Solotiorro dec trenic ntornmrtion

colution and in rovativeworkilow root develope through

lece celL bor mon wilt Custer iers help leoal arid busineso

LexkNexis go

profees onalo nake better ir for med decicions in the actic of

law arid in managing therr busrriesc laghmp productsfor legal

rc search are/ox/s rem md LexrsAcJvarc which provi fedrral

and state statutes and case law together wittr analysc md export

comrnentai ies ii mm cour ci uc hr Malthewt3cndcr and Miehic

and the leading itetroi service Shepards whir adviseA on thi

onlinuing relevance ol case law pr
ccdenits Reearch solut on

also include mws and husin information ranqirrgfrorn daily

new to cemparrylmlrrigo acwell as public recerds infer niat

and analytics ltrrough ts litigation
Aol itron xi Nexro

prflvrCrP iyor wirh sutr of tonl cevonnrj ni epar shoe

to
prcr essirig arid eviewto trial preparation cx oN sxmc

partrrero with law crhriolo to provide cervi cole otcide nto as

part ol their trei ring

Ii 20121 exisNexm introduced in the US two ncw ret aces

ci exeAdvance an innovative web apphcal on designed to

trmn form hew legal prole don Cs corrduct research bluilt on

an advarmed technology platter LexmAdvmnce illowo rirnary

researcher wrthirm legoland profeecionalorganisatroncto find

highly relevar inform iliori rnor acily and effmc eritly fri ping

tiern to drive better eutcorne Future leases will continue to

expand content and add iew rrrnovarive toots exrcmploy

lawyer mnd trained edlors with
pr

ofes ionallegal backgrounds

who review inotare and update the legal onterrlto help riourt

cad document mrr the collection is current arid nmpnt henroive

his domain xper tie combined with he apphcat on cf Reed

Elsevier big data HI CC technology mc an exiNexi ablc

to update its oritmr etc galcollcctror laster and more efficiently

while also ident fyinq aid linking cc ntent en blmng cuctumor0

to uncovt previously undmscovereo relatiorich ps between

doe mire ent

Lexs
Unpai miteled Ic gal rew and public ieeords

orient for
legal professionals

Lexis for Microsoft Office

Plc gratmon elf exioNexmmm content open web

search arid Microsoft Off
mc

Lexis Library
exioNexis Ukflagmhip legal online product

Matthew Bender
Critical analysc checkhots for mc and

pr
mc lice guide iuthered by industry expert

covering over dJrnajnr prmcmmceareas

Sheparas
Premier ritatmon service

LexsPSL
LexmsNexms UKtegalprnctical

guidarrcc service

LexsACv3n
New online legol research tmol that

tr mnc or mc tIme way legal proPs aerials

conduct reeeai

Lexis Practice Advisor

New resource that offers guidance to help

attorneys handle transactional matters

more efficiently and effectively

JurisCiasseur

Largeot most authoritative online legal

resource ri
Frirrce
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exsNexis launet ex.c PrachceAdvisor the US In 2012

weL baced proc1 cat guidance product tartored for attorneys

who andle tr on ctIonal matter Addihonalty exisNexis

ntroduced lega news solution through the acquisition of Law360

providing otto neyswrth breakrnq news and analyss by pract cc

ea to supplemer tthe legal rose rrch process

Irr ligation soluhon exisNoxis releaced sled Concordance

Evoti icn wI ih fully hosted seE vrce that delivers electr onic

ovoryrevrewcapabrhtissonan on demand basis Sanction

Solut ons wac also acqu red adding trIal pros ntatron settware

to the LexisNexls uite of litigatron offe ings

heebbased mirketing set vices group as sts lawfirm in

heir bent development through awyers.co rr arid provdinq

the ii with webs te development searcher grne optlmrsatrc

and rer web mar keting sorv eec

exlsNexis Business oft aw Software Solutions provides tow

firris with practice management olutions including time arrd

brllinq systems case management cost ecovery and document

management er vices

Ir Intl natrc nd irkets nrrtside the llnitnd St tIe exisNexK

serves legal corporate gever rment accounting and academic

markets in Europe Canada Afr rca and Asra tic wrth local

andinternatronal lcga re gulatoryand busrness rntormaton

Ihe most signifrcant busrnesses are the UK France Alrstr aba

Canada and South Africa

exrsNexis on previd ng customers rth leading

colLec errs of content and innovatIve onLne solut ens to help

legil md business profes ronals make bettc decisIons mete

effrc ntly Penetration ofonl ne inforriation ervices has growr

otr ongly and dc tt onic so utrons now accountfor 58 of evenue

etc de nrc US

In tie UK exrsNex rs leadng legal rnfor mat on provide

ten an unrrval ed colIc ctrorr of pros it yand secondary

.eg slit on ease low expert cernmentar and forms and

precedent Its exterrs ye portfol rncludes number of her tage

br anc llsburys ToIley Butterwo I/ms he content is delivered

thriugh multiple tnrriats from
prr

itto onl ne to mobile apps

once nbedded in customers workflow

In 2012 LexisNexrs laur ched additional modu es of the cx/ sPSL

prodLrct suite whrch provIdes lawyers single destrnatrc tot therr

practical egal Infer matron needs with rect hr ks to the e1 vant

cases legislation precede nts for mc pr actrcal guidarree and

expert comrrrentany The ability to drive measurable custer icr

value was recognised by the British egalAwands which hus

named Lex sNexis UK 20 Supplier of the Year br Its inn ivation

authority and understanding ut lawfrms needs irnilar service

is be ng laLinched across ott er manket Austraha already has 13

practee area modules and bythe end of rrext year it will have mere

In Eranc LexrsNexis is lead ng or hr
pr ov den of informatie ito

lawyers notar es arid courts herItage brand Jut isClascur at

leading authoritative content provided th ough nic
Itiple

Ic mats

lexi nexs fr mebrle art in print Irese content sources are

as the UK being combined with row content aid innovative

worktlowtoels to develop practicalguidance arnd practice

managemer soluhons In 2012 LexisNexs Erarrce launched

Lexis 360 the first seriantic search online tool combini
rq legal

informatIon practical content aid results from the web

Following the success of Lexis for Microsoft GLue- ELMU In US

ma kets al nnodHnvensininwas aunrbr-/m
in

2012 LMU nablen

customers to acce LexisNoxis content an servln via add iris

toolbar withit Mict oseftWord and Outlocrk

Itt 2012 exisNexis Legal Professional strengthened Is

positions in Asia through enhan ed products created specifically

for legal professionals arrd practItioners corporate counsels

legal reearchers and government nstitutiens in markets

neludlng Ind hir arrd Jap Irr Japan LexisNexin launched

exis/-IS ONE product created spceific thy for cot pot ate

or iplian and legal protess orrals to he nay gate the

complex regulatory envi orinient

29
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Longer or ii growth leqaland ogr lot rymar Rots wor ldwide

dr irs by ore irg leveL of logo lahon egula in regulatory

complexityand gTho and inoreasing nurnbr of lawyers

Al rtiono marke opporturirti are pr conted hythe increasing

demand for onhnc rotor mihon solutions and practice

rranagr nttool that mprove he qu ility
and productivity of

csear ch delive bettor legaloutcom improve bu ness

perfor inc No withstanding this Ic galactrvrty and legal

in mali markct are alo inftucnced byoconom inditions

and nor ate ct vity oh br on sec with the dampening

imp rd or 1cm ard of the recent global recession and the

omcwhat sul dued envirorrr ient that olrowed in North Amer ca

and in urop

Ic to op tee

xisNoxr eg Profesoro tr tcgic goal kilo enable

bett galout or io and bethe leading provider of product vity

enh ncia of rrrnatiorr and iformat on hascd wor ktlow solution

in its mar Rots to chrsve the exisNexo focusr on rntroduc irrg

nextqer atror poducts irrdool itiononthogtobalNewLoxi

plAtorr rand astr ucturr levc raging New Lexis globally to

contirrc to di iv
pi mt to loctr onic migration and long term

mt root onalgrowth arid upgrading opcrationalinlraotr ucture

mpr oviro proc ss etficrerrcy md grad ally improving rrrar gins

lrr lb xcNexrs Ic cus on trw
riinurrrg

devc lopment of

ncxt yr nor atior legal resea oh and practice solutiorrs ho also

orrduct
mg major upgrade operat on irrtrastruc ture and

cutom so vicr andoupportplatloim Itiowillprovido

with an integ ated aid supr nor experierr acros

US legal research htgation rvicos pr
act cc management and

client develof mint Ovc the next tr wyearo progn ssiv product

introductions ofterr baed on the New Lexi platfo leveraging

trig data HPC teclmnolcgy will combine dvanced to Thnology

with ciii rched content sophistic aled an rlyticc and apphcat ons

to nabto lox sNoxis custornier sb make better logaldecisrons

arid drive better out or res for thc
in or ro atioirs and cherrts

Outside the Un exisNexis isfoc used or
gr

owmn onrlrn rervic

and dovolopmng further high quality actionable corrtc nI and

wor ktluw tonIc ii ciudrr
iy

the dovlupmeit ct proc tiLdl 1urdar

and practice mariagenent ppticationrs In 013 exisNoxiswill

begin to mrlrodr cc New Lexis globally Additionally Lox sNoxis

focusmg on the expaiinon of mt act vities in emerging markets

3uet re mode Ic ulto bar ip

LexisNexi cgal ProlesionaIpi oduct and servicesare

generally sold directly to law firms and to corpor ate government

accounting and academic customer on paid suboc niption ha

with subscriptions with law firms often urid multi yr or

coritn act

Prrnc pal competitors for LexisNoxis in US legal mar kot ore

West homsoni ReutorsL CCH Wolters Kluwer and Blooirrbcng

and Fac tiva News Corporation in news and bu incss mnfor mat on

Compel lois in litigation solutions also nclude Utware

companie kiginifn ant inter natiorral compchntor incIude

humson Reuters Woltor Kluwcr arid bactiva
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Undertyrng revenue growth was positive despite subdued LegaL

markets in the US and Europe Growth was dnven by eLectronic

revenues which account for over 75% of totaL revenues 2012

we conhnued to reLease new products and pLatforms which

have been weLL received The adjusted operating profit margin

improved in 2012 refLectrng process effciency

UnderLying even es grew a-1o and underlyi rig adjusted

operatng profits grew-r-4

In the US usage and sates of online research and Otigation

sow1ionsto Lwfi msg ewdespte chaLlang ng market

conditions Underlying revenues from gover nment and corporate

customers aLso
gi ew modestly Print revenues continued to

decline and News Business revenue de Li cc moder ated

L.exisNexis ntroduced new releases of LexisAdvance during 2012

co -nbining our deep domain expertise and content with Reed

Etseviers big data HPCC technoLogy to altow esear chei

within Legal and professionutorganisationsto find highly relevant

infer nation more easityand efficientLy the newapplications

have been well re eived with US ustomer penetration of

by2Ol2yearond

In Europe market cond tioris ma subdued with robust growth

in online everiur lar geLy offset uy declining print revenue

The 2012 adlusted operating profit marg mpr oved sLightty witf

process efficiencies more thur offsetting continued spend on new

product development

2013 OutLook

We wiLL continue to roll out new products arid platforms 2013

and wilt rrrainta our focus on process efficiencies Our cutorner

markcts remain subdued however limiting the scope for revenue

and prof growth

fErn

pro
for ma boor

2012

Revenue

Adusted oper xting prof
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Exhibitions

Exhbitons we are the worLds

Leading events busness with

aLmost 500 events over 30

countr es

Reed xhibition portfolio of exhibition and onfe rences serves

44indut ysecto croestheArnencas Lurope the Middle East

Africa and Asrr Pacih In 2012 Read Exhibitions brought together

over óm went participants from around the world generating

bill one of dollar in bus ines for its cutomers and boosting the

iO alecono iiir swhere the ventsar hoted

Revenues forth year ended 31 December 2Ol2werefBb4m

Reed Exhibitions is global business headquartered ml ondon

and has orincip IOffiLe in rris Vienna Norwalk tConriectiLutl

Sao Pau Abu Dhabi Beijing Tokyo and Sydney Reed Exhibitions

F.as3200employee worldwide

Reed xhihition organises narket Ic ading event which are

relov ntto indu try needs where participantsfro ii around the

world meet face to fa to do business to network and to learn

Its exhibition sand corifernce enc ompae wide range
of

ectors theyincludeconst uction elcctronics energyand

alternative ene gy engirieeningentortainmentg
ftsand

jeweller health are hopitality interior design logistics

manufacturing phar maceuticals real statc recreation

ec urity and afr ty transport arid travel

Mar ket opec turntms

Growth in the exhibitions market is influenced by both business to

business marketing spend and busin ss investment turically

these have been driver by levels of corporat profitability wh

in it tui has followed overall growth in GDP merging ar kets

arid growth industries provide additional opportunities As some

events are held other than annually growth in any one year is

affected by the cycle of non annual exhibitions

Stra ecuc priont

Reed Exhibitns dr gir rjoI istrr prnvxle rkr leadina

events in growth ector especially in higher growth geogi aphies

enabling cxhibitor to target and reach new customers quickly

and cost effectively and providing platform for industry

participants to do buines to network and to karn To achieve

this Reed Exhibitions is focused on driving organic growth by

leveraging itsglobalectorexpeit se bydevelopinq newevent

and by building out itstechnology atforms It is also shaping the

portfoliothrough combination ofeti atejic partner Ihipsand

selective acqucations in high growth sectors and geographies

as well as withdrawal from rriar kels and industries with lower

growth prospects

Reed Exhibitions is committed to continually improving customer

solutions and experience by implementing best practice initiatives

across geographies arid sectors Its integrated web event platform

is used by more than 70 per cent of events and is driving both

customer satisfaction and insight Using ustomer ins ghts

Reed Exhibitions has developed an innovative product alfe ing

which enhances the value proposition for exhibitors by broadening

their option inter me of the type and location of tandtheytake

and the timing of their commitment to the event
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In 20 Reed Exhibitions Launched 30 new eve ts hese included

events which extended the geugr aphicalfootprint of the Luxury

trave brand Lvi to Mexico and the high end Pr ivejewellery

brand Lu Panama Reed Exhibition Japan re ponded to customer

demo nd by introduc ng several new events some of which were

the fast moving sectors of cosmehc.s and Ii gh technology

plast cs InCh na the Nepcon brand was usr tcr Launch ar

elect on manufacturing event in the westc rn city
of Chengdu

ye irent of lding business inCh rra arrd Bra lisa regional

stra egy tak ng mare evc nts Lu Chinas secorrd tier Lies and

do lug events from 5ao Pauc to Recife Br azifv fast devloping

nor eat Reed xh tiorrs now orqanises wer LaO events in

emerging market

ur rber of Large ed acquisitionswere completed during 2012

In Brazil Reed Ext ibitions took Lu ownership of its oint

ver Lure Reed xhbitions Alcantara Machado arrd expanded

into hospitality tEqu potel and logist cs Movi nat cementing

Reed Exfrihitiorrs position as the Leading exhibition organizer

in Bro zil Elsewhere acquisitions were nrde to extend

Reed Exhibitions reach in China and its global position in the

alter native ene gy sector During the year Reed Exhibitions

also established positions new mar kets Lh attractive growth

prospects including Indonesia Saudi Arabia ldTu key where

ajoir venture has beer created with Tbyap the count rye

leadrig event organiser

GEO1.RAPHY OF 2812 LAUNCH REVENUES

Busnesc modeL dictrbutmn canneLs and competItIon

The substantial majority of Reed Exhibitions revenue arc from

sales of exhibit on space The balance includes confererrce fees

online and offline advertising sponsorship fees and for some

sfrows adm scion charges Exhibition space is sold directly or

through focal agent where app cable Reed Exhibitions often

works in co laboration with trade associations which use the

events to promote access for rnembersto domestic and export

mar kets and th goverrrmente for whom events can provide

irportint support to stimulate foreign investment and promote

egonal and national erterprisc

Reed Exhibitions isthe global market leader fragmented

industry holding less than 10 percent global market share

Other inter national exhibition organiser include UBM nforma

HR and some of the larger German Me se irrcluding Messe

Frankfurt Messe Dusseldorf and Messe Munich Competition

alzo comes from industrytr ade association and convention

centre and exhibition hall owners

EVENTS IN EMERGING MARKETS

Rest of world ft.

Europe 25

nr an nerd iorarino has Incroa..e events rak
ng place

ir
high growth geoqraph en rhiougir

tour rhes and acquioitions

REVENUEBYFORMAT

085dm

Orher

Eacc ro face

47

REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHIC MARKET

085dm

Rest of World

North Amer

Norrh America

On an cvnt location basis
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2011 inanclaLpa formance

Exhbtbons performed strongly in 2012 dnven by strong growth

the US and Japan moderate growth rn Europe and double

thgt growth ci most emergmg markets Wecontmuedtornvest

throughout the year Launchuig 30 new shows in totaL and we

strengthened our poston in high growth markets through

partnerships aid targeted acquisdions

Und ly ng reven reyrew 150 t7%excludrng bi nniclevent

cy hngl and undcrty nq adjusted operating proht grew 420%

In US md Japan undo lying revenuos grew tr 3ngly and

ewrh 0mr ipg ket mac to douhle digite tar

pod growth Ito number of core event heft dto offset some

oUr as in outhorn rap an mar kot eult ng moderate

undc lying vs nue yr owth ove all ii region

During we un hod 30 aew eve its
prirr only in high growth

edo and geo aphi and con plc cod nurnberot targeted

cc quiritic Br dZi we took full owner hip of our aint venter

AU antara Mac iado and expanded nt ho 0pital ty
arid ogistics

md in Turk ywe erected now joint venture with luyap tho

4our frye lead
rig evnlorgi ricer

2012 adjusted open atinig profit mar gin ir proved by 1.0

pm rem ntage int reflecting hoth rnr eec effir ien cc and

the pus it ye in ipa tel Sian oialcvent yclrng

Dun ing the year we mntinued to rot out global plcthrms and

proc sees acro geographies and sector Our integrated web

everot platter now used by mon than /013 of ovenU driving

custorrc satisfaction end providing customer insijht Innovative

prodLe ts and sorvices are enhencirog tIre value proposition to

exhib tore by broadening their range of option

2013 Outlook

In 2013 we expect cod growth in th US and lapin limited growth

nt urope and tr any growth in off mar mere Hcrwevn 2013w

hiennnalcyclnnrg out year reducing under lying ver us grcwth

byb ópercentagopoinls

F3everrci

Adjusted iperating profit 210

O12

Sm fil

854 /07

16/

She 05

ru fl

21%

303 s20%
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Corporate responsibility

Con tant ci qaqcment with stakehotdc ii cluding shareholders

mployoc omrr unrtie in whi we opc rate and gown nments

clps us deC rrnine material orporate respon ibrlity issues he

Reed Ckevier Br ard senior management and the Corporate

Rer oon bitity Fr ru overs corresponding objectives and

monitor erf im anc agarncr thom

We concentrate on the contrrbutionswe make asa business

and on good management of the material areas that affect alt

companies en ompassing

Our umque contnbuUons

Governance

PeopLe

Customers

CommunRy

SuppLy management

Environment

We for us on ar ci whei ewe can makc positivc impa ton iety

through our knowledge rcsources and skills ho includcs

univer alsustainablc accw rIo information advance of science

and health ole lion of society ar promotion of thor ito of law

and jutice

CIsc vier the world loading provid of cci ntific technical ir

medical inform ilion plays an mpor tent role in advancing hu nan

welfare and cc onom progre thr sugh Cc icience and hr ebb

infor mat on whir spurs thc diffusion of innovation and cnables

ci iticaldecvion making To nsuro escto thL infor main

Elseviem supporfs key progr mmes in place whc rcsour ccc

are often scarce Among them Resoarch4L fe 3rtner ship

with United Nations agencies and her publisher Ibis

partnership providescoreand cutting edgescieritific information

tore eamche sin more than 100 deieloping ountrie Ace

founding part nei we contribute bO0o of the con nt aver abC in

Reearch4L ifo encompassing all Science content in ludrnq

approximatc 2008 Elsevierjournl and 7000 book In the ye ir

iere wore more their 6m Rose ircl 4Life article downloads

from Scieurce cC including from Acc sto Rescar ch for

Dcvelr pmenf and Innovation ARCh progr amine which wojoiriod

in 202 ri addition to upportfor ongoing pi ojects thc El evier

oundation committed $65000010 .upport libraries new

scholars and nur ing in luding ci antto the Mcdi ill ibrar

Association/I brariaric Without Bordcrs librarytraining

initiative in Latin Anic rica arid Asia and the App ilachian Wc men

Scientists programme at Appalachian State Ur von city ii the US

exisNexis RickSolutionstoolsand esourceshelp protectsociety

LcxisNexis Risk Solutic no BridgerinsightXU watch list crconing

solution is used bvover 3000f nancielirrotitufrons ulobally to hol

enouro ompliarice with sanction regulation ftc corr birration

the Br idger Ii sight XC solution with Reed Business Informal on

Bankcr AccuilyClobalWatch ist global data set of motioned

or high risk entities hr Ips cc stomer erisur op eactive

comphance xisNexis Rkk Solutions employees cre ited the

Automated Uolivery of Alerts on Missing Children AUAM

programmowhich assists in the safe rocovoryofm .dng childrc

ADAM alerts circulate missing child posters more than ire ii

2012 to police news nrodi schoc busirre we rrrcdical entrc

arid other recipient within spec.rfi geographic search area

Since launching in 2000 hIbchildrerr have been located including

nine in 2012
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eed Ba srncs Infer mat or RBU uos the power of rt brandto

aid ommunitrs Old providing rrsw mmmr ket rntelbgrnce

for th chemical energyand fmtrl ser sectors he its nftrth

Innovation Awards in 20 Ito ward innovation in tire she nical

ndustr rancc RI odia won Best Innovation for Suatainabibty

for creating an or ba mine oroc to ecover scarci

tall lement strom onsorncr we te Over the past two years

Harrdre rsJournalha pa tnoredw th John riedato build

swarene of HAIRra ing char rtywhictr nec raised more than

im in cc pport ott oridons eat mar Street Children

Hospital flu ouph it publications ites ar slows

sisNoxis Legal Prof ssional promoteusticethrough its

oduct sad vice ltsRc Ic flawRescurceCenterisafroe

onli community covring topics like human rights prote ting

irnor ity common ties and arrti human trafficking In the year

Ia fin the UKds vclopedthef iii Hurrrsn Iraflicking Aw rreness

Index whi buses the Nexrs news service to highlight emerging

trends thin in mc ross netion lb in der sEa help campaigners in

tacireHomtsto combat traffic king Amono thewayslexisNexi

cxpandcd pro bcno psi tner hifsin 2012w throcgha new

collibor air with th lex Mundi Pro Bono Foundation to promote

liw fri ydgw writ with wicicd epi our ww key eruund

se world to imp ovc the lives of the poor and diseritranchised

Rced Exhibitions trade shows provide platformslc supporting

our cor por ate por sibilitytocu areas At the 2012 World Travel

Marks it global cv at tar the travel rrrdutr Reed Exhibitions

host World Pr sponsrble fouriom Daywith events available to

the shc cm ire har 40000 attendees en topk anging frorri

overly rcdc ctron to wits life otectiors and reducing greenhouse

ass miss on Ov rthe last nOse year Reed xhrbitions has

given Iree pace it tIm orrdoa Book air to BookAid Inter national

chic nnually provides more than mOO 000 boc in luding

thosc donated from rose Reed LVev er readcrs in th

cvc loping world cci rblinq the ci acitya engag fir wide range

of potential book and financial donor In 2012 is International

Vision tsp Coslenc ace expanded offe rngs for opturrietry

tudent through new mentor proyr amrne in mdditron to

prov dinigfree entry rjobfair an travelgrantsto tirderstsfrom

the sook of the Amer rc sri Optomctr ic Student Assoc rat on

rw ng on xpe tie acros Reed leevien in 2012w awarded

Pr 155 in lire cci ad ed Elevrort rvironmentalChallengeto

projectsthat ir spr ovi sutsinable acce stowmterar anrtation

eher pr atlyaf ifproC ecs to rlvan

product frorn our businessccto ni erly 600 registrants from

nc rethari aO coo strie mud saw 40/0 increase ri proposals ovsr

2011 II winner of the $50000 fir prize mc the Centre for

Afford mble Water and Sanitation lechirologyfor projeclthat

neodihie or arid filterowith iron par lisle iii orderto remove

water contam nant including vir uses to bring safe drinking

wafer to ruralvillagec in Nepal Over period ottwo years

150 fil en swill be installed econd
pr ic of$Ib000wenstlo

Sanerqyto extend pilot project in Kenya that ensures acce sible

arid affordable hygienic sanitation through network of

small scale high qualdy sanitation centres Sanergyto lets are

fr anchied to bc alentrepreneurs arid tiraulatethe economy

byturrsing waste into product such as organic fertilicer sold

to farms in 2012 wc expanded our Iter tic ncr gy portfolio

to include ncw product such vi orripnehnnsrve

RcnewabletnrergyaadReedE hrbrtror Uutunehnerqy

forum and Exhibition

Pr

ndex

rtn hip for

mpl rch4Lif

xp nd dlo II

sin ret oatnt

uppor to glob

ntre or th

xMundiPr no

und ion

90% in

regi tr lion 40% in

rnpropo ov Oil

wpnodu in lud

mprh nrv awble

rgyl vi ml adA

or gykorum

ad xhrbitron IR od

hrbrtron

xt nd

bud ocr at ddr ri

ialcrd

ad th Phrlrppra in

kind era ludrrr

ditorral up ad

igmi

Create cross business alternative energy roundtable to

foster Inowledge sharing arid product development

Deliver workshopswrth UNICEF on child centred cli nate

change ad
mptatroni in high bo ation

New partner hrpsthrough Reed Isevier nyu onnr ntal

Challenge to shame water arid sanitation expertise

Increase pro bo no partnerships

Broaden resch of Reed Elsevier

EavrrorimcntalCh illenqe

Expand alter native encr gy

product porlf kro

ste deeper causE

analyis of UNICEF climniate

chsngc and children report
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Co nplst on of Reed Elevier 100 completion ach eyed

The Reed Elsevier Code of Ethics and Business Conduct Ito Ic Code or E.thicc and Bus ness

is dissemi iated toeveryemployee setting the standard lot our Conduct training by 100 of

cot por ate and ir dividuat conduct Encompassing topics ...uch as
cmptoyees within 90 days of

fir competition anti br bery and human rights itencourages theirempUment ctart date

opt and principLed behaviour In 2011 wee su ed that 100 of

Continue bribery Law 100t of empLoyer
empLoyees co npLeted training on the Code th 90 days of

compt ante activities with compLeted onLine

starting their mployment We provided refresher cour ses on

partic itar reference totho UK training rotted out to new
co ipet tion Laws and data privacy and 0ecurityto staff that had

BriberyA ta id US Fort gn employees on an ongoing
co ipteted courses previously with 100 completion byyear

orr ipr
Pract cesAct basis in per so training

inc Mt US managers have compLeted act urse preventing
for employees in higher

wo kptace harassment
risk roles and geographies

We cont nued to enhance bribery law comr liance ci for tc intermediarydue diLigence

ic.uding compl anco with the UK Br bery Act and US I-ore ign and related monitoring as

Co rupt PracticesAct byensuring 100 empLoyees had part of routine process

compLeted ontir anti bnberytraininq at Least ice bythe ctoce
Recoi ds Managemer PoLicy Poticyissued toatt

of 2011 and roll it out to new employees on an ongo ng basis
rott out to the UK and other en ployees in ngtish

We suppLement online tra ning
with ir per on cess ens on top cc

countries speaking countnes

si equired inc uding training on competition law and preventing
guidance to bus ness units

briberyfor emp oyees higher risk positio mand Locations Each
on mptementalion efforts

ufi.br basne have designated Pre.entng Brib ary Wot king

Groups which engaged in mptemert ng and ovorse ing

compLiance act tics Our poLicies ti aining and other materiaL
Achieve 100 completion of aLL omputer basS

it deveLoped to help incure comptiancev ith Laws gL batty

compLiance courses
We also undertake intormediarydue diligence and monitor ng

Advance Record Management Policy imptement ton and
cS art of routine proc ss

roLlouttran tat ons

We maintair Record Management Policy Ri cord Retent on
EnIanccd train ng progran me for interna investigc torc

Schedule and rc tated resources to heLp mptoyees property
of Code of Ethicsar Business Conduct bit aches

mc nago company records sett ng out what why how and for

ho Long ffer nt types of records must retained and

diwosed of in the year we issued the potic yto all employees

in nqLisl speaking ountries

Reed Etsevier as gnator yof the United Natior sGtooat Corrpac

IUNGC1 busines es mustal gn their govt maice and operat ons

th tm princip es eLated to human rights labour envi or mont

and anti corrurtion We demonctrated leadership in 2012 by

serving on the UNGCAdvisoryGroupfot the UK and thc UNGC

SuaplyCha nAcvlsory Group We were at part of the CEO Water

Mandate Steer Group and repi esented he itiative on the

board of the AlLiancE foi Water Stewards up We participated

thi UNOCs Corporate Susta nabitity Forum Rio deianeiro

wt etc new WaterAction Hub was launched for whih we are

prcvid ng free news feed with water basin information Ihe

UPsGC udged our 2012 Communication or Progress required of

signatones tact year to have attained Advanced Level In the year

we provided video content on the UNGC for lawyers and ht Id

webinars uthe UNGC foi 01 suppLiers
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cash pr for the ch unties of th ir cho cont nuedto yr ow in

012 16 team iii 2011 took part acroas ed Et-evior md

ran waLk cyeLedandwamatetatuf 136271 mitcc/17 02
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In 2112 we ur veyed or tha 300000 torner th ough

Nit Crc rm ti Sc ore rood ur rig
custom tcyatty id busines

dashboard programmc hi allows to deepen understanding

of the need and lu thi rdriv forw rd custor icr centr

Itur ac os Reed TI cv or Result reviewed bythe 00 arid

riior ire rigor and ccii iii nicati to staff ihuminatowherewe

are doinq wdlan where we rr do bet or to aid colleagues who

irkwith custo 2012we bog in aD IholesAcademyto

help th ar tft ulate our on ru tmenl tc orpor ito re pon ihihty

rid hr bend ts ov do to our but no suet as reducing isk

and errgthenin our con porak reputa ic Des in inch dod

our app oaclr to cor oorotr ri sporisibibty thi nv onment

acce ibihity in jovor rance onto it is rriade ac ut ibleto all

taft thr or jh the ho poratc Reponr ibi ectic riot the

porate intranet

the yea we on ultr ri or widely or ed Isevier ditoi iat

Pit cy in udir with our urc peon Work Council fur thor

Di engthc rung pr ovi ions ucf as editorial ndepc ndorrce as result

Ii Editor ut ihi tipolate ur repo it ii ility to make cli ar

cc tior 1ww wd opi an asr qnerated or at or

intent irid irou ogc dialt gut on cc ntent including through

ocia mec ii We ni ide it vailablo to ill tatfthr rgh the corporate

intrariet rrd pc bhc availabl th gh the dod El evior website

We ore cc ii iii ter to ir
ipr oving icre etc ou produr te and

services fir ill er meg irdl of phy cal abil ty In 2012

wed afteo ed Elcv or Ac ossibilityl ohicythatexpreases

our re to load Id ndu try in providi ug oasibrlity soluti ins

to utom Ti md co obute to intern itional tandard with

products rhat are pemceivabl operable undertandable arid

robud In eye or neriuber ottheAcco
bility Working Group

logged 16 orojc cts dccc ibilit udertak dir ing the cours

of th year Llsevrer G1cibal Buok Digital Archivefulfilted 4000

ability oque 50% them throuc Ac cer sT xtor sc ice

it hlped otobhist

rnbed updated Editorial
ilicy

Extended consultation on

Editor rat Policy disseminated

via global rntranet arid

cot por Ac wobsito

CR Sates Academy

initiated with set srons err

cci per ate to ponsibitity

performance the

environment ac ossibitity

and qeverriar cc

Reed Elevnor Accessibility

obcy drafted principles

include leading industry

in providing accessibility

elu ic nste customers

RED mre our globalcommum ityprograrime pro irole ducation

for dcadvantaged young people ahig
ied with our unique

contrrbi lions businoos iii lows taft upto two days oft

ye ir to their own commrrriitywor Wi doiratc rr in cash

including thr ocigh iiatctorig gifts and thu equiv lent oft 28m in

oducts serve sands afftime in 2012 30 ofemployeeswer

rngag in vo unteem rig through RI Cares arid we ac hod 20 200

disadvantaged yoon p0 pletl rough voluntear ng ir kir arid

cash onations

An international netwo of mire than 180 RE arcs Charirpion

engage colleaguesthroughouttheyear in mctivitie such is the

RE Cares Challenge which rr wards business porl or oil

ommunitj enig rgcmerit

Each September we ho RE Cares Month to celebrate ou

comrmuunirty act vitie with vo unteen ug pothightod on ob mIRE

area Day during the ruonth In 2012 activitie involvcd mare thai

3300 staff in local cc mmunity projects Among ierri cx Nexis

Rik Solutions held heW ndward Challonge hEm race ins or

of KaBoomi wh ch provides ecreatio ual pacefor ildren

involving nuor th in oOO staff and members of the community

Our
rig

the morth we held our annual global borok drive cldrnq

muiemethan 12 000 books for localand developing won Id read

intl announced the winners oftf ec end Recoqrii or The

Who Care Awards to hrghhght thee ontrrbutic nsto RE Care of

eight indivrdualc arid four RE Cart team lndrvidualwrnmnor

from acmc the buinr took part in visit to pm ojr
ctswc are

uppon tim thn ough Plan Inter national in Pen and Indi led by

Youngsuk Chi Reed ElevieDs Director ofCo perot Affairs

and Hugo Zharig Reed Isoviem China Director of Griven nmc nt

Aft mire The wirinimiri ft were tm in 10 cvii Amsterdam

oxrsNexrs ryton hex Nexi New York and Reed xhihitrc

Non walkwho won cash pmiiesferihern chosen ch cities

Pigres

2% of employeesvolcrnteen mg 30% act eyed

through RE Corer

Reach 10000disadvantagd 211200 reached

young peophi througf

volcmnteeming in xind amid

cash donations

Skills baed Two Days velumntoer cm iv all talf have two

days each year for con umunity work of their own chcrosrng

25% of hoc atren involved in RE Ca es Month

Inc em mate com orate espomi ability nipenient into

megul or istomer facr ug staff tr mm umnj

Conisulton Reid El ev emAccesorbrlityPohcyand begin

rmplernc ntatron

Roll out updated Ed tom at

Co icy

Develop CR ha eAcadeniny

Dc velop ed Is vier

Ac br rty Folrc



ResdEtuvisr ua Repo tandrin te iut 47

We require our suppliers to meet the high standards we set for

ourselves Our SuppL erCode of Conduct stuputates adherenceto

all laws and best practice areas such as human rights labour

and the environment Through our So allyResponsibleSupplier

ISRS database in 2012 we tracked 477cr di at preferred and

strategic suppliere and those we deem high risk according to

criteria from the Corporate Executive Boats Global Country

Analysis Support Tool human trafficking data from the US State

Department and rankings in the Environmental Performance

Indx produced by Vale Univers tyand Columbia University

he tracking list changes year on yeai base don the number of

stir pliers we do businesswith who meet the requ red criteria

We started 2012 with 47% of suppliers on the SRS tracking list as

gnatonesto the Supplier Code and reached 75% by year end

We have embedded signing the Suppl erCode into our o-sourcing

too as one of thecr teria for doing busir es with us and have an

adcitional 1925 signed codes

Spe cialist supply chain auditors Intertek idertook 52 external

audits for 2012 of high risk suppliers Any incidence of Supplier Code

nor compliant Identified In the audit pro csctriggerca corrective

act on planw th supplier remediation required on all issues

To engage supplie on key issues we broadened our Socially

Responsible SupplierAcademy covering the audit process

environmental management diversity and inclusion community

engagement prwentung bribery and the UN Global Compact

among other topics

Develop US Supplier Diversity Plan

75% 1361 of 477 key

suppliers 1925 other

Code signatories

S6cempetedllncludes

4carnedanrfrom20ll

More subjects covered

such as diversity and

inclusion and accessibility

47% increase in

ragietrons ever 2011

In 2012 we launched our updated envi onmental targets following

extensive consultation with stakeholdei Our target reflect

our performance and key issues and can be found along with full

environmental performance details in the 2012 Corpo ate

Responsibility Re port at report ng.reedelsevier comlcrl2

We attained 33 of our electric tyfrom renewable sources In the

year and were ranked as the 2012 sector leader in the Ca bon

Disclosure Project representing 655 investorswuth $78000bn

under management

Our Environmental Champions network employee led Oreen

Teams and engagement through networks suc has Publuchers

Database for Responsible Ethical Paper Sourc ng inform

management plans to address our envronmental Impart

nong them is the Reed Elsevier Environmental Standa ds

programme which sets benchmark performance levels and

inspres green competition among offices In 2012 69 cites

158% of key locations achieved five or more standard atta ng

green statu Reed Elseviers CFO wrote to all staff recognusing

their achievement on World Environment Day and also identified

Green Heroesacrossthe company nom nated bytheurpeersfor

their env ronmental efforts

We have positive environmental impact through our

environmental publications and sen ces which spread good

practice encourage debate and aid researchers and decision

makers The most recent results from independent rket

Analysis System show our share of citation in env ronmental

science represented 33% of the total market and 71 energy

and fuels In 2012 CEO Ft 1k Engstrom gned CE Water

Mandate CommuniquØ calling on government leaders attending

the Ric 20 Earth Summit to pruorutise susta nablc water

Launched externally

through annual reporting

documents internally

through Environmental

Champions and Green

Teams

35% of electricity from renewable energy or offsets

60% of key locations to achieve five or more updated

RE Environmental Standards

75% of key supp iersas

Supplier Code of Conduct

sgnaones

50 external audits of high risk

suppliers

Broaden Socially Responsible

Suppl erAcademy

25 ofelectric tyfrom

renewable encrgyor off setb

50% of key locations to achieve

five or more RE Environmental

Standards

aunch updated environmental

targets

33%achIeved

58%achieved 169 locations

vs 40in2011

78% of key ppllers as Supplier Cede of Conduct

ignatones

rsexternalauditsghigh risk suppliers

Map range of Reed Elsevier envir onmentalproducts

and services
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Buruness in the Commumty
CR hidex

Platinum status

Carbon DiscLosure Project

Leadership hidex

018E 350 sctor Leader

Caring for Chmate

top 25 performer

ETSE 350 sector leader

Detoitte Sustarnabibty

Reportmg Scorecard

curront good

Leading practice

Dow Jones

Sustarnabthty ndexe

Dow Jones Sustamabitity

Indexes

included

ECPI EthicaL Funds

recognton

EthibeL Pioneer and

Ethibet ExceLLence

included

FTSE4Good Index

included

sam lOi

NATIONAL

BUSINESS

SAM SustainahibtyAwards

bronze medalist

WoriC iCC

Tnodos BankSustainabte

Eqwty/Bond Fund

first in the publishing

sector

UK NationaL Busmess

Awards

Sustainabi ity

Awards finalist

VBDO suppLy chain

benchmark

top 10

Vigeotop2Q

strong perforrrortop 20

nE urope top 120 globally

gel

ci

AS ii

11

1111

rr

CV rr

Ii

Us

19%

15%

00/

in

mc 20n nt rr ity
18/ 70 /6100

cop OX ntirsity 14 12/ lOOtCOs 20 78100 ci

iSO 30 3b ire tr el intensity 3/ 950 tOO 71 100

0th on ma ci in ci ty
20 nten

ly
22% 21 3/24 kIWI 18 92 MWS

cr to je nergyfrorn

nc zi IbIl ci oIls oboolute 33 32a/ MWS

Aver dali centrc Power

Uagc Lflectrv rre PUS 70 absolute 70 125103 MWh

P@ encage of key loe uns

Wler rw tel stres1are
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Chief Financial Officersreport

Revenue was 6611 Tm 2011 600 ci up At cot mt

cxc hangc ales rvc nuewas up To Underlymo revenc
ji

owt

wxs cr3 cxc tuding the net cyci nq not inialexhibition

Ce

2011 revenc 6002

Urrde
ly up growth 230

Acqui itions 148

Dirpo ats 20B

Curt eric altec is 63

20l2revenue 6116

Reportoo operating profit afte amortoat ott acgui

intangible as et and acqoi lion ret rtc dcc wa 358ni

2011 61 lOOm reflecting the inrprovc trading pert ir iii tncc

dcxc Jhed ir the Bu mets Rcviow

The amortisat cm charge respect of ac quired mntanq bl sex

including th share at amorti toni jo rtve itum mounted

to 1329 c2011 13b9m Acquisition related en tswrc 21m

2011 b2mL otter
tittg

hc completion of the ChoiccPoint

inteqrat on ograrnine in 2011 spr oats md ot rot con opcrati ig

rinswerel4brn 11 21mlo cci icip ya oirtgt on

business divest mients particular Total nb ott et by pt ope ty

char tes relat
rig

to lisf osed bc sinesses

Net finaric cc 051 were iwer at 121 iii 7011 623 ml im tiding

the benefit of term debt tat ran mg

pro itbcforotaxwasl l18/m 20 If 9/8m1 The

reported tax charge wac Ill 3m 2111 618 ci hi inc lode in

exceptiorral tax credit of f96m ec fling
from the resolution at

number ot significant priory ar tax matters On th mci otto

size artd nature 11 tax rd has en oxc1 ided ft ci idju ted

net profit hr reported net profit attributable to the parent

companie shareholders was 11069cr 21111 7Oimt

Duncan Patmrr

ii tI iWO



Read Etsevmr

Reported figures

Rover Lie

Operating profit

Prc ft before fox

No proht

Ne borrowings

Adjusted figures

Operat ng profb

Operatftag rnargn

Pr oPt befo tax

Net profit

Optrahng cash flow

Opea ating cash flow conversion

Ref urn on invested capitaL

6j16 6002

1358 1205

1j87 948

1O69 760

3j27 3433

1j38

1403

94%

IL9%

13 13

25 26

41 40

0.1 pts

48

01 apfs

5c ii aiaterad dx vagtj

lq tr tad pxai ar

lax et axl ab

xl Ad ax xxaxtt

rOar xc

ab ía tat
axa aa

rat that

xx ax wtt ar ha

aa
Ox

aad cySI
xl xi -i

Ia Ia

at ea Ii

at1

xx

Ia

Ia

ra ci

ajx7
ax aa

at

Total operating costs ira reased by at con tant currercies

including icquisihon.and disposals UnderLying costs were up

reftoctirag volume growth aswetlas organ invostrr ent in

now product deveLopment and sales mar kot ng part fleet

bycont nued rrriprovemenfs in process cfhc eracy

The overalladjusted ope ahrrg margin at 28 was 0.9 percentxge

points higher than in th
prir ryear his included 00.5 per centago

p0 nt bend if to margin from porffobo change and 01 percentage

point beraef from the multi year jourriatsubxcr iptron currency

Cm xl
hedging programmo net of other currencyta anstatro effects

1426
net pen on expense before ftc net ponsior tinanci crcd

85
was L89m 2011 896m nctuding settlement arid curtaitm ant

35
credits of 20m 2011 09m The net pens on finan

rig
redit was

t221
625m 2011 634m reflecting the racreaso heaT Liabititie xt

11
he beginning of the year oxapared with year befoa ann tower

1713 expected iseet tLirr

51

21112

1713

280%

1497

1626

27.1

1391

1060

1515

93

112

81

ara Adx.tdij aaHiaf aa aax

aat it cx aria an cia

at ax aaai xxa aft xar at ePa ava

aaaa aa ati axta Lx aa aaai

aad at ci

apt aa xa tax ira

Ia ada ix acdaj ra aa aa la ifat

at aaa nip aiai air

iJ ax ha lax

Adj sted operat ng profit was 11 713m 2011 fi626mL up

At constant currcnc es adjusted opea ating prof tswero up

Under
yi growth was also Profit pea for mance across

the business descn bed in the Business Rcview

2011 ad usted open at ng profit

ndertyirggrowth

Acouisifions

Ohs osals

Currency effects

20l2adfusted ooratinp profit

1570 1555 1626
1713 259% 25.7

27.1
20%

109 2nt mr



ANC Ut WI RI PC

1W ted Ait be taxwa 49/rn 81 PC 139tH up

at both reported md conrtar xc ianqc rate rerlocting the

nero rr adjut operatr iq prc ft ani tower met

ntereot XCflSL

Ad wArd pro tbetoretix

nortrat not acourr ed ntangiblc asset

qurtor rctmtcd Os

ihcatiuri tax Wi it vi it ire

IA pos ml id othc nor oper at rig terx

po ted ire it before tax

hc Ito Wv mx ate on adjur ted profit heft tax at 23 ft was

1.3 percentag poi ite nigf than in the
pr

ir ar it suiting

frc ix the ogr aphrc ix ix of thc net ncre ice in pro tax profits

Ito effect lix ra oxciud an exceptionaltax cred toff9hrn

cc eribed above ove iron deferr dl ixatroir et and

bit tic fiat are no xp tr tori ystalrr the near icr

mm cluc eCho no it of tax nortisat on where ave lab eon

ic mired goodwill icr it irigible lb wore losely it gns

vith msh cost ovc the long rtor rn Adjusted operating

prof mud taxati ir grossed for tire equity ire text

ointvcntumnn

The appir atron off ix iw md fra Thee ubject orirt

tarity and arcrou it ire provided in rn pect of this

scu won vith ax authcrr cc ref trig toe as bo der

ana ti in and other rnattere are ongc rig
Altf oirgh the

nntco ft nor ri be prd etch ig ftr art

pic ton the financial po it on of Reed Ic evrer is expected

adjuted rnt out it ibutabte to sf aroholders of 138n

2811 11 OóOruiwa 7C and up8Y instarrtcur roncre

Ijusted oper rig
cccl iwwa l683mn 281 latcH up

conpar ed wit prior yea and Of it oristapt crir roncir

Thor ate of mnver ion of adju ted op ati
ig Pr

of its into aJ low

wms94 2811 93

ii

20W

Act oWe operating profil

Capital xpendrturc

Di orrc ration id aniort ation of
rr

ti rr ly

dcv loped intangible assets

948
Work ng capita arid other items

Adju ted open trng flow 1403 51

flow conver ir 94% 9A

Capital expenditc no included within adjusted oper aIr rg
cash

flow was 1333 2811 howL nclu Imp 8263w 2811 12 arn

in ix sooc of capiralised dove oonricrrt costs rncludecf within

interna ly ger or ated intangible asset hic ref cc ntfie ned

nw strnerit rw prodc ets and reP cdii fras creture

pantreut arly in hr ega ausines fdepr err itron nd thc

arn irtisat on of eapitalismd deveb prncrrt cost we 822/rn

2811 1207rn

roe cash flow after inti rest and laxatio ref I88rn

28 if LOl2rrr before ai quisrtio rc latch spend and ash flow

relating tci xeeprionalr estructurrng progr arnrnesfrcmn fir iO

yean the inc reas or ipared with ior year if for rcther

toxe pa doff 281 in 2811 12 l8rnL neflec trig the rrnp oved

orof tab hry irid the utmlmat un of pOe year nx In

wryrnents mac ri espec of acqur itron related costs arnou it

old/rn 2811 38 nI ayrnent in rc spec of tIe cxc eptio iii

eWr uctrining pragrarnrnes fr cnn
pr

ft year we of 2arn

2811 I52rnL pm ncrpally relating to property ci

roe ca flow bc fore dividend was El 875r 21 11 19 /rn

Aid na dividends par Ito sh ar choir or rri tic ye mr bc rug thc

281 fine ard 2817 rile un dividendo arnoantcd to 1521w 28

497r ml Free cash flowafte Iivrdc Is was 15 4n 281 1480mn

2012

1497

329

21

45

1391

3a9

521

III

711

Cm ix

1713 ft

333 THU

227 287

32
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Adjusted operat ng cash flow

Inte rest paid

lax paid

Accuisition related restructuring costs0

Fr cc cash Cow before dividends

Orc nary dividend

Free cash flow post dividends

ud air

Ne debt at Jar uar

tree ash flow post dividend

Ac uish ons/disposats

Ac
ci is it ion

Disposats0

Share repur ades

Ne proceeds from share options exercised

Ott er
Cur rency transLation

Ne debt at December

aol ry ucie

pIdO ii
II na III

Ii

Debt

51
Net borrowings at3l December2Ol7were 3127m dcci ease

23r
of 306rn since 31 Decembcr 2011 ExcLuding currencytr anslaton

effects net debt derreased by L199m with acquisitions and uhars
18

repui chases funded from free cash flow and proc cods from

divestmonts Expressed in US doltars net hon owingd at

97 31 December 2lY2 were $5079m decrease of $246rn the ycar

Dross borrow nqs after fair value adiust ments atJl Dccemher

554 480 20 ars ounted to 03892m 2011 14282m1 It fair Ilue of

rotated derivative assets was 124m 2011 0123m Cash balan cs

total ed P641 2011 726m Au at 31 Decsmber 2012 after

taking nto acrourt ntei cst rate and irrencyderivativc total

of 59 of Reed Elsevier gross borrowings were at fixed ates

with weighted average remaning fife of years and ntcres

rats of 6.lbu Taking intc account the ish baLances and the fa

valueofderivativesasat3l December20 274 ofRerd

Elseviers net borrowings were atfixed atcs

Ihc ratio of net debrto FBI IDA adjusted ea nings before

acre tax depecaton ad amatisatior far the year enJed

31 December 20 was 7x 2011 8xL and 2x 2011 3x

on pensions and lease adjusted basis

Liquidity

During 2012 th second of two or eyearrxtensior optionewas

exercised on the $2 Obn committed bank facility extending the

maturity ro June 2015 This back up faciLity provides sccur ity of

funding for short tcrm debt

In September 2012 C550n of fixed ruts term debtwth niaturity

2012
of eight years was isdued at oupori of2.5 before taking into

accountfixed to floating interest swaps and thc proceedd used to

pre finance the 600m 53/ coupon term debt maturing in April

2013 In Octobei and November2012 $561m off xed rate terrx debt

with maturity often years was issued ata coupon of 125

323 a57
Related to this transaction $299m of fixed rate term debt matur ng

242 101
January20l4and January2019 with wcighted average oupon

of8 wasexetanged for $31 Tm of the newLyisuedterr debtand
25

cash payments of$75m hr rema rung Ish proceeds wers used

1o reduce short term commercial paper borrowings ahead of ths

January2014 bor maturity

The stronq fi cc cash flow of the business the available resou ceo

and backup facilities and Reed Elsevier abtityto accc ss debt

cap tul mar kets expected to provide su ficie Liquiditylo

repay or refinaricc borrowings as they mat re

650

522

2012

Em Inn

1403

224

281

23

L075

521 497

Cs

Ca spend on acquisitions and other nyc tments wa CJ23rri

inc uding deferred consideration of 30m past acquisitions

Oic ss cash proceeds fron disposals arriounted tot 242rri

inc udng f7rri from the saLe of non contro rig interests Net

procerd before tax amounted toP 60m after rclated sepai ation

anc transaction costs additionat pension schemc contribut ons

anc working capital and nther adjcstments espec of pr or ynar

macf ons Net tax recovered respectof disposals wasP 26m

201 tax paid Pam

Shc re repurchases by the parent corirpanies 2012 were 250rr

2011 niLL with further epurchascd in 20 asat

ebi uary No oharesof the parentcompanieswere pur hased

by the employee be no it trust 2011 ni Net proceeds from the

cxc ciue of char options were 48m 2011

Em

3433 3455

554 480

72 35

107 24

3127 3433

3931
3455 3433

3j27

935 937

729 726

286

604
507

2009 2010 20r 2012 13 2014 20 2016 20r8 19 02 21 022 22
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Structure

toevic Nor iaiic DV the Dutch parer company of the

tsev er Reed nor cc NV group CR1 rsdirr CEy owned by

Nerd Etscvier PLC nd dOt revior NV ERL prrvider treasc ry

finance itettr ctuot prope ty md einsu icr ocr vices to the

2012 Reed cvier Grc up pLc hi ci ios through its ubsidiarie

Nw cr and cvis nancr CA OF CA Reed Lsvie

7j73 7628 Prop rtir NA RLPCA and tsevier RHks GA RCA eec

6L7 HP three Cwis come mniesa orqori ndcr onc Nwi Fr jtdiriq

or ipany wh is tin owned by Etscviei Ri ed iriarice DV

Activtes

GA tfie
pr

ir cipat trco ur centr fort ic Reed

ombi red busincses It rm p0 sibH for attospccL ti coo ii

advice md sLippurt for Rood Lsevier Group ptc bus sr

859 1426
operating in mntineritat Cur ope rEin Amerir tL Pacific Rim

nd China and tarn othe torritor id undertake for sq

exchange and dor ivativea dcotrng so vices tor the wfrolc nt Rr ed

evrer CAaLo arrange or directly provide Nerd

Group pLc husirie se with fi iancing or acqui it on produc

deveLopment id other gencr Li oqui or rents mmd rr anogo

casFi oooto nyc nts and debt prc gr
armime on th ir bch

RE PSA activeLy ianages intcttectua oropertya et including

trade amai ks su is The an ef and databae ouch Proxy arid

PharrnaPcndiuir In 2012 it continu to strengther its posit

is centr of oxcettence in thc ianagc nent deveLopment and

hr and ng of Ct Ltectuat prop rtya set RCA mnsibte for

re nouronce rctiv tie for Reed Etsovier

Major deveLopments

hi CA wa oH vs or angir th fr icing Li cign

currency contract fur ed Ftsevrr Group ptc rornpanir sir toted

to cross border vidr nds and acquis tions Ft CA sued Cb5LI Tm

fter in debt note in Ceptr mbcr 2012 thr pr icrr os of which

pre financed El CAs 5600n tr rim debt motor rig in Apr it 201

It iegot ated arid adv sed Reed Group pL err pa rio

or iii mber of inking ad rash managemcnt or rongenierit ii

Continental Europe and ia rd ontrrrued to adv con trea cury

matte nctudirig it rest rite fore gn curi encyand certain

rithert nan ratn xpc surc

average balar cc of ti under rrianagernerit by IF CA in 20

on behaLf of Reed Etsevicr Crc up plc and op nc nt co miparries

was opproxrrmiate DS$0 bbn 2011 LfS$0 8b

LabNtes and assets

At31 December 20 82 201 91C of ERF SOiOSvOv5Ot we

heLd om DR duttor arid 1//0 201 9v ir euros incLuding DC$8 hbn

2011 US$8 6bn arid CO hbn 2011 CO 6b ml in to Reed

tsovir Group pt
ub idrarrcs Coons ii ode to Reed Levier

Group pLc bus esscs are funded Horn equ ty tong te rn doLt if

US$2hbn and hort tsr rim debt of UC$02b bar ked byromrnittod

bank facitite Sour crs of Long term debt Include awe dome

pubLic bonds hooter aLtr to ins pr iva ptac ement emd

yndicated bank facilities Cho Eterni debt is pr irimarity dci ived

cm euro and US corimrnerciat paper programmes

ii mt tic rn potic of re corimbini ho mr sscs ire

sri mge hand 51 nc Ic 810 the imhrned fin nciat

iote men

443 4/h

201

1466

11139

2/

242

1060

Netc pita emplryr iwosfh3 201 hr mat

Dc embc 201 aorrr mr of hoer

hc mm valui goodwiLL ii cI ac gui ed rrmtancliblc
assets IL

by niS ii ftr cling div trier to co imptet
and progress tie

annuaL am at on cliii an corn err ye ect par ty
offse by

iui
tio in 20 An iou if 227 was op totioed ri Eli

err org red rot rig btr Is rid Him goodwill

Ge etoprinent cosr off 2hlrrm 02/O mm werc capitatisec

tlir rite molly yr loped rrt
mrigrb

veto rn 051 notabLy

ye mc it new products or tiled inrfrostr ucturv ii ie

nj
Lbui

Nr toe is on oblrq ons pr ns on oht jao less pension

ets at 31 Deceniibcr 21112 urc ewr to F467 rn 31 Decembe

If 24 rirtudrng ad fr it of 0306rn 131 Docee 2011

8/mi in prcLi forded cherini wlmichwm eon aver age 93

fundr at tic cnd of thr ye mr orion lFRv hi in eased

do cit ii ftc an inc roase nit rhrtitr itt iw nj an edo lion in

di aunt cs ovrr tl year

Ncgativ svo nc mpitaL icr ased hyf /9m refte trng tfre irnpac

divstn it completed and in pr ogr inc reductio is

pfiy ntcr

Dir api at err ptcryed ml 31 tIe xiher 701 wa Fl 38nn

2011 /h8iri tr adding rick accumuLated amon satror

ipa am nt of ocquined ii armqrbte its arid goodwilL

do ease itt t30r principally rift on re icy effect

mid tfre ncr cur net rc ol
Lig

mtion

fl post Cx rHo no aver ag rnrvr ted cop tal the year was

2011 If ha ed on adjusted opc noting profits for

Eli mx at the effcctiv ate on the aver mge of the gross

tat rig oyed tF begin ring and end of tIme yea netnanLated

tFre average cxc haniqc rate odjuHed to xclude the gross rip

to goodsvLl rn espect defer ed tax Liabilities established on

cc tron Os to ito jrblc soH 11cr icroaso in the

eli no Ic LFrr mpr oved trod rg penfenmon and

capital ficioncy
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Reed Etsever PLC

Ret or ted net prr fit

Adj rsted net profit

Re orted ear nir go per she

Adjustc oarni igo per char

Ercino ydvidcrdpershare

Reed Etsevier NV

Reortednetpr ft

Adjusted rret profit

Re or ted oar nrr gs harc

Adjusted ear in js per share

Oroinary vierd per share

Th eec rted cc ningo Do otrare for Reed Etoev er FL

oh 3reholder was 46.Op 2011 32.4p ar tor Reed NV

char eholders was 090 2011 0.59 refLecting the improved

tr acting pertormarrce disposals gains and the cxc ptional pr
ft

ya tax credit

Adj istcd rrn ngs pershar ewere up it 0.lp 201146 7p

and 14 at 0.9L 20 83 for Read vier PLC and Reed

ver NV espectivety At constant rates of exchange ft

adjcr.ted rnings per share of both ornparries ir or eased by

eguatiwdfirraldividends proposed by Vre respect ye Boa ds

are 17.Op per sh re for Reed Elsevier PLC arrd 0.33 per share

for ed Elcevier NV and higher respect vely compared

with thc priorye final dividends Ttris givr total dividends for

the yearof23 Op 2011 21.55p and CO 467 2011 0436 both

up The fler errce in growth rates in the equatised final

div lends and the earlier nte im viderids effects chonge

in the euro sterling excharrge rote sirrce ftr respect ye pricrr

ya dividcnd an ieuncement dates

2012

552

602

389 V2

561

Dividerrd cover baor on adiu Ved earnings per chars irrct ft

total inter irx and proposed nol vidends for ft year times

201 2.2x for Reed Ltsevier PLC arid times 2011 9x for

Roed NV lhc div dend policy of the parent companie

subjecttc cur rency onsidc ratio is to grow dividc nth brc adly or

new th adjusted earnings per share whilct mointa ning div md

cover be ng the number oft mcs the annual dividend ft covered by

ft adjusted earn ings per char of at leaV we tirnie ver the

longer term

Aween fleptember and December 201223 3m Reed loevier

PLC shares and 12./na Reed evier NV shares were

epur chased to rr itigate die ear rungs per or diuufiu finn

divestirrents As at 31 December 2012 shares in issue fur Reed

PLC and Reed Elsevier NV respect vely amounted to

1186 6m nd 682.4m xrlud shares further Re

Elsevier PLC shares and 4.7rcr Reed Etsevicr NV char es have

beenrepurctacdinJanuaryandFebruary2013

46Op 32 Lp

501p 467p

2333p 21 SOp

Cm

658 43

700 611

090 0.u9

095 0.83 14

0A67 0436

F8

15

8%
21 55 0.436 0667

cia 20 2012

2012
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if urop an Union anda issued bythc tote not onatAcc ounting

Standard roard Llowino thi at ountir potici shown oi

page 98th 103 noit rig uticanta cotnting poiiues

celer mi ig efinan ia onditic and esu tof the co iibined

bu irs and oserejuu ungthenot.tbjec vcotonpte

judgcment rotate LoU evaluat nof got Jw and ntanqlble

cM ch ahisi ii mu iera in ipen nc litigatio
taxi

adpopo lyprov .nnnolu Ihcrdetu iprovddir the

itirqoi iisonpaqesl0ltc 103

AmsiidmentstolAS19Emp1o.8enefutsteft.chvetorthe

1013 fineac aty.ar

Witi etfec horn January 11 1A519 Employte Benefit

lrc.vi odJ in alk changesthe nethodologyto be used in the

ilatoiofiicn tpensionh iancingcreditorchi gei roUt on

to fincd bon fit pensio cn me Undi the revi ala ldard

cc tretarns nctudcdwithi ithe net pci siont nancing

editnrhitoea itobecalc ilatedbvrckrc icetothed wunt

ate ci hig qu ality torpor nob nda lb also the di coui rate

ipptied nthc.alculatior of Mon Iblijations and iolonger

basci nthoxpectcdrc.tu nonscherrc astsTypica tythe

etec twiltb to redutet as ct rtturna rec.oqn 3ed ii the income

tatomen As requ red under thc revLed stand ompa atives

Itbere atcia ardingly

AdopticnotiAS ulrcvi..d illhavenoimpac or ReedLlsevier

omt oatancc shec.tor cas flows The net pi uion nancing

creditor iarqewi t.with ife tfrom Ja uary01 be

osn edwthinrtfirancoc stsinRetdttgicr scombincd

ome acocerne amer tiati witnin up atiny prof sew it tly

eoortc.d Given that the ovised tIe adar may introduce greater

olat tityt Ithe rcoi at statement follow gadoflionon Jant ary

013thnttpenaio it ainc creditor hargev iltbeexcluded

omth id usted earnings figt res used by Reed Etsc.vi.ra

aldtnnatpeiforrnlncem re

Had IASI9 vised ar related present stic been ir effect for Ut

1Q12 mm ialyearoperatingp oflttorthcycartc Dc ember

lOL woi Id have bat 25m lowerlIOI L34mand atfinance

it wou dl avc been higher byt llm iou f9n I.On an adjusted

bai4 prohtbeforetaxwould haa be ni lbr tower 011 34w
Th bitance tee.t arc hilawwoutdtatebeentnchanged

The Boards of Reed 11s vii PLC and Reed Ltevier NVhavc

req rn ed that Reed El evier 3roup plc and LI aevier Reed 1r ancc

BVhweduc reja dtotaebestintero..t.aofReedttaever IA

and Reed Isevier NVh arc.holdc the for muiatio of Iroaaur

poliue Financial ir ..trument ar uad tofinanc athe IIed

sevier businc so md tc hedge trar sac tions Reed 1st vier

but ac casda iot nter into speculative transactions It mi

treasury isk faced byRe Llsevior aret quic ityr at ate

rater kfnnicn -rc acyrckaidcicdi rk Thr.Bcardotthe

pare at ompaniesagr eon raIl policygu deli aos for nanaoing

each otthee cksandt aeBoard Reed Etsev er Oroup tc ar

Flcvie manceSAagret policicslir newithparentcompny

guidelincsl for their respect ye bu nec ai troast ryccn rib

Asiran ryofchascpoliciasrgivsnoctow

Capatatand liquidity management

he apital structure is manaad to support Reed LI tvle

objective ot maximising to agt rmsharehotder vat ic through

appropr ate urityoffunding eadyac.cess to debt and capt at

markets co tefiect ye borrowing and ftexibltrtytofund busine

and acqu 4itlo oppor tur vh aaintaining appropr ott

ten rage to opt rniseth oc of capital

Ove tic br rm Reed lscviert rqetscashftowconv.r on

lie proportion of adjusted operati ag ohl onvarl into cast

and credit metrics to of lect us aim .jndth at arc an tt ntwlth

sotdinve trneitgradc cred ating Levelofneldebthauldr

exceed ti ose consistent witl uch ating ati ar thn for re ively

hort per ed timefor instance fotlowi ag an oc.qui $lor The

pr nclpatrr etr utiliseda-elreccihilcwaftei ink ettax

ar dividend Ito net debt nctdebtto FUITDA and DAte ael

intere tat on peiisiuiis md Wa .t adjualud baa arid ties

met ics are monitored and reportcd to senior ma aagern nta ad

board representatives on quarterlv basic Ca4nftowconv rsion

of 90W or lug air c.c nai tentwilt th ratingta qet The ca.h flow

conversion in lOllwa 947 20 3Y andfoi theyear inch

31 Deccmbr2ollnetdebttc FBI DAwa 2.2clOll Jxona

pensior sand lea adjusted bais

Reed Etsevic use of cash over the lo ager Ic rcflec.ts the

objet tives through gres we div dand policy etc ctive

acquisitionand from time otlrnewhen conditions gge

share repurchaseswh IA ret aining th bal nce sh strength to

maint ccc eas tethe iT act tnt effcc.tive so ircesof bc rrowmg

and to cupport eed Llseviei sstrategicambitic in evoLving

publishing and infer mation marketa

HEr IANCA rcusiierr
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Thc balance of lot term debt short term dcbt and com ii tted

bar fat lities managed to provide secu tyof funding taking

nto account the ish generation of the bu mess and the uncertain

siz and timing of acquisition spend Reed Isevier maintains

rat ge of borrowing facilities and debt prog ammos from variet

ot cources to fund ts requir emer ts at shor not cc and at

competitive ratc.s he significance of Reed Elsevier Group plc

US operations ieans that the majorityof debt isde iominated

US dollars Poticyrequirc.sthat no mon th US$1.5bn of tern

debt ssues should mature in iy 11 montt pcriod and no more

tI US$3.Obn in any6 ncptl period
in .Jdi on minimum

levals of borrowingswith maturities overti n.e and five yearsarc

cpc fied depending on the level of net debt and frec cash flow

rcm time to time Reed Elsevier nay edeem tei debt early

cr repurchase outstanding debt in he market depending

iiarket cond tions

The ewet no changes to Reed ER evler 1mg term app oath

to capital and tic uidity management dur ng the year

Interost rate exposure managsinent

Reed Elsevier nterost rate exposure managemet policy isa iTed

Et educing the exposure of the comb ned businesses to changec ir

iterest rates The propot tion of interest axr ense that is fixed en ict

dolt is determined by reterence to the level oft it Mete at cover

Reed Elsevier uses fixed rate term debt interest rate swaps

for aard rate agr eements and interest rate options to manage

the exposure Interest rate derivatives ate 3ed only to hedge

on underlying kand no not mat ket positions are held

Aft taking ntoaccountinteiestrateandct rrencydcr vatives

at3l Dec.embe 1012 iterestexpensewasf xedonanaverage ii

C2.2bn of forecastd btforthc ext 12 montt Thic fixed rate debt

reduces tof /bn bythe end of 2014 and reduces furthert iereafter

wit all but 0./bn of fixed rate term debt no swappedtof eating

rate having matured bythe end of 2019

At December 202 fixed rate term debt not swapped to floating

rate amounted toL2 lbn 201 2.4bn and had weighted average

tic remain ngof6 2years2011 lyeaisia idaweightedaverage

intc rectrateof6 2011.65 ii Interest ritederivativesin place

at..1 Decenber 2012 whchfixthe interestcotor anaddit onal

t0.lbn 20 6bn of vat table rate debt have weighted average

maturityof Jyeai s201 0.Syearsl and av eighted avet age

intcic.strateof3.6b2011 3.2

Foreign currency exposure manag.ment

lranstation exposures arise on the cart ings and net asets of

business operatlo is countries othorthan tho.o of each vent

company These exposures are hedged toa sign ficant extent by

policy of denominating bet rowings in urrencieswherc gnificant

tranclation exposures exist nest notably US dot are Curt oncy

exposures on transactions denominated ir foreign cur ency are

required to bc hedged using forward contracts idd tion

recurring transactions and future nvestmentexposur rraybc

hedged in idvance of becom rg contractual The prec se pot cy

ffc.rsa ordng toie specfr rn nstane th nthviduat

businesses Hightypredictab efuture cash flowc may be covered

for transactions expectd to occurd iring tie next 24 months

50 months for the Scientific lechnical Med calsubscription

bus nesses with limits del med according to the period before

thetransact on is expected to become contractual Cover takea

the form of foreign exctangeforwai contracts

Mat 31 Decenber2o themount of outstand nq toreigr

exchange cover aga ntfuturetransactior swa 1.2bn

U011tl Jbn

Crsdftdsk

Reed E.lseviei has credit cxposut fc rthe full pr ncipala Tiount of

cash and cast equ vale its held with individualcounterparties In

addition it has edit iskfro tithepotert al non pet for iiance by

counterparties to fi iancial instrunents tt is credit rick normally

be ng restri -ted to the amout ts of any hedge gain and nottt chit

principal amount be ng hedged Credit risks are controlled by

monitoringthecreditqualityof counterpart es pr ncipa ly

censed commertial bank and investmer bankswi strong

Long tei credit ratings and the amounts outstanding with

each of tt em

Reed Elsev erhastreasurypotic es in placc which do iot llow

concentrations of risk with individualc ounterp ir tied and do iot

allow significant treasury exposures with counter parties which

are rated lower than /A..3 by Standard Poor Moodys and

itch At31 December2012 cash and cash equivalentstotalled

641m of which 98 was he Ldwith banks rated WA or better

Duncan Palmer

Chief Financial Othcer
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proaea It ctlbcd the tru tureandCo pot ile

bovernanc.osec ion Adc.cr ptbnoflhebuine anda

cusionoffa toi affc tlngptrlir naict attou ii ii

Chief xecutiveolf rstqorta idbu sine.Rcview.Itnan

riksa discu sed in tie Chief I-u nciat Officer repor and in

note tc the combined man atst ati.ment .Out ipproach

rnanaqinq ervuro irnental and iti no financ.uat iak is set out

tie Business Review mdthe separate orpor ate Ro pc nsibi ity

port nportant spot ft risks identified inch do

conomyand
neSt
conduttors

Inteuntuat

property ughts

Data resources

Paid

subscript ens

Onwpbsn.ndunpafl

mc nd our pi iduct4 and services maybe impacted

byfactoraa itt th con micenvirc mont file US

op andothe majocccnoifk.and

gove nmc tfundunc

Ourprodu tsamlse uetorqe.lycomprisedof

nte.tc ctt prooertyt intontdetivered througt variety

of media Wc clv on tradem pyr ight patent and

other ntettctua pr poryawatc estabti4h and protect

it pi opruetaryr ights in thest products and ervi es

tire sa .dcthatot propruetaryright coutdbe

chili ngo limited watid ted dcc umve mtedwhi

mmyimetderra ilfo andpric ngofourprodue.t

ar sar iices

iumbc fcur bu iacsse retyexton4 vety up in

cci tout ddatafiomextcriats urces Datai

obt mined from pubtic rot ords gc vernmeritat

auti it custome md other nformation

to npir te .incuding cart petitors Thed sr upt onor

to of da iurco becauseofchanges nthetiwor

bce ause d5 ta supp era decide not to upptythem .outd

adversotyaffec to oductD md so vices if we were

unb eto rat aef tbstitute ourc in 4y

manne.ror dolt

Cur .cic ntiiic chn to aid me lit at SI Ml primary

pubti thor ike tho.e ot most of our ompetitors are

pubti hod on paid subscription ba i0.Th ntis debate

inthe goverr mont1 at ado tic and Lib yc mmunutics

whcl uc thor Inc aLctlcmet for our MM
pubt it or regardir gwt elhtr such publications

.ho be funded in tead thi iuqh fees charged to

at thosandfrom governmental and other subsidies

or nadf eetyavm tabteaftcrapcriodfottowlng

pubticat on If these it thodsof SIM publishing are

vide yadopted or it and ated it could adver .etyaftec

our ronnie from paic subccription pubt cation

Our busin 4n are ocused ii professionaL it irket

whit han ger orally bc en imore resilient trio si

conomic downtu We detivcrinior it ation ut am

ti any on aubstription ban.. whit it important to

our .iutoner effectiveness mndeffuc ncy hive

xtended rpositic igh growtl mar ketcthrougt

crganicn wta mches upportedbyc.tcctivesm itt

acqu skit mc We aro dispo ingot bu no se that tic

br
ge.r

fit our trateav at an octet rate.d pace

We actively engage in dvtc ping and prori ding the

tegat otectie of intettecti it prope.rtyr iqht In our

bu ne.cs subs upton mntrac Ih custo nor

cc ntmir provis onsa toth sea propi ic.tarycont nt

We eatsovigitmnt tothc usc ou contc.ntand

as ippr ip iate takc teqat than chatt nge utteg
it

distribut sot us

Weeeka far as poe sibte have pr iprietary ott

When comte.ntis upi iecutousbyth rdparties.wese.e.ic

to have contracts which prov de mutual mmercuat

beuelit We also na am an active diatoque viti

egu atoryaut moritmeson pr acyandotl erdati nitat

.sue-s promote with othe the rc.spc nsibk usc

of data

Weemgageexten iwtywithtakholdr ntheS

common tyto better undem stand their nced and

doLuvei vatuetothen.Wearc pento cvi mjtP

IM c.omnun ty under any payrr ent mode ttha can

.ustainabty provide esear hc with the cr utica

nfo-mation tootstl at they need We focus on the

integrity md jatutyofre .earch through the edutoruat

and peer review process we invest inefficient ditori

and distibutuon plat cr msand innovation in

otatform and too to make content and data tt ore

accc bte and actio mabte and we ensure vigutan

om pI.ajia ism indthe tong term ore..erv duo mci

esear ch findings
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Risk Descrtpflonandrmpact

Reed Elsevier busineses are dept ndc nt on the

continued icceptance by our eustemors of our product

and serv cue and thevalue placed on then Failure to

rr set evolvmg customer needs cou impact demand

fur our products arid cc noqucntly adversely atfct

uu revenue

Competitwn Our businesse.i uper etc in highly cornpettive mar kets

Those markets co hr ue to change espons tc

tcchnelegca innovations chang rrg leqislation

regulator changes the errti anco of rrew compet tore

md other to tc Faiture to anhcipatc mar ket trend

could impact the compehtiver ess of our products

and serv ccc and core quentlyadversolyaffr ct

our revenue

Acquisiflons From time to time we quce businesses tu tr engthen

our portfolio Iwo are unable to pci crate the

anticipated benefit such revenue growth syner pies

id/or cost savings esoe atcd with these acqLesitiuns

tf is could adversely affect return err invested capital

and fin one lee di ion

Risk Descrrpttonandmpact

Ou businesses are dependent leeti enie platter

and networks pr mar lv the inter net tor deliver yet

products and services they could bc adversety after ted

our electronic delivery platforms arid netwc rks

ex5er er signficnt faTu terLipt on

eeur ty
breach

Data securRy Our businesses mairrt dn databases and nformaten

online includ ng personal inter nation Breaches of

our data security or fai ure to comply th applicable

legislation or regulatory or contractual requirement

could damage our reputation end expose to risk

of tosser itigatierm and increased egulati in

Our or ganisatienaland operatiorraltructur cc have

increased deperrdoncy in outsoureed arid effsherod

functions Poor per fornnanee or failure of third part es

to wherrr we have eritsourred activ ties could adver sely

affect our business performance reputatierr and

financial eendrtremr

The mplernentatron an execution four tr ateg es and

busine plans depend on our ability
to recruit motivate

and retain ugh quality people We compete globally and

across business sectors fortalentee marregement and

skilled md viduals par trcularly thee with techrrelogv

and data ana ytres capabihties nabilityto recruit

met vats or retairr such people could adversely affect

our bus ness peeler ma rice

Mitigatten

We are focused en the need and economics of our

ustomers and seek to prov de content and rnnovahve

selLitiens that help ttrem achieve bettc utcoe nd

enhonre redu tiv lv

To rema ennpetit vewe continuously invest sign Ii art

reseuree in our product ar dee vice and th

nfrast rueture to suppcrrt therrr We gain ins gIrl rrrto our

mar kets evelvrr customers reeds and eppo rnrties

the poterrtialapphcatien of new teehnoleg or

business models and the actions of cci opel to

and these insights rnferr moor market sIr utegie

mndoperationalprier ties

Our aequrs tiens arc made within the frarnewer

of our ever ill strategy which emphas Sc organic

develepmerrt We have well for niru ited process for

revr wing arrd executing aeqursrt errs arrd for earn grnq

the pest acquisition rnteqrati or This
Pr

ecess

urrderpirrned with clear strategic naneralarrd

eth cal acqursrt err criteria We closely rrrorrrto ftc

performance of acquisitions

Mitigation

have stablished procedures terthc
pr

otertrerr

our technelegyassets These nelude the devc lopment

of bus ness continuity plans irrelrrdiriq
IT aster

recovery plans or back up deliverysystenis to

reduce bu bier upton tfe scent of

teehnologyfailure

We trace established data privacyand security

programmes We test andre evaluate our pro eduro

and centn eL with the aim of encur ug ttat pcroral

data is protected and that we complywith rolevurit

leg slatren regulatory arid eorrtr or tual requrr uonts

We select our yen lore with are and estublish

eerrtractualser vice levels that we closely men Icr

including threugfr key perfor mance indicator md

tar geted supplier audits We have developed business

continuity plans to reduce drsr upt on in the yr nt ofa

major fa lure bya vender

We have well estabhshed managemc rrt develo ment

and talent review programmes We noon for capability

needs and emurir ration schemes are tailored attn

and rrretivate the beat talent available rt cii appropriate

level of cost actively 0eek feedback from ruployec

which feeds into plans to enhance employee engagement

and met ivat en

59

Customer

acceptance of

products

TechnoLogy

faILure

Supplychain
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Wopc ea umbuolpension heme0aroinitht

world Hiflo ica ly hetargestcchemtshavt been of

the ddined bcnetittypc in th UK the U.3 and the

Ni thei and The set and obbgationsasso dtd

wthllosc deli idtc iefitpcr onscherre..are

parti at lysc.ns tin to hanges In the rket value
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value hem liabiliti Adver athangesto ntcr aba

sitt din.dt atc.or fLaticnaJhcre 3t

futur per cn cost anc funding requirement

Ourb rinesse opci ate jlobalty ind our earn nja are

sub ct totaxati nanydiff ingjurisdi ton and it

diftcri alt .We cekti qanlsc ourailair in atax

fiuer In an ci talu account ofthejut dictuor
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Reed Esevier

Chairmans introduction to corporate governance

65

he Boards of Reed Lsrvier Gr cup pLc and Peed Isevier PLC

ar he Combined Board of Reed Etsevier NV the Boardel are

comm tted to high standards of orporate governance and

how puf in pLace orocedures which provide ccountability

fran parency pr bity and focus on fhe em tamable success

of ed Fleevier over the Longer ter in

This report is ntended to
pr

ovide shareholder swith clear view

of Reed Isevier ccc rpor ate governance or rngerrrenfs nd how

Reed Elsevier complied with the applicable corporatc governance

cdt of best practice dur ing the year Staterrrentc with regard to

compliance th orpor ate governance codw arid par tic ular

tte UK Corpcrr Ac Governance Code 200 are set out on page 69

During the year the FinanciaL Reporting Council publisneo

eviced UK Corpc rate Governance Code whichw Ilapplyto

Reel Elsevir rfi em January 2013 We expe tto adopt the

cvi ed Code in full dur ng 2013

TheBoards

201t wac an impe tant yeai for th evolutiur uf the Reed Isevier

Boai ds As wellac reci uiting new Chief anc at Dfficei we

confirmed our plans to ontinue the progress ye efresSing of the

Boa ds wth further appoiritnenic of Non xecutive Directors

Add tiorra ly we continued progress on Boa divc city

rr ci ioi nig vu poit on gorrt the goals th it we arrncoc

in 11

Boa successior

Loll wing rigorous search process Duncar Palmerjuined Reed

Isevier in AugList and succeeded Mark Ar tour ac Chief Financial

Off cer in November Duncan Palmer
jo

ned Reed F-Is wierfrom

Owens Co wing where hr was chief finrancia ott cer and cc ior

presidentfrom 2007 havng previously held varic us senior

fina tee positior within Royal Dutch SIre 20 years in the UK
the Netherlands and the US

March 2012 we co Air ed our plans to continue the prc gre sive

refreshing of the Bm rds since Mark ElI ott and Sir David Re

Ore ire afterten years set following the concluion of

the Annual General Meetings in April 2013 Following search

process using an external consultant nda Sanford foined tI

Boards in Decerriber 2012 She las over 35 years cxp rie tee as

global cxc ulive with IBM particularly in verag ng tect ogv

to achieve bus ners tranformatiorr In ebruary 20 we

an rounced that Wolfhart Hauser willjo the Be rids subfectto

shareholder approvalat ourArrnLialGeneral Meetings Apri

He hoe more than 30 year service in cujve and non cxci nOv

pusitionc in nternationaltechno ogyand services husine cc

and background cc ence medicine

Diver sity

Reed Elsevier ecognises the need for end desir ab2
ity

of

ver ity on iL Boar ds Diversity rrthc profile of board members

provides the necessary range of pc rspective 201 we

annoLmnced aspirationalgoals regarding the percentage otw rrrc

we mini to have err the Boards by 2013.1 arc pleased to report

that we have ede good progress and thatfollow rig the Anr Li

General Meet gs April 2013 we expect to have trot our

aspir otionat goats f-urther detaiLs are set out in the Non ncr errs

Committee Ri port on page 73 lnforrrration atrout Ri ed Elsevierc

approach to diversityand inclusion ire itewor kforcc can he found

in the Co porate Ret ponsibil ty report or page 44

Taking rite accountthe ent hanges to ftc compor itioni oft

Boards arid tfre outccime of ttii year Board evaluation PO
details of wh et nrc set out on page 6711 believe that the Boards

and the committees Ii eve an nppropr ate balance of skills

expei ience independence kirowledge and diver city to

tfnatthey can Cohdn go their dutnus effti hvoly tt vOn onote

governance in place is appropriate to support the coretinued

growth and success of Reed Elaev en

Anthony Habgood

hairman

77 ebruary2Ol3

89

89
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100
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Areas of significant skiLls and expertise of the NonExecutwe Directors on the Boards

Fee olive board experience in large inter rationallisted rompan

rowledge of con pot ate governance issues for Leted ompan cc

Doe atmonral experience in Reed Levier product rear kets

Ope at onal exper ence in Reed Elsevier sr rain geographical markets

Marketing custonrerrelation

Doe onal experience with telecor ire on catiorncomputer technology dc -t on publichi

Me agement oft uman rerour dc tio and memo cerat on of exec otis cc

Cci pot ate social responsibility

eg ml matters

Ban cing tax and corporate finance

f-ire ncmal and ott anicat onalaudit

Cci oretc st ategyand organi ation
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Compliance with codes of best pracbce

The Boa of Bred Elsevier PLC arid Reed Lsovror NV ye

rriptemented taridard cifcorpoi atm qovcr nor cc and di cLosu

policies applicable to oornpari es listed on the ock exct an 10

of thc Urutect Kingdom the Netherlands arid the United StaIrs

he effort of this is that standard applying one wt one

riot in oonfl of abe Sc observed bytho othc

It Roand of Roed LI evi PLC and Reed Ilcevic NV whioh

oompr ses an Lxeoutrve Board and Supervisory Board togethe

tho Combined Boa so pportthe prinoipte md prove ion of

cci ponate gov mc ncr ontarned in the UKCorp rate Governance

Code issuod bythe Enancial Reporting Coot cr1 BC rr May2010

the UK Code md those contained in the Dutoh Cor P01 air

Gover rianice ode isscied ri Decornben 2008 the Dcrfi Lode
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described the market background business activities and growth

plansforthe businesseswere alsowebcast on the Reed Elsevier

website The Chief Executive Officer the Chief Financial Officer

and the investor relations team meet institutionalshareholders

on regular basis and the Chairman also makes himself available

to major institutions as appropriate Atrading update is provided

ahead of the AnnualGeneral Meetings of the two companies and

towardsthe end ofthefinancialyearthrough Interim Management

Statements The interim and annual results announcements

and presentations togetherwith the Interim Management

Statements investorseminarpresentationsotherimportant

announcements and corporate governance documents

concerning Reed Elsevier are published on the Reed Elsevier

website www.reedelsevier.com In accordance with the

provisions of the Dutch Code Reed Elsevier NV has adopted

bilateralshareholdercontact policywhich isalso published on

the Reed Elsevierwebsite The Boards of Reed Elsevier PLC and

Reed Elsevier NV commission periodic reports on the attitudes

and views of the companies institutionalshareholders and the

results are presented to the respective Boards

Both Reed ElsevierPLCand Reed ElsevierNVofferelectronic

voting facilities in relation to proxyvoting at shareholder meetings

The Annual General Meetings provide an opportunityforthe

Boardstocommunicatewith individualshareholders.The

Chairman the Chief Executive Officer the Chief Financial Officer

the chairmen of the Board Committees other Directors and

representative of the externalauditors are available to answer

questions from shareholders

Board induction and information

Following appointment and as required Directors receive

training appropriateto theirlevelof experience and knowledge

This includes the provision of tailored induction programme so

asto provide newly appointed Directorswith information about

the Reed Elsevier businesses and other relevant information to

assistthem in performing their duties Non-Executive Directors

are encouraged to visit the Reed Elsevierbusinessesto meet

management and senior staff

All Directors have fulland timelyaccessto the information

required to discharge their responsibilities fullyand efficiently

They have access to the services of the respective company

secretaries other members of Reed Elseviers management

and staff and externaladvisors Directors may take independent

professionaladvice in the furtherance of their duties at the

relevant companys expense

In addition to scheduled board and board committee meetings

held during the year the Directors attend other meetings and

site visits Where Director is unable to attend board or board

committee meeting he orshe is provided with all relevant papers

and information relating to that meeting and is able to discuss

issues arising with the respective chairman and other board and

committee members

Board evaLuation

During the year the Corporate Governance Committee supported

bythe companysecretaries assessed the performance of

individual Directors and led bythe Senior Independent Director

also assessed the performance of the Chairman Using

questionnaires completed by all of the Directors the Committee

reviewed the functioning and constitution of the Boards and their

committees including the balance of skills experience

independence knowledge of Reed Elsevier and diversity including

gender The Chairman conducted interviews with each member of

the Boards to discuss individually board effectiveness The results

were subsequently considered in meeting of the Boards The

Chairman of the Boardswas not present during discussion by

the Non-Executive Directors as it related to him Based on these

assessments and the board effectiveness review the Committee

believes that the performance of each Directorcontinuesto

be effective and that they demonstrate commitment to their

respective roles The Committee also believes that the Boards

function effectively and collaboratively and with an appropriate

levelof engagement with management and that the diverse

membership provides broad range of skillsand perspectives

In seeking to further its effectiveness the Boardswillwork to

ensure an appropriate level of review of risk-related matters

alongside strategic financialand operational issues in line

with the recommendations of the review

The Boards

The Board of Reed Elsevier PLC the Combined Board of Reed

Elsevier NVand the Board of Reed Elsevier Group plc are

harmonised Allof the Directors of Reed ElsevierGroup plcare

also Directors of Reed Elsevier PLC and are members of eitherthe

Executive Board or the Supervisory Board of Reed Elsevier NV

Reed Elsevier NV may nominate for appointment to the

Supervisory Board up to two Directors who are not appointed to

the Boards of either Reed Elsevier PLC or Reed Elsevier Group plc

Currently one such Director Marike van Lier Lels has been

appointed tothe Supervisory Board The names nationalities and

biographicaldetails of each Director at the date of this report

appearon pages 62 and 63

In view of recent legislation to formalise the one-tier board model

in the Netherlands Civil Code that was enacted with effect from

January2013 the Combined Board of Reed Elsevier NV has

resolved to take the necessary steps to establish one-tier board

governance structure For this purpose the articles of association

of Reed Elsevier NVwill require to be amended and therefore

proposalfor the one-tier governance structure will be put to the

Annual General Meeting of Reed Elsevier NV in April 2013

There is schedule of matters reserved to the Boards and

approved delegated authorities to the Chief Executive Officer and

other senior executives There is clear separation of the roles

of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer which are set out

in writing

The Boards of Reed Elsevier PLC Reed Elsevier NV Reed Elsevier

Group plc and Etsevier Reed Finance BV each comprise balance

of executive and non-executive directors who bring wide range

of skills and experience to the deliberations of the Boards The

Boards reviewthe independence of the Non-Executive Directors

every year based on the criteria for independence set out in the

UK Code The UK Code does not considerthe Chairman to be

independent due to the unique role the Chairman has in corporate

governance Notwithstanding this the Chairman Anthony Habgood

metthe independence criteria contained in the UK Code when

he was appointed Chairman in 2009 The Boards considerall

Non-Executive Directors otherthan the Chairman to be

independent of management and free from any business or other
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relationship which could materially interfere with their ability

to exercise independent judgement

Notwithstanding that Mark Elliott and Sir David Reid have

served on the Boardsfor morethan nineyears the Boards

have determined that they remain independent in character

and judgement and neitherhas formed associationswith

Reed Elsevier that might compromise their ability to exercise

independent judgement

The Boards of Reed Elsevier PLC and of Reed Elsevier NV have

appointed Sir David Reid to act asSenior Independent Director

who is available to meet with institutionalshareholders and assist

in resolving concerns in cases where alternative channels are

deemed inappropriate The Senior Independent Director also

leads the annualassessment of the performance of the Chairman

of Reed Elsevier PLC/Chairman of the Supervisory Board of Reed

Elsevier NV profile which identifies the skills and experience

of the Non-Executive Directors of Reed Elsevier PLC and the

members of the Supervisory Board of Reed Elsevier NV is set

outon page 65 and is available on the Reed Elsevierwebsite

www.reedelsevier.com

Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV shareholders maintain

theirrightstoappoint ndividualstothe respective Boards in

accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association of

these companies Subject to this no individual may be appointed

to the Boards of Reed Elsevier PLC Reed Etsevier NV eitherof the

Executive Board orthe Supervisory Board or Reed Elsevier Group

plc unless recommended bythe joint Nominations Committee

Members of the Committee abstain when their own re

appointment is being considered

As general rule letters of appointment in respect of

Non-Executive Directors of Reed Elsevier PLC and members of

the Supervisory Board of Reed Elsevier NV provide that individuals

willserveforan initialterm of threeyears and aretypically

expected to serve two three-yearterms although the Boards may

invite an individualto serveforan additional period of three years

The respective Articles of Association of Reed Elsevier PLC and

Reed Elsevier NV provide that all Directors should be subject to

retirement at least everythree years and arethen able to make

themselves availablefor re-election byshareholdersat

subsequentAnnualGeneral Meetings Notwithstanding the

provisions of the Articles of Association the Boards complywith

the recommendations contained in the UK Code and all Directors

seek re-election byshareholders annually

Board changes

Changes during theyearin the composition of the Boards of

Reed Elsevier PLC Reed Elsevier NV and Reed Elsevier Group plc

are set out in the table on page 69

Mark Armourstepped down as Chief FinancialOfficerin November

2012 and retired from the Reed Elsevier Boards in December2012

The Nominations Committee retained an externalsearch

consultancy to conduct rigorous search process in conjunction

with the Boards to identifya suitable candidate to succeed

MrArmour Following the conclusion of the search process and

on the recommendation of the Nominations Committee the Boards

selected Duncan Palmerwho joined Reed Elsevierin August 2012

and was appointed Chief FinancialOfficer in November 2012

Mr Palmers biography is set out on page 62

The Nominations Committee also engaged externalsearch

consultanciesto assist in the search for suitable Non-Executive

Directors Following the search process David Brennan and

Linda Sanford were identified as having the appropriate skills

and experience required bythe Boards and the Nominations

Committee recommended theirappointment As previously

announced David Brennans appointment was to have been

effective as of November 2012 however this has been postponed

indefinitelyfor personal reasons at his request and byagreement

with the Boards In December 2012 Linda Sanford was appointed

to the Boards the audit committees and corporate governance

committee Ms Sanfords biography issetouton page 63

Followingthepostponementof David Brennansappointment

the Nominations Committee continued the search and

recommended to the Boards in February 2013 that Dr Wolf hart

Hauser be proposed for election as member of the Supervisory

Board of Reed Elsevier NV and Non-Executive Director of Reed

Elsevier PLC atthe respective AnnualGeneral Meetings in April

2013 Dr Hauser has been the chief executive officer of Intertek

Group plc since 2005 after serving as non-executive director

since 2002 Hewasalso non-executive directorof Logica plc

from 2007 to 2012 Dr Hauser isa German citizen with strong

background in medicine science and technology based

businesses Subject to his election at the Annual General

Meetings he willalso be appointed as Non-Executive Director

of Reed Elsevier Group plc

Mark Elliott and Sir David Reid will retire from the Boards of

Reed Elsevier NV and Reed Elsevier PLC following the conclusion

of the AnnualGeneral Meetings in April2013 afterten years

service and will not seek re-election

In accordance with the Articles of Association of Reed Elsevier

PLC Directorsare subjectto election byshareholdersatthefirst

Annual General Meeting following their appointment bythe

Board Allother Directors are subjectto re-election annually in

accordancewith the UKCode Accordingly Duncan Palmerand

Linda Sanford will stand for election at the Reed Elsevier PLC

Annual General Meeting in April2013 All other eligible Directors

will stand for re-election

All eligible Directors of the Combined Board of Reed Elsevier NV

including Duncan Palmerand Linda Sanfordwhose

appointmentswereapproved byshareholdersatan Extraordinary

General Meeting in November 2012 will standfor re-election at

the Reed Elsevier NVAnnual General Meeting in April 2013

Based on assessments made by the Corporate Governance

Committee of the qualifications performance and effectiveness

of each individual Directorseeking re-election the Boards have

accepted recommendation from the Nominations Committee

that each of these Directors be proposed for re-election at the

Annual General Meeting of the respective company
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LJ Reed EtsevierPLC Reed Etsevier NV Reed ElsevierGroup plc

Numberof Numberof Numberof

Dateof appointment meetings Numberof meetings Numberof meetings Numberof

cessation heldwhilst meetings heldwhilst meetings heldwhilst meetings

Members during theyear director attended director attended director attended

MarkArmour December2Ol2l

Mark Elliott

Erik Engstrom

Anthony Habgood

Adrian Hennah

LisaHook

MarikevanLierLels n/a n/a n/a n/a

Duncan Palmer

Robert Polet

Sir David Reid

LindaSanford December2012

BenvanderVeer

tjurican Palmerwas appointed tothe Boards of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed ElsevierGroup plc on 25 September 2Ol2and to the Executive Board of Reed Elsevier NV on

November2012

CD

ELsevier Reed Finance BVhasa two-tier board structure comprising supervisory board and management board The supervisory

board consists of Rudolf van den Brink Chairman Duncan Palmer Benvan derVeerand Marikevan Lier Lels withthe management

board consisting of Alberto Romaneschi Gerben de Jong and Jans van der Woude Jacques Billy
retired from the management board

in May2012 and Mark Armour retired from the supervisory board in November 2012 Alberto Romaneschi was appointed to the

management board with effect from October2012 and Duncan Palmerwas appointed to the supervisory board in November2012

Appointmentsto the supervisory board and the management board are made by Elsevier Reed Finance BVs shareholders in

accordance with the companys articles of association

E3c ard corn nittees

Date of

appointment

cessation

during the year

November 201

May 201

Numberof

meetings

held whilst

director

In accordance with the principles of good corporate governance the following committees have been established by the respective

Boards All of the committees have written terms of reference which are published on the Reed Elsevierwebsite www.reedelsevier

com Membership of each committee and attendance during the yearare set out below

AL dit Committees

Members

MarkArmour

Jacques Billy

RudolfvandenBrink

GerbendeJong

Marike van Lier Lels

Duncan Palmer November2012

Alberto Romaneschi October2012

BenvanderVeer

JansvanderWoude

Numberof

meetings

attended

Members

The Boards of Reed Elsevier PLC Reed Elsevier NV and Reed Elsevier Group plc have established Audit Committees The Committees

comprise only independent Non-Executive Directors The Committees are chaired by Ben van der Veer report of the Audit

Committees setting out their role and main activities during the year appears on pages 91 and 92

Number of

Date of meetings

appointment heldwhilsta

cessation Committee

duringtheyear member

Number of

meetings

attended

Ben van der VeerCommittee Chairman

Lisa Hook May 2012

Sir David Reid

Linda Sanford December 2012

Adrian Hennah

Linda Sanford wasappointed to the Committeesafterthe meetings held in December2012
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The functions of an audit committee in respect of the financing activities are carried out by the supervisory board of Elsevier Reed

Finance By

Remuneration Committee

The Board of Reed Elsevier Group plc has established Remuneration Committee which is responsiblefor considering the

remuneration of the Executive Directors and the Chairman The Committee comprises only Non-Executive Directors and is chaired by

Mark Elliott Directors Remuneration Report which has been approved by the Boards of Reed Elsevier Group plc Reed Elsevier PLC

and Reed Elsevier NV appears on pages 74to 90 This reportalso serves as disclosure of the Directors remuneration policy and the

remuneration of the Directors and their interests in the shares of the two parent companies Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV

Members

Numberof

Date of meetings

appointment/ helcfwhitsta

cessation Committee

duringtheyear member

Mark Elliott Committee Chairman

Anthony Habgood

Lisa Hook May2012

Robert Polet

Sir David Reid

Nominations Committee

Corporate Governance Committee

Number of

meetings

hetd whiLst

Committee

member

The Boards of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV have established joint Corporate Governance Committee which is responsible

for reviewing ongoing developments and best practice in corporate governance The Committee is also responsible for assessing

the performance of the Directorsand recommendingthe structure and operation of thevarious committees of the Boards andthe

qualifications and criteria for membership of each committee including the independence of members of the Boards The Committee

comprises only Non-Executive Directors and ischaired byAnthonyHabgood

Number of

Date of meetings

appointment he
cessation Committee

duringtheyear memberMembers

Anthony Habgood Committee Chairman

Mark Elliott

Adrian Hennah

Lisa Hook

Marike van Lier Lels

Robert Polet

Sir David Reid

LindaSanford December2012

BenvanderVeer

Numberof

meetings

attended

The Boards of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV have established joint Nominations Committee The Committee comprises

only Non-Executive Directors and is chaired byAnthony Habgood report of the Nominations Committee setting out its role and main

activities during the year appears on page 73

Numberof

meetings

attendedMembers

Anthony Habgood Committee Chairman

Mark Elliott

Lisa Hook

Sir David Reid

BenvanderVeer

Numberof

meetings

attended
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ii erndt coiitro

Parent companies

The Boards of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV exercise

independent supervisory roles over the activities and systems of

internalcontrol of Reed Elsevier Group plc and Elsevier Reed

Finance BY The Boards of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier

NV have each adopted schedule of matterswhich are required to

be brought to them for decision In relation to Reed Elsevier Group

plc and Elsevier Reed Finance BV the Boards of Reed Elsevier PLC

and Reed Elsevier NVapprove the strategy and the annual

budgets and receive regular reports on the operations

including thetreasury and risk managementactivities of the

two companies Majortransactions proposed by the Boards of

Reed ElsevierGroup plcorElsevierReed Finance BVrequire

the approvalof the Boards of both Reed Elsevier PLC and

Reed Elsevier NV

The Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NVAudit Committees

meet on regularbasisto review the systems of internalcontrol

and risk management of Reed Etsevier Group plc and Elsevier

Reed Finance By

Operating companies

The Board of Reed Elsevier Group plc is responsible forthe system

of internal controlof the Reed Elsevierpublishing and information

businesses while the Boards of Elsevier Reed Finance BVare

responsible for the system of internal control in respect of the

finance group activities The Boards of Reed Elsevier Group plc

and Elsevier Reed Finance BY are also responsible for reviewing

the effectiveness of their systems of internal control

The Boards of Reed ElsevierGroup plc and Elsevier Reed Finance

BV have each implemented an ongoing process for identifying

evaluating monitoring and managing the more significant risks

faced by their respective businesses These processes have been

in place throughout the yearended 31 December20l2and upto

the date of the approvals of the Annual Reports and Financial

Statements 2012

Reed ELsevier Group pLc

Reed Elsevier Group plc has an established framework of

procedures and internal controls with which the management

of each business is required to comply Group businesses are

required to maintain systems of internalcontrolwhich are

appropriate to the nature and scale of their activities and address

all significant operational and financial risks that they face

The Board of Reed Elsevier Group plc has adopted schedule

of matters that are required to be brought to itfordecision

Reed Elsevier Group plc has Code of Ethics and Business

Conduct that provides guide for achieving its business goals

and requires officers and employeesto behave in an open

honest ethicaland principled manner The Code also outlines

confidential procedures enabling employees to report any

concerns about compliance or about Reed Elseviers financial

reporting practice The Code is published on the Reed Elsevier

website www.reedelsevier.com

Each division has identified and evaluated its major risks the

controls in placeto manage those risks and the levels of residual

risk accepted Risk management and control procedures are

embedded into the operations of the business and include the

monitoring of progress in areas for improvementthat come to

management and board attention The principal risks facing

Reed Elsevier are set out on pages 58to 60

The major risks facing the Reed Elsevier Group plc businesses

are considered by the Board Reed Elseviers Chief Risk Officer is

responsible for providing regular reports to the Board and Audit

Committee Working closelywith business management and with

the centralfunctions the role of the Chief Risk Officeristo ensure

that Reed Elsevier is managing its business risks effectively and

in coordinated manner across the business with clarityon the

respective responsibilities and interdependencies Litigation and

other legal regulatory matters are managed by legaldirectors in

Europe and the United States

The Reed ElsevierGroup plcAudit Committee receives regular

reports on the identification and management of material risks

and reviews these reports The Audit Committee also receives

regular reports from both internaland externalauditors on

internalcontroland risk management matters In addition each

division is required at the end of the financialyear to reviewthe

effectiveness of internal controls and risk management and

report its findings on detailed basis to the management of

Reed ElsevierGroup plc These reports are summarised and as

part of the annual review of effectiveness submitted to the Audit

Committee of Reed Elsevier Group plc The Chairman of theAudit

Committee reports to the Board on any significant internalcontrol

matters arising

Etsevier Reed Finance BV

Elsevier Reed Finance BVhas established policyguidelines

which are applied to all Elsevier Reed Finance BVcompanies

The respective Boards of Elsevier Reed Finance BY have adopted

schedules of matters that are required to be broughtto them for

decision Procedures are in placefor monitoring the activities of

the finance group including comprehensivetreasury reporting

system The major risks affecting the finance group have been

identified and evaluated and are subject to regular review The

controls in placeto managethese risks and the levelof residual

risk accepted are monitored by the Boards

AnnuaL review

As part of the year-end procedures the Audit Committees and

Boards of Reed Elsevier PLC Reed Elsevier NV Reed Elsevier

Group plc and Elsevier Reed Finance BY review the effectiveness

of the systems of internalcontroland risk management during the

last financial year The objective of these systems is to manage

ratherthan eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business

objectives Accordingly they can only provide reasonable but not

absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss The

Boards have confirmed subject to the above that as regards

financial reporting risks the respective risk management and

control systems provide reasonable assurance against material

inaccuracies or loss and have functioned properly during the year

CD

CD

OC

CD

OC

CD

CD

CD

CD
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Responsibilities in respect of the

financial statements

The Directors of Reed Elsevier PLC Reed ElsevierNV Reed

Elsevier Group plc and Elsevier Reed Finance BVare required to

prepare financialstatements as at the end of each financial period

in accordance with applicable lawand regulationswhich give

true and fairviewof the state of affairs and of the profit orloss of

the respective companies and theirsubsidiariesjointventures

and associates They are responsible for maintaining proper

accounting records for safeguarding assets and for taking

reasonable steps to prevent and detect fraud and other

irregularities The Directors are also responsible for selecting

suitable accounting policies and applying them on consistent

basis making judgements and estimatesthat are prudent and

reasonable

Applicable accounting standards have been followed and the

Reed Elsevier combined financialstatements which are the

responsibility of the Directors of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed

Elsevier NV are prepared using accounting policies which comply

with International Financial Reporting Standards

Going concern

The Directors of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV having

made appropriate enquiries considerthat adequate resources

existforthe combined businessesto continue in operational

existence for the foreseeable future and that therefore

it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing

the 2012 financialstatements In reaching this conclusion the

Directors of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elseier NV have had

due regard to the combined businesses financial position as at

31 December20l2thestrongfreecashflowofthecombined

businesses Reed Elseviers ability to access capital markets

and the principal risks facing Reed Elsevier

commentary on the Reed Elsevier combined businesses

cash flowsfinancial position and liquidityfortheyearended

31 December2012 is set out in the Chief FinancialOfficers Report

on pages 50to 57 This shows that aftertaking account of available

cash resources and committed bank facilities that back up short

term borrowings none of Reed Elseviers borrowings fall due

within the next two years Reed Elseviers policies on Liquidity

capital management and management of risks relating to interest

rate foreign exchange and credit exposures are set out on pages

56 and 57 Further information on liquidity of the combined

businesses can be found in note 18 of the combined financial

statements The principal risks facing Reed Elsevierare set

outon pages 58to 60

US certificates

As required by Section 302 of the US Sarbanes-Oxtey Act 2002

and by related rules issued by the US Securities and Exchange

Commission the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial

Officer of Reed Elsevier PLC and of Reed Elsevier NV certify in

the respective Annual Reports 2012 on Form 20-F to be filed

withthe Commission that theyare responsible for establishing

and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures and that

theyhave

designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure

that material information relating to Reed Elsevier is made

known to them

evaluated the effectiveness of Reed Elseviers disclosure

controls and procedures

basedontheirevaluationdisclosedtotheAuditCommittees

and the external auditors all significant deficiencies in the

design or operation of disclosure controls and procedures and

any frauds whether or not material that involve management

orother employees who have significant role in Reed

Elseviers internal controls and

presented in the Reed ElsevierAnnual Report 2012 on Form

20-F their conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure

controls and procedures

Disclosure Committee comprising the company secretaries of

Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NVand othersenior Reed

Elsevier managers provides assurance to the Chief Executive

Officerand Chief Financial Officer regarding theirSection 302

certifications

Section 404 of the US Sarbanes-Oxtey Act 2002 requires the Chief

Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of Reed Elsevier PLC

and of Reed Elsevier NV to certify in the respective Annual Reports

2012 on Form 20-Fthattheyare responsibleformaintaining

adequate internalcontrolstructures and proceduresforfinancial

reporting and to conduct an assessment of their effectiveness

The conclusions of the assessment of internal control structures

and financial reporting procedures which are unqualified are

presented in the Reed ElsevierAnnual Report 2012 on Form 20-F



Reed Etsevier AnnuaL Reports and Financiat Statements 2012

Report of the Nominations Committee

73

This report has been prepared bythe joint Nominations

Committee of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV and has

been approved by the respective Boards

Rote of the Committee

The principal role of the Committee is to provide assistance to the

Boards of Reed Elsevier PLC Reed Elsevier NV and Reed Elsevier

Group plc by identifying individuals qualified to become Directors

and recommending to the Boards theappointment of such

individuals

The responsibilities of the Committee are set out in written terms

of reference available atwww.reedelsevier.com and include

to develop and agree the desired profile for potential

candidates for board membership

ii in consultation with externalsearch consultants agree the

specification for the recruitment of new directors which

provides formaland transparent procedure forthe

selection and appointment of new directorsto the Boards

iii to recommend tothe Boardsthe appointmentof candidates

subject where appropriate to the approvalof shareholders

of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV

iv to recommend to the Boards directors to serve on Board

Committees having regard to the criteria forservice on each

committee as set out in the terms of reference for such

committees and to recommend members to serve as the

Chair of those committees and

to make recommendationsto the Boards in relation to the

possible re-appointment of Directors atthe AnnualGeneral

Meetings of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV

Committee membership

The Committee comprises only Non-Executive Directors and is

chaired byAnthony Habgood The other members are Mark Elliott

Lisa Hook Sir David Reid and Ben van der Veer The Committee

met five times during the year

Composition of the Boards

During the year the main focus of the Committee continued to be

succession planning in relation tothe planned retirement of two

long-serving Non-Executive Directors Mark Elliottand Sir David

Reid the appointment of new Chief FinancialOfficerto succeed

Mark Armourwho retired in December2012 and progress against

Reed Elseviers aspirationalgoals regarding the percentage of

women on its Boardswhich were announced in 2011

The Committee has established formal rigorous and

transparent procedure for the recruitment of candidates to the

Boards and recommendations by the Committee are made on

the basis ofa candidates merit against objective criteria and

with due regard forthe benefits of diversity including gender

In addition the Committee seeks to ensure that the Boards and

their committees comprise an appropriate balance of skills

experience independence and knowledge of Reed Elseviers

businesses and diversity

The Committee retained recruitment consultantsspecialising

in senior and non-executive appointments to carry out searches

fortwo new Non-Executive Directors and new Chief Financial

Officer The Committee worked closetywith the consultants

and following rigorous process of assessment and interviews

recommended tothe Boardsthe appointment of David Brennan

and Linda Sanford as Non-Executive Directorsand Duncan

Palmeras Chief Financial Officer When David Brennans

appointment was postponed indefinitely for personal reasons

the Committee continued the search and recommended to the

Boards in February 2013 that DrWolfhart Hauser be proposed

for election at the Annual General Meetings in April2013

In September 2011 in response to the publication of the Davies

Review Women on Boards the Boardsannounced their

aspirational goals that by 2013 the Reed Elsevier NV Combined

Board would be comprised of 30% women and the Reed Elsevier

PLC Board would be comprised of 22% women At that time

September 2011 the Reed Elsevier NV Combined Board was

comprised of 20% women and the Reed Elsevier PLC Board was

comprised of 11% women During 2012 the Committee reviewed

progress againstthese goals and following the Annual General

Meetings to be held in April2013 the Boards expect to have

metthese goals The Committee willcontinue to monitorthe

composition of the Board against the Boards aspirationalgoals

while taking into account the benefits of diversity more generally

Details of Reed Elseviersapproachtodiversityand inclusion in its

workforce can be found in the Corporate Responsibility report on

pages 39 to 48

It
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The Directors Remuneration Report the Report describes

how Reed Elsevier applies the principles of good governance

relating to directors remuneration This Report has been

prepared bythe Remuneration Committee of Reed Elsevier

Group plc the Committee in accordance with regulations

made under the Companies Act 2006 and the Dutch

Corporate Governance Code the Dutch Code

The Report was approved by the Boards of Reed Elsevier

Group plc Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV and will

be submitted to shareholders for an advisoryvote at the

AnnualGeneral Meeting of Reed Elsevier PLC

The audited parts of the Report

In compliance with the Large and Medium-sized Companies

and Groups Accounts and Reports Regulations 2008 and

underTitle Book of the Civil Code in the Netherlands the

following elements of this Report have been audited the table

entitled Transfervalues of accrued pension benefits on page

83 the tables showing Aggregate emoluments and Individual

fees of non-executive directors on page 86 the tables on

Individual emoluments of executive directors and Directors

shareholdings in Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV on

page 87 and the section Share-based awards in Reed Elsevier

PLC and Reed Elsevier NV on pages 87 to 89

Introduction from Remuneration

Committee Chairman

Since Erik Engstroms appointment in late 2009 the company has

made good progress financially and strategically by systematically

transforming the business primarily through organic development

The performance related components of the executive directors

remuneration arrangements in place since 2010 including the

one-off Reed Elsevier Growth Plan REGP have supported this

strategy focusing on return on capital returns to shareholders

and sustained earnings growth

2012 as reported elsewhere in this Report was very solid year and

resulted in annual bonuses for Erik Engstrom Mark Armourand

Duncan Palmer that were slightly above target see pages 78 to 79

indicate that Erik Engstrom and Mark Armourwill earn 66.8% of their

initialaward For Mr Engstrom 50% of thiswill be deferred foran

additionaltwoyears For MarkArmourwho retired on 31 December

2012 therewillbe no deferraland no opportunityto earnfurther

shares With regard to MrArmours retirement standard terms and

conditions were applied as reported in last years remuneration report

Duncan Palmer joined at the end of August2012 and took on his role

as Chief Financial Officerwith effectfrom 15 November2012 Details

of his remuneration arrangements are set out on pages 77 and 84 of

this Report

In terms of salary increases the Committee decided to award

Erik Engstrom salary increase of 2.5% effective January2013

This levelof increase is in line with 2013 increases applicable to

thewideremployee population and other senior executives

Duncan Palmer did not receive an increase to his starting salary

His first salary reviewwill be in January 2014

Given the backdrop of solid progress the Committee spent much

of its time in 2012 considering alternatives for new multi-year

incentives This was necessitated by the need to replace the one-off

REGPwith more regular Long Term Incentive Plan LTIP and the

expiration of our existing Executive Share Option Scheme ESOS in

April 2013 The Committee considered quantum metrics and the

structure of these plans as they relate to supporting the execution

of business strategy

Earlierthis year we consulted with around 30 major shareholders

and shareholder representative bodies in the UK the Netherlands

and the US on the proposed new LTIP and the renewalof the ESOS

Feedback received during the process shaped the final design of the

plans which are being put to shareholdersforapprovalattheAnnual

General Meetings in April detailed description of the new plans is

contained in the notices of the Annual General Meetings

In summary subjectto shareholderapproval we are proposing

to introduce new three-year LTIP for executive directors and

approximately another 100 senior executives as well as renew ESOS

for around 1000 employees globally including executive directors

The proposed LTIP is based on rollforward of what has been

successfutlyoperated forthe 100 executivesannuallysince 2010

thus minimising disruption and maximising stability in our most

senior management population

The proposals for the new plans are based on the same foundations

as before focusing on return on capital returns to shareholders and

sustained earnings growth The overall incentive opportunity for

executive directors underthe multi-yearplans remainswithin the

parameters previously approved by shareholders

For2013 the executive directorswill be granted awards underthe

new LTIP and ESOS subject to receipt of shareholder approval

and will be eligible to participate in the annualincentive plan and

the bonus investment plan as in 2012

As in previous years our approach to preparing this Report has been

to meet the highest standards of disclosure balancing in thoughtful

and responsible manner the UK legislative requirements with best

practice guidelines on disclosure in the Netherlands In preparing

this Report the Committee had regard tothe approach adopted by

other large global businesses subject to disclosure requirements

in more than one jurisdiction As in prioryears ouraim has been to

produce clear informative and understandable report

The first tranche of the REGP will be performance tested in late
Mark ELliott

April2013 and as discussed on page 81 preliminary calculations
Chairman Remuneration Committee
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Constitutwn

Throughout 2012 the Committee consisted of independent

nor executive Arectors as set out in the SIr ucture and corporate

governance report and the Chairman of Re Elsevier Group ptc

Deta La of Comm ttee ri embers and meeting attendance are

cot tamed in the met onon Structure and mrpor ate govcr nam

on page 66 of the Annua Reports The Ph LegaL Officer

Cor pany Secretary also attends the moetiiigs in apacity as

se rntary ta the Corn itteo At the
ri

jitatic of the Cornmtte

CI rman the CEO of Reed Elsevier Group pt
-attends appropriate

parts of the meet ngs The CEO of Reed Elsevier Group ptc snot

ii attendance dL ring disc ussioris ertain ng to his remuner atior

Ihe GLobal Human Resources Director pie ided mate -Eat advice

tot ic Commi tee dun the year

Advsers

lowers Watson icted as extei mtadv mrs to the Committee

thi mghout 2012 and also provided market data and data analysis

Towers Watson also provided actuarial arid other human

resources onsultancy services directtyto ome Reed Elseviei

conip inies

md vidual consultants involved adv
rig

the Comm ttc edo

not piovide advice tc the executivi direr toi or act or ther behalf

Terms of reference

The Committee responsibilities are an fol ows

Cxc cutivc directors

etablish tie rernuneratioii policyfoi the execut ye directors

irid deter the remuneration in all it forms icluding

aensions ano share plan pai ticipai on ne tei iris if tIn- sei vice

ontr acts and all other terms ann conditions of employment

at he execut ye directors of Reed Group pt
and

eed Llsev er Pt and on the adv cc olthe Chairman the

emuneration ter ms of the CEO with epect to Reed Etscvier

NV Committee ecommends to the Gupei vise ry Board the

en- uneration policy and the remuneration in alt its tori is for

he CEO and other executive rectors and

appi ove any compensation termin ton payments

siade to executive directors of Reed Elevier Group plc and

Reed Elsevier PLC

Gem iormanageiYent

ni the adv cc of the CEO to approve the remuneration policy of

other sen or eadcrs arid of the Chief Legal Off cci Compary

mc etary and

monitor th level arid structure oft en uner ation foi this

group of exec utives

Ret dElsevier Cd n/rman

the adv cc of the Senior Independent Director to determine

he remuneration of the Reed Elsevier Chairman with

iperi to Peed Elsevier NV tn rer-nmm don advic nf the

Senior Independent DVector to the Combined Board the

Cha rman sr emuneration in respect of hi Chairr ianship

of Reed Elsevie NV

to review the ongoing ippropriateness and relevar cc oft

re munor ition policy partic utai the pertoi mar cc related

demerits arid their compatibility with risk policies nd

systems

to eviewai di ecornmcnd amend nents to the rules of alt

shai based incent ye plan includ ng the fern iula ion of

suitable perforr iance condition to share-based ii and

options arid rvherc neces any to submit then- for approval

by shareholders

to ma nta nan open and ongoing dialogue with inctitut nal

nvestors on major emuneration policy issues arid

to discharge its dutieswith due re lard to any published

co porate governance guidelines codes or ummemidatons

regard rig
the remuneration of directors of listed orlEanie

and formation and operation of shai scherneswhichthc

Committee cons der si etc vant or appropriate iclud ng but

not limited to the UK and Dutch Corporate Governance Code

copy of the terms of reference ofthie Committee can bet un

on the Reedtlsevierwebsite www needeGevien.com

Remuneration philosophy and policy

he context for Reed Elsevie rs remuner alien po icy
and

pi
actces

is set by the needs eta global bus ness with business areas that

operate in terniationally by Ii ic of business unthenmor Re

Elsevien PLC arid Reed El evier NV respective stock oar ket

listings in London and Amterdam conibined with tl malority

of its employees be ng based in the US provides part cular set

of challenges in the design and opera on of remuner iticin policy

Our remuneration philosophy

Reed Elsevicr guiding remuneration philosophyforsen or

executives is based on the following precepts

Perfor mance-related compensation with demanding

performance standards

Creation of shareholdenvalue

Competitive remuneration opportunity to attract id reta

the bt execative talentfrom anywhere in thi we rid

balan -ed mix of remuneration between fixed and variable

elements and annualand longer term penfonrmiance

Aligning the interests of executive dir ectoms with sham eholds

and other stakeholder

Operating the companyeonsistentwith long term susta nabili

Our remuneratwn policy

In line with this
gei ng philosophy ou remuneration policy

described below

Reed Elseviem aims to provide total remuneration package

that is able to attract and retain the he executive talent tro

anywhere in the world at appropriate level of cost

Ii reaching decisions on executive remuneration the

Conimittee takes nto accountthe remuneration arrangc rnients
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lation to vc nq/payocit cvsle Ihu re it Ievc of

icr to anna cc

cc

Our approach to market posflomng and benchmarkrng
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no nor or on one rctom wh sh the Commttleo late in 10
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in inc nlivoc

rrmd hi nfmts cc atr tar of elevant compar atom group

follows

arC pay eiemerts 08

Ok Variabte pay elemvrtr 70/

MCt vs

my rn
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Global peers oper atirrg siness ass iilar to these of Reed

Isevier mel iding Then or Reutero WPP Pearson John

Wiley Wetters Kluwer Exper an McGr land qu taxi

Compan cxli atcd on he London Ste ck change Icr ess

ir dustr but xctud ng those the flnar mat aervices cc tori of

sirn tar size measured by aggregate mar ket capitolisat oni

and inter nat onal scope

tor ipon cob ted en the NewYor kStock xrharrge

res industry but cxc tuding those inttiafinancialerviccs

refer at ir measu ed by ag jre gate makot

apitalisat or land international scope

Compan es Li ated on the NYSE Luronex Amsterdam Stock

xr lange crors inductryand similar sze aasured by

iggregate mmrket capitatAationl and inte rrahenal scope

Ref rUng to cors panics iisted in these thr cc different torah ins

vant and neressiry as demonstr ad bythe fartthat several

cc ant senior exoc utive fires have been rec uited fr em the US

nctudirrg our CEO

ftc conipesitien of the aspect ye cempar ater groups is sub ret

to rumor change year on year eftect
rrg nges in the size

The total remuneration package

rrterr atior al scope and Listing tatus specific rump ir icc dur ro

the year

ftre cc npetitivonocs rf our remunerat on parkagcs ru asse aE

bytho Committee as part of the ann ial review cycle for pay and

perfermane in tine with thc proces set out below

the overalL competitivermess of the total emur afiori

packages assessed both against the rrrarket or mking

account of remune atien leve within Rood Elsovie mere

defy The approprati positie aing of an md vidual tota

mm a1icn agin th ra akof detmnd bad th

Committee sjudgemcnf of individ ia performor cc and peten ial

he Committee then on.ider marke dot rand her mar ka

forthe ditfei ent elemerts of the package ic udirig salary total

annual rash and total remuneritiorm Whmlo relevant benchmark

inter mation meaningfLml put to the ocecs infer ro

ratherthan drives the outcome of the review and sjus inc

foe tor thatthe Cors ttee considers

Bend ft ncludi ig medical and retirement bar efit me

posit erred to reflect Ieee cc unt ry pra tic

Sac element of the rrmunei at en package for moe utive directors is deaigredto aclnievo spec objectives as descm bed infh section

In aggregate tIme create unified arid balanced eward ru arid competitive ernpteyrn ant preposi ion The vr ue ofthe reward ark ign

ice ily maxirua sed tliroLmgh the integrated dolvery of anrmualarid longer term perfor mance Reward for the delmvc yet bus mesa esulta

ic iranected with reward for value flowing to sharehoLders through the use of range of pertor manee metric such earn ngs per

cia return irmvostcd apital prc ft after tax rc yr nuc casf flewcorrversioru rate percoiialeblectivea and teta shareholder retur

one the asses merit of per for maruce over ru ultiplo ti no horizons the neentive arr arugernents are structured in such way fiat ewar

cannot bern ix mised through iriappropi ate short term isk taking

TIme rablo bemow summer ices trre component par ts of the rernunen armurn rekage pr uv ceo irr 201z to execommvc err eetor ic vi vcd 251z

No mutt year ineentive.a vested
rr

2012 Multi year incentivestrorn prey cucyears lapsed nearly 2012 aa oh eadv dccc In last

ear Report

Ma Ar rnour served ad rec for Lirmtil 31 December 2012

aaAdditionalayjarda were made to Duneanm Palmer in conjunction with hia recruitment do ails arc eon don page

Component Errk Engetrom Mark Armour Duncan Patmer
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Rcvei ue

Adju edPtofitAlt Lx
L.a tow Conve dion Rate

Kcy orformnccObjcctiicslKPO

icr 013ticrr inimumtl reshotdonthetr mci itctomint

icAIP atwtuc bonw starts to ac-cr ue 94 k4target and tht

maximmbon 150ooftargetlun hangcdfrc ilOIlI

The KPOs are mdiv dua to each executive director ac-h executiva

dircctor set upto six KPOsto reflect cnitica bu ut pie tics

11 which he saccountabtc TheKi Oc mronentforth xccutvc

rector sand other senior ext c-utuvos wilt contai at Ic ist one KPO

elating to the achu.vement ftc st un ability objcctiv

and targeta cor.t auned within Reed tsevler torpor ate

eJpon 1ib lit agenda

\gainst ich ob ective leasurab mites onc ta get ar set

for the year All fir icialtargcts and KPOsa iapproved by the

Comm ttee and are subject to for -nat as-es n- ent at thc .nd of

each vca Chairr -ian of Reed -a vier Grc-up pt prc ttnts

assessment of ierform nit against KPO for the CLO of

ReedLtsevier Group ptc to thc Comm it cc ii etho of

Reedt-tsevier oup plc pro tnt his assessme it of KPO

perlor nancefor the CFOof Re -d tsevier Oeuppt fh

C.emmutt ethcn dr-cutss and agretstt fir at iCPO tore

ion each execu ivedurecto

AlPpaymsntsfor2Ol2

In as sing the tevctofbonu payrr nts for 20 th emniuttee

noted is following pe ion manc.es

tin on .4

cdUt ty ii

wnu up

4/

Reed Isovier axeculed wetlori its atcgic fin anti at priorities

in 2012 Positivc revenuE omentum ar fec-u on opra 1g

eriuc nc comoined to under ty ng operating ofit growth dfld

earnings Underlying revenues wt ich ext tudeth effects of

currc ytran tationanda qu -itien sand disposal rc up4

or 3k excluding tic cyc mg effect ofbicnr Iat exhibitions and at

ive buinecs area contr buted ti tha underty nq cwth

Under tying adjusted operati ig profit were up 64.w ththe

mprovemcnt in prof tability driven byi combin di of pr at
innovation and portfolio developmer tacros alt busi css -eas

idertying costs were up 4/ eftecting volume growth weLl

35 organic inveatmc tin new product developr ient and sates

marketing partly c-tfset by continued improvements in ocess

Ii ecy.Ad wvdooc atinyu.ahfowas1 6OJiiiPOIl
YMiji Ci

I515m up compancd with the prior yearar up Sat

30
onstantcurrencie he rate of con vcrsion of adjusted operating

.30
erofits into ssh ftowwas 94/ 2011-93/4 Re tui naan inveted

capital increased I1.Vo.07 per cc.i tage ooint higher than

303
n2011 ret ec.tngtheimpr wedtrcding pc-b mance and

apita ficiency

tary cftoct the ot and the ustal iec value of the exec.ut veii

ttrm at oIL xp nienceand con tr ib ition nthiccnexl 31 the

cvantm rut

eCommittec deeidclto awarda- itaryunc ta eof2.b/ to

Lniki ng tro which ncreased hisbasc alai sith il octtnom

Janu iyPOl tol076891 Dincar Pat-nor nceaqreemcnt

Reed Ltsvuor

TI cAn iuel ncentiveF I-in All ovldc locusonthedel veryof

etc-hi ig mr uat mi ialtargstc andthe achieve nert of annual

objectivc and mile att atha create uptattonri to austa nablc

future ptnfonr ion

I- 2013 xe-utiv di otter haveatrge bonu opportunmtycf

100 ola.taryhat wemghteda tolowsa osfot releiaents

unc- ianc cd Iron i01

he Ia gr hi usopportt ity
for thefinanciatmeasur as us payable

tor the achi nm itof highly stretc hi ig financial tar gets The tou

er ient emc maured eraritcty auth hattherecould be-i

p-youtoronceer entandno anothcr
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Set out below so summary of thu outcomu of pci fore once

ago nst each hn nc al measure

Revnnue iustahovetai get

Adj sted Pro it

Justahove target
Aftc rlax

Cash flow
Justabovotargntor version Rate

he progress on pr reonalobioctives for each ectorwas then

added intheforri ofthc KPO score and overaltthe sum of the

sso es ach eyed against the fourAlP comporientsforthe execuhvc

ructors resulted in the following bonusee foi 2012

Qua If

iiobep Mcr

12

EriE Engstrom 11L9901 109.5

Mai kArmour 693799 1077

Durcan Palmcr 230205 107.7

111 ri rcin

Aoq

MuLtiyear incentives

It ntended to continLie to provide executive dii ertors with

multi year incentives compris ng ombinotion ofa Hi term

incentive plan TIP pc sonalinvestment bonus deferi at plan

RIP and rnorkct value opt ons EROS To this end ncw IF

and EROS arc proposed and will be presented fur eha eholder

approvalat the 2013 Annual Genural Meet gs AGMs

The pur pose of the muTt year incentives is to
pr

ov de for is on

the dehveryof the medium to
lorigei

term strategyand troldi

executives accountable for the execution of hat str atoqy wh Ic

driving value creation through sustained tin mci il pci torrr an

capital discipline and the delivery of returns for shard oldr is

In addition the multi year ncentives ore tru tured so to

encouragc pereonal invctment arid requ ream nimum love of

ongoing persona shoreholdirrg in Reed Llsevier PLC arid Reed

NVsecur ties among these or executive pop lotion

in order to promote at gnment with shai eholders and top ov do

focus on the share price

Awards underthe current and proposed mu Ii
yr

ii incentives vest

ovc per oa otthi cc years except br the ie off RE GP Li ider

which awardsvest ovur three and five years The vesting of oh

awards mode to executive directors undurti ccc plane sub1ect

to meeting number of str etching per formaric targets boed on

internalfinar cia metrics arid total sI arc holdoi return

11 tail of ft REGP en di iii din pr viou or Report

chart below illu Ii ates how the REGP op

rot Ii

led
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TotaL SharehoLder Return TSR
ft wet nq on rd of the RE GE award oh ec to Reed

btc per formonco camparc gal ct fh compor ator

oups It OR che

rd Ce ie ccc os quity ooiti ket thr ough hree
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Reed NV dinary char cc hoc orr tf Air tcrdo ii
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pert nan of Reid 0ev PLC OURs and Reed levier

NVAOR lb dot tto Nc khs nq re rL edagar istthr

Je Dohar arrpa dtor roap over iqrng pe rod apphed for

1CR urco or ement par post ccix mor tim prior to the start of thc

finar cia yr in wh th award was alec the finals month
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TSR comparator groups

Ihy ci uLo oa hco upiritori up vrc etectedona

pc if as deco ib dir nsf yc or Report pagr 69

ampar to whir ir wore laded hoc ry rncy group

rcsa rator pic Oorlosty ir Rp irt

ff cO cc hvvt dcalw char0e

thr Ii or ate group cf di mer gir Jo list
rrgs or
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it
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Below 0.2

102

fL2 or above
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Invested capit it cr thmc tic average crf the opening nd osing

cap taler up oyed for the Reed Isovior corrrbirrod ba me es

for the nanciolyear th Ic amulative arnorti rtio1 and

lrsrp rn nt charges or ac qairc intangibt ircets rnd

ooocwi odd bar in idditior ry cxc opt on rc Or ur tori ug

arid acqaisiti ci integration oh rrg sIn of fox capital sod

or the pr pose crrd uurtge ii cxc ha rate ir

ritovernont ension dot at cxc tided

Returr od acted operating pr fit for tIn Reed El vi

como ed bus cc bcforc on ort atron arid inrpairrtrr it

of ac quiir
cd intar gihle isset and goodw excrpticrnal

re tr ic tar ig
arid ucgr isinori intcgr itir ct or ge In add ti

055 dat to cxc adc Ci equity sI roof tax
ujoirit

ventura arid tur the adiocted to ox lode rio pr ion fina ng
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Adjusted earnings per share tEPS

The vesting of one third of the REGP award is subject to

performance against growth in adjusted earnings pershare

measured at constant currencies Adjusted EPS the EPS

tranche as follows

3years 2years vesting percentage

2010-12 2013-14 ofEPStranche

Average Adjusted

EPS growth in years

2011 and 2012

subject to average

Adjusted EPS growth over

the whole three year

period being positive

Below 5% p.a Below 7% p.a 0%

7%p.a 60%

100%

5%p.a

9% p.a or above

Long Term Incentive PLan tLTIP

No awards underthe LTIPwere made to executive directors in

2012 and no award cycles remain outstanding for directors under

thisplan

long-term incentive award was granted to seniorleaders below

the Board in 2012 Grants are made on rolling three-year basis in

the form of performance shares that vest subject to performance

metrics and vesting scales consistent with the REOP The targets

set for each metric are aligned to the five-year performance scale

applicable to the executive directors underthe REGP

Subject to receipt of shareholder approval at the 2013 AGMs
it is intended to commence making annual grants under new

long-term incentive plan to executive directorsfrom 2013

onwards underwhich the first awards would vest in Hi 2016

Details of the proposed new LTIP are described in the 2013 notices

of AGMs of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV

Vesting is on straight-line basis for performance between the

minimum and maximum levels

Forthe purposes of the plan the following definitions apply

Earnings adjusted reported earnings measured at constant

currencies Adjustments include amortisation and impairment

of acquired intangible assets and goodwill exceptional

restructuring and acquisition integration charges gains

losses on business disposals and tax rate anomalies deferred

tax The Committee retains discretion to adjust for changes

in the net pension financing credit

Number of shares weighted average number of shares in

issue excluding shares held in treasury

Performance share awardswere granted under the REGPto

Mr Engstrom and MrArmourin May 2010 At its meeting on 25 April

2013 the Committee will assess the extent to which the

performance conditions have been met for these share awards

which includes an overall assessment of underlying business

performance and other relevant factors Based on review of

the three performance measures used in the plan preliminary

calculations indicate that 66.8% of the awards are expected to vest

This is based on TSR ranking ofjust above median in respect of

two of the comparator groups ROIC achievement slightly below the

11.2% maximum aftertaking into account adjustments forsuch

items as foreign exchange rates pension deficits and acquisition

integration costs as provided in the plan and EPS growth slightly

above the middle of the range specified in the plan

This would result in 429710 PLC ordinary shares and 282187 NV

ordinary shares vesting in respect of Erik Engstrom 50% of these

shares will be released to Mr Engstrom following the April

Committee meeting and 50% of these shares will be deferred until

2015 In respect of MrArmour underthe terms of the plan relating

to retirement 100% of the shares vesting will be released to him

following the April Committee meeting In accordance with the

preliminaryvesting calculations thiswill result in 263601 PLC

ordinarysharesand 173105 NVordinaryshares being releasedto

MrArmour Thereafter MrArmourwill have no further entitlement

for payment underthis plan Dividend equivalents will be payable

in cash on any shares released which based on the preliminary

calculations would result in payments of 135251 and 179329

toMr Engstrom and 165937 and 220016 to MrArmour

Executive Share Option Scheme ESOS
The current ESOS which was approved by shareholders in 2003

expires on 8April 2013 replacement ESOS forwhich we are

seeking shareholder approvalat the AGMs in April 2013 is

described in the notices of AGMs and itis intended to make grants

underthis plan to around 1.000 employees globally including the

executive directors in 2013 It is not intended to make anyfurther

grants under the existing ESOS the key features of which were

described in last years remuneration report on page 71

During 2012 Erik Engstrom received grant of 200% of base

salary of market value options two-thirds of the permitted

maximum On joining Duncan Palmer received grant of 135% of

salary The vesting of the options is subject to 6% p.a compound

growth in adjusted earnings pershare hurdle measured at

constant currencies overa three-year period commencing on

January of the year of grant the same condition also applies

to the 2011 ESOS grants which were made to Erik Engstrom

and Mark Armour In view of his retirementat the end of 2012

Mark Armour did not receive an ESOS grant in 2012

Early in 2012 as disclosed in last years Report the 2009-li cycle

of ESOS lapsed for Erik Engstrom and MarkArmour

Bonus Investment PLan BIP
The BIP is voluntary plan aimed at encouraging personal

investment in and ongoing holding of Reed Elseviersharesto

promote greater alignment with shareholders and support the

retention of keytalent

Under the BIP participants may investtheirownfundsto purchase

Reed Elsevier securities or allocate securities already owned

outright for investment underthe plan upto specified maximum

In return the participant is granted matching award which vests

over three years subject to performance i.e maximum match of

for can be earned on the personal investment It is condition

of vesting thatthe underlying personal investment is retained

throughout thevesting period Dividend equivalents accrue on the

matching shares during the vesting period and are paid out in cash

at the end to the extent that the matching award vests The table

overleaf summarises the key features of the BIP

81

Average

Adjusted EPS

growth over the

twoyearperiod

13% p.a or above
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Bonus Investment PLan tBIP

Overview

Feature Detail

Frequencyofaward Annualgrantsofmatchingawards

Ten-yearlifeoftheplan

Implemented in 2010

Eligibility Approximately 150 senior executives including executive directors

Participation isvoluntary

Performance period Three financialyears

Performance conditions Average adjusted EPS growth measured in constant currencies and ROIC see below

50% of the award is subject to adjusted EPS growth and 50% subject to ROIC

Vesting scale Performance hurdle and straight-tine vesting

Personal investment Upto 100% of the target bonus opportunity net of tax

Other provisions On change of control awardsvest on pro-rated basis and subject to performance based on

an assessment of progress againsttargets atthe timethe change of controloccurs unlessthe

Committee determines that awards should not vest and instead be exchanged for equivalent

awards over shares in the acquiring company i.e rotloverapplies

Claw-backapplies

Awards underthe plan are satisfied with shares purchased in the market

Average growth ROIC%Iinthe

inAdjusted EPS 1% third yearof the

Match earned on over the year performance

personal investment performance period period

0% below4%p.a belowll%

50% 4%p.a 11%

75% 6.5%p.a 11.5%

100% 9%p.a.orabove 12%orabove

The targets forthe 2010-12 and 2011 -13 cycles of BIP are set out in

last years Report

Awardswere granted underthe BiPto Mr Engstrom and MrArmour

in May2OlO.At its meeting on 25April 2013 in much the sameway

as forthe REGP the Committee will assess the extent to which the

performance conditions have been metforthese awards which

includes an overall assessment of underlying business

performance and other relevant factors

Based on review of the two performance measures used in the

plan preliminary calculations indicate that 89.5% of the awards

are expected to vest This is based on ROIC achievement slightly

below the 11.2% maximum after taking into account adjustments

for such items as foreign exchange rates pension deficits and

restructuring costs as provided in the plan and EPS growth just

below the 70th percentile of the target range specified in the plan

This would result in the vesting of 62819 NVADR matching awards

in respect of Mr Engstrom and corresponding cash dividend

equivalent payment of $178181 In respect of MrArmour 58223

PLC ordinary shares and 38048 NV ordinary shares would be

released with corresponding dividend equivalent payments of

E36651 and 48359 respectively

Sharehotding requirement

The Committee believes that one of the aspects that creates closer

alignment between senior management and shareholders isto

require executives to buildup and maintain significant personal

stake in Reed Elsevier The shareholding requirements applicable

to the executive directors are set out in the table below and as

described on page 79 were pre-requisitesto participate in the

REOP Shareholding requirements also apply to selected senior

executives below the Board

Meeting the relevant shareholding requirement is both condition

ofthevesting of awardsaswellasa pre-requisiteto maintain

eligibility to receive future awards underthe multi-year

incentives

On 31 December 2012 the executive directors shareholdings

were as follows valued at the mid-market closing prices of

Reed Elsevier securities

ErikEngstrom 300% 512%

Mark Armour 200% 442%

Duncan Palmer 200% 0%

Duncan Palmerhas untit3l December2Ol5to build upto his required tevelof

shareholding and must retain any net shares earned from Reed Elseviershare plans

untit he meets his requirement

Other empLoyee share plans

The CEO and Mr Palmer have waived their rightto participate

in anylocalall-employee share-based plans in any country

including the HMRC approved all-employee UKSavings-Related

Share Option Scheme SAYE

The following targets and vesting scale applyto awards granted

underthe BIP in 2012

Shareholding requirement

Iin%of3l December2012

annualised base satary

Actual sharehotding as at

31 December 20121in%of

31 December2012

annuatised base sataryl
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Retirement benefits

Retirement benefit provisions are set in the context of the total

remuneration for each executive director taking accountof age

and service and againstthe background of evolving legislation

and practice in Reed Etseviers major countries of operation

Base salary is the only pensionable element of remuneration

Erik Engstrom is provided with UK defined benefit pension

arrangements underwhich he accrues pension of 1/30th of

salaryfor everyyear of service up to maximum of two thirds

of salary The pension is provided through combination of

the main UK Reed Elsevier Pension Scheme for salary

restricted tothe Scheme Earnings Cap determined annually

on the same basis as the pre-April 2006 Inland Revenue

earnings cap and HMRC AnnualAllowance and

Reed Elseviers unapproved pension arrangement for

the balance

Priorto November2007 Erik Engstrom was nota memberof

any company pension scheme and Reed Elsevier made annual

contributions of 19.5% of his salary to his personal pension plan

From November2007 contributions to his designated retirement

account ceased and he became member of the UK defined

benefit pension arrangement

The pension arrangements for Erik Engstrom include life

assurance coverwhile in employment an entitlement to pension

in the event of ill health or disability and spouses and/or

dependants pension on death

The increase in thetransfervalue of the directors pensions after

deduction of contributions is shown in the table below Transfer

values have been calculated in accordance with the guidance note

GNu published bythe UK Institute of Actuaries and Facultyof

Actuaries The transfervalues at3l December2012 have been

calculated using the transfervalue basis adopted by the trustees

of the Reed Elsevier Pension Scheme

The transfervalue in respect of individualdirectors represents

liability in respect of directors pension entitlement and is not an

amount paid or payable to the director

MarkArmourretired on 31 December2012 atwhich point he

became entitled to pension of 378785 perannum

CD

CD

CD

CD

CD

CD

CD

CD

CD

CD

TransfervaLues of accrued pension benefits

Transfer

value at

31 December

Increase in 2012 of

Increase in accrued increase

Transfer Transfer transfer Increase in annual in accrued

value value value during Accrued accrued pension pension

of accrued ofaccrued theyear annual annual during duringtheyear

Age at pension at pension at net of pension at pension the
year

net of inflation

31 December Directors 31 December 31 December directors 31 December during net of and directors

2012 contributions 2011 2012 contributionsl 2012 theyear intlationl contributions

ErikEngstrom 49 9158 2099132 2730651 622361 180958 38584 31750 469944
MarkArmour 58 1944 6758053 7525908 765911 384878 30355 13362 259332

aThe reason forthe difference between MrArmoursaccrued annual pension asat 31.12.l2as stated in the table above and the annual pension entitlementfotlowirig

retirement is that MrArmourretired early so there wasa reduction made to hisaccrued annual pension as at3l.1212

Duncan Palmer is member of the UK Reed Elsevier defined

contribution pension plan the Reed Elsevier Pension Plan

REPP The company contribution is 19% of Mr Palmers salary

50000 is paid as contribution to the REPP being the maximum

contribution which can be made under HMRC limits and the

balance is paid to him as cash allowance subjectto deduction of

income tax and national insurance The pension arrangement for

Mr Palmer includes life assurance coverwhile in employment

-n

UI

CD

CD

CD



DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT

Service contracts

Executive directors are employed under service contracts that

provide fora maximum of one years notice The contracts neither

specify predetermined level of severance payment nor contain

specific provisions in respect of change in control The

Committee believes that as general rule notice periods should

be 12 monthsand thatthe executive directorsshould subjectto

any legalconstraints within their base country be required to

mitigate their tosses in the event of termination The Committee

will however note local market conditions so as to ensure that the

terms offered are appropriate to attract and retain top executives

operating in global businesses

The contractualterms of the executive directors and for

approximately 100 other seniorexecutives include certain

covenants as follows

non-competition restrictions applywhich prevent the

executive from working in capacity which competes with any

Reed Elsevier business which he/she was involved with during

the preceding 12 months from recruiting Reed Elsevier

employees and from soliciting Reed Elsevier customers and

suppliers for period of 12 months after leaving employment

inthe eventof the executive resigning he/shewillimmediately

lose all rightsto anyoutstanding awards underthe multi-year

incentives including anyvested but unexercised options and

in the event of breach of the covenants any gains made or

payouts received in the period starting six months prior to

and ending 12 months after leaving employment onthevesting

or exercise of awards from the multi-yearincentives may

be repayable

Each executive director has service contract with Reed Elsevier Group plc as summarised in the table below

Erik Engstrom

Duncan Palmers remuneration arrangements

Duncan Palmers annual base salaryon his recruitment was

600000 and he has an annual target bonus opportunity of 100%

of base salary He will be eligible to participate in BIP from 2013

onwards up to his target bonus opportunityand to participate in

the newESOSand LTIP subjectto shareholders approving those

plans He will receive annual pension contributions equalto l9%

of salary and benefits in accordance with the policies applicable

to executive directors

In addition in September 2012 he was granted the following

awards

market value option under ESOS to acquire shares with face

value on the date of grant of 135% of base salary which vests on

the 3rd anniversary of grant subject to achieving at least 6%

p.a compound growth in adjusted EPS at constant currencies

overthe three year performance period from January2012

to3l December2014

Performance shares PSP with an aggregate face value

of 180% of base salary which are subject to the same

performance targets as willapplyto any matching award

that may be granted to the CEO underthe REGP in 2013with

performance being assessed in the first half of 2015 The award

is non-pensionable and carries right to receive dividend

equivalents on the same basis as under the REGP
The leaver rules are consistent with those which apply under

the REGP with the exception that retirement with the consent

of the company is not automatically treated as an approved

leaver reason for the performance share award

Restricted shares RSP with an aggregate face value of 250%

of base salary which vest 50% in 2014 and 50% in 2015 provided

all unvested stock-based awards granted to him by his previous

employerlapse Thisone-offgrantofrestrictedshareswas

made to compensate Mr Palmer for the forfeiture of awards

from his former employer They are subject to time pro-rated

claw-back if he resigns or is summarily terminated before

the date of the announcement of the 2014 annual results in

2015

The Committee considered the grant of performance shares and

restricted shares noted above to have been essential to secure

Duncan Palmers services The Committee was satisfied that

the awards are appropriate and align his interests with those of

shareholders Both awards fall within paragraph 9.4.22R of

the UK Listing Rules and were granted over Reed Elsevier PLC

ordinaryshares but half of each award will be settled on vesting

with Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares The awards cannot be

amended to the advantage of Duncan Palmerwithout shareholder

approvaland the documentation governing these awardswill be

available for inspection from the date of the notices of the 2013

AnnualGeneral Meetings upto and including the meetings

themselves

In recognition of Mr Palmerand his family having to relocate to

the UK in orderfor him to take up his new position he will receive

one-off cash relocation allowance of 500000 in May 2013

subject to time pro-rated claw-back if he resigns or is

summarilyterminated priorto3l December2014 and relocation

support underthe standard Reed Elsevier policy

Mark Armours retirement terms

Mark Armours retirement terms were disclosed in last years

remuneration report page 74

Policy on externaL appointments

The Committee believes that the experience gained by allowing

executive directors to serve as non-executive directors on the

boards of other organisations is of benefit to Reed Elsevier

Accordingly executive directors may subject to the approval of the

Current contract date

14 March 2011

Date employment commenced Expirydate Isubjectto notice period Notice period Subject to

23 August 2004 14 June 2028 12 months English law

Ceased to be director and

Mark Armour October1996 February 1995 retired on 31 December2012 12 months English law

Duncan Palmer l5August 2012 24August 2012 n/a 12 months English law
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Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer serve as non-executive

directors on the boards of upto two non-associated companies

of which only one may be to the board of major company and

they may retain remuneration arising from such appointments

Mark Armour is non-executive director of SABMiIIer plc and

received remuneration ofElO6250 during 2012 C100694

during 2011 He is also non-executive director of the Financial

Reporting Council FRC and received remuneration ofEl2500

since commencing his appointment on July 2012

Duncan Palmerisa non-executive director of Oshkosh

Corporation and received fees of 15487 since his appointment

asa director of Reed Elsevier PLC up to the end of 2012

Nc nexecu ye directors

PoLicy on non-executive directors fees

The policy on non-executive directors fees is matter for

the Boards subject to applicable law and with respect to

Reed Elsevier NV the shareholders and does not fallwithin

the Committees remit

Reed Elsevier seeks to recruit non-executive directors with the

experience to contribute to the boards ofa dual-listed global

business and with balance of personatskills thatwillmake

majorcontributiontothe Boards and theircommittee structures

With the exception of Marike van Lier Lelswho serves only on the

Supervisory Board of Reed Elsevier NV non-executive directors

including the Chairman are appointed to the Boards of Reed

ElsevierGroupplc Reed ElsevierPLCandtheSupervisoryBoard

of Reed Elsevier NV Non-executive directors fees reflect the

directors membership of the three Boards

The primary source for comparative market data is the practice

of FTSE 50 companies although reference is also made to NYSE

Euronext Amsterdam AEX Index and US-listed companies

Non-executive directors including the Chairman serve under

letters of appointment and are not entitled to notice of or

payments following retirement from the Boards

Fee LeveLs

Non-executive directors receive an annualfee in respect of their

memberships of the Boards of Reed Elsevier PLC Reed Elsevier

NV and Reed Elsevier Group plc The fee paid to Marike van Lier

Lets who serves only on the Supervisory Board of Reed Elsevier

NV reflects hertime commitment to that companyand to other

companies within the Reed Etseviercombined businesses

Non-executive directors are reimbursed for expenses incurred in

attending meetings They do not receive any performance-related

bonuses pension provision share options orotherforms of

benefit except for the following the Chairman receives private

medical benefitand non-executive directors and the Chairman are

provided with tax filing support to meetanytaxfiling obligations

arising from their directorships with Reed Elsevier in countries

otherthan their home country

Fees may be reviewed annually although in practice they have

changed on lessfrequent basis The lastfee reviewwas during

2011 andthe currentfee arrangementstook effecton January

2012

Thefeesfor20l3 are unchangedfrom 2012and are set out below

AnnuaL fee 2013

Chairman 550000

Non-executive directors E65000/80000

Senior Independent Director 20000
Chairman o/

Audit Committee 25000/30000
Remuneration Committee 20000

The totalannualfee payable to Marike van Lier Lels is 65000

unchanged from 2012 The Chairman of Reed Elsevier does not

receive committee chairman fees

Tota Shareholder Return graphs

As required bythe Large and Medium-sized Companies and

Groups Accounts and Reports Regulations 2008 the graphs in

this section show the Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV

totalshareholder return performance assuming dividends were

reinvested They compare the Reed Elsevier PLC performance

with that achieved by the FTSE 100 and the Reed Elsevier NV

performance with the performance achieved bythe AEX

Indexoverthefive-yearperiodfrom3l December2007to

31 December2012

Forthe five-year period from 31 December2007 the TSRfor

Reed Elsevier PLC was 22.6% against FTSE 100 return of 11.7%

For Reed Elsevier NV during the same period TSR was 8.4%

against an AEX Index return of minus 19% These indices are

relevant since Reed Elsevier PLC isa member of the FTSE 100

index and Reed Elsevier NV isa memberof theAEX Index

CD

CD

CD

CD
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REED ELSEVIER PLC ElSE 100-5 YEARS

140%

120%

100%

80%

60%

40%

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

ElSE 100Reed Elsevier PLC

REED ELSEVIER NV AEX -5 YEARS

140%

120%

100%

80%

60%

40%

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Reed Elsevier NV

Forthe purposes of the chartsthetotalsharehotderreturn iscalculated on the basisof the average share price inthe 3otrading days

priorto the respective year end and on the assumption that dividends were reinvested

Remuneration and share tables

The information set out in this section forms part of the audited

disclosures in this Report For the purposes of the disclosures in

this section the average exchange rates forthe reLevant year

have been used

Directors emoluments and fees

Aggregate emoLuments

The emoluments of the directors of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed

Elsevier NV including any entitlement to fees or emoluments

from either Reed Elsevier Group plc or Elsevier Reed Finance BV

were as follows

Mark Elliott

Anthony Habgood

Adrian Hennah from2OApril2Oll

Lisa Hook

Marike van LierLels

Robert Polet

SirDavidReid

Salaries and fees 2972

Benefits

Annual performance-related bonuses 2.074

Pension contributions 44 42

TotaL 5179 4322

Lord Sharman until 20April 201 18333

Linda Sanford from December 201 5416

Ben van der Veer 89431 82609

Total 1062693 936156

The above figures
exclude an imputed notionaL benefit in respect of tax filing support provided to non-executive directors fortax filings in countries otherthan their home

country resulting from their directorshipwith Reed ELsevier The incrementalassessable benefit charge per
relevant tax return has been agreed by PwC to amount to 300

Excludes private medical insurance benefit ofEl 389 in respect of 2012 El 329 in 20111

The feesfor Marikevan Lier Lels and Ben van derVeerare paid in euro and were 65000 and 110000 respectively
for 2012 48000 and 95000 respectivelyfor2ol 11

For reporting purposes these were converted into pounds sterling at the average exchange rate forthe year of reporting

Other required disclosures

No loans advances or guarantees have been provided on behalf of any director

As disclosed in last years Report the 2009-11 cycle of awards made under ESOS and LTIP lapsed in early 2012 for Erik Engstrom and

Mark Armour The executive directors made no pre-tax gains during 2012 on any multi-year incentives except for Mark Armour who

made gain of 11 85 on the exercise of vested options during the year Details are shown on page 88

AEX

2012

coOo

IndividuaL fees of non-executive directors

2011

89

2590

56

1634

2012 2011

85000

550000
65.000

65.000

52846
65000

85000

70000

500000

38475

55000

41739
55000

75000
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hidtvduaL emoLuments of executive directors

Setery Benefits Bonus Totsl2Bl2

LrikEngstroni LO5O625 28396 11499O9 Z22893O 2075417

Mac kArmour 4495 23984 693799 1362278 1263563

Dur can P1ilrr er 213866 32878 23O2O5 476929 n/a

Tot il 19O8966 85258 2073913 4068j37 3338 980

it guc Our cr 11 cc pr iv tr cc pi win ti 12
cc in

ir cIt p1

Mar ketvatLie options awarded under and restricted shares awarded theyearof reporting under the HIP arr et out by xecutive

di cc tot on pages 88 89 Vesting is subject to perfor mance conditions rclating to growth adjusted and ROIC as doscr bed in th

fi ont section ott Vs Report The maximum number of options that can vest under the and the rrraximurri number of restre tcd

shams thatcan vest underthe HIP is eqLnvatentto the awards granted The maximum number of shareswhch can VESt underthe

September 2012 grants of performance share awards andre tricted share awards to Duncan Patmer is equivalent to thc award

gra tcd Erik Engstr om was the highest paid director in 2012

Directors sharehotdhigs hi Reed ELsever PLC and Reed Etsevter NV

inter ests of those individuals who were directors of Reed Elsev er PLC and Reed Elsevier NVas at 31 December 2012 in the issued

share capitatoftf ospcctive companies at the beginning and end ot the year are shown below

CrudEr vi ft

ill 17 11

MarkArmour 248 /42 2a0242 136889 136889

Mark Ettiott /600 7601

Er Engsti 107040 0/040 447356 a09556

Anthony Habgood 50 000 50000 2j000 25000

AdrianHennah 5163 5163

sa Hook 4800

Mar ike van Lier etc

Our an Palmer

Rot ert Hotet luuu 1000

Sir David Reid

rids Sanford

Her van der Veer 5000 5000

1ipp ii ubuqucc rim 12

There have bee no changes ir the interests of the curt er dir ectors serving as at the date this Report in the issued share capital

otRce2 Elsevier PLC or Reed Llsev er NVat the date of this Report

Sharebased awards Reed ELsever PLC and Reed ELsever NV

Details of vested options shown in and unvested options and restricted char es held by cxc cutive dire ctors in Reed Elsevier PLC

PLC and Reed E-tsevier NV NV as at3l December 2012 are shown in the tables overleaf Arty awar dsthat have been doscr bed as

lapsed in prior year reports have been excluded The shading in the tables denotes awards granted during the year of reporting he

yes ing of outstanding unvested awards is subject to performance conditions in accordance with the provisions of the respective plan

rules except for the RSP award granted to Mr Palmer on joining Reed Elsevier The conditions of vesting of this award are set out on

page 84 of this Report disclosu purposes any PLC arid NVADRs awarded under the HIP have been converted ito ordinary char

equivalents At the date of this Reportthere have been no changes in the options or restricted shares held by executive rectors rn office

attfne date of th Report The market price dtthe date of award of grants made under the rriulti year incent yes are based on the middle

market pr cc of the respective security
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Report of the Audit Committees

91

This report has been prepared by the Audt Committees of

Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Etsever NV in conjunction with the

Audit Committee of Reed Elsevier Group plc the Committees

and has been approved bythe respective Boards provides an

overview of the membership responsibibties and activtes of

the Committees The functions of an audit committee in respect

of the financing activities are carried out bythe Supervisory

Board of Elsevier Reed Finance BV The Reed Elsevier PLC and

Reed Elsevier NV Audit Committees fulfil their roles from the

perspecbve of the parent companies and both Committees have

access to the reports to and the work of the Reed Elsevier Group

plc Audit Committee and the Etsever Reed Finance BV

Supervisory Board in this respect

Membership

ha Committees compr seat least three independent

Non Executive Directors The members of each of the

Cor mittees that served dur rig the year arc Ben van der Veer

Ch airman of the Committees Sir David Re Adrian Hennah

isa Hook until May2012 and nda Sar Fe from appointment

ecember 20 Sir David Reid and Adrian Hennah both UK

chartered accountants and Ben van der Veer registered

accountant in the Nether lands are consideed to have sign cant

recntand relevant financial experience David Reid has

sen ved on the Audit Comm ttees for more than rune years and atte

having determ red that he rernoirred ndepc ndent in characterand

jud lement and there were also no relationships or circumstances

which are likely
affect his independent ju Igement he has

remained member of the Audit Committees to allowfor an

orderly transitic to newly appointed direcei

Responsibilities

Tha main rote and responsibilities of thc Committees are to assist

the respective Boards in fulfilling their eve sight responsibilities

regarding the integrity of Reed Elsevier intei im and financial

sta ements and report ng process risk management and internal

cor trols the external auditors effectivenes per for ma ce

quc lifications arid independence and the pa rfermance of the

int rnal auditors he Comm ttees repor tIe the respective Boards

on heir activities identifying any matter sir respect of which they

cor siderthat action or improvement is needed and makng
ecommendations as to the steps to be taken

Thc terms of reference of each Audit Comrr ittee arc reviewed

annually and copy of each is published on the Reed Elsevier

weasite www reedelsev er.com

Principal actwites

Tfw Committees met five times during 2012 The Audit Committee

meetings are typically attended by the Chief Executive Officer the

Ch ef FinancialOfficer the Reed Elsevier Group plc group financ al

corrtroller thc Reed Elsevier Group plc chief legal officer chief

risk officer and director of internal audit and audit partners of the

exta rnalauditors Additionally the managing director and senior

representatives of the externalauditors of Elsevier Heed Fi iance

BVattend the July and February meetings of the parent company

Au lit Committees

discharging their principal rc cports hilitics in resper tcf the 2012

financialyear the Committees have

received and discussed reports from the Reed Group

plc group financtalcontroller that set out areas of significance

in the preparation of the financinlstatements inc riding

reviewof the car rying values ofgoodwilland ntangible

assets disposals app ication of revenue recognition and

cost cdpitalisation policies review of Lincertain tax posit ens

provisions for lease obligations and the use of lhe going

conce basis in tf preparation of the financialstatement

The Currirrrittees also recwvd written reportsfom the

external auditors summar sing the most significantf ndings

from their aud work

lii reviewed the critical account ng policies and compliance

with applicable accourtaing standards and other disclosure

requirerrients and received regular update reports en

accountirg and regulatory developments

received and discussed regular reports ft em the Reed

Flsevier Group plc Thief sk officer ar directei of inter ral

audit sumrnarising the status of Reed risk

maragemerrtact vit es and the rind ngs free internS audit

reviews and the act ens agreed with management Areas

of focus in 2012 ir eluded management of nvestmerrt

programmes regulatory compliance and review of

infer mation security irrcluding the manaqerrent of data

privacy business continuity plann nq and continued

compliance with the requirements of Section 404 of the

US Sarbanes OxleyAct relating to the documentation

and testing of internal controls over finaracial report nq

iv reviewed and approved the internalaudit plarr for 20

and monitored execution including progress in espect of

ecoremendations made Reviewed the resources terms of

reference and effectiveness of the Reed Elsevier Group pIe

risk management and internal audit functions

received presentations from the Reed Elsevier Group plc

chief compliance off cer on the compliance programmes

including the operation of Reed Elseviers codes of conduct

training progr arr mes whistleblowing arrangements and

procedures in respect of the UK Br ibery Act requin ements

the Reed Elsevier Inc qenet at counsel on the management

of data privacy security and compliance the Reed Elsevier

Group plc If security officer on information technology

security and the Reed Elsevier Group plc chief legal officer

on legal issues and claims

vi received updates from the Reed Elsevier Group plc group

treasurer on pension arrangements and funding treasury

policies and risk management compliance with treasury

policies and global insurance arrangements

vii received presentationsfrom the Reed Elseviet Group plc

head of group taxation on tax policies and related atters

vie received regular updates from the chief financialcfficer on

devcloprncntswithintbef noncefunctie

ix received presentations on rotational hais ft em the chief

nancial officers of major businesses on the priorities for

the finance functions and the risk management and internal

control activities
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Combined income statement

Revenue

cost of sale

Prosp rfrt

Selling md sIn Non costs

Admintr on other exper es

per ml nq ofit bobrojr ntvcetu cc

ma cot ru alt ofiorntva mti mc

Operatrng proht

ear cc ncr

in mnce

thr me maN

apr aN and othr operating item

Profit before tax

laxali mn

Net proM for the year

Attnibut letr

Parent con pan sh mn eholder

Non contn oiling in err

Net proft for the year

2012

en

6116 002

2139 1226

3977 32376

1015 1075

L628 626

1334 I11

24 30

1358 1205

16 17

232 1252

216 12351

45 22

Net proM for the year

xchanq dii re in Ira latnon of In reign operat on
Actuinian base err defirred nefit perrion schemes

mm valur mvem nL in avail ible for sale mrrvr tmmnts

Iransler In net pr Nit on di pucal of availab fo calm rvestinornts

valor movement on Wash Flow hed

transfer nr profit om flow dgr reserve nr of lox

mx recognaed cctly in cqumty

Other comor eher sweexpensefortheyear

Total comprehenswe rncome for the year

Attributable to

Pa rorrip mr ie ah mrehotdcr

Non controlling in erets

Total comprehensrve income torthe year

2012

Notc Cm

074 767

1187

113

1074

948

1181

767

Combined statement of comprehensive income

1069 760

1074 767

136
329

11

70

18 21

88

275

799

794

113

24

3/

42

21

740

/33

799
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Combinedstatement of cash flows

lIE YE fYFNDI PH DE-LEMBEFI 2012 2011

Note Cm Em

Cash fLows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations
11 1847 1735

Interest paid
231 247

Interest received
12

Tax paid net 2161 218

Net cash from operating activities 1407 1282

Cash fLows from investing activities

Acquisitions
11 316 481

Purchases of property plant and equipment
70 85

Expenditure on internallydeveloped intangible assets 263 265

Purchaseof investments 10

Proceedsfrom disposals of property plantand equipment

Gross proceeds from other disposals
235 101

Payments on other disposals
82 21

Dividends received from joint ventures 20 33

Net cash used in investing activities 476 721

Cash fLows from financing activities

Dividends paid to shareholders of the parent companies 521 497

Distributionsto non-controlling interests

Decrease/increase in shortterm bank loans overdrafts and commercial paper 434 210

Issuanceofotherloans 592

Repaymentofotherloans
437 248

Repayment offinance leases 22

Disposal/acquisition of non-controlling interests 48

Repurchase of ordinaryshares 250

Proceeds on issue of ordinary shares 48

Net cash used in financing activities 1003 605

Decrease in cash and cash equivaLents
11 72 44

Movement in cash and cash equivaLents

Atstartofyear
726 742

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents
72 44

Exchangetranslationdifferences
13 28

At end of year
641 726
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Combinedstatement of financial position

DECEMBER 2011

Note Cm

Non-current assets

Goodwill 14 4545 4729

Intangible assets 15 3275 3494

Investments in jointventures 16 100 124

Otherinvestments 16 79 64

Property plant and equipment 17 264 288

Deferredtaxassets 19 79 212

Derivative financial instruments 138

8480 8911

Current assets

Inventoriesand pre-publication costs 20 159 190

Trade and other receivables 21 1380 1483

Derivative financial instruments 57 149

Cash and cash equivalents 11 641 726

2237 2548

Assets heLd forsale 22 297 44

TotaLassets 11014 11503

Current LiabiLities

Trade and other payables 23 2544 2657

Derivative financial instruments 11 69

Borrowings 24 730 982

Taxation 603 677

Provisions 26 30 39

3918 4424

Non-current LiabiLities

Borrowings 24 3162 3300

Deferred tax liabilities 19 919 1236

Net pension obligations 466 242

Provisions 26 139 87

4686 4865

Liabilities associated with assets heLd for saLe 22 96 17

TotaL LiabiLities 8700 9306

Netassets 2314 2197

CapitaL and reserves

Combined share capitals 28 223 223

Combined share premiums 28 2727 2723

Combined shares held in treasury 28 899 663
Translation reserve 23 88

Othercombined reserves 29 252 199

Combined shareholders equity 2280 2172

Non-controlling interests 34 25

TotaLequity 2314 2197
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Combinedstatement of changes in equity

Combined Combined Combined Other Combined Non-

share share shares heLd TransLation combined sharehoLders controlling Total

capitaLs premiums in treasury reserve reserves equity interests equity

Note Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm

Balance at January 2011 224 2754 677 29 387 1943 27 1970

Totat comprehensive income

fortheyear 32 701 733 740

Dividends paid 13 497 497 506

Issue of ordinary shares

netofexpenses

Increase in share based

remuneration reserve 27 27 27

Settlementofshareawards

Acquisitions

Acquisition of non-controlbng

interests 43 43 48

Exchange differences on

translation of capital

and reserves 40 27

Baanceat1January2012 223 2723 663 88 199 2172 25 2197

Totalcomprehensive income

fortheyear 136 930 794 799

Dividendspaid 13 521 521 525

Issue of ordinary shares

rietofexpenses 47 48 48

Repurchaseofordinaryshares 250 250 250

Increase in share based

remuneration reserve 31 31 31

Settlementofshareawards

Acquisitions

Disposalof non-controlling

interests

Exchange differences on

translation of capital

and reserves 43 25 12

BaLance at 31 December2012 223 2727 899 23 252 2280 34 2314
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting policies

The Reed Elsevier combined financial statements are prepared

in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

IFRS as adopted by the European Union and as issued by the

International Accounting Standards Board IASB The combined

financialstatementsare prepared on going concern basis

as explained on page 72

The Reed Elsevieraccounting policies under IFRS are set out

below

Basis of preparation

The equalisation agreement between Reed Elsevier PLC and

Reed Elsevier NV hasthe effectthattheirshareholders can be

regarded as having the interests of single economic group

The Reed Elsevier combined financial statements combined

financial statements represent the combined interests of

both sets of shareholders and encompass the businesses of

Reed Elsevier Group plc and Elsevier Reed Finance BVand their

respective subsidiaries associates and joint ventures together

with the two parent companies Reed Elsevier PLC and

Reed Elsevier NVthe combined businesses

In preparing the combined financialstatements subsidiaries

of Reed Elsevier Group plc and Elsevier Reed Finance BVare

accounted for underthe acquisition method and investments in

associates and joint ventures are accounted for underthe equity

method Alltransactions and balances between the combined

businesses are eliminated

On acquisition ofa subsidiary or interest in an associate or joint

venture fairvalues reflecting conditions at the date of acquisition

are attributed to the net assets including identifiable intangible

assets acquired This includesthose adjustments madeto

bring accounting policies into line with those of the combined

businesses.The results of subsidiaries sold oracquired are

included in the combined financialstatements upto orfrom the

date that control passes from or to the combined businesses

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of the combined

businesses are identified separately from combined

shareholders equity Non-controlling interests consist of the

amount of those interests at the date of the original acquisition

and the non-controlling share of changes in equity sincethe

date of acquisition

These financial statements form part of the statutory information

to be provided by Reed Elsevier NV but are not for legal entity

and do not include all the information required to be disclosed by

company in itsfinancialstatements underthe UKCompaniesAct

2006 or the Dutch CivilCode.Additional information is given in

the Annual Reports and FinancialStatements of the parent

companies set out on pages 147 to 194 list of principal

businesses is setout on page 204

Foreign exchange transtation

The combined financialstatements are presented in pounds

sterling Additional information providing translation into euros

of the primary Reed Elsevier combined financialstatements and

selected notes is presented on pages 133 to 146

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded atthe rate

of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction At each

statement of financial position date monetary assets and

liabilitiesthat are denominated in foreign currencies are

retranslated at the rate prevailing on the statement of financial

position date Exchange differences arising are recorded in the

income statement other than where hedge accounting applies

as set out below

Assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated at

exchange rates prevailing on the statement of financial position

date Income and expense items and cash flows of foreign

operations are translated at the average exchange rate for the

period Significant individual items of income and expense and

cash flows in foreign operations are translated at the rate

prevailing on the date of transaction Exchange differences arising

are classified as equity and transferred to the translation reserve

When foreign operations are disposed of the related cumulative

translation differences are recognised within the income

statement in the period

Reed Elsevier uses derivative financial instruments primarily

forward contracts to hedge its exposure to certain foreign

exchange risks Details of Reed Elseviers accounting policies

in respect of derivative financial instruments are set out below

Revenue

Revenue represents the invoiced value of sales less anticipated

returns on transactions completed by performance excluding

customer sales taxes and sales between the combined

businesses

Revenues are recognised for the various categories of turnover

as follows subscriptions on periodic despatch of subscribed

product or rateably overthe period of the subscription where

performance is not measurable by despatch circulation and

transactional on despatch or occurrence ofthetransaction

advertising on publication oroverthe period of online display

and exhibitions on occurrence of the exhibition

Where sales consist of two or more independent components

whose value can be reliably measured revenue is recognised

on each component as it is completed by performance based

on attribution of relative value

EmpLoyee benefits

The expense of defined benefit pension schemes and other

post-retirement employee benefits is determined using the

projected unit credit method and charged in the income statement

asan operating expense based on actuarialassumptions

reflecting market conditions at the beginning ofthefinancialyear

Actuarialgains and losses are recognised in full in the statement

of comprehensive income in the period in which they occur

Past service costs are recognised immediately to the extent that

benefits have vested or if not vested on straight line basis over

the period untilthe benefitsvest

Net pension obligations in respect of defined benefit schemes

are included in the statement of financial position at the present

value of scheme liabilities less the fairvalue of scheme assets

Where schemes are in surplus i.e assets exceed liabilities

the net pension assets are separately included in the statement

of financial position Any net pension asset is limited to the

extent that the asset is recoverable through reductions in

future contributions
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The expense of defined contribution pension schemes and

other employee benefits is charged in the income statement

as incurred

Share based remuneration

The fairvalue of share based remuneration is determined at

the date of grantand recognised asan expense in the income

statement on straight line basis overthe vesting period taking

account of the estimated number of shares that are expected to

vest Market based performance criteria are taken into account

when determining thefairvalue atthe date of grant Non-market

based performance criteria are taken into account when

estimating the number of shares expected to vest The fairvalue

of share based remuneration is determined by use ofa binomial or

Monte Carlo simulation model as appropriate All Reed Elseviers

share based remuneration isequitysettled

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directlyattributable to the acquisition

construction or production of an asset that takes substantial

period of time to bring to use are capitalised All other interest

on borrowings is expensed as incurred The cost of issuing

borrowings is generally expensed over the period of borrowing

so asto produce constant periodic rate of charge

Taxation

The tax expense represents the sum of the tax payable on the

current year taxable profits adjustments in respect of prioryear

taxable profits and the movements on deferred taxthatare

recognised in the income statement

The tax payable on currentyeartaxable profits is calculated using

the applicabletax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted bythe date of the statement offinancialposition

Deferred tax is the tax arising on differences between the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities in the financlalstatements and

their corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable

profitand isaccountedforusingthebalancesheetliability

method Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for

all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are

recognised to the extent that based on current forecasts it is

probable that taxable profitswill be available againstwhich

deductibletemporary differences can be utilised Deferred tax

is not recognised on temporary differences arising in respect

of goodwill that is not deductible for tax purposes

Deferred tax is calculated using tax rates that have been

substantively enacted at the date of the statement of financial

position Full provision is made for deferred tax which would

become payable on the distribution of retained profits from

foreign subsidiaries associates orjointventures

Movements in deferred tax are charged orcredited in the income

statement except when they relate to items charged or credited

directlyto equity inwhich case the deferred tax is also recognised

in equity Deferred tax credits in respect of share based

remuneration are recognised in equity to the extent that expected

tax deductions exceed the related expense

GoodwiLL

On the acquisition ofa subsidiaryor business the purchase

consideration is allocated between the net tangible and

intangible assets on fairvalue basis with any excess purchase

consideration representing goodwill Goodwill arising on

acquisitions also includes amounts corresponding to deferred

tax liabilities recognised in respect of acquired intangible assets

Goodwill is recognised as an asset and reviewed for impairment

at least annually Any impairment is recognised immediately in

the income statement and not subsequently reversed

On disposalofa subsidiaryor business the attributable amount

of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss

on disposal

IntangibLe assets

Intangible assets acquired as part of business combination are

stated in the statement of financial position attheirfairvalue asat

the date of acquisition less accumulated amortisation Internally

generated intangible assets are stated in the statement of

financial position at the directlyattributable cost of creation of the

asset less accumulated amortisation

Intangible assets acquired as part of business combinations

comprise market related assets e.g trademarks imprints

brands customer related assets e.g subscription bases

customer lists customer relationships editorial content

software and systems e.g application infrastructure product

delivery platforms in-process research and development

contract based assets e.g publishing rights exhibition rights

supplycontracts Internally

generated intangible assets typically comprise software and

systems development where an identifiable asset is created that

is probable to generate future economic benefits

Intangible assets otherthan brands and imprints determined

to have indefinite lives are amortised systematically overtheir

estimated useful lives The estimated useful lives of intangible

assets with finite lives are as follows market and customer

related assets to 40 years content software and other

acquired intangible assets 3to 20 years and internally

developed intangible assets3toloyears Brands and imprints

determined to have indefinite lives are notamortised and are

subjectto impairment reviewat least annually

Property pLant and equipment

Property plant and equipment are stated in the statement of

financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation No

depreciation is provided on freehold land Freehold buildings and

long leases are depreciated over their estimated useful lives up

to maximum of 50 years Short leases are written off overthe

duration of the lease Depreciation is provided on other assets on

straight line basis overtheir estimated useful lives asfollows

leasehold improvements shorterof life of lease and 10 years

plant to 20 years office furniture fixtures and fittings to

10 years computer systems communication networks and

equipment 3to years

CD

CD

CD

11

CD

CD

CD

CD
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments

Investments other than investments in joint ventures and

associates are stated in the statement of financial position at fair

value Investments held as part of the venture capital portfolio

are classified as held fortrading with changes in fairvalue

reported through the income statement All other investments

are classified as availablefor sale with changes in fairvalue

recognised directly in equity until the investment is disposed of

or isdeterminedto be impaired at which time the cumulative

gain or loss previously recognised in equity is brought into the net

profit or loss for the period All items recognised in the income

statement relating to investments otherthan investments in joint

ventures and associates are reported as non operating items

Available for sale investments and venture capital investments

held fortrading represent investments in listed and unlisted

securities The fairvalue of listed securities is determined

based on quoted market prices and of unlisted securities on

managements estimate of fairvalue based on standard valuation

techniques including market comparisons and discounts offuture

cash flows having regard to maximising the use of observable

inputs and adjusting for risk Independent valuation experts are

used as appropriate

Investments in jointventures and associates are accounted for

underthe equity method and stated in the statement of financial

position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in

Reed Elseviers share of net assets less any impairment in value

Impairment

At each statement of financial position date reviews are carried

out of the carrying amounts of tangible and intangible assets and

goodwill to determine whetherthere is any indication that those

assets have suffered an impairment loss If any such indication

exists the recoverable amount which is the higher of value in use

and fairvalue less costs to sell of the asset is estimated in order

to determine the extent if any of the impairment loss Where the

asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from

other assets value in use estimates are made based on the cash

flows of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are tested for

impairmentat least annuallyand wheneverthere is any

indication that the asset may be impaired

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is

estimated to be lessthan its net carrying amount the net carrying

amount of the asset or cash generating unit is reduced to its

recoverable amount Impairment losses are recognised

immediately in the income statement in administration and

other expenses

Inventories and pre-pubtication costs

Inventories and pie-publication costs are stated at the lower of

cost including appropriate attributable overhead and estimated

net realisable value Pre-publication costs representing costs

incurred in the origination of content priorto publication are

expensed systematically reflecting the expected sales profile

over the estimated economic lives of the related products

generally uptofive years

Leases

Assets held under leases which confer rights and obligations

similar to those attaching to owned assets are classified as assets

held underfinance leases and capitalised within property plant

and equipment or software and the corresponding liability to

pay rentals is shown net of interest in the statement of financial

position as obligations under finance leases The capitalised

value of the assets is depreciated on straight line basis over

the shorterof the periods of the leases orthe useful lives of the

assets concerned The interest element of the lease payments is

allocated so as to produce constant periodic rate of charge

Operating lease rentals are charged to the income statement on

straight line basis overthe period of the leases Rental income

from operating leases is recognised on straight line basis over

the term of the relevant lease

Cash and cash equivaLents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances call deposits

and other short term highly liquid investments and are held in the

statement of financial position at fairvalue

Assets heLd for saLe

Assets of businesses that are available for immediate sale in their

current condition and for which sales process is considered

highly probable to complete are classified as assets held for sale

and are carried at the lower of carrying value and fairvalue less

costs to sell Non-current assets are not amortised or depreciated

following their classification as held for sale Liabilities of

businesses held for sale are also separately classified on the

statement of financial position

FinanciaL instruments

Financial instruments comprise investments otherthan

investments in joint ventures orassociates trade receivables

cash and cash equivalents payables and accruals provisions

borrowings and derivativefinancial instruments

Investments otherthan investments in jointventures and

associates are classified as either held fortrading or available

for sale as described above These investments are classified

as either Level or2 in the lFRS7fairvalue hierarchy

Trade receivables are carried in the statement of financial position

at invoiced value less allowance for estimated irrecoverable

amounts Irrecoverableamountsare estimated based on the

ageing of trade receivables experience and circumstance

Borrowings other than fixed rate borrowings in designated

hedging relationships and forwhich the carrying value is adjusted

to reflect changes in the fairvalue of the hedged risk payables

accruals and provisions are recorded initially atfairvalue and

subsequentlyat amortised cost

Derivative financial instruments are used to hedge interest rate

and foreign exchange risks Changes in the fairvalue of derivative

financial instruments that are designated and effective as hedges

of future cash flows are recognised net of tax directly in equity in

the hedge reserve If hedged firm commitment or forecasted

transaction results in the recognition of non financialasset or

liability then at the time that the asset or liability is recognised

the associated gains or losses on the derivative that had previously
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been recognised in equity are included in the initial measurement

of the asset or liability For hedges that do not result in the

recognition of an asset ora liability amounts deferred in equity are

recognised in the income statement in the same period in which

the hedged item affects net profit or loss Any ineffective portion

of hedges is recognised immediately in the income statement

Derivative financial instruments that are not designated as

hedging instruments are classified as held fortrading and

recorded in the statement of financial position atfairvalue

with changes in fairvalue recognised in the income statement

Where an effective hedge is in place against changes in the fair

value offixed rate borrowings the hedged borrowings are

adjusted for changes in fairvalue attributable to the risk being

hedged with corresponding income or expense included in the

income statementwithin finance costs The offsetting gains or

losses from remeasuring the fairvalue of the related derivatives

are also recognised in the income statementwithin finance costs

When the related derivative expires is sold orterminated or no

longer qualifies for hedge accounting the cumulative change in

fairvalue of the hedged borrowing is amortised in the income

statement over the period to maturity of the borrowing using the

effective interest method

The fairvalues of interest rate swaps interest rate options

forward rate agreements and forward foreign exchange contracts

represent the replacement costs calculated using observable

market rates of interestand exchange The fairvalue of long term

borrowings is calculated by discounting expected future cash

flows at observable market rates These instruments are

accordingly classified as Level in the IFRS7 fairvalue hierarchy

Cash flow hedge accounting is discontinued when hedging

instrument expires or is sold terminated or exercised or no

longer qualifies for hedge accounting Atthattime any cumulative

gain orloss on the hedging instrument recognised in equity is

either retained in equity untilthe firm commitment orforecasted

transaction occurs or where hedged transaction is no longer

expected to occur is immediately credited or expensed in the

income statement

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when present obligation exists as

result ofa past event the obligation is reasonably estimable and

it is probable that settlementwill be required Provisions are

measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to

settle the obligation at the statement of financial position date

Shares heLd in treasury

Shares of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV that are

repurchased by the respective parent companies and not

cancelled are classified as shares held in treasury The

consideration paid including directly attributable costs is

recognised as deduction from equity Shares of the parent

companies that are purchased by the Reed Elsevier Group plc

Employee Benefit Trust are also classified as shares held in

treasury with the cost recognised as deduction from equity

CriticaL judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The most significant accounting policies in determining the

financialcondition and results of the Reed Elseviercombined

businesses and those requiring the most subjective or complex

judgement relate to the valuation of goodwill and intangible

assets share based remuneration pensions litigation taxation

and propertyprovisioning

Goodwillandacquiredinfangible assefs

On acquisition ofa subsidiary or business the purchase

consideration is allocated between the net tangible and intangible

assets otherthan goodwill on fairvalue basis with any excess

purchase consideration representing goodwill The valuation of

acquired intangible assets represents the estimated economic

value in use using standard valuation methodologies including

as appropriate discounted cash flow relief from royaltyand

comparable markettransactions Acquired intangible assetsare

capitalised and amortised systematically over their estimated

useful lives subject to impairment review

Appropriate amortisation periods are selected based on

assessments of the longevity of the brands and imprints the

strength and stability of customer relationships the market

positions of the acquired assets and the technoLogicaland

competitive risks that theyface Certain intangible assets in

relation to acquired science and medical publishing businesses

have been determined to have indefinite lives The longevity of

these assets is evidenced by their long established and well

regarded brandsand imprints and theircharacteristically

stable market positions

The carrying amounts of goodwill and indefinite lived intangible

assets in each business are reviewed for impairment at least

annually The carrying amounts of allother intangible assets are

reviewed where there are indications of possible impairment

An impairment review involves comparison of the carrying

value of the assetwith estimated values in use based on latest

managementcashflowprojections Keyareasofjudgementin

estimating the values in use of businesses are the growth in cash

flows over five-year forecast period the long term growth rate

assumed thereafterand the discount rate applied to the forecast

cash flows

The discount rates used are based on the Reed Elsevierweighted

average cost of capital adjusted to reflect risk premium specific

to each business The pre-tax discount rates applied are 11.4%

for Scientific Technical Medical 11.8% for Risk Solutions

11.5-12.9% for Business Information 11.6% for Legaland

11.2-12.9% for Exhibitions The nominal long term growth rates

which are based on historical growth rates and the growth

prospectsfor businesses are 3% There were no chargesfor

impairment of acquired intangible assets and goodwill in 2012

2011 nil

Asensitivityanalysis has been performed based on changes

in key assumptions considered to be reasonably possible by

management an increase in the discount rate of 0.5% decrease

in the compound annualgrowth rateforadjusted operating cash

flow in the five-yearforecast period of 2.0% and decrease in

perpetuity growth rates of 0.5% The sensitivity analysis shows

that no impairment charges would result under any of the

sensitivity scenarios Further information is provided in note

l4to the combined financial statements

Share based remunerafion

Share based remuneration is determined based on the fairvalue

of an award at the date of grant and is spread over the vesting

period on straight line basis taking into accountthe number

ofsharesthat are expected to vest The fairvalue of awards is

determined at the date of grant by use ofa binomial or Monte Carlo



02
STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

simulation modelas appropriate which requires judgements to

be made regarding share price volatility dividend yield risk free

rates of return and expected option lives The number of awards

that are expected to vest requires judgements to be made

regarding forfeiture rates and the extent to which performance

conditions wilt be met The assumptions are determined in

conjunction with independentactuaries based on historical

data and trends

The assumptions of share price volatility of 30% of expected share

option life of fouryears and of expected lapse rate of 2-5% are

based on relevant historical data Otherjudgements made on

grant are based on market data Assumptions as to future

performance against non market related vesting conditions are

based on management estimates The charge forshare based

and related remuneration was E26m in 20122011 27m
Further information is provided in note to the combined

financial statements

Pensions

Accounting for defined benefit pension schemes involves

judgementabout uncertain events including the life expectancy

of the members salaryand pension increases inflationthe

return on scheme assets and the rate at which the future pension

payments are discounted Estimates for these factors are used

in determining the pension cost and liabilities reported in

the financial statements These best estimates of future

developments are made in conjunction with independent

actuaries Each scheme is subjectto periodic review by

independent actuaries

The principal assumptions as at 31 December 2012 expressed

as weighted average of thevarious defined benefit pension

schemes were discount rate of 4.4% 20115.2% 2010 5.6% an

expected rate of salary increasesof3.2% 2011 3.5% 20104.1%

and inflation of 2.7% 2011 2.9% 20103.2% The expected return

on scheme assets set at the beginning of the yearwas 6.2% for

2012 and 6.8%for2Oll Future pension increases are assumed at

2.8% 2011 2.9% 2010 3.2% and average life expectancyof88-89

years 201188-89 yearsfor scheme members currently aged 45

and 60 years The net defined benefit pension expense was 18m
2011 23m The service cost was E43m 2011 E57m after

pension curtailment credits of E20m 2011 9m from changes

to pension plan design and staff reductions The net pension

financing credit is based on market data at the beginning of

the yearand was 25m 2011 E34m reflecting the increase in

scheme liabilities at the beginning of the year compared with

year before and lower expected asset returns Further

information and sensitivity analysis is provided in note to the

combined financial statements

Litigation

Reed Elsevier is involved in various legal proceedings which

arise in the normal course of its business relating to commercial

disputes employment data security and product liability

Provisions for liabilities are recognised when it is probable that

settlement is required Although the outcome of legal proceedings

is uncertain the ultimate resolution of such matters is not

expected to have material impact on results

Taxation

Reed Elsevier is subject to tax in numerous jurisdictions giving

rise to complex tax issues that require management to exercise

judgement in making tax determinations While Reed Elsevier is

confident that tax returns are appropriately prepared and filed

amounts are provided in respect of uncertain tax positions that

reflect the risk with respect to tax matters under active discussion

with tax authorities orwhich are otherwise considered to involve

uncertainty Amounts are provided using the best estimate of

tax expected to be paid based on qualitative assessment of

all relevant factors However it is possible that at some future

date liabilities may be adjusted as result of audits by taxing

authorities Discussions with tax authorities relating to cross

bordertransactions and other matters are ongoing Although the

outcome of open items cannot be predicted no significant impact

on the financial position of Reed Elsevier is expected

In addition estimation of income taxes includes assessments of

the recoverability of deferred tax assets Deferred tax assets are

only recognised to the extent that they are considered recoverable

based on existing tax laws and forecasts of future taxable profits

againstwhich the underlying tax deductions can be utilised The

recoverability of these assets is reassessed at the end of each

reporting period and changes in recognition of deferred tax

assets will affect the tax liability in the period of that

reassessment

Property provisions

Reed Elsevier has exposures to sub lease shortfalls in respect

of certain property leases for periods up to 2024 Provisions are

recognised for net liabilities expected to arise on these exposures

Estimation of the provisions requires judgement in respect of

future head lease costs sub lease income and the length of

vacancy periods The charge for property provisions was 62m
2011 16m relating to surplus property arising on the

restructuring sale and closure of Business Information

businesses and includes expected losses on sub leases entered

into during 2012 and an estimate of vacancy periods and future

market conditions Further information is provided in note 26

to the combined financial statements

Othersignificant accounting policies

The accounting policies in respect of revenue recognition

pre-publication costs and development spend are also significant

in determining thefinancialcondition and results of the Reed

Elsevier combined businesses althoughthe application of these

policies is more straightforward

Revenue recognition policies while an area of management

focus are generally straightforward in application asthe

timing of product or service delivery and customer acceptance

forthe various revenue types can be readily determined

Allowances for product returns are deducted from revenues

based on historical return rates Where sales consist of two or

more componentsthat operate independently revenue is

recognised as each component is completed by performance

based on attribution of relative value

Pre-publication costs incurred in the creation of content prior to

production and publication are typically deferred and expensed

overtheir estimated useful lives based on sales profiles Such

costs typically comprise direct internal labour costs and

externally commissioned editorial and other fees Estimated

useful lives generally do not exceed five years Annual reviews

are carried outto assessthe recoverability of carrying amounts
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Development spend embraces investment in new product and

other initiatives ranging from the building of new online delivery

platforms to launch costs of new services to building new

infrastructure applications Launch costs and other operating

expenses of new products and services are expensed as incurred

The costs of building product applications and infrastructure

are capitalised as intangible assets and amortised overtheir

estimated useful lives Impairment reviews are carried out

at least annually

Standards and amendments effective forthe year

The interpretations and amendments to IFRS effective for 2012

have not had significant impact on Reed Elseviers accounting

policies or reporting

Standards amendments and interpretations not yet effective

Newaccounting standards and amendments and their

expected impact on the future accounting policies and reporting

of Reed Elsevier are set out below

IAS19 Employee Benefits revised effective forthe 2013

financialyear The revised standard inter alia changes the

methodology to be used in the calculation of the net pension

financing credit orcharge in relation to defined benefit pension

schemes Underthe revised standard pension asset returns

included within the net pension financing credit or charge are to

be calculated by reference to the discount rate of high quality

corporate bond being also the discount rate applied in the

calculation of pension obligations and no longer based on the

expected returns on scheme assets Typically the effect will be

to reduce the asset returns recognised in the income statement

As required underthe revised standard comparativeswill be

restated accordingly The revised standard also prohibits the use

of certain accounting alternatives previously permitted that

enabled the smoothing of volatility in the income statement and

balance sheet in relation to pensions but this will not affect

Reed Elseviers pension accounting as such alternatives were

not applied There is no change to the measurement of pension

scheme assets and obligations under the revised standard for

Reed Elsevier

Adoption of IAS19 revised will have no impact on Reed Elseviers

combined balance sheet orcash flows The net pension financing

credit or charge will with effect from January2013 be

presented within netfinance costs in Reed Elseviers combined

income statement rather than within operating profit as currently

reported Given thatthe revised standard may introduce greater

volatility to the income statement following adoption on January

2013 the net pension financing credit orchargewill be excluded

from the adjusted earningsfigures used by Reed Elsevier as

additional performance measures

Had IAS19 revised and related presentation been in effect forthe

2012 financialyear operating profitforthetwelve months to 31

December20l2would have been 25m lower 2011 E34m and

net finance costs would have been higher byEllm 2011 E9m
On an adjusted basis profit beforetax would have been 25m
lower 2011 34m The balance sheet and cash flows would

have been unchanged

IFRS9 Financial Instruments effective forthe 2015 financialyear

The standard replaces the existing classification and measurement

requirements in 1AS39 forfinancialassets by requiring entities to

classifythem as being measured eitherat amortised cost or fair

value depending on the business modeland contractualcash

flow characteristics of the asset Forfinancial liabilities IFRS9

requires an entity choosing to measure liability atfairvalue to

present the portion of the change in its fairvalue due to changes

in the entitys own credit risk in the other comprehensive income

rather than the income statement Adoption of the standard is

not expected to have significant impact on the measurement

presentation or disclosure offinancialassets and liabilities in the

combined financialstatements

IFRS1O Consolidated FinancialStatements effective forthe 2013

financialyear The standard introduces single consolidation

model for all entities based on control irrespective of the nature

of the investee IFRS1O replaces 1AS27 Separate Financial

Statements Adoption of the standard is not expected to have

significant impact on the measurement presentation or

disclosure of the consolidation of entities in the combined

financial statements

IFRS11 JointArrangements effectiveforthe 2ol3financialyear

This standard classifies joint arrangements as either joint

ventures orajoint operation and removes the option to

proportionately consolidate joint ventures IFRS1 replaces 1A528

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.Adoption of the

standard is not expected to have significant impact on the

measurement presentation ordisclosure of the jointventures

in the combined financialstatements

IFRS12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities effective for

the 2013 financial year The standard combines the disclosure

requirementsfor subsidiariesjointarrangements associates

and unconsolidated structured entities into one standard

Adoption of the standard may result in additional disclosures in

the combined financialstatements but is not expected to have

significant impact on Reed Elseviers reporting

IFRS13 Fair Value Measurement effective forthe 2013 financial

year The standard consolidates the guidance and disclosure

requirements of fairvalue measurement contained throughout

IFRS and also requires new disclosures related to valuation

techniques and inputs into fairvalue measurements Adoption

of the standard is not expected to have significant impact on

the measurement presentation or disclosure of financial assets

and liabilities in the combined financialstatements

IAS1 Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income

Amendments to IAS1 effectiveforthe20l3financialyear

The standard amendsthe grouping of items presented in the

statement of comprehensive income into items that may be

reclassified or recycled to the profit orloss in future period and

items that will never be reclassified Adoption of the standard will

lead to some re-presentation of the items in the statement of

comprehensive income in the combined financialstatements

Additionally number of interpretations have been issued which

are not expected to have anysignificant impact on Reed Elseviers

accounting policies and reporting
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NOTES TO THE COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the combined financial statements

fortheyearended 31 December2012

Segment analysis

Reed Elseviers reported segments are based on the internal reporting structure and financial information provided to the

Chief Executive Officer and Boards

Reed Elsevier is world leading provider of professional information solutions organised as five business segments Scientific

Technical Medical providing information and toolsto help its customers improve scientific and heatthcare outcomes Risk Solutions

providing toots that combine proprietary public and third-partyinformation with advanced technologyand analytics Business

Information providing data services information and marketing solutionsto business professionals Legal providing legal tax

regulatory news business information to legal corporate government accounting and academic markets and Exhibitions

organising exhibitions and conferences

Adjusted operating profit is the key segmental profit measure used by Reed Elsevier in assessing performance It is stated before

amortisation of acquired intangible assets the share of profit on disposals in joint ventures acquisition related costs and is grossed

up to exclude the equityshare of taxes in jointventures.Adjusted operating profit is reconciled to operating profit in note 10

ANALYSIS BY BUSINESS SEGMENT Revenue Operating profit Adjusted operating profit

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Em

Scientific Technical Medical 2063 2058 706 695 780 768

RiskSolutions 926 908 281 181 392 362

Businesslnformation 663 695 76 68 119 110

Legal 1610 1.634 146 144 234 229

Exhibitions 854 707 171 132 210 167

Sub-total 6116 6002 1380 1220 1735 1636

Corporate costs 47 49 47 44

Unallocated net pension financing credit 25 34 25 34

Totat 6116 6002 1358 1205 1713 1626

Revenue isanalysed beforethe E91m 2011 E128m share ofjointventures revenue of which 2m 2011 E2m relatesto Business

Information E22m 2011 f23m relates to Legal principally to GiuffrŁ and E67m 2011 E103m relates to Exhibitions

Share of post-tax results of joint ventures of E24m 2011 E30m included in operating profit comprises nil 2011 Elm relating to

Business Information 2m 2011 E4m relating to Legal and E22m 2011 E25m relating to Exhibitions The unallocated net pension

financing credit of 25m 2011 E34m comprises the expected return on pension scheme assets of E221m 2011 E235m less interest

on pension scheme liabilities of 196m 2011 E201m

ANALYSIS OF REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL ORIGIN 2012 2011

Cm Em

NorthAmerica 3122 3103

United Kingdom 966 947

TheNetherlands 611 616

Rest of Europe 788 783

Rest of world 629 553

TotaL 6116 6002
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Capital expenditure comprises additions to property plant and equipment and internally developed intangible assets Amortisation of

acquired intangible assets includes amounts in respect of joint ventures of Elm 2011 E4m in Exhibitions Other than the depreciation

and amortisation above non cash items include 31m 2011 E27m relating tothe recognition of share based remuneration comprising

E5m 2011 E5m in Scientific Technical Medical nil 2011 E3m in RiskSolutions E3m 2011 2m in Business Information E7m

2011 6m in Legal 4m 2011 E3m in Exhibitions and 12m 2011 E8m in Corporate

LYSISOF NON- USRENTAS5ET5 BYGEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION 2012 2011

Em

NorthAmerica 6514 6984

United Kingdom 524 517

The Netherlands 120 123

Restof Europe 729 783

Rest of world 376 292

TotaL 8263 8699

CCC

CD

CC

CD

CD

ILSI5LF Pt VE JLLiYuEOUkAilC .IAvC 2012 2011

Em

NorthAmerica 3154 3219

United Kingdom 442 485

TheNetherlands 165 189

Restof Europe 1176 1.095

Restofworld 1179 1014

TotaL 6116 6002

cNLYSIS ui Fit yE tip E3Y TYPE 2012 2011

Em

Subscriptions 2978 2819

Circulation/transactions 1602 1649

Advertising 350 437

Exhibitions 846 700

Other 340 397

TotaL 6116 6002

cN LYSIL tiP l3SIt EPS 5EOMENT Expenditureon CapitaL Amortisation

acquired goodwill and expenditure of acquired Depreciation and

intangible assets additions intangibteassets other amortisation

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

Em Cm Em Em Cm Em

Scientific Technical Medical 120 43 106 94 68 72 82 69

RiskSolutions 15 21 23 109 156 23 26

Business Information 532 17 18 37 29 14 15

Legal 80 173 203 83 78 92 87

Exhibitions 178 36 25 22 32 24 16 10

TotaL 393 611 342 360 329 359 227 207

CD

CD

Non-current assets by geographical location exclude amounts relating to deferred tax and derivative financial instruments
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Notes to the combined financial statements

fortheyearended 31 December2012

Operating profit

Note

Staff costs

Wagesandsalaries 1543 1535

Socialsecurity costs 187 173

Pensions 64 62

Share based and related remuneration 26 27

Totalstaff costs 1820 1797

Depreciation and amortisation

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 15 328 355

Share ofjointventures amortisation of acquired intangible assets

Amortisation of internallydeveloped intangible assets 15 151 132

Depreciation of property plant and equipment 17 76 75

Total depreciation and amortisation 556 566

Other expenses and income

Pre-publication costs inventory expenses and other cost of sates 2139 2126

Operating tease rentals expense
112 116

Operating tease rentals income 1101

Depreciation and amortisation charges are included within administration and other expenses

Auditors remuneration

2012 2011

Cm Em

Auditors remuneration

Foraudit services 4.7 4.7

Fornonauditservices 1.8 1.1

Total auditors remuneration 6.5 5.8

Auditors remuneration for audit services comprises E0.5m 2011 E0.5m payable to the auditors of the parent companies and 4.2m

2011 4.2m payable to theauditors of the parent companiesand theirassociatesforthe auditof thefinancialstatements of the

operating and financing businesses including the reviewand testing of internalcontrols overfinancial reporting in accordance with the

US Sarbanes-OxleyAct.Auditors remuneration for non audit services comprises 0.8m 2011 0.7mfortax compliance services

E0.7m 2011 0.2m forotheraudit related assurance servicesand 0.3m 2011 0.2m fordue diligence and othertransaction related

services Reed Etseviers policy on auditor independence is set out on page 92

Operating profit is stated after charging/crediting the following

2012 2011

Cm Em
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ersonn1

NUtl3EttOIPEOpLF EMPLOYED At31 December Averageduringtheyear

2012 2011 2012 2011

Business segment

Scientific Technical Medical 7000 6900 7000 6900

RiskSolutions 4100 4000 4000 4300

Business Information 4800 5600 5200 5400

Legal 10400 10300 10400 10400

Exhibitions 3200 2800 3000 2700

Sub-total 29500 29600 29600 29700

Corporate/shared functions 900 900 900 900

TotaL 30400 30500 30500 30600

Geographical Location

NorthAmerica 15700 16000 15900 16300

United Kingdom 4100 4600 4200 4600

TheNetherlands 1600 1600 1600 1600

Rest of Europe 3600 3700 3700 3800

Rest of world 5400 4600 5100 4.300

TotaL 30400 30500 30500 30600

Pension chemes

number of pension schemes are operated around the world Historically the majorschemes have been of the defined benef it type with

assets held in separate trustee administered funds The largest defined benefit schemes are in the UK the US and the Netherlands

Under these plans employees are entitled to retirement benefits dependent on the number of years service provided

The principalassumptionsforthe purpose of valuation under IAS19 Employee Benefitsare determinedforeach scheme in conjunction

with the respective schemes independent actuaries and are presented below as the weighted average of the various defined benefit

pension schemes The defined benefit pension expense foreach year is based on the assumptions and scheme valuations set at

31 Decemberof the prioryear

As at 31 December

2012 2011 2010

Discount rate 4.4% 5.2% 5.6%

Expected rate of return on scheme assets n/a 6.2% 6.8%

Expected rate of salary increases 3.2% 3.5% 4.1%

Inflation 2.7% 2.9% 3.2%

Future pension increases 2.8% 2.9% 3.2%

Membercurrentlyaged6O 88

Member currently aged 45 89

CD

DC

CD

The discount rate is set by reference to AA corporate bond yields The expected rates of return on individual categories of scheme assets

are determined by reference to relevant market indices and market expectations of real rates of return The overall expected rate of

return on scheme assets is based on the weighted average of each asset category

Mortality assumptions used in assessing defined benefit obligations make allowance forfuture improvements in longevity and have

been determined by reference to applicable mortality statistics and the actuaries expectations foreach scheme The average life

expectancies assumed in the valuation of the defined benefit obligations are set out below

AVEF AGE LIFE EXPE OTANCY AT 31 DEcEMBERI 2012 2011

Mate Female

Iyearsl Iyearsl

88

89

Male

years

88

89

Female

years

87

88
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Pension schemes continued

The pension expense recognised within the income statement comprises

2012 2011

Cm Em

Service cost including settlement and curtailment credits of 20m 2011 9m 43 57

Intereston pension scheme liabilities
196 201

Expected return on scheme assets 12211 235

Net defined benefit pension expense
18 23

Defined contribution pension expense
46 39

TotaL pension expense
64 62

The amount recognised in the statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit pension schemes at the start and end of the

yearand the movements during the yearwere as follows

2012 2011

Defined Fairvatue Net Defined Fairvatue Net

benefit of scheme pension benefit of scheme pension

obligations assets obLigations obligations assets obligations

Cm Cm Cm Em Em Em

Atstartofyear 3876 3634 2421 3677 3507 170

Service cost 431 143 57

Interest on pension scheme liabilities 11961 196 201 201

Expected return on scheme assets 221 221 235 235

Actuarial loss/gain 416 87 329 78 35 113

Contributionsbyemployer 116 116 66 66

Contributionsbyemployees 11 11 11 11

Benefitspaid
216 216 141 141

Exchangetranslationdifferences
54 471

Atendofyear 4272 3806 466 3876 3634 242

The net pension obligations of 466m 2011 242m at31 December2012 comprise schemes in deficit with net pension obligatIons

of 466m 2011 242m and schemes in surplus with net pension assets of nil 2011 nil

Asat 31 December2012 the defined benefit obligations comprisef4112m 2011 E3721m in relation to funded schemesand 160m

2011 155m in relation to unfunded schemes The weighted average duration of defined benefit scheme liabilities is 19 years

201119 years Deferred tax assets offl53m 2011 86m are recognised in respect of the pension scheme deficits

The fairvalue of scheme assets held as equities bonds and other assets and their expected rates of return as at 31 December

are shown below

2012 2011

Expected

Fairvatue Proportion rate of Fairvalue Proportion

of scheme of total return on of scheme of total

assets scheme scheme assets scheme

Cm assets assets Em assets

Equities 1804 47% 8.7% 1699 47%

Bonds 1715 45% 3.7% 1722 47%

Other 287 8% 4.3% 213 6%

TotaL 3806 100% 6.2% 3634 100%

The actual return on scheme assets fortheyearended 31 December20l2wasa E308m gain 2011 200m gain
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summary of pension balances in respect of funded and unfunded schemesforthefive years ended 31 December2012 is set out below

CD

CD

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Em Em Em Em Em

Fairvalue of scheme assets 3806 3634 3507 3067 2682

Defined benefit obligations 4272 3876 3677 3302 3051

Netpensionobtigations 466 242 170 235 369

Gains and losses arising on the revaluation of pension scheme assets and liabilitiesthat have been recognised in the statement of

comprehensive income are set out below

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Em Em Em Em Em

Gains and losses arising during the year

Experiencelosses/gainsonschemeliabilities 32 27 43 18

Experiencellosses/gainsonschemeassets
87 35 198 301 765

Actuarial losses/gains arising on the presentvalue of scheme liabilities due

to changes in

discountrates 552 238 162 2491 202

inflation 74 182 50 124 198

otheractuarialassumptions 94 60 27

329 113 63 347

Net cumulative losses/gains at start of year 265 1152 89 95 252

Netcumutativetossesatendofyear 5941 265 152 89 95

Regularcontributionsto defined benefit pension schemes in respect of 2013 are expected to be approximately E55m

CD

CD

C1

CD

Sensitivity anaLysis

Valuation of Reed Elseviers pension scheme liabilities involves judgements about uncertain events including the life expectancyof the

members salaryand pension increases inflation and the rate at which the future pension payments are discounted Estimates are used

for each of these factors determined in conjunction with independent actuaries Differences arising from actual experience orfuture

changes in assumptions may materially affect future pension charges In particular changes in assumptions for discount rates inflation

and life expectancies would have thefollowing approximate effects on the annualservice costand the defined benefit pension obligations

Em

Increase/decrease of 0.25% in discount rate

Decrease/increase in annual service cost

Decrease/increase in defined benefit pension obligations 195

Increase/decrease of one year in assumed life expectancy

Increase/decrease in annualservice cost

Increase/decrease in defined benefit pension obligations 104

Increase/decrease of 0.25% in the expected inflation rate

Increase/decrease in annualservice cost

Increase/decrease in defined benefit pension obligations 113
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Share based remuneration

Reed Elsevier provides number of share based remuneration schemes to directors and employees The principal share based

remuneration schemes are the Executive Share Option Schemes ESOS the Long Term Incentive Plan LTIP the Reed Etsevier Growth

Plan REGP the Retention Share Plan RSP and the Bonus Investment Plan BIP Share options granted under ESOS and LTIP are

exercisable afterthreeyearsand upto ten yearsfrom the date of grant ata price equivalent to the market value of the respective shares

at the date of grant Conditionalshares granted under ESOS LTIP RSPand BIP are exercisable after three yearsfornilconsideration if

conditions are met Conditionalshares granted under REGP are exercisablefornilconsideration if conditions are met afterthree and

five years Other awards principally relate to allemployee share based saving schemes in the UK and the Netherlands

Share based remuneration awards are other than upon retirement or in exceptional circumstances subject to the condition that the

employee remains in employment at the time of exercise

Conditionalshares granted under LTIP REGP RSPand BIP in 2010 2011 and 2012 are subject to the achievement of growth targets of

Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV adjusted earnings per share measured at constant exchange rates as well as the achievement

of targeted percentage return on invested capitalof Reed Etsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV LTIP grants in 2010 2011 and 2012 and

REGP grants are alsovariable subjecttothe achievementofatotalshareholder return performancetarget

The weighted average fairvalue peraward is based onfullvesting on achievement of non market related performance conditions and

stochastic models for market related components The conditional shares and option awards are recognised in the income statement

over the vesting period being between three and five years on the basis of expected performance against the non market related

conditionswiththefairvalue relatedto market related components unchanging Furtherdetails of performance conditionsare given

in the Directors Remuneration Report on pages 74to 90

2012 GRANTS In respect of In respect of

Reed ELsevier PLC Reed ELsevier NV

ordinaryshares ordinaryshares

Weighted Weighted

averagefair averagefair

Numberof vatueper Numberof vaLueper

shares award shares award

000 000

Share options

ESOS 1801 0.90 1263 1.20

Other 702 1.04 293 0.95

Total share options 2503 0.94 1556 1.15

Conditional shares

-ESOS 797

-LTIP 1807

4.60 560 6.41

4.45 1144 6.13

RSP 256 6.00 7.82

BIP 1542 5.20 696 7.41

TotaL conditionaishares 4402 4.83 2405 6.57

2011 GRANTS In respect of In respect of

Reed Elsevier PLC Reed Etsevier NV

ordinaryshares ordinaryshares

Weighted Weighted

averagefair averagefair

Numberof value per Numberof value per

shares award shares award

000 000

Share options

ESOS 2053 0.98 1372 1.41

Other 633 1.03 381 0.97

TotaLshareoptions 2686 0.99 1753 1.32

Conditional shares

ESOS 755 4.85 504 6.91

LTIP 1822 4.56 1.217 6.65

RSP 322 4.73 7.15

BIP 1339 5.43 607 8.00

TotaL conditionaL shares 4238 4.90 2333 7.06
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Share based remuneration continued

The main assumptions used to determine the fairvalues which have been established with advice from and data provided by

independent actuaries are set out below

ASSUMPTIONS FOP GRANTS MADE DURING TIlE YF In respectof In respectof

Reed ELsevier PLC Reed Etsevier NV

ordinaryshares ordinaryshares

2012 2011 2012 2011

Weighted average share price at date of grant

ESOS 5.19 5.39 9.07 8.97

LTIP 5.25 5.31 8.91 8.89

RSP 6.00 5.26 9.65 9.27

BIP 5.20 5.43 9.15 9.21

Other 5.49 5.13 9.63 9.03

Expected share price volatility 30% 29% 30% 29%

Expected option life 4years years 4years years

Expecteddividendyield 3.9% 3.6% 4.5% 4.1%

Risk free interest rate 0.8% 1.9% 0.9% 2.5%

Expected lapse rate 2-5% 2-5% 2-4% 2-4%

Expected share price volatility has been estimated based on relevant historic data in respect of the Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier

NV ordinary share prices Expected share option life has been estimated based on historical exercise patterns in respect of Reed

Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV share options

The share based remuneration awards outstanding as at3l December 2012 in respect of both Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV

ordinary shares are set out below

SHARE OPTIONS In respectof In respectof

Reed Etsevier PLC Reed Elsevier NV

ordinaryshares ordinaryshares

Weighted Weighted

Numberof average Numberof average

shares under exercise shares under exercise

option price option price

000 pence 000 Cl

Outstandingatl January2011 33711 544 24833 11.45

Granted 2686 509 1753 8.99

Exercised 493 201 8.84

Forfeited 2001 479 1941 10.94

Expired 3.230 640 2803 8.68

OutstandingatlJanuary20l2 29540 534 2161.1 10.99

Granted 2503 497 1556 9.19

Exercised 6694 497 1913 9.36

Forfeited 1022 498 581 9.33

Expired 4992 592 5121 12.34

Outstandingat3l December2012 19335 529 15582 10.63

Exercisable at3l December2011 20061 552 16876 11.56

Exercisabteat3l December2012 12573 553 12329 11.12
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Share based remuneration continued

CONDITIONALSHARES Inrespectof Inrespectof

Reed Etsevier PLC Reed Etsevier NV

ordinary shares ordinary shares

Numberof shares Numberof shares

OOOs OOOs

Outstanding atl January2011 12037 7293

Granted 4238 2332

Vested 580 383

Forfeited 1799 975

Outstanding atl January2012 13896 8267

Granted 4402 2405

Vested 601 391

Forfeited 5885 3575

Outstanding at 31 December2012 11812 6706

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of share optionsandvesting of conditional shares during 2012 was

2011 554p forReed Elsevier PLC ordinaryshares and 10.43 2011 9.71 for Reed Elsevier NVordinaryshares

RANGE OF EXERCISE PRICES FOR OUTSTANDING SHARE OPTIONS 2012 2011

Weighted Weighted

average average

Number of remaining umber of remaining

sharesunder period until shares under period until

option expiry option expiry

000 Iyears 000 Iyearsl

Reed ELsevier PLC ordinary shares pence
401-450 1925 2.8 2148 2.9

451-500 4415 3.5 7793 3.6

501-550 8981 5.7 11662 5.5

551-600 189 5.4 2726 0.8

601-650 3825 4.8 5176 5.7

651-700 35 0.3

TotaL 19335 4.7 29540 4.4

Reed ELsevier NV ordinary shares euro

7.01-8.00 58 6.1 120 7.2

8.01-9.00 2736 7.7 3233 8.6

9.01-10.00 3142 6.9 3686 5.3

10.01-11.00 2697 1.6 3921 2.3

11.01-12.00 3982 2.6 4865 3.5

12.01-1300 1806 5.1 2339 6.0

13.01-14.00 118 4.1 2025 0.5

14.01-15.00 1043 4.1 1426 5.1

15.01-16.00 26 0.3

TotaL 15582 4.6 21641 4.5

Share options are expected upon exercise to be met principally bythe issue of newordinary shares but mayalso be metfrom shares held

by the Reed Elsevier Group plc Employee Benefit Trust EBT see note 28 Conditional shares will be met from shares held by the EBT
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Netfinanecosts

2012 2011

Cm Em

Interest on shortterm bank loans overdrafts and commercial paper 271 28

Interest on other loans 196 212

Interest on obLigations underfinance leases 11

Total borrowing costs 2241

Losses on loans and derivatives not designated as hedges 81 11

Finance costs 2321 252

Interest on bank deposits 12

Gains on loans and derivatives not designated as hedges

Financeincome 16 17

Netfinancecosts 2161

Finance costs include 16m 2011 15m transferred from the hedge reserve net loss of E2m 2011 E3m on interest rate derivatives

designated as cash flow hedges was recognised directly in equity in the hedge reserveto be recognised in future periods

CD

CD

Iisposak and other non operating items

2012 2011

Cm Em

Revaluation of held for trading investments 19

Property provisions on disposed businesses 601 16

Gain/loss on disposal of businesses and assets held for sale 86 12

Net gain/Loss on disposaLs and other non operating items 45 22

Taxation

2012 2011

Cm Em

Current tax

United Kingdom 73 64

The Netherlands 68 87

Restofworld 12 107

Totalcurrenttaxcharge 153 258

Deferred tax 401 77

Taxexpense 113 181
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Taxation continued

The nettax expense charged on profit before tax differsfrom the theoreticalamountthatwould arise using the weighted average of tax

rates applicable to accounting profits and tosses of the consolidated entities as follows

2012 2011

Cm

Profit beforetax 1187 948

Tax at average applicable rates 255 180

Tax on share of results of joint ventures 71

Expenses not deductible fortax purposes
30 26

Non-taxable/non-deductible costs of share based remuneration 31

Non-taxable/non-deductible disposal related gains and losses 691

Tax losses of the period not recognised

Recognition and utilisation of tax losses that arose in prioryears 61 22

Exceptional prioryeartax credit 961

Other adjustments in respect of prior periods

Deferred tax effect of changes in tax rates

Taxexpense 113 181

The weighted average applicable tax rate fortheyearwas 22% 2011 19%.This increase is caused bya change in the relative profitability

of the consolidated entities in the countries in which they operate partially offset by the impact of the reduction in the tax rate of the

United Kingdom see below

During 2012 Reed Elsevier resolved number of significant prioryear tax matters and reassessed its exposure to other tax matters

across the jurisdictions in which Reed Elsevier operates As result of this reassessment current tax liabilities were reduced by E96m

to reflect the lower cash tax expected to be payable On the basis of its size and nature this exceptional credit has been excluded from

adjusted earnings

The following tax has been recognised directly in equity during theyear

2012 2011

Em

Tax on actuarial movements on defined benefit pension schemes 102 36

Tax on fairvalue movements on cash flow hedges 191

Tax credit on share based remuneration

Net tax credit recognised directLy in equity 88 42

number of changes to the UK corporation tax system including reductions of the main rate of corporation taxfrom 26% to 24% with

effect from April 2012 and from 24% to 23% with effect from April2013 were substantively enacted on July 2012 Reed Etsevier

has therefore remeasured its UK deferred tax assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period at 23% which has resulted in

recognition of deferred tax debit of Elm in the income statement The UK government has also announced an intention to reduce the

rate of corporation tax to 21% by April2014 but as this change had not been substantively enacted at the date of the statement of

financial position the effect on deferred tax has not been recognised in these financial statements It is not currently anticipated that

the proposed reduction in ratewould have significant impact on deferred tax balances
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10 Adjusteifigures

Reed Elsevier uses adjustedfigures as additional performance measures.Adjusted figures are stated before amortisation of acquired

intangible assets acquisition related costs disposalgains and losses and other non operating items related tax effects exceptional

prioryeartaxcreditsin 2012 only see note and movements in deferred taxation assets and liabilities that are not expected to

crystallise in the nearterm and include the benef it of tax amortisation where available on acquired goodwilland intangible assets

Adjusted operating profit is also grossed up to exclude the equity share of taxes in joint ventures Acquisition related costs relate to

acquisition integration professionaland othertransaction related fees and adjustments to deferred and contingent consideration

Adjusted operating cash flow is measured after net capital expenditure and dividends from joint ventures but before payments in

relation to prior year exceptional restructuring programmes and acquisition related costs Adjusted figures are derived as follows

2012 2011

Cm Em

Operating profit 1358 1205

Adjustments

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 329 359

Acquisition related costs 21 52

Share of profit on disposals injointventures

Reclassification of tax in joint ventures 11

Adjusted operating profit 1713 1626

Profitbeforetax 1187 948

Adjustments

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 329 359

Acquisition related costs 21 52

Reclassification of tax in joint ventures 11

Disposals and other non operating items 145 21

Adjusted profit before tax 1497 1391

Profit attributable to parent companies shareholders 1069 760

Adjustments post tax

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 336 355

Acquisition related costs 16 33

Disposals and other non operating items 103 16

Exceptional prioryear tax credit 96
Deferred tax credits on acquired intangible assets not expected to crystallise in the near term 84 104

Adjusted profit attributabte to parent companies sharehoLders 1138 1060

Cash generated from operations 1847 1735

Dividends received from joint ventures 20 33

Purchases of property plant and equipment 701 85

Proceedsfrom disposalsof property plantand equipment

Expenditure on internally developed intangible assets 263 265

Payments in relation to exceptional restructuring costs 25 52

Payments in relation to acquisition related costs 37 38

Adjusted operating cash fLow 1603 1515
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11 Statement of cash flows

RECONCILIATION OFOPERATING PROFIT BEFOREJOINT VENTURESTO CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 2012 2011

Cm Em

Operating profit before jointventures 1.334 1175

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 328 355

Amortisation of internally developed intangible assets 151 132

Depreciation of property plant and equipment 76 75

Share based remuneration 31 27

TotaL non cash items 586 589

Decrease in inventories and pre-publication costs 21 32

Decrease/increase in receivables 37

Decrease in payables 98 24

Increase in working capitaL 73 29

Cash generated from operations 1847 1735

CASHFLOWONACOIJISITIONS 2012 2011

Note Cm Em

Purchaseof businesses 12 276 455

Investment in joint ventures 110

Deferred payments relating to prioryear acquisitions 30 25

TotaL 316 481

RECONCILIATION OF NETBORROWINGS ReLated

Cash and derivative

cash financial

equivaLents Borrowings instruments 2012 2011

Cm Cm Cm Cm Em

Atstartofyear 726 4282 123 3433 3455

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents 72 72

Netmovementinshorttermbankloansoverdraftsandcommercialpaper 434 434 210

Issuanceofotherloans 592 1592

Repayment of other loans 437 437 248

Repaymentoffinanceleases 22

Change in net borrowings resulting from cash Lows 72 283 211 16

Borrowings in acquired businesses

Inceptionoffinanceleases 13 13

Fairvalueandotheradjustmentstoborrowingsandrelatedderivatives

Exchangetranslationdifferences 13 124 107 24

Atendofyear 641 3892 124 3127

Net borrowings comprise cash and cash equivalents loan capital finance leases promissory notes bank and otherloans and those

derivativefinancialinstrumentsthatare used to hedgethefairvalue of fixed rate borrowings
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Acquisi ons

Duringtheyeara numberof acquisitionswere madeforatotalconsideration of E341m 2011 492m aftertaking account of net cash

acquired of 12m 2011 24m The net assets of the businesses acquired are incorporated attheirfairvalueto the combined

businesses Provisionalfairvalues of the consideration given and of the assets and liabilitiesacquired are summarised below

Fair Fair

value value

2012 2011

Cm Em

Goodwill 165 300

Intangible assets 229 311

Property plant equipment

Current assets 21 23

Current liabilities 61 46

Borrowings 18

Currenttax

Deferred tax 16 78

Net assets acquired 341 492

Consideration aftertaking account of 12m 2011 E24m1 net cash acquired 341 492

Less consideration deferred to future years 23 27

Less acquisition date fairvalue of equity interest 42 10

Net cash fLow 276 455

Goodwill being the excess of the consideration overthe net tangible and intangible assets acquired represents benef its which do not

qualify for recognition as intangible assets including the ability of business to generate higher returns than individual assets skilled

workforces acquisition synergiesthat are specificto Reed Elsevier and high barriersto market entry In addition goodwillarises on

the recognition of deferred tax liabilities in respect of intangible assets forwhich amortisation does not qualify fortax deductions

The fairvalues of the assets and liabilities acquired are provisional pending the completion of the valuation exercises Finalfairvalues

will be incorporated in the 2013 combined financalstatements There were no significant adjustmentstothe provisionalfairvalues of

prioryearacquisitions established in 2011

The businesses acquired in 2012 contributed 73m to revenue increased adjusted operating profit byEl8m increased adjusted net

profit byEl4m decreased reported net profit byElOm and contributed 2m to net cash inflowfrom operating activities forthe part

year under Reed Elsevier ownership and beforetaking account of acquisition financing costs Had the businesses been acquired at

the beginning of the year on pro forma basisthe Reed Elsevier revenues adjusted operating profit adjusted net profit and reported

net profit fortheyearwould have been 6153m E1717m 1142m and 1073m respectively beforetaking account of acquisition

financing costs

CD

13 Equitycividends

DElL NARY DIVIDENDS DECLARE DIN HE YE Ak 2012 2011

Cm Em

Reed Elsevier PLC 264 248

Reed Elsevier NV 259 251

TotaL 523 499

Ordinary dividends declared in the year in amounts per ordinary share comprise 2011 final dividend of 15.9p and 2012 interim

dividend of 6.Op giving totalof 2l.9p 2011 2O.65p for Reed Elsevier PLC and 2011 finaldividend of 0326 and 2012 interim dividend

of 0.13 giving totalof 0456 2011 0413 for Reed Elsevier NV

The directors of Reed Elsevier PLC have proposed finaldividend of 1/Op 2011 15.9p The directors of Reed Elsevier NV have proposed

final dividend of 0337 2011 0326 The total cost of funding the proposed final dividends is expected to be 391 forwhich no

liability has been recognised at the statement of financial position date
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13 Equitydividendscontinued

ORDINARY DIVIDENDS PAIDAND PROPOSED RELATINGTO THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2012 2011

Cm Em

Reed Etsevier PLC 273 259

Reed Elsevier NV 262 265

Total 535 524

Dividends paid to Reed Etsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NVshareholders are other than in special circumstances equalised at the gross

levelinclusive of the UK tax credit of 10% received by certain Reed Elsevier PLC shareholders The cost of funding the Reed Elsevier PLC

dividends is therefore similarto that of Reed Elsevier NV

14 Goodwitl

2012 2011

Cm Em

At start of year 4729 4441

Acquisitions
165 300

Disposals/reclassified as held for sate 152 26

Exchange translation differences 197 14

Atendofyear 4545 4729

The carrying amount of goodwill isaftercumulative amortisation offl180m 2011 1332m whichwas charged priortothe adoption

of IFRS and E20m 2011 49m of subsequent impairment charges

Impairment review

Impairment testing of goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets is performed at least annually based on cash generating units

CGUs CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generate cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows

from other groups of assets Goodwillimpairment testing is performed on the basis of 22 CGUs CGUs which are not individually

significant have been aggregated for presentation purposes Typically when an acquisition is made the acquired business is fully

integrated into the relevant business unit and CGU and the goodwill arising is allocated to the CGUs or groups of CGUs that are

expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition

The carrying value of goodwill recorded in the major groups of CGUs is set out below

GOODWILL 2012 2011

Cm Em

Scientific Technical Medical 1026 991

RiskSolutions 1559 1733

Business Information US 50 52

Business Information UK 335 352

Business Information NL 23 23

Business Information International 30

Business Information 408 457

LegalUS 1038 1070

Legallnternational
112 113

Legal 1150 1183

Exhibitions Continental Europe 273 289

Exhibitions other 129 76

Exhibitions 402 365

TotaL 4545 4729

Reed Elseviers goodwill impairment testing methodology assumptions and sensitivity analysis are disclosed within criticaljudgements

and keysourcesof estimation uncertaintyon pages 101 to 103
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15 lntangiLeassets

Totat InternaLLy

Marketand Content acquired developed

customer software intangible intangible

reLated and other assets assets Total

Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm

Cost

Ati January2011 2631 3351 5982 1204 7186

Acquisitions
196 115 311 311

Additions 270 270

Disposals/reclassifiedasheldforsale 38 189 227 51 278

Exchange translation differences 13 14

At January2012 2802 3263 6065 1422 7487

Acquisitions 201 27 228 229

Additions 261 261

Disposals/reclassified as held for sale 56 97 153 114 267

Exchange transLation differences 131 103 234 53 287

At31 December2012 2816 3090 5906 1517 7423

AccumuLated amortisation

At January2011 610 2384 2994 735 3729

Chargefortheyear 160 195 355 132 487

Disposals/reclassifiedasheldforsale 30 149 179 36 215

Exchangetranslationdifferences

AtlJanuary2Ol2 744 2422 3166 827 3993

Chargefortheyear 173 155 328 151 479

Disposals/reclassified as held for sale 11 89 100 79 179

Exchangetranstationdifferences 36 80 116 29 145

At31 December2012 870 2408 3278 870 4148

Net book amount

At31 December2011 2058 841 2899 595 3494

At31 December2012 1946 682 2628 647 3275

Intangible assets acquired as part of business combinations comprise market related assets e.g trademarks imprints brands

customer related assets e.g subscription bases customer lists customer relationships and content software and other intangible

assets e.g editorialcontent software and product delivery systems other publishing rights exhibition rights and supply contracts

IncLuded in content software and otheracquired intangible assetsare assetswith net bookvalue of E431m 2011 531m that arose

on acquisitions completed priorto the adoption of IFRS that have not been allocated to specific categories of intangible assets Internally

developed intangible assets typically comprise software and systems development where an identifiable asset is created that is

probable to generate future economic benefits

Included in market and customer related intangible assets are E354m 2011 E370m of brands and imprints relating to Scientific

Technical Medicaldeterminedto have indefinite lives based on an assessment of their historical longevity and stable market positions

Indefinite lived intangibles are tested for impairment at leastannuallyusing the samevalue in use assumptions asset out in critical

judgementsand keysources of estimation uncertainty on pages 101 to 103

Also included in market and customer related intangible assets are El 037m 2011 El 209m of customer relationship assets arising

on the acquisition of ChoicePoint in 2008 with remaining usefuleconomic life of approximately 16 years
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16 Investments

2012 2011

Cm Em

Investments in joint ventures 100 124

Available for sate investments

Venture capital investments held for trading 76 56

TotaL 179 188

The value of venture capital investments held fortrading determined by reference to quoted market prices amounted to 27m

E17m Thevalue of otherventure capital investmentsand availableforsale investments has been determined byreference

to other observable market inputs

An analysis of changes in the carrying value of investments in jointventures is set out below

2012 2011

Cm Em

Atstartofyear 124 136

Share of results of joint ventures 24 30

Dividends received from joint ventures t201 33

Disposals and transfers t33

Additions 10

Exchange translation differences

Atendofyear 100 124

The principaljointventures at 31 December20l2are exhibition jointventureswithin Exhibitions and GiuffrŁ an Italian legal publisher

inwhich Reed Elsevierhasa 40% shareholding within Legal

Summarised aggregate information in respect of jointventures and Reed Elseviers share is set out below

Cm

TotaL joint ventures

2012 2011

Em

254

62

Reed Etseviershare

2012 2011

Cm Em

91 128

3024

Totalassets 227 255 104 122

Totalliabilities 126 137 59 66

Netassets 101 118 45 56

Goodwill 55 68

TotaL 100 124

Revenue 187

Netprofitfortheyear 45
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Properly pant and equipment

2012 2011

Landand Fixturesand TotaL Landand Fisturesand Total

buildings equipment Cm buildings equipment Em

Cost

Atstartofyear 238 582 820 246 578 824

Acquisitions

Capitalexpenditure 10 70 80 82 90

Disposals/reclassified as held for saLe 21 97 118 78 94

Exchange translation differences 19 28 11 11

Atendofyear 218 537 755 238 582 820

AccumuLated depreciation

Atstartofyear 118 414 532 115 418 533

Disposals/reclassified as held for sale 94 99 69 75

Chargefortheyear 68 76 66 75

ExchangetransLationdifferences 13 18

Atendofyear 116 375 491 118 414 532

Netbookamount 102 162 264 120 168 288

No depreciation is provided on freehold land of E39m 2011 E46m1 The net book amount of property plant and equipment at

31 December2012 includes Elim 2011 E4m in respect of assets held underfinance leases relating to fixturesand equipment

18 Financiil instruments

Details of the objectives policies and strategies pursued by Reed Elsevier in relation to financial instruments and capital management

are set out on pages 56 and 57 of the Financial Review The main financial risks faced by Reed Elsevierare liquidity risk market risk

comprising interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk and credit risk Financial instruments are used to finance the Reed Elsevier

businesses and to hedge interest rate and foreign exchange risks Reed Elseviers businesses do not enter into speculative derivative

transactions Details of financialinstruments subject to liquidity market and credit risks are described below

Liquidity risk

Reed Elsevier maintains range of borrowing facilities and debt programmesto fund its requirements at short notice and at

competitive rates The remaining contractual maturities for borrowings and derivativefinancial instruments are shown in the table

below Thetable shows undiscounted principaland interest cash flows and includes contractualgross cash flowsto be exchanged

as part of cross currency interest rate swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts where there is legal right of set-off

Contractual cash flow

Carrying Within More than

amount lyear 1-2years 2-3years 3-4years 4-5years 5years Total

At31 December2012 Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm

Borrowings

Fixed rate borrowings 3695 803 797 1251 530 428 1940 4749
Floating rate borrowings 197 132 63 200

Derivative financiaL LiabiLities

Interest rate derivatives

Cross currencyinterest rate swaps 166 180 346
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1382 442 194 2018

Derivative financiaL assets

Interestratederivatives 47 35 13 12 75

Crosscurrencyinterestrateswaps 93 202 263 445

Forwardforeignexchangecontracts 55 1400 460 202 2062

TotaL 3708 849 704 294 521 423 1948 4739
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18 FinanciaHnstruments continued

Contractual cash flow

Carrying Within More than

amount year 1-2years 2-3years 3-4years 4-5years 5years Total

At31 December2011 Em Em Em Em Em Em Em Em

Borrowings

Fixedrateborrowings 13568 553 814 863 248 524 1694 4696

Floating rate borrowings 714 646 65 721

Derivative financiaL LiabiLities

Interestratederivatives 10 19 12

Crosscurrencyinterestrateswaps 1173 189 1368

Forwardforeignexchangecontracts 59 1019 421 1256 1696

Derivative financiaL assets

Interestratederivatives 39 13 27 59

Crosscurrencyinterestrateswaps 99 14 208 248 470

Forwardforeignexchangecontracts 11 987 414 252 1653

TotaL 4202 1219 764 1804 1308 520 1696 5311

The carrying amount of derivative financial liabilities comprises E7m 12011 E64m in relation to cash flow hedges and E4m 2011 Sm
not designated as hedging instruments The carrying amount of derivative financialassets comprises 124m 12011 E123m in relation

tofairvalue hedges E46m 2011 ElOm in relation to cash flow hedges and E25m 2011 16m not designated as hedging instruments

At31 December 2012 Reed Elsevier had access to $2000m committed bank facility maturing in June 2015which was undrawn

The bank facility togetherwith certain private placements are subject to financial covenants typical to Reed Elseviers size and

financial strength Reed Etsevierwas in compliance with these covenants for the year ended 31 December 2012 Financial covenants

are not included in theterms and conditions of any outstanding public bonds

Aftertaking accountof the maturityof committed bankfacilitiesthatbackshortterm borrowingsat3l December2012 and after

utilising available cash resources no borrowings mature within two years 2011 nil 27% of borrowings mature in thethirdyear2011

44% 23% in the fourth and fifthyears 12011 18% 39% in the sixth totenth years 2011 27% and 11% beyond thetenthyear2011 11%

Market risk

Reed Elseviers primary market risks are to interest rate fluctuations and exchange rate movements Derivatives are used to hedge

or reduce the risks of interest rate and exchange rate movements and are not entered into unless such risks exist Derivatives used

by Reed Elsevierfor hedging particular risk are not specialised and are generally available from numerous sources The impact of

market risks on net post employment benefit obligations and taxation is excluded from the following market risk sensitivity analysis

Interest rate risk

Reed Elseviers interest rate exposure management policy is aimed at reducing the exposure of the combined businesses to changes

in interest rates

At 31 December 2012 59% of gross borrowings were eitherfixed rate or had been fixed through the use of interest rate swaps forward

rate agreements and options 100 basis point reduction in interest rates would result in an estimated decrease in net finance costs of

E8m 12011 E5m based on the composition of financial instruments including cash cash equivalents bank loans and commercial paper

borrowingsat3l December2Ol2.A 100 basis pointrise in interest rateswould result in an estimated increase in netfinance costs of

E8m 2011E5m

The impact on net equity ofatheoreticalchange in interest rates as at 31 December2012 is restricted to the change in carrying value

of floating rate to fixed rate interest rate derivatives in designated cash flow hedge relationship and undesignated interest rate

derivatives.A 100 basis point reduction in interest rates would result in an estimated reduction in net equity of Elm 12011 3m and

100 basis point increase in interest rates wouLd increase net equity byan estimated E2m 2011 E4m The impact of change in

interest rates on the carrying value of fixed rate borrowings in designated fairvalue hedge relationship would be offset by the

change in carrying value of the related interest rate derivative Fixed rate borrowings not in designated hedging relationship

are carried at amortised cost
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18 Financi il instruments continued

Foreign exchange rate risk

Translation exposures arise on the earnings and net assets of business operations in countries with currencies otherthan sterling most

particularly in respect of the US businesses These exposures are hedgedto significant extent bya policy of denominating borrowings

in currencieswhere significant translation exposures exist most notably US dollars see note 24

Atheoreticaiweakening of allcurrencies by 10% againststerling at3l December2Ol2would decreasethe carrying value ofnetassets

excluding net borrowings byE495m 2011 E525m This would be offset to large degree bya decrease in net borrowings of 286m
2011 297m strengthening of allcurrencies by 10% against sterling at 31 December20l2would increase the carrying value of net

assets excluding net borrowings byE495m 2011 E525m and increase net borrowings byE286m 2011 E297m

retranslation of the combined businesses net profitfortheyearassuming 10%weakening of allforeign currencies against sterling

but excluding transactional exposures would reduce net profit byE8Om 2011 E59m 10% strengthening of allforeign currencies

against sterling on this basiswould increase net profit fortheyear byE8Om 2011 E59m

Credit risk

Reed Elsevier seeks to limit interest rate and foreign exchange risks described above by the use of financial instruments and asa

result hasa credit risk from the potential non performance by the counterpartiesto these financial instruments which are unsecured

The amount of this credit risk is normally restricted to the amounts of any hedge gain and not the principalamount being hedged

Reed Elsevier also has credit exposure to counterparties for the full principalamount of cash and cash equivalents Credit risks

are controlled by monitoring the credit quality of these counterparties principally licensed commercial banks and investment banks

with strong long term credit ratings and the amounts outstanding with each of them

Reed Elsevier has treasury policies in place which do not allow concentrations of risk with individual counterparties and do not allow

significant treasury exposures with counterparties which are rated lower than A-/A3 by Standard Poors Moodys and Fitch

Reed Elsevier also has credit risk with respect to trade receivables due from its customers that include national and state governments

academic institutions and large and smallenterprises including lawfirms bookstoresandwholesalers The concentration of credit

riskfrom trade receivables is limited dueto the large and broad customer base Trade receivable exposures are managed locally in the

business unitswheretheyarise Where appropriate business units seekto minimisethis exposure bytaking payment in advance and

through management of credit terms Allowance is made for bad and doubtfuldebts based on managements assessment of the risk

taking into account the ageing profile experience and circumstance The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the

carrying amount of each financialasset including derivative financial instruments recorded in the statement of financial position

Included within trade receivables are the following amounts which are past due butforwhich no allowance has been made Past due

up to one month E148m 2011 E212m past due two to three months E58m 2011 E54m past due fourto six months E14m 2011 E20m
and past due greaterthan six months Elm 2011 E5m Examples of trade receivableswhich are past due butforwhich no allowance

has been made includethose receivableswherethere is no concern overthe creditworthiness of the customerandwherethe history

of dealings with the customer indicate the amount will be settled

Hedge accounting

The hedging relationships that are designated under 1AS39 Financial Instruments are described below

Fairvatue hedges

Reed Elsevier has entered into interest rate swaps and cross currency interest rate swapsto hedge the exposureto changes in the fair

value of fixed rate borrowings due to interest rate and foreign currency movements which could affect the income statement

Interest rate derivatives including cross currency interest rate swaps with principalamount of l502m 2011 1081m were in

place at 31 December 2012 swapping fixed rate term debt issues denominated in sterling euros and Swiss francs CHF to floating rate

sterling euro and US dollar USD debt respectivelyforthewhole of theirterm Includedwithin thisamountare interest rate derivatives

with principalamount of E488m 2011 nil which were de-designated asfairvalue hedges during the year
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18 Financialinstrumentscontinued

The gains and tosses on the borrowings and related derivatives designated as fairvalue hedges which are included in the income

statementforthe twoyears ended 31 December2Ol2were asfollows

GAINS/LOSSES ON BORROWINGS Fairvatue Fairvatue

AND RELATED DERIVATIVES January movement Exchange january movement De- Exchange 31 December

2011 gain/Ross gain/Ross 2012 gain/floss designated gain/Ross 2012

Em Em Em Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm

GBP debt 23 30 36

Related interest rate swaps 23 30 36

EURdebt 12 81

Related interest rate swaps 12

CHFdebt 86 84 80

Related CHFto USD cross currency

interest rate swaps 86 84 80

Total GBP EURandCHFdebt 105 17 123 14 124

Totatrelatedinterestratederivatives 105 17 123 14 124

Netgain

Allfairvalue hedges were highly effective throughout the two years ended 31 December2012

Gross borrowings as at3l December2012 included E37m 2011 E43m in relation to fairvalue adjustments to borrowings previously

designated in afairvalue hedge relationship which were de-designated in 2008 The related derivativeswere closed out on

de-designation with cash inflowof E62m 5m 2011 8m of thesefairvalue adjustmentswere amortised intheyearas reduction

to finance costs

Gross borrowings also included E2m 2011 nil in relation tofairvalueadjustments to borrowings previously designated in afairvalue

hedging relationshipwhichwere de-designated during the year E7m 2011 nil of these fairvalue adjustments were amortised in the

yearasa reduction to finance costs The related derivatives remained on the balance sheet at 31 December20l2with carrying value

of E3m

Cash Low hedges

Reed Elsevier enters into two types of cash flow hedge

Interest rate derivativeswhich fixthe interestexpense on portion offorecastfloating rate debtincluding commercialpaper

short term bank loans and floating rate term debt

Foreign exchange derivatives which fix the exchange rate on portion of future foreign currency subscription revenues forecast

by the Scientific Technical Medical businessesforup to 50 months

Movements in the hedge reserve pre-tax in 2011 and 2012 including gains and losses on cash flow hedging instruments

were as follows

Foreign Totat hedge

Interest rate exchange reserve

hedges hedges pre-tax

Cm Cm Cm

Hedge reserveat January2011 lossesdeferred 29 59 88

Losses arising in 2011 21 24

Amounts recognised in income statement 15 33 48

Exchange translation differences

Hedge reserve at January2012 losses deferred 17 461 63

Losses/gains arising in 2012 72 70

Amountsrecognisedinincomestatement
16 10 26

Exchange translation differences

Hedge reserve at 31 December 2012 Losses/gains deferred 37 35

Allcashflow hedgeswere highlyeffectivethroughoutthetwoyears ended 31 December2012

Atax charge of E9m 2011 15m credit in respect of the above gains and lossesat3l December20l2was also deferred in the hedge reserve



18 FinanchlLinstrumentscontinued

Of the amounts recognised in the income statement in the year losses of ElOm 2011 33m were recognised in revenue and losses

ofElóm 2011 15m were recognised in finance costs Atax credit of E5m 2011 ElimIwas recognised in relation to these items

The deferred gains and losses on cash flow hedges at 31 December2012 are currently expected to be recognised in the income

statement in future years asfollows

2013

_________

2014 16 16

2015 11 11

2016

2017

tLosses/gains deferred in hedge reserve at end of year 37 35

The cash flows forthese hedges are expected to occur in line with the recognition of the gains and losses in the income statement other

than in respect of certain forward foreign exchange hedges on subscriptions where cash flows may be expected to occur in advance of

the subscription year

Cm Em

Deferred tax assets 79 212

Deferred tax liabilities 919 1236

TotaL 840 1024

Movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets before taking into consideration the offsetting of balanceswithin the same jurisdiction

are summarised as follows
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Foreign

Interest rate exchange

hedges hedges

Cm Cm

TotaL hedge

reserve

pre-tax

Cm

19 Deferred tax

2012 2011
CD

CD

Deferred tax liabiLities Deferred tax assets

Excessof tax Excessof

aLLowances Acquired Other amortisation Tax Losses Other

over intangibLe Pensions temporary overtax carried Pensions temporary

amortisation assets assets differences aLLowances forward liabiLities differences Total

Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm
CD

CD
Deferred tax liability

assetat January2011 223 944 15 10 13 13 78 47 1041

Charge/credittoprofit 131 10 94 32 24 77

Credittoequity 25 11 42

Transfers 17 17

Acquisitions 85 78

Disposals/reclassified as

heldforsale

Exchange translation

differences

Deferred tax liability

asset ati January2012 231 1900 105 16 48 86 62 1024

Charge/credittoprofit 85 19 32 23 40

Charge/credittoequity 102 93

Acquisitions 10 16

Disposals/reclassified as

heldforsale 18 25

Exchange translation

differences

Deferred tax LiabiLity/asset

at3l December2012

10 35 42

223 772 108 23 153 78 840
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19 Deferredtaxcontinued

Other deferred tax liabilities includes temporary differences in respect of plant property and equipment and capitalised development

spend Other deferred tax assets includes temporary differences in respect of share-based remuneration provisions and financial

instruments

Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses and other deductible temporary differences have only been recognised to the extent that

it is more likely than not that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the asset to be recovered Accordingly no deferred tax

asset has been recognised in respectof unused trading losses of approximatelyfl29m 12011 133m carried forward atyearend

The deferred tax asset not recognised in respect of these losses is approximately 34m 12011 36m Of the unrecognised losses

E47m 12011 E45m1 will expire if not utilisedwithin l0years and 82m 12011 88m will expire aftermorethan lOyears

Deferredtaxassets of approximately9m 2011 E31m have not been recognised in respectof tax losses and othertemporary

differences carried forward of 41m 2011 94m which can only be used to offset future capitalgains

20 Inventories and pre-pubUcation costs

2012 2011

Cm

Raw materials

Pre-publication costs 101 115

Finished goods 55 69

TotaL 159 190
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21 Trade other receivabes

127

2012 2011

Cm

Tradereceivables 1256 1361

Allowance for doubtful debts 51 63

1205 1298

Prepayments and accrued income 175 185

TotaL 1380 1483

Trade receivables are predominantly non-interest bearing and theircarrying amountsapproximatetotheirfairvalue

Trade receivables are stated net of allowancesfor bad and doubtfuldebts The movements in the provision during the yearwere

as follows

2012 2011

Em Em

Atstartofyear 63 73

Chargefortheyear 13 15

Trade receivables written off 18 23

Disposals 61

Exchange translation differences

Atend of year 51 63

22 Assets nd tiabiUties hetd for sate

The major classes of assets and liabilities of operations classified as held forsale are as follows

2012 2011

Cm Em

134 19

84

Goodwill

Intangible assets

Property plant equipment

Deferred tax assets

Inventories

Tradeandotherreceivables 71 16

TotaLassetsheLdforsaLe 297 44

Tradeandotherpayables 69 17

Deferred tax liabilities 27

TotaL LiabiLities associated with assets heLd for saLe 96 17

23 Trade aid other payabtes

2012

Cm

2011

Em

Payablesandaccruals 1150 1245

Deferredincome 1394 1412

TotaL 2544 2657

-Il

CD

CD
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2L Borrowings

2012 2011

FaLLing due FaLLing due in Falling due Falling due in

within morethan within more than

lyear lyear TotaL lyear lyear Total

Em Em Em Em Em Em

Financial liabilities measured atamortised cost

Short term bank loans overdrafts and commercial paper 131 131 596 596

Financeleases 16

Otherloans 1526 1526 384 1466 1850

Other loans in fairvalue hedging relationships 102 1036 1138 1204 1204

Other loans previously in fairvalue hedging relationships 490 591 1081 624 624

TotaL 730 3162 3892 982 3300 4282

In 2012 184m principalamount of term debt maturing in 2Ol4and 2Ol9was exchanged forEl9lm principalamount of term debt

maturing in 2022 and cash payments of E46m The exchange is treated as debt modification foraccounting purposes The premium

arising of 53m is offset against the carrying amount of the newly issued term debt maturing in 2022 and will be amortised over its life

The totalfairvalue of financial liabilities measured at amortised cost is E1996m 2745m1 The totalfairvalue of other loans in fair

value hedging relationships is E1177m 2011 1237m The totalfairvalue of other loans previously in fairvalue hedging relationships

isEl189m 2011f707m

Analysis by year of repayment

2012 2011

Shortterm Shortterm

bankLoans bank loans

overdrafts overdrafts

and and

commerciaL Finance commercial Finance

paper Othertoans Leases TotaL paper Otherloans leases Total

Em Em Em Em Em Em Em Em

Within lyear 131 592 730 596 384 982

Within to2years 644 650 618 621

Within 2to3years 178 181 725 727

Within3to4years 400 400 188 189

Within4to5years 359 359 401 401

After5years 1572 1572 1362 1362

3153 3162 3294 3300

TotaL 131 3745 16 3892 596 3678 4282

Shortterm bank loans overdrafts and commercialpaperwere backed up at3l December2012 bya $2000m committed bank

facility maturing in June 2015 which was undrawn

Analysis by currency
_____________

2012 2011

Shortterm Shortterni

bank Loans bank loans

overdrafts overdrafts

and and

commercial Finance commercial Finance

paper Otherloans Leases Total paper Othertoans leases Total

Em Cm Em Cm Em Em Em Em

US dollars 25 2059 16 2100 485 2431 2924

Esterling 736 736 730 730

Euro 103 950 1053 91 517 608

Other currencies 20 20

TotaL 131 3745 16 3892 596 3678 4282

Included in the US dollaramounts forother loans above isE347m 363m of debt denominated in Swiss francs CHF 500m
2011 CHF500m that was swapped into US dollars on issuance and against which there are related derivative financialinstruments

which asat3l December 2012 had fairvalue of 80m 84m
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25 Leasearrangements

Finance Leases

At 31 December20l2future finance lease obligations falldue as follows

2012 2011

EmCm

Withinoneyear

In the second to fifth years inclusive

16

Lessfuturefinancecharges

TotaL 16

Present value of future finance lease obligations payable

Withinoneyear

In the second to fifth years inclusive

TotaL 16

The fairvalue of the lease obligations approximatesto their carrying amount

Operating Leases

Reed Elsevier leases various properties principally offices and warehouses which have varying terms and renewal rights that are

typicalto the territory in which they are located

At31 December2012 outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating leases falldue as follows

2012 2011

Cm Em

Withinoneyear 117 129

In the second to fifth years inclusive 309 305

Afterfiveyears 184 206

TotaL 610 640

Of the above outstanding commitments E577m 2011 E605m relate to land and buildings

Reed Elsevier has number of propertiesthat are sub leased The future lease receivables contracted with sub-tenantsfallasfollows

2012 2011

Cm Em

Withinoneyear 16 21

In the second to fifth years inclusive 33 38

Afterfiveyears 17 19

TotaL 66 78
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26 Provisions

2012 2011

Property Restructuring Total Property Restructuring Total

Cm Cm Cm Em Em Em

Atstartofyear 109 17 126 105 54 159

Transfers 22 22

Charged 62 62 16 16

Utitised 24 12 36 12 37 49

Exchange translation differences 15

Atendofyear 164 169 109 17 126

Property provisions relate to estimated sub lease shortfalls and guarantees given in respect of certain property leases forvarious

periods up to 2024 The charge in 2012 of E62m 2011 16m predominantly relates to property exposures on disposed businesses

At31 December2012 provisions are included within current and non-current liabilities as follows

2012 2011

Cm Em

Current liabilities 30 39

Non-current liabilities 139 87

TotaL 169 126

27 Contingent t.iabilities and capital commitments

There are contingent liabilities amounting to Ellm 2011 E15m in respect of property lease guarantees

28 Combined share capitals share premiumsand shares held in treasury

Combined share capitals exclude the shares of Reed Elsevier NV held bya subsidiary of Reed Elsevier PLC Disclosures in respect

of share capitalare given in note 12 to the Reed Elsevier PLC consolidated financialstatements and note l3to the Reed Elsevier NV

consolidated financialstatements Combined share premiums excludethe share premium in respect of shares of Reed Elsevier NV

held by subsidiary of Reed Elsevier PLC

During 2012 Reed Elsevier repurchased 23288616 Reed Elsevier PLC ordinaryshares and 12660296 Reed Elsevier NVordinary

sharesforconsideration of E250m These sharesare held in treasury On 28 December2012 Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV

announced an irrevocable non discretionary programme to repurchase furtherordinary shares upto the value of ElOOm which was

completed in February 2013

The EBT purchases Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NVshares which atthetrustees discretion can be used in respect of the

exercise of share options andto meetcommitments underconditionalshare awards 4t31 December2012 shares held bythe EBT

were E152m 2011 El 59m

Details of the shares held in treasury are provided in note 12 of the Reed Elsevier PLC consolidated financialstatements and note 13

of the Reed Elsevier NV consolidated financial statements
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Oth.rr hcd
Hedge Other

reserve reserves TotaL Total

2012 2012 2012 2011

Cm Cm Cm Em

Atstartofyear 48 151 199 387

Profitattributableto parent companies shareholders 1069 1069 760

Dividends paid 521 521 497

Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension schemes 329 329 113

Fairvalue movements on available forsale investments

Transferto net prof it on disposalof available for sale investments 11 11

Fairvalue movements on cash flow hedges 70 70 24

Tax recognised directly in equity 19 107 88 42

Increase in share based remuneration reserve 31 31 27

Settlementofshareawards

Transferfrom cash flow hedge reserve to net prof it net of tax 21 21 37

Disposal/tacquisition of non-controlling interests 43

Exchangetranslationdifferences
10 12

Atendofyear 26 226 252 199

Other reserves principally comprise retained earnings the share based remuneration reserve and available for sale investment

reserve 11

Retc party trnscHcr

Transactions between the Reed Elsevier combined businesses have been eliminated within the combined financial statements

Transactionswith joint ventures were made on normal market terms of trading and comprise sales of goods and services of Elm

2011Elm

Asat3l December2012 amounts owed byjointventureswere Elm 2011 3m and amounts duefrom jointventureswere Elm

2011 nil Key management personnelare also related parties and comprise the executive directors of Reed Elsevier PLC and

Reed Elsevier NV Transactionswith key management personnelare set out below

2012 2011

Cm Em

Salaries and other short term employee benefits

Post employment benefits

Share based remuneration5

TotaL

5The share based remuneration charge comprises the multi-year incentive scheme charges in accordance with IFRS2

Share-based payment relating to executive directors as follows Erik Engstrom E2.7m 2011 E2.5m Mark ArmourC2.lm

2011 E1.5m and Duncan PalmerEO.3m 2011 nil These IFRS2 charges do not reflectthe actualvalue received on vesting

Details of directors remuneration are set out in the Directors Remuneration Report on pages 74to 90

qe rite

The following exchange rates have been applied in preparing the combined financialstatements

Statementof

Incomestatement financiaL position

2012 2011 2012 2011

Eurotosterling 1.23 1.15 1.23 1.20

USdollarstosterling 1.59 1.60 1.62 1.55

4p\i 01 1nc
The combined financialstatements were approved and authorised for issue by the Boards of directors of Reed Elsevier PLC

and Reed Elsevier NV on 27 February 2013
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INDEPENDENTAUDITORS REPORT

Independent auditors report

to the members of Reed Esevier PLC and sharehoIders of Reed Etsevier NV

Report on the combined financiaL statements

We have audited the combined financial statements of Reed

Elsevier PLC registered in England and Wales Reed Elsevier NV

registered in Amsterdam Reed Elsevier Group plc registered

in England and Wales Elsevier Reed Finance BV registered in

Amsterdam and their respective subsidiaries associates and

joint ventures together the combined businesses for the year

ended 31 December2012 the combined financialstatements

which comprise the combined income statement the combined

statement of comprehensive income the combined statement

of cash flows the combined statement of financial position

the combined statement of changes in equity the significant

accounting policies and the related notes ito 32

Ouraudit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the

members of Reed Elsevier PLC and shareholders of Reed Elsevier

NVthose matters we are required to state to them in an auditors

report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted

bylaw we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other

than Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV and the members

of Reed Elsevier PLC asa bodyand the shareholders of Reed

Elsevier NVas bodyforourauditwork forthis report orfor

the opinions we have formed

ResponsibiLities of directors

As explained more fully in the Directors Responsibilities

Statement the directors are responsible forthe preparation of the

combined financialstatements in accordancewith International

Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union

IFRS and for being satisfied that they give true and fairview

and for such internalcontrolas it determines is necessary to

enable the preparation of financial statements that are free

from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error

Auditors responsibiLities

Our responsibility isto audit and express an opinion on the

combinedfinancialstatementsinaccordancewith International

Standards on Auditing UK and Ireland as issued by the United

Kingdom Auditing Practices Board and Dutch law including the

Dutch Standards on Auditing Those standards require us to

complywith our respective professions ethical requirements

including the Auditing Practices Boards Ethical Standards for

Auditors and the International Ethical Standards Board of

Accountants Code of Ethics

Scope of the audit of the combined financiaL statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and

disclosures in the combined financial statements sufficient to give

reasonable assurance that the combined financial statements are

free from material misstatement whether caused by fraud or

error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting

policies are appropriate to the combined businesses

circumstances and have been consistentlyapplied and adequately

disclosed the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates

made by the directors and the overall presentation of the

combinedfinancialstatements.lnadditionwe readallthe

financialand non-financialinformation in the annual report to

identify material inconsistencies with the audited combined

financialstatements lIwe become aware of anyapparent material

misstatements or inconsistencies we considerthe implications for

our report

The procedures selected depend on the auditors judgement

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of

the combined financialstatements whetherdue to fraud orerror

In making those risk assessments the auditor considers internal

control relevant to the entitys preparation of the combined

financialstatements in orderto design audit proceduresthat

are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entitys

internal control

We believethatthe audit evidencewe have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide basis for our audit opinion

Opinion on the combined financiaL statements

In our opinion the combined financialstatements

give atrue and fairviewof the state of the combined

businesses affairs as at3l December2012 and of their

profitfortheyearthen ended and

have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRS as

adopted bythe European Union

Other matter

We have also audited the information in the parts of the Directors

Remuneration Report presented in the Reed ElsevierAnnual

Reports and FinancialStatements the Remuneration Report

thatare described as having been audited The separate audit

reports on the consolidated financial statements of Reed Elsevier

PLC and Reed Elsevier NV which have been audited under locally

adopted standards and which include the otheropinions required

by local laws and regulations appear on pages 166 and 188

Douglas King Senior statutoryauditor

Forand on behalf of

DeLoitte LLP

Chartered Accountants

and StatutoryAuditor

London United Kingdom

27 February 2013

ASandler

Detoitte Accountants B.V

Amsterdam

The Netherlands

27 February 2013
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Combined statement of cash flows

2012 2011

Note

Cash fLows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations 2272 1995

Interest paid 284 284

Interest received 14

Tax paid net 266 251

Net cash from operating activities 1731 1474

Cash fLows from investing activities

Acquisitions 389 553

Purchases of property plant and equipment 86 98

Expenditure on internally developed intangible assets 323 305

Purchaseof investments 11

Proceedsfrom disposals of property plant and equipment

Gross proceeds from other disposals 289 116

Payments on other disposals 101 24

Dividends received from joint ventures 25 38

Net cash used in investing activities 585 829

Cash fLows from financing activities

Dividends paid to shareholders of the parent companies 641 572

Distributionsto non-controlling interests 10

Decrease/increase in shortterm bank loans overdraftsand commercialpaper 534 241

Issuanceofotherloans 728

Repayment of other loans 538 285

Repayment of finance leases 25

Disposal/acquisition of non-controlling interests 55

Repurchase of ordinary shares 308

Proceedson issueofordinaryshares 59 10

Net cash used in financing activities 1235 696

Decreaseincashandcashequivatents 89 51

Movement in cash and cash equivaLents

Atstartofyear 871 868

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents 89 51

Exchange translation differences 54

Atend of year 788 871
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JO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN EUROS

Combined statement of financial position

ASAT31 DECEMBER 2012 2011

Note Cm

Non-current assets

Goodwill 5591 5675

Intangibleassets 4028 4192

Investments in joint ventures 123 149

Other investments 97 77

Property plantand equipment 325 346

Deferredtaxassets 97 254

Derivative financial instruments 170

10431 10693

Current assets

Inventories and pre-publication costs 196 228

Trade and other receivables 1697 1780

Derivative financial instruments 70 179

Cash and cash equivalents 788 871

2751 3058

AssetsheLdforsaLe 365 53

TotaLassets 13547 13804

Current LiabiLities

Tradeandotherpayables 3129 3188

Derivative financial instruments 14 83

Borrowings 898 1178

Taxation 762 813

Provisions 37 47

4820 5309

Non-current LiabiLities

Borrowings 3889 3960

Deferred tax liabilities 1130 1483

Net pension obligations 573 290

Provisions 171 105

5763 5838

LiabiLities associated with assets heLd for saLe 118 21

TotaLLiabiLities 10701 11168

Net assets 2846 2636

CapitaL and reserves

Combined share capitals 274 268

Combined share premiums 3354 3268

Combined shares held in treasury 1106 796

Translation reserve 161 297

Other combined reserves 121 431

Combined sharehoLders equity 2804 2606

Non-controlling interests 42 30

TotaLequity 2846 2636
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Combined statement of changes in equity

Combined

Combined Combined Combined Other share- Non-

share share shares held Translation combined hoLders controlling TotaL

capitaLs premiums intreasury reserve reserves equity interests equity

Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm

Balance at January2011 262 3.222 1792 229 6481 2273 32 2305

Totalcomprehensive

incomefortheyear 107 806 913 921

Dividendspaid 572 572 10 582
Issue of ordinary shares

netofexpenses 10 10 10

Increase in share based

remuneration reserve 31 31 31

Setttementofshareawards

Acquisitions

Acquisition of

non-controlling interests 491 49 55

Exchange differences

on translation of

capital and reserves 36 12 39

Balance atl January2012 268 3268 796 297 431 2606 30 2636

Totalcomprehensive

incomefortheyear 102 1144 1042 1048

Dividends paid 641 6411 646
Issue of ordinary shares

netofexpenses 58 59 59

Repurchaseofordinaryshares 308 308 308
Increase in share based

remuneration reserve 38 38 38

Settlementofshareawards

Acquisitions 11 11

Disposal of

non-controlling interests

Exchange differences

on translation of

capitatand reserves 28 11 34 12

Batanceat3l December2012 274 3354 1106 161 121 2804 42 2846
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NOTESTOTHESUMMARYCOMBINEDFINANCIALINFORMATIONINEUROS

Notes to the summarycombined financiaL information

in euros

Segment ana.yss

ANALYSIS BY BUSINESS SEGMENT
--

Revenue Operating profit Adjusted operating profit

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

Cm Sm Cm Sm Cm Sm

Scientific Technical Medical 2538 2367 868 799 960 883

RiskSolutions 1139 1044 346 208 482 416

Businesslnformation 815 799 93 78 146 127

Legal 1980 1879 180 166 288 263

Exhibitions 1051 813 210 152 258 192

Sub-total 7523 6902 1697 1403 2134 1881

Corporate costs 158 158 50

Unallocated net pension financing credit 31 39 31 39

TotaL 7523 6902 1670 1386 2107 1870

Revenue isanalysed before the 112m 147m1 share ofjointventures revenue of which 3m 2m relatesto Business

Information 27m 26m relates to Legal principally to GiuffrŁ and 82m 2011 119m relates to Exhibitions

Share of post-tax results ofjoint ventures of 29m 2011 35m included in operating profit comprises nil 2011 lmrelating to

Business Information 2m 2011 5m relating to Legaland 27m 2011 29m relating to Exhibitions The unallocated net pension

financing credit of 31m 2011 39m comprises the expected return on pension scheme assets of 272m 2011 270m less interest

on pension scheme liabilities of 241 231

ANALYSIS OF REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL ORIGIN 2012 2011

Cm Sm

North America 3840 3569

UnitedKingdom 1188 1089

The Netherlands 752 708

Restof Europe
969 900

Rest of world 774 636

TotaL 7523 6902

ANALYSISOFREVENUEBYGEOGRAPHICALMARKET 2012 2011

Cm Sm

North America 3879 3702

United Kingdom 544 558

The Netherlands 203 217

Restof Europe 1447 1259

Restofworld 1450 1166

TotaL 7523 6902

ANALYSIS OF REVENUE BY TYPE 2012 2011

Cm Sm

Subscriptions 3663 3242

Circulation/transactions 1970 1896

Advertising
431 503

Exhibitions 1041 805

Other 418 456

TotaL 7523 6902



Reed Etsevier Anriuat Reports and Financiat Statements 2012 39

CD

CD

qmntnal.ysis contnlJed

tHAI F1 oIiIrJ CHAFOMENI Expenditureon Capital Amortisation

acquired goodwill and expenditure of acquired Depreciation and

intangible assets additions intangible assets otheramortisation

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm

Scientific Technical Medical 148 50 130 108 84 83 101 80

RiskSolutions 18 26 27 134 179 28 29

Businessinformation 612 21 20 46 33 17 17

Legal 98 213 234 102 90 113 100

Exhibitions 219 41 31 25 39 28 20 12

TotaL 483 703 421 414 405 413 279 238

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property plant and equipment and internally developed intangible assets Amortisation of

acquired intangible assets includes amounts in respect of joint ventures of lm2011 5m in Exhibitions Other than the depreciation

and amortisation above non cash items include 38m 2011 31m1 relating to the recognition of share based remuneration and

comprise 6m 2011 6m in Scientific Technical Medical nil 2011 4m in RiskSolutions 4m 2011 2m in Business Information

8m 2011 7m in Legal 5m 2011 3m in Exhibitions and 15m 2011 9m in Corporate

ANAl HAl OF NON JRRENTASSETS BY GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION 2012 2011

Cm Cm

NorthAmerica 8012 8381

United Kingdom 645 620

The Netherlands 148 148

Restof Europe 897 940

Rest of world 462 350

TotaL 10164 10439

Non-currentassets by geographical location exclude amounts relating to deferred tax assets and derivative financial intruments
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LI N0TESTOTHESUMMARYCOMBINEDFINANCIALINFORMATIONINEUROS

Notes to the summarycombined financial information

in euros

Pension schemes

The pension expense recognised within the income statement comprises

2012 2011

Cm Cm

Service cost including settlement and curtailment credits of 25m 2011 lOm 53 65

Interest on pension scheme liabilities 241 231

Expected return on scheme assets 2721 270

Net defined benefit pension expense 22 26

Defined contribution pension expense 57 45

Totatpensionexpense 79 71

The amount recognised in the statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit pension schemes at the start and end of the

yearand the movements during the yearwere asfollows

2012 2011

Defined FairvaLue Defined Fairvalue

benefit ofscheme Netpension benefit ofscheme Netpension

obligations assets obligations obligations assets obligations

Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm

Atstartofyear 4651 4361 2901 4302 4103 199

Service cost 53 531 65 65

Interest on pension scheme liabilities 241 241 231 231

Expected return on scheme assets 272 272 270 270

Actuarialloss/gain 512 107 405 90 40 130

Contributionsbyemployer 143 143 76 76

Contributionsbyemployees 14 14 13 13

enefitspaid 266 266 162 162

Exchangetranslationdifferences 50 51 112 101 11

Atendofyear 5255 4682 573 4651 4361 290

The net pension obligations of 573m 2011 290m at3l December2012 comprise schemes in deficit with net pension obligations

of C573m 2011 290m and schemes in surplus with net pension assets of nil 2011 nil

As at3l December20l2the defined benefit obligations comprise C5058m 2011 C4465m in relation to funded schemes and

197m 2011 186m in relation to unfunded schemes
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/djusted igures

Reed Elsevier uses adjusted figures as additional performance measures Adjusted figures are stated before amortisation of acquired

intangible assets acquisition related costs disposalgains and losses and other non operating items related tax effects exceptional

prioryeartax credits in 2012 only and movements in deferred taxation assets and liabilities that are not expected to crystallise in the

nearterm and include the benef it of tax amortisation where available on acquired goodwilland intangible assets Adjusted operating

profit is also grossed upto exclude the equity share of taxes in joint ventures Acquisition related costs relate to acquisition integration

professionaland othertransaction related fees and adjustments to deferred and contingent consideration Adjusted operating cash

flow is measured after net capitalexpenditure and dividends from jointventures but before payments in relation to prioryear

exceptional restructuring programmes and acquisition related costs Adjusted figures are derived asfollows

2012 2011

Cm

Operating profit 1670 1386

Adjustments

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 405 413

Acquisition related costs 26 59

Share of profit on disposals injointventures

Reclassification of tax in joint ventures 13

Adjusted operating profit 2107 1870

Profitbeforetax 1460 1090

Adjustments

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 405 413

Acquisition related costs 26 59

Reclassification of tax in joint ventures 13

Disposals and other non operating items 561 25

Adjusted profit before tax 1841 1600

Profit attributable to parent companies shareholders 1315 874

Adjustments post tax

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 413 408

Acquisition related costs 20 38

Disposals and other non operating items 127 19

Exceptional prioryeartax credits 118

Deferred tax credits on acquired intangible assets not expected to crystallise in the near term 103 20

Adjusted profit attributabLe to parent companies sharehoLders 1400 1219

Cash generated from operations 2272 1995

Dividends received from joint ventures 25 38

Purchases of property plant and equipment 86 98

Proceedsfromdisposalsof property plantandequipment

Expenditure on internally developed intangible assets 323 305

Payments in relation to exceptional restructuring costs 30 60

Payments in relation to acquisition related costs 45 44

Adjusted operating cash fLow 1972 1742
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14 NOTESTOTHESUMMARYCOMBINED FINANCIAL INFORMATION IN EUROS

Notes to the summarycombined financiaL information

in euros

Statement of cash flows

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE JOINT VENTURESTO CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 2012 2011

Cm

Operating profit before joint ventures 1641 1351

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 404 408

Amortisation of internally developed intangible assets 186 152

Depreciation of property plant and equipment
93 86

Share based remuneration 38 31

TotaL non cash items 721 677

Decrease in inventories and pre-pubtication costs 26 37

Decrease/increase in receivables

Decrease in payables 1211 28

Increase in working capital 901 33

Cash generated from operations 2272 1995

CASHFLOWONACOUISITIONS 2012 2011

Cm

Purchase of businesses 339 523

Investment injointventures 13

Deferred payments relating to prioryear acquisitions 37 29

Total 389 553

RECONCILIATION OF NET BORROWINGS Related

derivative

Cash cash financial

equivalents Borrowings instruments 2012 2011

Cm Cm Cm Cm

Atstartofyear 871 5138 148 4119 4043

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents 89 89 51

Netmovementinshorttermbankloansoverdraftsandcommercialpaper 534 534 241

Issuanceofotherloans 728 728

Repaymentofotherloans 538 538 285

Repaymentoffinanceleases 25

Change in net borrowings resulting from cash flows 89 349 260 18

Borrowingsinacquiredbusinesses 21

Inceptionoffinanceleases 16 161

Fairvalueandotheradjustmentstoborrowingsandrelatedderivatives 51

Exchangetranstation differences 23 28 73

Atendofyear 788 4787 153 381.6 4119

Net borrowings comprise cash and cash equivalents loan capital finance leases promissory notes bank and otherloans and those

derivative financial instruments that are used to hedge the fairvalue of fixed rate borrowings
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\cquisrtins

During theyeara numberof acquisitionswere madeforatotalconsideration of 419m 2011 566m aftertaking accountof net

cash acquired of 15m 2011 28m The net assets of the businesses acquired are incorporated at theirfairvalueto the combined

businesses Provisional fairvalues of the consideration given and of the assets and liabilities acquired are summarised below

Fair Fair

vaLue value

2012 2011

Cm

Goodwill 203 345

Intangible assets 281 358

Property plant equipment

Current assets 26 27

Current liabilities 75 53

Borrowings 21
Currenttax

Deferred tax 20 90

Netassetsacquired 419 566

Consideration aftertaking account of 15m 12011 C28m net cash acquired 419 566

Less consideration deferred to future years 28 31
Less acquisition date fairvalue of equity interest 52 12
Net cash fLow 339 523

-fl

Goodwill being the excess of the consideration overthe net tangible and intangible assets acquired represents benef its which do not

qualifyfor recognition as intangible assets including the ability of business to generate higher returns than individualassets skilled

workforces acquisition synergiesthatare specific to Reed Elsevier and high barriersto market entry In addition goodwillarises on

the recognition of deferred tax liabilities in respect of intangible assets forwhich amortisation does not qualifyfortax deductions

The fairvalues of the assets and liabilities acquired are provisional pending the completion of the valuation exercises Finalfairvalues

will be incorporated in the 2013 combined financialstatements There were no significant adjustments to the provisionalfairvalues of

prioryearacquisitions established in 2011

The businesses acquired in 2012 contributed 90m to revenue increased adjusted operating profit by22m increased adjusted net

profit by17m decreased reported net profit by12m and contributed 2m to net cash inflowfrom operating activitiesforthe part

year under Reed Elsevier ownership and before taking account of acquisition financing costs Had the businesses been acquired at

the beginning of the year on pro forma basis the Reed Elsevier revenues adjusted operating profit adjusted net profit and reported

net profitfortheyearwould have been 7568m 21 12m 1405m and 1320m respectively before taking account of acquisition

financing costs
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L4.4 NOTESTOTHE SUMMARY COMBINED FINANCIAL INFORMATION IN EUROS

Notes to the summarycombined financial information

in euros

Borrowings

2012 2011

FaLlingdue FaLLingduein Fal Fal
within more than within more than

lyear lyear Total lyear lyear Total

Cm Cm Cm

Financial liabilities measured atamortised cost

Short term bank loans overdrafts and commercial paper 161 161 715 715

Financeleases 11 20

Otherloans 1877 1877 461 1759 2220

Other loans in fairvalue hedging relationships 125 1274 1399 1445 1445

Other loans previously in fairvalue hedging relationships 603 727 1330 749 749

TotaL 898 3889 4787 1178 3960 5138

In 2012 226m principalamount of term debt maturing in 2014and 2019 was exchanged for235m principalamount of term debt

maturing in 2022 and cash payments of 57m The exchange is treated as debt modification foraccounting purposes The premium

arising of 66m is offset against the carrying amount of the newly issued term debt and will be amortised over its life

The totalfairvalue offinancial liabilities measured atamortised cost is 2455m 2011 3294m Thetotalfairvalue of other loans

in fairvalue hedging relationships is 1448m 2011 1484m Thetotalfairvalue of other loans previously in fairvalue hedging

relationships is 1462m 2011 848m

AnaLysis by year of repayment

2012 2011

Shortterm Shortterm

bankloans banktoans

overdrafts overdrafts

and and

commercial Finance commercial Finance

paper Otherloans leases Total paper Otherloans Total

Cm Cm Cm Cm Em Em Em

Within lyear 161 728 898 715 461 1178

Withinlto2years 792 799 742 745

Within2to3years 219 223 870 873

Within3to4years 492 492 226 227

Within4to5years 442 442 481 481

After5years 1933 1933 1634 1634

3878 11 3889 3953 3960

TotaL 161 4606 20 4787 715 4414 5138

Shortterm bank loans overdrafts and commercial paperwere backed up at3l December2012 bya $2000m 1514m committed bank

facility maturing in June 2015 which was undrawn
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CD

CD

3OrlUWl cjs
contirlUed

AnaLysis by currency

2012 2011

Short term Short term

banktoans bank loans

overdraftsand overdrafts and

commercial Finance corn mercial Finance

paper Othertoans teases Total paper Otherloans Leases Total

Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm

USdollars 30 2532 20 2582 582 2918 3509

sterling
905 905 876 876

Euro 127 1169 1296 109 620 729

Other currencies 24 24

TotaL 161 4606 20 4787 715 4414 5138

Included in the US dollar amounts for other loans above is 427m 2011 435m of debt denominated in Swiss francs CHF 500m

2011 CHF 500m thatwas swapped into US dollars on issuance and againstwhich there are related derivative financial instruments

which asat 31 December2012 had fairvalue of 98m 2011 lOOm

rovJsftris

2012 2011

Property Restructuring Total Property Restructuring Total

Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm

Atstartofyear
131 21 152 123 63 186

Transfers 27 27

Charged 76 76 18 18

Utilised 301 151 451 14 t42 56

Exchange translation differences 21 21

Atendofyear 202 208 131 21 152

Property provisions relateto estimated sub lease shortfalls and guarantees given in respect of certain property leases forvarious

periods upto 2024 The charge in 2012 of 76m 2011 18m predominantly relates to property exposures on disposed businesses

4t31 December2012 provisions are included within current and non-current liabilitiesasfollows

2012 2011

Cm Cm
CD

Current liabilities
37 47

Non-currentliabilities 171 105

TotaL 208 152
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IqO NOTESTOTHEC0MBINED FINANCIAL INFORMATION IN EUROS

Notes to the summarycombined financiaL information

in euros

Other combined reserves

Hedge Other

reserve reserves Total

2012 2012 2012

Cm Cm Cm

Atstartof year 58 3731 431
Profit attributable to parent companies shareholders 1315 1.315

Dividends paid 6411 641
Actuarial tosses on defined benefit pension schemes 4051 405
Fairvatue movements on availabteforsate investments

Transferto net profit on disposatof availabte forsate investments 14 14

Fairvatuemovementsoncashflowhedges 86 86 28

Taxrecogniseddirectlyinequity 231 131 108 48

Increase in share based remuneration reserve 38 38 31

Setttementofshareawards

Transfer from hedge reserve to net profit net of tax 26 26 43

Disposal/acquisition of non-controlting interests 49

Exchangetranstationdifferences 11 12

Atendofyear 32 89 121 431

Exchange rates

Statement of

Incomestatement financiatposition

2012 2011 2012

0.87 0.81

1.39 1.32

Total

2011

Em

648
874

572

130

Sterling to euro 0.81

USdotlarstoeuro 1.29

2011

0.83

1.29
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REED ELSEVIER PLC

Directors report

The Directors present their report togetherwith the financial

statements of the group and company fortheyearended

31 December2012

As consequence of the merger of the companys businesses with

those of Reed Elsevier NV in 1993 described on page 66 the

shareholders of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV can be

regarded as having the interests ofa single economic group The

Reed Elsevier combined financial statements represent the

combined interests of both sets of shareholders and encompass

the businesses of Reed Elsevier Group plc Elsevier Reed

Finance BV and their respective subsidiaries associates and joint

ventures togetherwith the parent companies Reed Elsevier PLC

and Reed Elsevier NV the combined businesses or Reed

Elsevier This Directors report and the financial statements of

the group and company should be read in conjunction with the

combined financialstatements and other reports set out on pages

ito 132.A review of the Reed Elsevier combined businesses and

their performance in the year is set out on pages 8to 37

summary of the principal risksfacing Reed Elsevier is set out on

pages 58 to 60 and the Reed Elsevier statement on corporate

responsibility is set outon pages 40 to 48

PrincipaL activities

The company is holding companyand its principal investments

are its direct 50% shareholding in Reed Elsevier Group plc and

39% shareholding in Elsevier Reed Finance BV which are engaged

in publishing and information activities and financing activities

respectively The remaining shareholdings in these two

companies are held by Reed Elsevier NV Reed Elsevier PLC also

has an indirect equity interest in Reed Elsevier NV Reed Elsevier

PLC and Reed Elsevier NV have retained their separate legal

identities and are publicly-held companies Reed Elsevier PLCs

securities are listed in London and New York and Reed Elsevier

NVs securitiesare listed in Amsterdam and NewYork

FinanciaL statement presentation

The consolidated financial statements of Reed Elsevier PLC

include the 52.9% economic interest that shareholders have under

the equalisation arrangements in the Reed Elseviercombined

businesses accounted for on an equity basis

Under the terms of the mergeragreement dividends paid to Reed

Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV shareholders are otherthan in

special circumstances equalised at the gross level inclusive of the

UK tax credit received by certain Reed Elsevier PLC shareholders

Because of the tax credit Reed Elsevier PLC normally requires

proportionately less cash to fund its net dividend than Reed

Elsevier NVdoestofund its gross dividend.An adjustment is

therefore required in the consolidated income statement of Reed

Elsevier PLC to share this tax benefit between the two sets of

shareholders in accordance with the equalisation agreement The

equatisation adjustment arises on dividends paid by Reed Elsevier

PLC to its shareholders and it reduced the consolidated

attributable earnings byEi4m 2011 E13m being 47.1% of the

total amount of the tax credit

In addition to the reported figures adjusted profit figures are

presented as additional performance measures used by

management These exclude the tax credit equalisation

adjustment and in relation to the results ofjoint ventures the

companys share of amortisation of acquired intangible assets

acquisition related costs disposalgains and losses and other non

operating items related tax effects exceptional prioryear tax

credits in 2012 only and movements in deferred taxation assets

and liabilities not expected to crystallise in the near term and

include the benefit of tax amortisation where available on acquired

goodwilland intangible assets

ConsoLidated income statement

Reed Elsevier PLCs shareholders 52.9% share of the adjusted

profit before tax of the Reed Elsevier combined businesses was

E792m 2011 E736m Reported profit before tax including the

Reed Elsevier PLC shareholders share of amortisation charges

acquisition related costs and disposals and other non operating

items was E546m 2011 390m The increase reflects the

improved trading performance disposalgains and an exceptional

prior year tax credit
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At Elsevier double
digit growth in submissions and usage drove

good growth in scientific medical research and databases

toots with strong growth in emerging markets Risk Solutions

achieved strong growth in both insurance and business services

and return to growth in the government segment Business

Information sawstrong growth from our major data services

modest growth in marketing services and leading brands and

moderation in the rate of decline in other magazines and services

Legal revenue growth was positive despite subdued legal markets

in the US and Europe with growth driven by online products and

services Exhibitions had another good year benefiting from

biennial exhibition cycling with moderate growth in Europe

strong growth in the US and Japan and double
digit growth in

most emerging markets The overalladjusted operating margin

was 0.9 percentage points higher despite organic investment in

new product development and sales marketing reflecting the

benefit to margin from portfolio change

Reed Elsevier PLCs shareholders share of the adjusted profit

attributable of the combined businesseswasE6O2m

2011 561m Afterdeducting the companys share of the post

tax charge foramortisation of acquired intangible assets and

acquisition-related costs disposal gains and losses and other

non operating items exceptionalprioryeartax credit in 2012 only

and deferred taxes not expected to crystallise in the near term the

reported net profit fortheyearwas 552m 2011 E389m

Adjusted earnings per share increased 7% to 50.1 2011 46.7p At

constant rates of exchange the adjusted earnings per share were

8% higher Including the effect of the tax credit equalisation as well

as amortisation of acquired intangible assets acquisition related

costs disposal gains and losses and other non operating items

and tax adjustments the basic earnings per share were 46.Op

2011

Consolidated statement of financial position

The consolidated statement of financial position of Reed Elsevier

PLC reflects its 52.9% economic interest in the net assets of Reed

Elsevierwhich as at 31 December2Ol2was E1206m

2011 11 49m The 57m increase in net assets ref lects the

companys share in the comprehensive income of Reed Elsevier

partially offset by dividends paid and shares repurchased

Dividends

The Board is recommending an equalised final dividend of i/Op

perordinaryshare 2011 l5.9p This givestotalordinarydividends

fortheyearof 23.Op 2011 2l.55p Thefinaldividendwill be paid

on 23 May 2013 to shareholders on the Registeron May2013

Dividend cover based on adjusted earnings per share and the total

interim and proposed finaldividends forthe year is 2.2 times The

Boards of the companyand Reed Elsevier NV have adopted

dividend policies in recent years in respect of their equalised

dividendsthat subjectto currency considerations grow dividends

broadly in line with adjusted earnings pershare whilst maintaining

dividend cover being the number of times the annual dividend is

covered by the adjusted earnings per share of at least 2.0 times

over the longer term

The total dividend paid on the ordinary shares in the financialyear

was E264m 2011 E248m

Parent companyfinanciaL statements

The individual parent companyfinancialstatements of Reed

Elsevier PLC are presented on pages 167 to 169 and are prepared

under UK GenerallyAccepted Accounting Practice UK GAAP
Parentcompanyshareholders funds as at3l December2012

were 3490m 2011 31 63m

Corporate governance

The company has complied throughout the yearwith the

provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code issued by the

Financial Reporting Council in May 2010 the UK Code The UK

Code is publicly available at www.frc.org.uk Details of how the

principles of the UK Code have been applied and the Directors

statement on internal controlare set out in the Structure and

Corporate Governance report on pages 66 to 72

Details of the role and responsibilities membership and activities

of the Reed ElsevierAudit Committees including the companys

Audit Committee are set out in the Report of theAudit Committees

onpages9l and 92

CD

CD

CD

CD

CD
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Directors

The following served as Directors of the company during the year

AJ Habgood Chairman

Engstrom Chief Executive Officer

ArmourChief Financial Officer until 15 November2012

retired 31 December2012

Palmerappointed 25 September2012 Chief Financial Officer

from 15 November2012

MW Elliott

AN Hennah

LHook

RB Polet

Sir David Reid Senior Independent Director

LSSanford appointed4December2ol2

Bvan der Veer

Biographical details of the Directors at the date of this report are

given on pages 62 and 63

Directors are appointed in accordance with the Articles of

Association the Articles which provide that any director

appointed during the year holds office only until the next following

AnnualGeneral Meeting AGM and is then eligible for election

by the shareholders The companys Articles provide that at every

AGM of the company one third of the directors or if their number

is nota multiple of three the number nearest to one third

shall retire from office and if they wish put themselves up for

re-election bythe shareholders The UK Code recommendsthat

alldirectors should seek re-election by shareholders annually

Accordingly the Board has adopted this practice

The office of directorshall be vacated if he or she resigns

ii becomes bankrupt or compounds with his orhercreditors

generally iii is or may be suffering from mental illness

iv is prohibited by law from being director or is removed

from office pursuant to the companys Articles Subject to the

shareholders rights to appoint individuals to the Board in

accordance with the companys Articles no individual may be

appointed to the Board unless such appointment is recommended

bythe Nominations Committee

Mark Elliott and Sir David Reid will retireas Directorsatthe

conclusion of the AGM in April 2013 and will not seek re-election

Duncan Palmerand Linda Sanford were appointed to the Board in

Septemberand December respectively In accordance with the

Articles of Association theywill retire from the Board and stand

forelection attheAnnual General Meeting in April2013

In accordance with the provisions of the UK Code all other

Directors will retire from the Board attheAGM in 2013 and being

eligible theywill each offerthemselves for re-election Taking into

account the assessment by the Corporate Governance Committee

of the qualifications performance and effectiveness of each

individual Director seeking re-election the Board has accepted

recommendation from the Nominations Committee that each

Director be proposed for re-election at the 2013 AGM

AttheAGM held in April 2012 David Brennanwasappointed

Non-Executive Directorwhich was to have been effective as of

November 2012 As previouslyannounced David Brennans

appointment has been postponed indefinitely for personal

reasons at his request and by agreement with the Board

Following the postponement of David Brennans appointment

the Nominations Committee in conjunction with an external

consultant continued the search for Non-Executive Director and

recommended that Dr Wolf hart Hauser be proposed for election

as member of the Supervisory Board of Reed Elsevier NV and

Non-Executive Director of Reed Elsevier PLC at the respective

AGMs inApril 2013 Subjectto his election attheAGMs hewill

also be appointed as Non-Executive Director of Reed Elsevier

Group plc

The notice period applicable to the service contracts of Erik

Engstrom and Duncan Palmer is 12 months The remaining

Directors seeking re-election at the 2013 AGM do not have

service contracts

Details of Directors remuneration and their interests in the share

capitalof the companyare provided in the Directors remuneration

report on pages 74to 90

Share capitaL

The companys issued share capitalcomprises single class

of ordinary shares all of which are listed on the London Stock

Exchange All issued shares are fully paid up and carry no

additional obligations or special rights Each share carries the

right to one vote at general meetings of the company In general

meeting subject to any rights and restrictions attached to any

shares on showof hands every memberwho is present in

person shall have one vote and every proxy present who has been

duly appointed by one or more members entitled to vote on the

resolution has one vote although proxy has onevoteforand one

vote againstthe resolution if ithe proxy has been duly appointed

by more than one member entitled to vote on the resolution and ii

the proxy has been instructed by one or more of those members to

voteforthe resolution and byone or more otherof those members

to vote against it Subject to any rights or restrictions attached

to anyshares on vote on resolution on poll every member

present in person or by proxy shall have one vote for every share of

which he is the holder Proxy appointments and voting instructions

must be received by the companys registrars not less than 48

hours before general meeting There are no specific restrictions

on the size of holding nor on the transferof shareswhich are

both governed bythe general provisions of the Articles and

prevailing legislation The company is not aware of any

agreements between shareholders that may result in restrictions

on the transfer of shares or on voting rights attached to the shares
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At the 2012 ACM shareholders passed resolution authorising

the directors to allot shares upto nominalvalue of E9m

representing lessthan 5% of the companys issued share capital

Since the 2012 ACM no shares have been issued underthis

authority The shareholderauthorityalso permitted the Directors

to allot shares in orderto satisfyentitlements under employee

share plans and detailsof such allotmentsare noted below

The authorityto allot shareswill expire at the 2013AGM and

resolution to further extend the authority will be submitted

to the shareholders at the 2013 AGM

During the year 6684412 ordinaryshares in the companywere

issued in orderto satisfy entitlements under employee share

plans as follows

707996 undera UKSaveAsYou Earn share option scheme

at prices between 401.6p and 504p per share

5097939underexecutiveshareoptionschemesatprices

between 420p and 644.5p per share and

878477 underthe Long Term Incentive Plan at prices between

487.25p and 524.5p per share

The issued share capitalasat3l December2012 is shown in note

12 to the consolidated financial statements

Authority to purchase shares

At the 2012 AGM shareholders passed resolution authorising

the purchase of up to 125.1 million ordinaryshares in the company

less than 10% of the issued ordinary shares by

market purchase During theyear 23.3 million were purchased

underthis authority As at 31 December20l2there were

57484914 ordinary shares held in treasury representing 4.57%

of the issued ordinaryshares Afurther8.1 million shareswere

purchased between January2013 and the date of this report

The authorityto make market purchases will expire at the 2013

ACM and resolution to further extend the authority will be

submitted to the shareholders at the 2013 ACM

SubstantiaL share interests

Asat 27 February 2013 the company had been notified by the

following shareholders that they held an interest of 3% or more

in voting rights of the issued share capitalof the company

Franklin MutualAdvisers LLC 5.04%

BlackRock Inc 5.03%

Silchester International Investment 3.99%

Lloyds Banking Group plc

TheCapitalGroupCompanieslnc

LegalGeneralGroupplc

3.98%

3.90%

3.40%

EmpLoyee benefit trust

The Trustee of the Reed Elsevier Group plc Employee Benefit

Trust held an interest in 13451468 ordinary shares in the

companytrepresenting 1.07% of the issued ordinaryshares

asat3l December 2012 The Trustee may vote orabstain from

voting anyshares it holds in anyway it sees fit

Significant agreements change of controL

The Governing Agreement between Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed

Elsevier NVstates that upon change of control of Reed Elsevier

PLC these purposes the acquisition bya third party of 50% or

more of the issued share capital having voting rights should there

not be comparable offerfrom the offerorfor Reed Elsevier NV
Reed Elsevier NV may serve notice upon Reed Elsevier PLC

varying certain provisionsof the GoverningAgreement including

the governance and the standstill provisions

There are number of borrowing agreements including credit

facilities that in the event of change of control of both Reed

Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NVand in some cases

consequentialcredit rating downgradeto sub-investment grade

may at the option of the lenders require repayment and/or

cancellation as appropriate

Powers of directors

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 the

companysArticles and anydirections given byspecial

resolutions the business of the company shall be managed by

the Board which may exercise all the powers of the company

Directors indemnity

In accordance with the companys Articles the company has

granted Directors an indemnity to the extent permitted by law

in respect of liabilities incurred as result of theiroffice The

companyalso purchased and maintained throughouttheyear

Directors and Officers
liability

insurance in respect of itself

and its Directors

ReLated party transactions

Internal controls are in place to ensure that any related party

transactions involving Directors ortheirconnected personsare

carried out on an arms length basis and are properly recorded

CD

CD

CD
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The percentage interests stated above are as disclosed at the date

on which the interestswere notified tothe company
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Conflict of interest

The companys Articles permit the Board to approve situations

where Director has an interest that conflicts or may possibly

conflict with the interests of the company The Board has

established formal system whereby the Nominations Committee

considers and decides whether to authorise any such conflict or

potential conflict and whether to impose limits orconditionswhen

giving authorisation In reaching its decision the Nominations

Committee is required to act in away it considers would be most

likely to promote the success of the company

Creditor payment policy

Reed Elseviercompaniesagreetermsandconditionsforbusiness

transactions with suppliers including the terms of payment Reed

Elsevier does not operate standard code in respect of payments

to suppliers The average time taken to pay suppliers during the

yearwas between 30 and 45 days 2011 between 30 and 45 days

Charitable donations

Through the Reed Elsevier Cares programme which concentrates

on education for disadvantaged young people Reed Elsevier

companies made donations during the yearforcharitable

purposes amounting to 2.5m 2011 2.4m of which E0.4m

2011 0.5m was in the United Kingdom Further information

concerning the Reed Elsevier Cares programme is available from

the Reed Elsevier Corporate Responsibility Report at reporting

reedelsevier.com/crl

PoLitical donations

Reed Elsevier does not make donations to EU political

organisations or incur EU political expenditure In the United

States Reed Elseviercompaniesdonated 57201 2011 53550

to political organisations In line with US law these donationswere

not made at federal level but only to candidates and political

parties at the state and local levels

Financial Statements and accounting records

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Directors report

and thefinancialstatements in accordance with applicable law

and regulations

Company law requiresthe Directors to prepare financial

statementsforeach financialyear Underthatlawthe Directors

are required to preparethe consolidated financialstatements in

accordancewith International Financial Reporting Standardsas

adopted by the European Union and Article of the lAS Regulation

The Directors have elected to prepare the parent company

financialstatements in accordancewith United Kingdom

Generally Accepted Accounting Practice United Kingdom

Accounting Standards and applicable law Under company

law the Directors must notapprove the accounts unless they

are satisfied that they give true and fairview of the state of

affairs of the companyand of the profit or loss of the company

for that period

In preparing the parent companyfinancialstatements the

Directors are required to select suitable accounting policies and

then apply them consistently make judgements and accounting

estimatesthatare reasonable and prudent statewhether

applicable UKAccounting Standards have been followed subject

to any material departures being disclosed and explained in the

financialstatements and preparethe financialstatements on

going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that

the companywillcontinue in business

In preparing the group financial statements IAS1 requires that

directors properly select and applyaccounting policies present

information including accounting policies in mannerthat

provides relevant reliable comparable and understandable

information provide additionaldisclosures when compliance with

the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficientto enable users

to understand the impact of particulartransactions otherevents

and conditions on the entitys financial position and financial

performance makeanassessmentofthecompanysability

to continue as going concern

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting

records that are sufficient to show and explain the companys

transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time

the financial position of the companyand enablethem to ensure

that the financial statements complywith the Companies Act 2006

Theyare also responsible forsafeguarding the assets of the

companyand hence fortaking reasonable stepsforthe prevention

and detection of fraud and other irregularities
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Directors responsibiLity statement

The Board confirms that to the best of its knowledge

consolidated financiaLstatements prepared in accordance

with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by

the InternationalAccounting Standards Board and as adopted

bythe European Union give atrue and fairviewofthefinanciat

position and profit or loss of the group and

the Directors report includes fair review of the development

and performance of the business and the position of the group

togetherwith description of the principal risks and

uncertainties that it faces

Neitherthe company northe Directorsaccept any liabilityto any

person in relation to the Annual Report except to the extent that

such liability could arise under English law Accordingly any

liabiLity to person who has demonstrated reliance on any

untrue or misleading statement or omission shall be determined

in accordance with Section 90A of the FinancialServices and

Markets Act 2000

DiscLosure of information to auditors

As part of the process of approving the companys 2012 financial

statements the Directors have taken steps pursuant to section

41821 of the CompaniesAct 2006 to ensure that they are aware of

any relevantaudit information and to establish thatthe companys

auditors are aware of that information In that context so fares

the Directors are aware there is no relevant audit information

of which the companys auditors are unaware

Going concern

The Directors having made appropriate enquiries consider

that adequate resources exist forthe combined businesses to

continue in operational existence fortheforeseeable future and

that therefore it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis

in preparing the 2012 financialstatements In reaching this

conclusion the Directors have had due regard to the combined

businesses financial position as at3l December 2012 the

strong free cash flow of the combined businesses Reed Elseviers

ability to access capital markets and the principal risks facing

Reed Elsevier

Acommentaryon the Reed Elseviercombined businesses

cash flows financial position and liquidityfortheyearended

31 December2012 is set out in the Chief Financial Officers Report

on pages 5Oto 57 This shows that aftertaking account of available

cash resources and committed bankfacilitiesthat back up short

term borrowings none of Reed Elseviers borrowings falldue

within the next two years Reed Elseviers policies on liquidity

capital management and management of risks relating to interest

rate foreign exchange and credit exposures are set out on pages

56 and 57 Further information on liquidity of the combined

businesses can be found in note 18 of the combined financial

statements The principal risks facing Reed Elsevier are set

out on pages 58to 60

Auditors

Resolutions for the re-appointment of Deloitte LLP as auditors

of the companyand to authorise the Directors to fix their

remuneration wilt be submitted to shareholders at the 2013 AGM

Byorderof the Board Registered Office

HenryUdow

Company Secretary

27 February 2013

1-3 Strand

London

WC2N 5JR
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Consolidated income statement

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012 2011

Note Cm Cm

Administrative expenses
12 21

Effect of tax credit equalisation on distributed earnings 14 13

Share of results of joint ventures 11 561 404

Operating profit
545 389

Finance income

Profit before tax 546 390

Taxation

Profit attributabLe to ordinary sharehoLders 552 389

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

FORTHEYEARENDED31 DECEMBER 2012 2011

Cm Cm

Profit attributabLe to ordinary sharehoLders 552 389

Share of jointventures othercomprehensive expense foryear 1146 14

TotaL comprehensive income for the year
406 375

Earnings per ordinary share

F0RTHEYEARENOED31 DECEMBER 2012 2011

Note pence pence

Basicearningspershare
46.0 32.4

Diluted earnings pershare
45.4 32.1



Reed Etsevier Annua Reports and Financiat Statements 2012 55

Consolidated statement of cash flows

FOR HE YFAR ENDF 031 DECEMBER 2012 2011

Note Em

Cash fLows from operating activities

Cash used by operations 10

Interest received

Taxpaid

Net cash used in operating activities 31

Cash flows from investing activities

Dividends received from joint ventures 11 694 600

Net cash received from investing activities 694 600

Cash flows from financing activities

Equity dividends paid 264 248

Repurchase of ordinary shares 1431

Proceeds on issue of ordinary shares 33

Increase in net funding batances due from joint ventures 10 317 358

Net cash used in financing activities 691 598

Movement in cash and cash equivalents

CD

CD
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JO REED ELSEVIER PLC

Consolidated statement of financial position

ASAT31 DECEMBER 2012 2011

Note Cm Em

Non-current assets

Investments in joint ventures 11 1207 1158

TotaLassets 1207 1158

Current LiabiLities

Taxation

TotaL liabiLities

Netassets 1206 1149

CapitaL and reserves

Caltedupsharecapitat
12 181 180

Sharepremiumaccount 1208 1176

Shares hetd in treasury inctuding in joint ventures 14471 308

Capitat redemption reserve

Transtation reserve 87 159

Otherreserves 13 173 62

TotaLequity 1206 1149

The consolidated financiat statements were approved by the Board of directors 27 February 2013

AJ Habgood DJ PaLmer

Chairman Chief Financiat Officer
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

FOR IHEYEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER Shares Capital

Share Share held in redemption TransLation Other

capitaL premium treasury reserve reserve reserves Totalequity

Note Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm

BaLanceatlJanuary2Oll 180 1168 142 154 1028

Totalcomprehensiveincomefortheyear 17 358 375

Equitydividendspaid 248 248

Issue of ordinaryshares net of expenses

Share ofjointventures increase in share

based remuneration reserve 14 14

Share of jointventures settlement of share

awardsbytheempoyeebenefittrust

Share of jointventures acquisition of

non-contro1ing interests 23 23

Equalisation adjustments

BalanceatlJanuary20l2 180 1176 308 159 62 1149

Totalcomprehensiveincomefortheyear 72 478 406

Equitydividendspaid 264 264

Issueofordinaryshares netof expenses 32 33

Repurchaseofordinaryshares 143 143
Share ofjointventures increase in share

based remuneration reserve 16 16

Share ofjointventures settlement of share

awardsbytheemployeebenefittrust

Share of jointventures disposaof

non-controUing interests

Equatisation adjustments

BaLanceat3l December2012 181 1208 447 87 173 1206
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REED ELSEVIER PLC

Group accounting poLicies

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared

under the historicalcost convention in accordance with applicable

accounting standards They report the consolidated statements of

income cash flow and financial position of Reed Elsevier PLC and

have been prepared in accordance with International Financial

Reporting Standards IFRS as adopted bythe European Union and

as issued bythe InternationalAccounting Standards Board LIASBI

The consolidated financialstatements are prepared on going

concern basis as explained on page 153

Unless otherwise indicated allamounts shown in the financial

statements are in millions of pounds

The basis of the merger of the businesses of Reed Elsevier PLC

and Reed Elsevier NV is set out on page 66

Determination of profit

The Reed Elsevier PLC share of the Reed Elsevier combined

results has been calculated on the basis of the 52.9% economic

interest of the Reed Elsevier PLC shareholders in the Reed

Elsevier combined businesses after taking account of results

arising in Reed Elsevier PLC and its subsidiaries Dividends paid

to Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed ElsevierNVshareholdersare

other than in specialcircumstances equalised at the gross level

inclusive of the UK tax credit received by certain Reed Elsevier

PLC shareholders

In Reed Elsevier PLCs consolidated financial statements an

adjustment is required to equalise the benefit of the tax credit

between the two sets of shareholders in accordance with the

equalisation agreement This equalisation adjustment arises

on dividends paid by Reed Elsevier PLC to its shareholders

and reduces the consolidated attributable earnings by 47.1%

of the total amount of the tax credit

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the

combined financialstatements are set out on pages 98to 103

Investments

Reed Elsevier PLCs 52.9% economic interest in the net assets

of the combined businesses has been shown on the statement

of financial position as investments in joint ventures net of the

assets and liabilities reported as part of Reed Elsevier PLC and

its subsidiaries Investments in joint ventures are accounted for

using the equity method

Foreign exchange translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of

exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction At each

statement of financial position date monetary assets and

liabilities thatare denominated inforeigncurrenciesare

retranslated at the rate prevailing on the statement of financial

position date Exchange differences arising are recorded in the

income statement The exchange gains or losses relating to the

retranslation of Reed Elsevier PLCs 52.9% economic interest

in the net assets of the combined businesses are classified as

equity and transferred to the translation reserve

When foreign operations are disposed of the related cumulative

translation differences are recognised within the income

statement in the period

Taxation

The tax expense represents the sum of the tax payable on the

current yeartaxable profits adjustments in respect of prioryear

taxable profits and the movements on deferred tax that are

recognised in the income statement Tax arising in joint ventures

is included in the share of results ofjointventures

The tax payable on current yeartaxable profits is calculated using

the applicable tax rate that has been enacted or substantively

enacted by the date of the statement of financial position

Deferred tax is the tax arising on differences between the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities in the financialstatements and

theircorresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable

profit and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability

method Deferred tax liabilitiesare generally recognised forall

taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are

recognised to the extent that based on current forecasts it is

probable that taxable profits will be available against which

deductible temporary differences can be utilised Deferred tax

is not recognised on temporarydifferences arising in respect

of goodwill that is not deductible for tax purposes

Deferred tax is calculated using tax rates that have been

substantively enacted at the date of the statement of financial

position Full provision is made for deferred tax which would

become payable on the distribution of retained profits from

foreign subsidiaries associates orjoint ventures

Movements in deferred tax are charged or credited in the income

statement except when they relate to items charged or credited

directly to equity in which case the deferred tax is also recognised

in equity Deferred tax credits in respect of share based

remuneration are recognised in equity to the extent that expected

tax deductions exceed the related expense

CriticaL judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Critical judgements in the preparation of the combined financial

statementsare set outon pages 101 to 103

Standards amendments and interpretations not yet effective

Recently issued standards amendmentsand interpretationsand

their impact on future accounting policies and reporting have been

considered on page 103 of the combined financial statements
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

fortheyearended 31 December2012

1\dministative expenses

Administrative expenses include877000 2011 799000 paid in the yearto Reed ElsevierGroup plc undera contractforthe services

of directors and administrative support Reed Elsevier PLC has no employees 2011 nil

Effect of lax credit equal.isation on distributed earnings

The tax credit equalisation adjustmentarises on ordinary dividends paid by Reed Elsevier PLC to its shareholders and reduces the

consolidated profit attributable to ordinary shareholders by 47.1% of the total amount of the tax credit asset out in the accounting

policies on page 158

uditors remuneration

Audit fees payabLe by Reed Elsevier PLC were E28000 2011 28000 Further information on the audit and non audit fees paid by the

Reed ELsevier combined businessesto Deloitte LLP and its associates is set out in note tothe combined financialstatements

ReI.ated prty transactions

All transactions with joint ventures which are related parties of Reed Elsevier PLC are reflected in these financialstatements

Key management personnelare also related parties and comprisethe executive directors of Reed Elsevier PLC Transactions

with key management personnelare set out in note 30 tothe combined financialstatements

inance come

2012 2011

Em

Finance income from joint ventures

Taxation

2012 2011

Em Em

UK corporation tax credit/expense

reconciliation of the notionaltax charge based on the applicable rate of tax to the actualtotaltax expense is set out below

2012 2011

Em Em

Profit beforetax 546 390

Tax at applicable rate 24.5% 2011 26.5% 134 103

Tax at applicable rate on share of results of joint ventures 137 107

Other

Tax credit/expense
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10 REED ELSEVIER PLC

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2012

Equity dividends

ORDINARYDIVIDENDSDECLAREDINTHEYEAR 2012 2011 2012 2011

pence pence Cm Em

Ordinary shares

Finalforpriorfinancialyear l5.9p 15.Op 191 180

lnterimforfinancialyear 6.Op 5.65p 73 68

TotaL 21.9p 20.65p 264 248

The directors of Reed Elsevier PLC have proposed final dividend of l7.Op 2011 15.9p The cost of funding the proposed final dividend

is expected to be 202m No liability has been recognised at the statement of financial position date

ORDINARYOIVIDENDS PAIDANDPROPOSED RELATINGTOTHE FINANCIALYEAR 2012 2011

pence pence

Ordinary shares

Interim paid 6.Op 5.65p

Final proposed 17.Op l5.9p

TotaL 23.Op 2l.55p

Earnings per ordinary share EPS
2012 2011

Weighted Weighted

average average

numberof numberof

shares Earnings EPS shares Earnings EPS

millions Cm pence millions Em pence

1200.6 552 46.0 1202.0 389 32.4Basic earnings per share

Based on 52.9% interest in total operations

of the combined businesses 1200.6 566 47.1 1202.0 402 33.4

DiLutedearningspershare 1215.1 552 45.4 1211.7 389 32.1

The diluted EPS figures are calculated aftertaking account of the effect of potentialadditionalordinarysharesarising from share

options and conditionalshares
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EarningE per ordinary share EPS continued

The weighted average numberof shares is after deducting shares held in treasury Movements in the number of shares in issue net

oftreasurysharesfortheyearended 31 December2012 are shown below

NUMBER OF UR RY SHARES Yearended 31 December

2012 2011

Sharesin Sharesin

issue net of issue net of

Shares in Treasury treasury treasury

issue shares shares shares

Imittionsj Imittionsi Imittions millions

Atstartofyear 1250.9 148.3 1202.6 1200.4

Issueofordinaryshares 6.7 6.7 1.6

Repurchase of ordinary shares 23.31 123.3

Netreleaseofsharesbytheemployeebenefittrust 0.6 0.6 0.6

Atendofyear 1257.6 71.0 1186.6 1202.6

Weighted average numberof equivaLent ordinaryshares during theyear 1200.6 1202.0

Adjusted figures

Adjusted profit and earnings per sharefigures are used by management as additional performance measures The adjusted figures

are derived as follows

Profit attributabLe to Basic earnings

ordinarysharehotders pershare

2012 2011 2012 2011

Cm Em pence pence

Reported figures 552 389 46.0 32.4

Effect of tax credit equalisation on distributed earnings 14 13 1.1 1.0

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders based on 52.9% economic

interestintheReedElseviercombinedbusinesses 566 402 47.1 33.4

Share of adjustments injointventures

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 178 188 14.8 5.6

Acquisition related costs 17 0.7 1.5

Disposals and other non operating items 55 4.6 0.7

Exceptionalprioryeartaxcredit 51 4.2

Deferredtaxadjustments 44 54 3.7 4.5

Adjusted figures 602 561 50.1 46.7
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OL REED ELSEVIER PLC

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

fortheyearended 31 December2012

10 Statement of cash flows

RECONCILIATION OFADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSESTO CASH USED BYOPERATIONS 2012 2011

Cm Em

Administrative expenses 12

Cash used by operations 21

RECONCILIATION OF NETFUNDING BALANCES DUE FROM JOINT VENTURES 2012 2011

Cm Em

Atstartofyear
632 274

Cash flow 317 358

Atendofyear 949 632

11 Investments in joint ventures

2012 2011

Cm Em

Share of resut.ts ofjoint ventures 561 404

Share of jointventures other Comprehensive expense
146 14

Share ofjoint ventures disposat/acquisition of non-controUJng interests 23

Share ofjointventures increase in share based remuneration reserve 16 14

Equatisationadjustments
18

Dividends received from joint ventures 694 600

Increase in netfunding balancesduefromjointventures 317 358

Netmovementintheyear 49 121

Atstartofyear 1158 1037

Atendofyear 1207 1158

During the yearthe company received dividends of 394m from Efsevier Reed Finance BVand 300m from Reed Elsevier Group plc

Summarised information showing totalamounts in respect of joint ventures and Reed Elsevier PLC shareholders 52.9% share is

set out below

Reed ELsevier PLC

Total joint ventures sharehoLders share

2012 2011 2012 2011

Cm Em Cm Em

Revenue 6116 6002 3235 3175

Net profitfortheyear 1074 767 561 404

Reed Elsevier PLCsshare ofjointventures net profitattributableto parentcompanyshareholdersfortheyearexcludesthe net profit

that arose directly in Reed Elsevier PLC of E5m 2011 E2m loss
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11 Investrrents in jointventures continued

Reed Etsevier PLC

Totatjointventures shareholders share

2012 2011 2012 2011

Cm Cm Cm

Totalassets 11014 11503 5826 6085

Total liabilities 18700 9306 5568 5559

Netassets 2314 2197 258 526

Attributable to

Jointventures 2280 2172 258 526

Non-controlling interests 34 25

2314 2197 258 526

Funding balances due from jointventures
949 632

Totat 1207 1158

The above amounts exclude assets and liabilities held directly by Reed Elsevier PLC and include the counterparty balances of amounts

owed to and by other Reed Elsevier businesses Included within Reed Elsevier PLCs share of assets and liabilities are cash and cash

equivalents of E339m 2011 E384m and borrowings of E2059m 2011 E2265m respectively

12 Sharec3pitat.and shares hed in treasury

U1HORiSED No.ofshares Cm

Ordinarysharesofl451/i6peach 1257597977 181

Unclassified shares of l451/116 each 787158643 113

TotaL 294

All of the ordinary shares rank equallywith respect to voting rights and rights to receive dividends There are no restrictions on the

rights to transfer shares

CAL LED UPSHARE APiTAL 1SSUEEJANIJ FULLY PAiD 2012 2011

No.of shares Cm No of shares Cm

At start of year 1250913565 180 1249286224 180

Issueofordinaryshares 6684412 1627341

Atendofyear 1257597977 181 1250913565 180

The issue of ordinary shares relatesto the exercise of share options Details of share option and conditionalshare schemes are set out

in note 6to the Reed Elsevier combined financialstatements

At31 December2012 shares held in treasury related to 13451468201114051025 Reed Elsevier PLC ordinaryshares held bythe

Reed Elsevier Group plc Employee Benef it Trust EBT and 574849152011 34196298 Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary shares held by

the parent company

The EBT purchases Reed Elsevier PLC shares which at the Trustees discretion can be used in respect of the exercise of share options

and to meetcommitments underconditionalshare awards At 31 December2012 Reed Elsevier PLC shares held bythe EBTwere E84m

2011 E88m
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

fortheyearended 31 December2012

13 Other reserves

2012 2011

Atstartofyear 162 154

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 552 389

Share of joint ventures

Actuarial tosses on defined benefit pension schemes 11741 60

Fairvalue movements on available for sale investments

Transferto net profit on disposalof available for sale investments

Fairvalue movements on cash flow hedges 37 12

Tax recognised directly in equity 46 22

Increase in share based remuneration reserve 16 14

Settlementofshareawards 41

Transfer to net profit from cash flow hedge reserve 11 20

Disposal/acquisition of non-controlling interests 23

Equalisation adjustments

Equitydividendspaid 264 248

Atendofyear 173 62
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1L Contingent tiabil.ities

There are contingent liabilities in respect of borrowings of joint ventures guaranteed by Reed Elsevier PLC as follows

165

.5

CD

CD

Guaranteed jointLy and severaLLywith Reed ELsevier NV

2012 2011

Em

3595 3920

Financial instruments disclosures in respect of the borrowings covered by the above guarantees are given in note l8to the Reed Elsevier

combined financialstatements

15 Principzit.jointventures

%hotding

Reed ELsevier Group pLc

Incorporated and operating in Great Britain 18385 ordinary shares 100%

1-3 Strand 18385 ordinary shares

London WC2N 5JR 100000 7.5% cumulative preference non voting shares 100%

Holding companyfor operating businesses involved in

science medical risk management legaland business

publishing and organisation of trade exhibitions Equivalent to 50% equity interest

ELsevier Reed Finance BV

Incorporated in the Netherlands 133 ordinary shares 100%

Radarweg29 205ordinaryEshares

1043 NX Amsterdam the Netherlands

Holding companyforfinancing businesses Equivalent to 39% equity interest

The shares in Reed Elsevier Group plc and Elsevier Reed Finance BVare owned by Reed Elsevier NV

16 Principsubsidiary

%holding

Reed HoLding BV

Incorporated in the Netherlands 191 ordinary shares 100%

Radarweg 29

1043 NX Amsterdam the Netherlands

At 31 December2012 Reed Holding BV owned 42408382011 4303179 shares of separate class in Reed Elsevier NV

The equalisation arrangements entered into between Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV at the time of the merger give

Reed Etsevier PLC 5.8% economic interest in Reed Elsevier NV

CD

CD
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Independent auditors report on the consolidated

financial statements to the members of Reed Elsevier PLC

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of

Reed ElsevierPLCfortheyearended3l December2012

the consolidated financial statements which comprise the

consolidated income statement the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income the consolidated statement of cash flows

the consolidated statement of financial position the consolidated

statement of changes in equity the group accounting policies

and the related notes ito 16 The financial reporting framework

that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and

International Financial Reporting Standards IFRSs as adopted

bythe European Union

This report is made solelyto the companys members as body

in accordancewith Chapter3 of Part 16 of the Companies.Act 2006

Ourauditwork has been undertaken sothatwe mightstatetothe

companys members those matters we are required to state to

them in an auditors report and for no other purpose To the fullest

extent permitted bylaw we do not accept or assume responsibility

to anyone other than the company and the companys members

asa bodyforourauditworkforthis report orforthe opinions

we have formed

Respective responsibiLities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors Responsibilities

Statement the directors are responsible for the preparation

of the consolidated financial statements and for being satisfied

that they give true and fair view

Our responsibility isto audit and express an opinion on the

consolidated financial statements in accordance with applicable

lawand InternationalStandards on Auditing UK and Ireland

Those standards require usto complywith theAuditing Practices

Boards Ethical Standards forAuditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give

reasonable assurance that the financialstatements are free

from materialmisstatementwhethercaused byfraud orerror

This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies

are appropriate to the groups circumstances and have been

consistently applied and adequately disclosed the

reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the

directors and the overall presentation of the financialstatements

In additionwe read all the financialand non-financialinformation

inthe annual report to identify materialinconsistencies with the

audited financialstatements If we become aware ofanyapparent

material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the

implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the consolidated financialstatements

give true and fairview of the state of the groups affairs as at

31 December2012 and of its profitfortheyearthen ended

have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRS as

adopted by the European Union and

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of

the CompaniesAct 2006 and Article of the lAS Regulation

Opinion on other matter prescribed bythe Companies Act 2006

In ouropinion the information given in the Directors Report for

thefinancialyearforwhich the financialstatements are prepared

is consistent with the consolidated financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Underthe CompaniesAct 2006we are required to reporttoyou if

in our opinion

certain disclosures of directors remuneration specified by law

are not made or

we have not received all the information and explanations we

require for our audit

Underthe Listing Rules we are required to review

the directors statement contained within the Structure and

Corporate Governance report in relation to going concern

the part of the Corporate Governance report relating to the

companys compliance with the nine provisions of the UK

Corporate Governance Code specified for our review and

certain elements of the report to shareholders by the Board

on directors remuneration

Other matter

We have reported separatelyon the parent companyfinancial

statements of Reed Elsevier PLC forthe year ended 31 December

2012 and on the information in the parts of the Directors

Remuneration Report presented in the Reed ElsevierAnnual

Reports and FinancialStatements 20l2thatare described as

having been audited

Douglas King Seniorstatutory auditor

Forand on behalf of

DeLoitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and StatutoryAuditor

London

United Kingdom

27 February 2013
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Parent company balance sheet

AIl 31 DECEMF3EIR 2012 2011

Note Cm Urn

Fixed assets

Investments in subsidiary undertakings 309 309

Investments in joint ventures 2310 2308

2619 2617

Current assets

Debtors amounts due from joint ventures 949 632

949 632

Creditors amounts faLLing duewithin one year

Taxation

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 77 77

78 86

Net current assets 871 546

Netassets 3490 3163

CapitaLand reserves

Catted up share capitat 181 180

Share premium account 1208 1176

Shares held in treasury 367 224

Capitat redemption reserve

Otherreserves 150 148

Profit and toss reserve 2314 1879

Sharehotdersfunds 3490 3163

The parentcompanyfinancialstatementswere approved bythe Board of directors 27 February 2013

AJ Habgood Di PaLmer

Chairman Chief Financial Officer

Parent company reconciliation of shareholders funds

Share Shares Capital Profit

Share premium held in redemption Other and loss

capitaL account treasury reserve reserves reserve TotaL

Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm

AtlJanuary2Oll 180 1168 224 134 1.529 2791

Profitattributabtetoordinaryshareholders 598 598

Equitydividendspaid 248 248

Issueofordinarysharesnetofexpenses

Equity instruments granted to emptoyees of

combined businesses 14 14

AtlJanuary2Ol2 180 1176 224 148 1879 3163

Profitattributabtetoordinaryshareholders 699 699

Equitydividendspaid 264 264

Repurchaseofordinaryshares 143 143

Issueofordinarysharesnetofexpenses 32 33

Equity instruments granted to emptoyees of

combined businesses

At31 December2012 181 1208 367 150 2314 3490
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REED ELSEVIER PLC

Parent company accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The parent companyfinancialstatements have been prepared

underthe historicalcost convention in accordancewith UK

Generally Accepted Accounting Practice GAAP Unless

otherwise indicated allamounts in the financialstatements are

in millions of pounds

The parent companyfinancial statements are prepared on

going concern basis as explained on page 153

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the

company has not presented its own profit and toss account

The Reed Elsevier PLC accounting policies under UK GAAP

are set out below

Investments

Fixed asset investments in the Reed Elsevier combined

businesses are stated at cost less provision if appropriate for

any impairment in value The fairvalue of the award of share

options and conditionalshares over Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary

shares to employees of the Reed Elsevier combined businesses

are treated as capital contribution

Principal jointventures and subsidiaries are set out in notes 15 and

16 of the Reed Elsevier PLC consolidated financialstatements

Shares heLd in treasury

The consideration paid including directly attributable costs for

shares repurchased is recognised as shares held in treasuryand

presented as deduction from total equity Details of share capital

and shares held intreasuryare set out in note 12 of the Reed

Elsevier PLC consolidated financial statements and note 28 of

the Reed Elseviercombinedfinancialstatements

Foreign exchange translation

Transactions entered into in foreign currencies are recorded at

the exchange rates applicable at the time of the transaction

Taxation

Deferred taxation is provided in fullfortiming differences using

the liability method Deferred tax assets are only recognised to

the extentthattheyare considered recoverable inthe shortterm

Deferred taxation balances are not discounted

Notes to the parent company financial statements

Investments

Subsidiary Joint

undertaking ventures

Cm Cm

TotaL

Cm

AtlJanuary2Oll
309 2304 2613

Equityinstrumentsgrantedto Reed Elsevieremptoyees

AtlJanuary2Ol2 309 2308 2617

Equity instruments granted to Reed Elsevier employees

At31 December2012 309 2310 2619
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Independent auditor report on the parent company
financial statements to the members of Reed Etsevier PLC

We have audited the parent companyfinancialstatements of

Reed Elsevier PLC fortheyearended 31 December2012 the

companyfinancialstatements which comprise the parent

company balance sheet the parent company reconciliation of

shareholdersfundsthe parentcompanyaccounting policies and

the related note on page 168 The financial reporting framework

that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and

United Kingdom Accounting Standards United Kingdom Generally

Accepted Accounting Practice

This report is made solely to the companys members asa body

in accordancewith Chapter3 of Part 16 of the CompaniesAct 2006

Our auditwork has been undertaken sothatwe might state to the

companys members those matters we are required to state to

them in an auditors report and for no other purpose To the fullest

extentpermitted bylawwedonotacceptorassumeresponsibility

to anyone otherthan the companyand the companys members

asa body forourauditworkforthis report orforthe opinions

we have formed

Respective responsibiLities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully
in the Directors Responsibilities

Statement the directors are responsible for the preparation of

the parent company financialstatements and for being satisfied

thattheygive true and fairview Ourresponsibility is to audit

and express an opinion on the parent companyfinancial

statements in accordancewith applicable lawand International

Standards on Auditing UK and Ireland Those standards require

usto comply with the Auditing Practices Boards Ethical

Standards forAuditors

Scope of the audit of the financiaL statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence aboutthe amounts and

disclosures in the financialstatements sufficientto give

reasonable assurancethatthe financialstatements are free

from material misstatement whether caused by fraud or error

This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies

are appropriate to the parent companys circumstances and

have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed the

reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made bythe

directors and the overall presentation of the financialstatements

In additionwe read all the financialand non-financialinformation

in the annual report to identify materialinconsistencieswith the

audited financial statements If we become aware of anyapparent

material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the

implications for our report

Opinion on financiaL statements

In our opinion the parent companyfinancialstatements

give atrue and fairviewof the state of the parentcompanys

affairs as at 31 December2012 and of its profitfortheyear

then ended

have been properly prepared in accordance with United

Kingdom GenerallyAccepted Accounting Practice and

have been prepared in accordancewith the requirements

of the CompaniesAct 2006

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In ouropinion

the part of the Directors Remuneration Report to be audited

has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies

Act 2006 and

the information given in the Directors Report forthe financial

yearforwhich the financialstatements are prepared is

consistentwith the parent companyfinancialstatements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters

where the Companies Act 2006 requires usto reportto you if

in ouropinion

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent

company or returns adequatefor ouraudit have not been

received from branches notvisited by us or

the parent companyfinancialstatements and the part of the

Directors Remuneration Reportto be audited are not in

agreement with the accounting records and returns or

certain disclosures of directors remuneration specified by law

are not made or

we have not received allthe information and explanationswe

require forouraudit

Other matter

We have reported separately on the consolidated financial

statements of Reed Elsevier PLC for the year ended 31 December

2012

Douglas King Seniorstatutoryauditor

Forand on behalf of

DeLoitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and StatutoryAuditor

London

United Kingdom

27 February20l3

CD

CD
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5yearsummary

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Note Cm Cm Cm Em Em

Combined financiaL information

Revenuecontinuingoperations 6116 6002 6055 6071 5334

Reported operating profit continuing operations 1358 1205 1090 787 901

Adjusted operating profit continuing operations 1713 1626 1555 1570 1379

Reported profit attributable to shareholders total operations 1069 760 642 391 476

Adjusted profit attributable to shareholders total operations 1138 1060 983 982 919

Reed ELsevier PLC consoLidated financiaL information

Reported profit attributable to shareholders 552 389 327 195 241

Adjusted profitattributable to shareholders 602 561 520 519 486

Reportedearningsperordinarysharepence 46.Op 324p 27.3p ll.2p 22.lp

Adjustedearningsperordinarysharepence 5O.lp 46.7p 43.4p 4S.9p 44.6P

Dividendperordinarysharepence 23.Op 2l.55p 2O.4p 2O.4p 2O.3p

Adjusted figures are presented as additional performance measures used by management and are stated before amortisation

and impairment of acquired intangible assets and goodwill exceptional restructuring 12008 -201 and acquisition related costs

exceptional prioryeartax credits in 2012 only and in respect of attributable profit ret lecta tax rate that excludes the effect of

movements in deferred taxation assets and liabilities that are not expected to crystallise in the near term and include the benefit of

tax amortisation where available on acquired goodwilland intangible assets Acquisition related finance costs and profitand toss

from disposalgains and losses and other non operating items are also excluded from the adjusted figures

Revenue reported operating profit and adjusted operating profit are presented for continuing operations Net profit from

discontinued operations is included in profit attributable to shareholders

Reported profit attributable to shareholders and reported earnings per share are based on the 52.9% share of the Reed Elsevier

combined profit attributable to shareholders adjusted to equalise the benefit of the UK dividend tax credit with Reed Elsevier NV

shareholders asa reduction in reported profits

141 Adjusted profit attributable to shareholders and adjusted earnings per share are based on the 52.9% share of the Reed Elsevier

combined profitattributable to Reed Elsevier PLC shareholders

151 Dividend perordinary share is based on the interim dividend and proposed finaldividend forthe relevant year and does not include

the 82.Op per share special distribution in 2008
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Parent company financiaL statements

In accordance with article 23621 of the Dutch CjvilCode the

individual parent companyfinancial statements of Reed Elsevier

NV presented on pages 189 to 193 are prepared under UK

generally accepted accounting practice UK GAAP The profit

attributable to the shareholders of Reed Elsevier NVwas 758m

2011 17m and net assets as at3l December 2012 principally

representing the investments in Reed Elsevier Group plc and

Elsevier Reed Finance BVunderthe historicalcost method and

loans to theirsubsidiarieswere 4948m 2011 4630m Free

reserves as at 31 December20l2were 4701m 2011 4385m
comprising reserves and paid-in surplus less shares held in

treasury

Dividends

The Combined Board is recommending an equalised final dividend

of 0337 per ordinary share up 3% compared with the prioryear

This gives total ordinary dividends forthe year of 0467 2011

0436 up 7% on 2011 The final dividend will be paid on 23 May

2013

Dividend cover based on adjusted earnings per share and thetotal

interim and proposed finaldividendsfortheyear is 2.0 times The

Boards of the company and Reed Elsevier PLC have adopted

dividend policies in recent years in respect of their equalised

dividends that subject to currency considerations grow dividends

broadly in line with adjusted earnings per share whilst maintaining

dividend cover being the number of times the annual dividend is

covered by the adjusted earnings per share of at least two times

over the longer term

The total dividend paid on the ordinaryshares in the financialyear

was 319m 2011 289m

Share capitaL

During 2012 1906470 ordinary shares in the company were

issued as follows

underconvertibledebenturesatpricesbetween9.O5and

11.32

under executive share option schemes at prices between 8.87

and11.37

Information regarding shares outstanding at3l December2012 is

shown in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements

During the year Reed Elsevier NV repurchased 13283706 shares

including 62341 shares equivalent to 623.410 ordinary shares

from Reed Holding BV

At31 December2012 the totalshares held in treasurywere

44226598 Of these 6990.101 ordinaryshareswere held bythe

Reed Elsevier Group plc Employee Benefit Trust and 36613087

ordinaryshares and 62341 shares equivalent to 623410

ordinarysharesi were held by Reed Elsevier NV

As at 27 February 2013 based on the public database of and on

notification received from the NetherlandsAuthorityforthe

Financial Markets the company is aware of interests in the capital

and voting rights of the issued share capitalof the company of at

least 5% by Reed Elsevier PLC

Authorityto purchase shares

At the 2012 AGM shareholders passed resolution delegating the

authority to the Executive Board to acquire ordinary shares in the

Companyfora period of 18 monthsfromthe date of the annual

general meeting of shareholders and therefore upto and including

23 October2013 forthe maximum amount of 10% of the issued

capital During the year 12660296 ordinaryshareswere

purchased underthis delegation of authority Asat 31 December

2012 there were 43603188 ordinary shares held in treasury

representing 6% of the issued ordinary shares further4698519

ordinary shares were purchased between January 2013 and the

date of this report

resolution to renew the delegation of the authority to the Executive

Board will be submitted to the shareholders at the 2013 AGM

Corporate Governance

Reed Elsevier NVand Reed Elsevier PLC are subject to various

corporate governance principles and best practice codes in

particular the Dutch Corporate Governance Code the Dutch Code

and the UK Corporate Governance Code issued in May 2010the

UK Code Reed Elsevier NV may not applyfullytheverbatim

language of these codes but does fullyapplythe principles and

best practice provisions other than in respect of the Dutch Code

the following for reasons explained below

Best practice provision 11.2.5 Executive directors are required

to build up minimum shareholding and Reed Elsevier uses

long term incentive arrangements in the form of awards of

shares which mayvest afterthree years The intent of this

shareholding policy isto align the interests of senior executives

and shareholders This intent is in compliance with the Dutch

Code Shares received on joining Reed Elsevier in

compensation for benefits forfeited under incentive schemes

from previous employerare not to be considered as part of

the minimum shareholding in this context

Best practice provision 11.2.8 Reed Elsevier has

arrangements that are commensurate with localand legal

requirementsto ensure competitive employment offerto its

board members Executive directors have employment

agreements under English lawthat provide for notice periods

not exceeding one year There are currently no executive

directorswith employmentagreements under Dutch law In

the event of dismissal notice is given in accordance with the

agreed notice period The notice period applicable to the

service contracts to both members of the Executive Board is 12

months The payment during the notice period may be

mitigated if the directorfinds otheremploymentwithin this

period The application of this arrangement may fall within the

best practice provision that remuneration in the event of

dismissal may not exceed the fixed component of one years

salary There are no other severance arrangements in place

forthe executive directors and none of the employment

agreements contain severance payarrangements Although

the principle that severance pay should not exceed the fixed

componentofoneyears salaryis supported.there may be

exceptional circumstances wherethis maximum would be

manifestly unreasonable that could justify additional

compensation on termination for loss of variable remuneration

components Fulldisclosure on remuneration in event of

dismissal is provided in the Directors Remuneration Report

CD

CD
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Best practice provisions 11.2.13 and 11.2.14 In view of their

detailed specificity and complexity and because of the

confidential or potentially commercially sensitive nature of the

information concerned individual performance targets and

achievements relevant for variable executive remuneration

willonlybe disclosed in generalterms

Best practice provision 11.3.4 and 111.6.3 The disclosure of

transactions where directors have conflict of interest as

required by these provisions shall be qualified to the extent

required under applicable rules and laws pertaining to the

disclosure of price sensitive information confidentiality and

justified aspects of competition

PrincipLe 111.7 The remuneration of Supervisory Board

members is determined bythe Combined Board inthe

context of the board harmonisation with Reed Elsevier PLC and

Reed Elsevier Group plc having regard for the maximum per

annum approved bythe general meeting of shareholders

Best practice provision IV.1.1 Appointments suspensions and

removal procedures for members of the Executive Board and

the Supervisory Board are set out in the Corporate Governance

Statement 2012 In orderto safeguard the agreed board

harmonisation with the Board of Reed Elsevier PLC the

Articles of Association of Reed Elsevier NV provide that

resolution of the GeneralShareholders Meeting to appoint

member of the Executive or Supervisory Board otherthan in

accordance with the proposalof the Combined Board shall

require majority of at least two thirds of the votes cast if less

than one half of the companys issued capital is represented

at the meeting Given the still generally low attendance rate

at shareholders meetings in the Netherlands the Boards

believe that this qualified majority requirement is appropriate

forthis purpose

Best practice provision IV.3.1 It is considered impractical

and unnecessary to provideaccessforshareholdersto all

meetings with analysts and all presentations to investors in

realtime Price sensitive and other information relevant to

shareholders is disclosed as required oras appropriate and

made available on the website Presentations made following

the announcement of the interim and fullyear results are

simultaneouslywebcast Investor seminars are also webcast

For further information on the application of the Dutch Code

see the Corporate Governance Statement of Reed Elsevier NV

published on the Reed Elsevierwebsite www.reedelsevier.com

The Boards

Reed Elsevier NV has two-tier board system comprising an

Executive Board and Supervisory Board The members of the

Executive Board and the members of the Supervisory Board

togetherform the Combined Board It is established board

practice at Reed Elsevier NV that the members of both boards

meet together as the Combined Board The boards of Reed

Elsevier PLC and Reed Etsevier Group plc are one-tier boards

In view of the legislation to formalise the one-tier board model in

the Netherlands Civil Code that was enacted with effect from

January 2013 the Combined Board of Reed Elsevier NV has

resolved to take the necessary steps to establish one-tier board

governance structure at the Company Forthis purpose the

articles of association of the Companywill haveto be amended and

proposalforthis one-tier governance structure will be put to the

annualgeneralshareholders meeting on 24 April2013

Significant agreements change of controL

The Governing Agreement between Reed Elsevier NV and Reed

Elsevier PLC states that upon change of control of Reed Elsevier

NVforthese purposes the acquisition bya third partyof 50% or

more of the issued share capital having voting rights should there

not bea comparable offerfrom the offerorfor Reed Elsevier PLC
Reed Elsevier PLC may serve notice upon Reed Elsevier NV

varying certain provisions of the Governing Agreement

including the governance and the standstill provisions

There are numberof borrowing agreements including

credit facilities that in the event of change of control of both

Reed Elsevier NV and Reed Elsevier PLC and in some cases

consequential credit rating downgrade to sub-investment

grade may at the option of the lenders require repayment

and/or cancellation as appropriate

Directors

The following individuals served as members of the Supervisory

and Executive Boards during the year

At the AnnualGeneral Meeting held in April 2012 David Brennan

was appointed as member of the Supervisory Board with effect

from November2012 The appointment of David Brennanwas

postponed indefinitely at his request and by agreement with

Reed Elsevier in October2012

Erik Engstrom and Duncan Palmerwillstand for re-appointment

as members of the Executive Board at the AnnualGenerat Meeting

in April2013 All members of the Supervisory Board otherthan

Mark Elliott and Sir David Reid who will at that time have

served on the Supervisory Board for ten years will stand for

re-appointment as members of the Supervisory Board at the

Annual General Meeting in April 2013.Asearch is being conducted

in conjunction with externalconsultantsforanothersuitable

candidate to join the Supervisory Board This has resulted in the

Nominations Committee recommending to the Combined Board

the appointment of Dr Wolf hart Hauser as member of the

Supervisory Board of Reed Elsevier NV and as non-executive

director of Reed Elsevier PLC with effect from the closure of the

Annual General Meeting 2013 Thiswill be proposed at theAnnual

General Meetings in April 2013

The Supervisory Board

Habgood Chairman

Elliott

AHennah

LHook

van Lier Lels

Polet

Sir David Reid

senior independent director

Sanford

appointed December 2012

Bvan der Veer

The Executive Board

Engstrom

Chief Executive Officer

Armour

Chief Financial Officer until

15 November2012 retired as

member of the Executive

Board 31 December2012

Palmer

member of the Executive

Boardfrom6 November2012

Chief FinancialOfficerfrom

15 November2012
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Biographical details of the directors at the date of this report are

given on pages 62 and 63 Details of the remuneration of the

members of the Executive Board and of the Supervisory Board

and their interests in the share capitalof the companyare provided

in the Directors Remuneration Report on pages 74to 90

FinanciaL statements and accounting records

The financialstatements provide true and fairview of the state of

affairs of the company and the group as of 31 December2012 and

of the profit or loss in 2012 In preparing the financialstatements

the Supervisory Board and the Executive Board ensure that

suitable accounting policies consistently applied and supported

by reasonable judgements and estimates have been used and

applicable accounting standards have been followed The Boards

are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which

disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial

position of the companyand enable them to ensure thatthe

financial statements complywith the law The Boards have

general responsibility for taking reasonable steps to safeguard

the assets of the companyandto prevent and detect fraud and

other irregularities

InternaL controL

As required under sections 11.1.4 and 11.1.5 of the Dutch Code

the Audit Committee and the Combined Board have reviewed

the effectiveness of the systems of internal controland risk

management during the lastfinancialyear The objective of these

systems isto manage ratherthan eliminate the risk of failure to

achieve business objectives Accordingly they can only provide

reasonable but not absolute assurance against material

misstatement or loss The outcome of this review has been

discussed with the externalauditors The Combined Board

confirmed that as regards financial reporting the risk

management and controlsystems provide reasonable assurance

against material inaccuracies orloss and have functioned

properly during the financialyear

Directors responsibiLity statement

The Combined Board confirms to the best of its knowledge that

the consolidated financialstatements prepared in accordance

with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by

the InternationalAccounting Standards Board and as adopted

bythe European Union give atrue andfairviewofthefinancial

position and profit or loss of the group and

the Report of the Supervisory Board and the Executive Board

includes fair review of the development and performance of

the business during the financialyear and the position of the

group as at3l December20l2togetherwith description of

the principal risks and uncertainties that it faces

Neitherthe company northe directors accept any liabilityto any

person in relation to the Annual Report except to the extent that

such liabilityarises under Dutch law

Going concern

The Combined Board having made appropriate enquiries

considers that adequate resources exist for the combined

businessesto continue in operational existenceforthe

foreseeable future and that therefore it is appropriate to

adopt the going concern basis in preparing the 2012 financial

statements In reaching this conclusion the Combined Board has

had due regard to the combined businesses financial position as

at3l December2012 the strong free cash flow of the combined

businesses Reed Elseviers ability to access capital markets and

the principal risks facing Reed Elsevier

commentary on the Reed Elsevier combined businesses

cash flows financial position and liquidityfortheyearended

31 December2012 is set out in the Chief Financial Officers Report

on pages SOto 57 This shows that aftertaking account of available

cash resources and committed bank facilitiesthat back up short

term borrowings none of Reed Elseviers borrowingsfalldue

within the next two years Reed Elseviers policies on liquidity

capital management and management of risks relating to interest

rate foreign exchange and credit exposures are set out on pages

56 and 57 Further information on liquidity of the combined

businesses can be found in note 18 of the combined financial

statements The principal risksfacing Reed Elsevierare set

out on pages 58to 60

Auditors

Resolutions forthe re-appointment of Deloitte Accountants BV

as auditors of the company and authorising the Supervisory Board

to determine their remuneration will be submitted to the

forthcoming AnnualGeneral Meeting on 24 April 2013

Signed by

Registered office

Radarweg 29

1043 NXThe Netherlands

Chamber of Commerce Amsterdam

Registerfile No 33155037

27 February 2013

The Executive Board

Engstrom

Chief Executive Officer

Palmer

Chief Financial Officer

DiscLosure of information to auditors

As part of the process of approving the companys 2012 financial

statements the Supervisory and the Executive Boards and their

members have taken steps to ensurethat all relevant information

was provided to the companys auditors and sofaras the Boards

are aware there is no relevant audit information of which the

companys auditors are unaware
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The Supervisory Board

Habgood Chairman

Elliott

Hennah

LHook

van Lier Lels

Polet

Sir David Reid

Sanford

Bvan der Veer



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

/0 REED ELSEVIERNV

Consolidated income statement

FORTHE YEAR ENDED31 DECEMBER 2012 2011

Note Cm Cm

Administrative expenses

Share of results of joint ventures 11 654 420

Operating profit 652 418

Finance income 20

Profit before tax 660 438

Taxation

Profit attributable to shareholders 658 437

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

FORTHEYEARENDED31 DECEMBER 2012 2011

Cm Cm

Profit attributable to sharehoLders 658 437

Share of joint ventures other comprehensive expense/incomefortheyear 137 20

Total comprehensive income forthe year 521 457

Earnings per ordinary share

FORTHEYEARENDED31 DECEMBER 2012 2011

Note

Basicearningspershare 0.90 0.59

Diluted earnings pershare 0.89 0.59

Consolidated statement of cash flows

FORTHEYEARENDED31 DECEMBER 2012 2011

Note Cm Cm

Cash fLows from operating activities

Cash used by operations 10

Interest received 20

Tax paid

Net cash used in/from operating activities 12

Cash flows from investing activities

Dividends received from joint ventures 11 754

Net cash from investing activities 754

Cash fLows from financing activities

Equity dividends paid 319 289

Repurchaseofshares 141
Proceedson issue of ordinaryshares 18

Increase/decrease in netfunding balancesduefromjointventures 10 313 275

Net cash used in financing activities 755 12

Movement in cash and cash equivalents 21
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Consolidated statement of financial position

2012 2011

Note Cm Cm

Non-current assets

Investments in joint ventures 11 1455 1.359

Current assets

Amountsduefromjointventures

Cash and cash equivalents

TotaL assets 1460 1364

CapitaL and reserves

Sharecapitalissued
13 54 54

Paid-insurplus 2189 2171

Shares held in treasury in joint ventures 571 432

Translation reserve 42
Other reserves 14 228 496

TotaLequity 1402 1303

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Share Paid-in Shareshetd Translation Other Total

capitaL surpLus intreasury reserves reserves equity

Note Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm

54 2169 51 1137

54 403 457

289 289

Balance at January2011

Total comprehensive income for the year

Equity dividends paid

Issue of ordinaryshares net of expenses

Share ofjointventures increase in share based

remuneration reserve

Share of joint ventures settlement of share awards by

the employee benefit trust

Share ofjointventures acquisition of non-controlling

interests

Equalisation adjustments

Exchangetranslationdifferences

BalanceatlJanuary20l2 54 2171 432 496 1303

Totalcomprehensiveincomefortheyear 51 572 521

Equitydividendspaid 319 3191

Issueofordinarysharesnetofexpenses 18 18

Repurchaseof shares 141 141

Share ofjointventures increase in share based

remuneration reserve 19 19

Share ofjointventures settlement of share awards by

the employee benefit trust

Share ofjointventures disposalof non-controlling

interests

Equalisation adjustments

Exchangetranslationdifferences

Batanceat3l December2012 54 2189 571 421 228 1402

31 Dl LEMDLI

Current Liabilities

Payables 12 10

Taxation 51 51

TotaL LiabiLities 58 61

Netassets 1402 1303

in

Co

Co

16 16

25 25
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Group accounting policies

These consolidated financial statements which have been

prepared underthe historic cost convention report the

consolidated statements of income cash flow and financial

position of Reed Elsevier NV Unless otherwise indicated all

amounts shown in the financialstatements are in millions

of euros

As required bya regulation adopted bythe European Parliament

the consolidated financial statements have been prepared in

accordancewith International Financial Reporting Standards

IFRS asadopted bythe European Union and as issued bythe

International Accounting Standards Board tIASB

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on going

concern basis as explained on page 175

The Reed Elsevier combined financial statements presented in

pounds sterling on pages 93to 132 form an integral part of the

notes to Reed Elsevier NVs statutory financial statements

The primary combined financial statements and selected notes

are presented in euros on pages 133 to 146

As consequence of the merger of the companys businesses

with those of Reed Elsevier PLC described on page 66 the

shareholders of Reed Elsevier NV and Reed Elsevier PLC can

be regarded as having the interests ofa single economic group

enjoying substantially equivalent ordinarydividend and capital

rights in the earnings and netassets of the Reed Elsevier

combined businesses

The Reed Elsevier NV consolidated financial statements are

presented incorporating Reed Elsevier NVs investments in the

Reed Elsevier combined businesses accounted for using the

equity method as adjusted for the effects of the equalisation

arrangement between Reed Elsevier NV and Reed Elsevier PLC

The arrangement lays down the distribution of dividends and net

assets in such way that Reed Elsevier NVs share in the profit

and net assets of the Reed Elsevier combined businesses equals

50% with all settlements accruing to shareholders from the

equalisationarrangementstakendirectlyto reserves

Because the dividend paid to shareholders by Reed Elsevier NV

is equivalent to the Reed Elsevier PLC dividend plus otherthan

in specialcircumstances the Uktaxcredit received bycertain

Reed Elsevier PLC shareholders Reed Elsevier NV normally

distributes higher proportion of the combined profit attributable

than Reed Elsevier PLC Reed Elsevier PLCs share in this

difference in dividend distributions is settled with Reed Elsevier

NV and is credited directly to consolidated reserves under

equalisation Reed Elsevier NV can pay nominal dividend on its

shares held by subsidiary of Reed Elsevier PLC that is lower

than the dividend on the ordinary shares Equally Reed Elsevier

NV has the possibility to receive dividends directly from Dutch

affiliates Reed Elsevier PLC is compensated by direct dividend

payments by Reed Elsevier Group plc The settlements flowing

from these arrangements are also taken directly to consolidated

reserves under equalisation

Combined financial statements

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the

combined financialstatements are set out on pages 98to 103

These include policies in relation to intangible assets Such assets

are amortised over their estimated useful economic lives which

due to their longevity may be for periods in excess of five years

Basis of valuation of assets and LiabiLities

Reed Elsevier NVs 50% economic interest in the net assets of

the combined businesses has been shown on the consolidated

statement of financial position as investments in joint ventures

net of the assets and liabilities reported as part of Reed Elsevier

NV Jointventures are accounted for using the equity method

Cash and cash equivalents are stated atfairvalue Otherassets

and liabilities are stated at historical cost less provision

if appropriate forany impairment in value

Foreign exchange translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate

of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction At each

statement of financial position date monetary assets and

liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are

retranslated at the rate prevailing on the statement of financial

position date Exchange differences arising are recorded in

the income statement The gains or losses relating to the

retranslation of Reed Elsevier NVs 50% interest in the net

assets of the combined businesses are classified as equity

and transferred to the translation reserve

When foreign operations are disposed of the related cumulative

translation differences are recognised within the income

statement in the period

Taxation

The tax expense represents the sum of the tax payable on the

current year taxable profits adjustments in respect of prioryear

taxable profits and the movements on deferred tax that are

recognised in the income statement Tax arising in joint ventures

is included in the share of results ofjointventures

The tax payable on currentyeartaxable profits is calculated using

the applicable tax rate that has been enacted or substantively

enacted by the date of statement of financial position

Deferred tax is the tax arising on differences between the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities in the financialstatements and

their corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable

profit and is accounted for using the balance sheet
liability

method Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all

taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are

recognised to the extent that based on current forecasts it is

probablethattaxable profitswillbeavailableagainstwhich

deductible temporary differences can be utilised Deferred tax is

not recognised on temporary differences in respect of goodwill

that is not deductibLe for tax purposes
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Deferred tax is calculated using tax rates that have been

substantively enacted at the date of the statement of financial

position Fullprovisionismadefordeferredtaxwhichwould

become payable on the distribution of retained profits from foreign

subsidiaries associates orjoint ventures

Movements in deferred tax are charged and credited in the

income statement except when they relate to items charged or

credited directly to equity in which case the deferred tax is also

recognised in equity Deferred tax credits in respect of share

based remuneration are recognised in equityto the extentthat

expected tax deductions exceed the related expense

CriticaL judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Critical judgements in the preparation of the combined financial

statements are set out on pages 101 to 103

Standards amendments and interpretations not yet effective

Recently issued standards amendments and interpretations and

their impact on future accounting policies and reporting have been

considered on page 103 of the combined financialstatements
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

fortheyearended 31 December2012

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financialstatements of Reed Elsevier NVreftect the 5O% economic interest that its shareholders have underthe

equalisation arrangements in the Reed Elseviercombined businesses accounted for on an equity basis

The Reed Elsevier combined financialstatements are presented in pounds sterling which isthe functional currency of Reed Elsevier

Group plc UK registered company which owns the publishing and information businesses of Reed Elsevier The following analysis

presents how the consolidated financial statements of Reed Elsevier NV presented in euros are derived from the Reed Elsevier

combined financialstatements

2011

Reed Elsevier combined businesses net profit attributableto parent company shareholders in

pounds sterling 1069m E760m

Reed Etsevier combined businesses net prof it attributable to parent company shareholders in

pounds sterling translated into euros at average exchange rates 31 5m 874m
Reed Elseviercombined businesses net profitattributableto parentcompanyshareholders in euros 1315m 874m
Reed Elsevier NVs 50% share of combined net profit attributable to shareholders 658m 437m

REED ELSEVIER NV CONSOLIDATED TOTAL EQUITY 2012 2011

Reed Elsevier combined shareholders equity in pounds sterling 2280m E21 72m

Reed Elsevier combined shareholders equity in pounds sterling translated into euros atyearend

exchange rates 2804m 2606m

Reed Elsevier NVs 50% share of combined equity C1402m 1303m

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses include the gross remuneration for presentand former directors of Reed Elsevier NV in respect of services

rendered to Reed Elsevier NVand the combined businesses Fees for members of the Supervisory Board of Reed Elsevier NVof0.3m

2011 0.3m are included in remuneration Insofar as remuneration is related to services rendered to Reed Elsevier Group plc group

and Elsevier Reed Finance BVgroup it is borne by these groups Reed Elsevier NV has no employees 2011 nil

Auditors remuneration

Audit fees payable by Reed Elsevier NVwere 142000 2011 50000 Furtherinformation on the auditand non auditfees paid bythe

Reed Elsevier combined businessesto Deloitte Accountants By and its associates is set out in note to the combined financial

statements

REED ELSEVIER NVCONSOLIOATED PROFITATTRIBUTABLE TOSHAREHOLDERS 2012
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ReLatoii irty trarisaction

Alltransactionswith joint ventures which are related parties of Reed Elsevier NV are reflected in these financialstatements

Key management personnelare also related parties and comprise the members of the Executive Board of Reed Elsevier NV

Transactionswith key management personnel are set out in note 30 to the combined financial statements

Finance ncome

181

CD

CD

2012 2011

Cm

20Finance income from joint ventures

Taxation

reconciliation of the notionaltax charge based on the applicable rate of taxto the actualtotaltax expense is set out below

2012

Cm

660Profit before tax

Tax at applicable rate 25% 25% 165

Tax at applicable rate on share of results ofjointventures 11631

Other 41

Taxexpense

Equitydividends

RI NARY DIVIDEN DV DECLARED IN HE YEAR 2012 2011 2012 2011

Cm

Ordinaryshares

Finalforpriorfinancialyear 0.326 0303 228 212

Interimforfinancialyear 0.130 0110 91 77

TotaL 01.56 0413 319 289

Rshares

The directors of Reed Elsevier NV have proposed final dividend of 0337 2011 0326 The cost of funding the proposed final

dividend is expected to be 232m No
liability

has been recognised at the statement of financial position date

DRI iNARYDiVDENDSPAiDANDPROPOSEDRELATiNGTOTHEFINANCiALYFAR 2012 2011

Ordinary shares

Interim paid 0.130 0.1 10

Final proposed 0.337 0326

TotaL 0.467 0436

Rshares

2011

438

110

105
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REEDELSEVIERNV

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the yearended 31 December2012

Earnings per ordinary share EPS
2012 2011

Weighted Weighted

average average

numberof numberof

shares Earnings EPS shares Earnings EPS

Imittionsi Cm millions

Basicearningspershare 734.0 658 0.90 735.3 437 0.59

Ditutedearningspershare 742.1 658 0.89 740.8 437 0.59

The diluted EPS figuresare calculated aftertaking account of the effect of potentiatadditionalordinaryshares arising from share

options and conditionaishares

Theweighted average numberof shares reflectsthe equivatentordinaryshares amounttaking into accountthe shares and is after

deducting shares held in treasury Movements in the number of ordinary shares orequivalentsfortheyearended 31 December2012

are shown below

NUMBER OFORDINARYSHARES OR EQUIVALENTS Yearended3l December

2012 2011

Ordinary Ordinary

share share

equivalents equivalents

Ordinary netof netof

sharesin Rsharesin Treasury treasury treasury

issue issue shares shares shares

ImiLtions ImiLLions millionsi ImiLLionsi millions

Atstartofyear
724.1 43.0 31.3 735.8 735.2

Issueofordinaryshares 1.9 1.9 0.2

RepurchaseofordinaryandRshares 13.3 13.3

Net release of shares by the employee benefit trust 0.4 0.4 0.4

Atend of year
726.0 43.0 44.2 724.8 735.8

Weighted average number of equivaLent ordinary shares during the year
734.0 735.3

The average number of equivalent ordinary shares takes into account the shares in the company held bya subsidiary of Reed Elsevier

PLC which represents S.8% interest in the companys share capital

4t31 December2Ol24240838 shareswere held bya subsidiaryof Reed Elsevier PLC The sharesare convertible atthe election of

the holders into ten ordinary shares each and each share carries an entitlement to cast ten votes They have otherwise the same rights

as the ordinary shares except that Reed Elsevier NV may pay lower dividend on the shares

At31 December2ol2treasuryshares included 62341 shares 2011 nil equivalentto 623410 Reed Elsevier NVordinaryshares
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A.djusted ligures

183

Adjusted profit and earnings per share figures are used by management as additional performance measures The adjusted figures are

derived as follows

.5

CD

.5

CD

Reported figures 658 437 0.90 0.59

Share of adjustments in joint ventures

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 207 204 0.28 0.28

Acquisition related costs 10 19 0.01 0.03

Disposals and other non operating items 64 10 0.09 0.01

Exceptionalprioryeartaxcredit 59 0.08

Deferred tax adjustments 52 0.07 0.08

Adjustedfigures 700 610 0.95 0.83

111 Statementofcashflows

HtLONCILA1IONO ADMINISTRATIVEEXPENSES 1CCASH Ui-iJt3Y IiEkA1IONS 2012 2011

Cm Cm

Administrative expenses

Netmovementinpayables

Cash used by operations

NE1 FUNDiNG BALANES DUL FROMJOIN1 NIURE 2012 2011

Cm Cm

Atstartofyear 1084 1359

Cash flow 313 275

Atendofyear 1397 1084

Profit attributabLe to

shareholders

Basic earnings

pershare

2012 2011 2012 2011

Cm Cm

.5

CD

CD
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L4 REEDELSEVIERNV

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

fortheyearended 31 December2012

2011

420

20

Reed Elsevier NVs share of joint ventures net prof it attributable to parent companysharehotdersfortheyearexctudes the net profit

that arose directly in Reed Etsevier NVof 4m 17m

Reed EtsevierNV

TotaLjoint ventures shareholders share

2012 2011 2012 2011

Cm Cm

Totatassets 13547 13804 6773 6897

Tota liabiUties 10701 6715

Net assets 2846 2636 58 275

Attributabte to

Jointventures 2804 2.606 58 275

Non-controlling interests 42 30

2846 2636 58 275

Netfunding balancesduefromjointventures 1397 1.084

TotaL 1455 1359

11 Investmentsinjointventures

2012

Cm

Share of resutts ofjoint ventures 654

Share of joint ventures other comprehensive expense/income 137

Share of jointventures disposal/acquisition of non-controlting interests

Share ofjointventures increase in share based remuneration reserve 19 16

Equatisation adjustments

Dividends received from joint ventures 754

Increase/decrease in netfunding batances due from jointventures 313

Netmovementintheyear 96 161

Atstartofyear 1359 1198

Atendofyear 1455 1359

During the yearthe company received dividends of 754m from Etsevier Reed Finance By

Summarised information showing totalamounts in respect of jointventures and Reed Etsevier NV shareholders 50% share is set

out below

Reed Elsevier NV

Total joint ventures sharehoLders share

2012 2011 2012 2011

Cm Cm

Revenue 7523 6902 3762 3451

Net profitfortheyear 1321 882 654 420

The above amounts exclude assets and tiabilities held directly by Reed Elsevier NV and inctude the counterparty balances of amounts

owed to and by other Reed Elsevier businesses Inctuded within Reed Elsevier NVs share of assets and liabilities are cash and cash

equivalents of 393m 433m and borrowings of 2386m 2561m respectively
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12 Payabfts

185

Included within payables are employee convertible debenture loans of 7m 2011 8m with weighted average interest rate of 2.65%

2011 3.13% Depending on the conversion terms the surrender of 200 parvalue debenture loans qualifiesfor5O Reed Elsevier NV

ordinaryshares

13 Share cpita and shares held in treasury

The issue of shares relates to the exercise of share options Details of share option and conditionalshare schemes are set out in note

to the Reed Elsevier combined financialstatements

At31 December2012 4240838 shares were held bya subsidiary of Reed Elsevier PLC The shares are convertible at the election of

the holders intoten ordinary shares each and each share carries an entitlement to cast ten votes They have otherwisethe same rights

as the ordirtaryshares except that Reed Elsevier NV may paya lower dividend on the shares

At31 December2012 shares held in treasury related to 6990101 2011 7380906 Reed Elsevier NVordinaryshares held bythe

Reed Elsevier Group plc Employee Benefit Trust EBT and 366130872011 23952791 Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares and 62341

shares 2011 nil held by the parent company

The EBT purchases Reed Elsevier NVshares which at the trustees discretion can be used in respect of the exercise of share options

andto meet commitments underconditionalshare awards At31 December2012 Reed Elsevier NVshares held bythe EBTwere 84m
2011 85m

CD

CD

CD

CD

CD

AJr-WR5ED No.ofshares Cm

Ordinary shares of 0.07 each 1800000000 126

Rsharesof0.70each 26000000 18

TotaL 144

ED ANE LJL LY AD Ordinary Ordinary

Rshares shares Rshares shares Total

Number Number Cm Cm Cm

Ati January2011 4303179 723877017 51 54

Issueofordinaryshares 200738

At January2012 4303179 724077755 51 54

Issueofordinaryshares 1906470

At31 December2012 4303179 725984225 51 54
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REEDELSEVIERNV

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

fortheyearended 31 December2012

14 Other reserves

2012 2011

Cm

At start of year
496 602

Profit attributable to shareholders 658 437

Share ofjoint ventures

Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension schemes 203 65

Fairvalue movements on availabtefor sale investments

Transferto net profit on disposalof available forsale investments

Fairvalue movements on cash flow hedges 43 14

Tax recognised directly in equity
54 24

Increase in share based remuneration reserve 19 16

Settlementofshareawards

Transfer to net profit from cash flow hedge reserve 13 22

Disposal/acquisition of non-controlling interests 25

Equatisation adjustments

Equity dividends paid 319 289

Atendofyear 228 496

15 Contingent t.iabilities

There are contingent liabilities in respect of borrowings of joint ventures guaranteed by Reed Elsevier NV as follows

2012 2011

Cm

Guaranteed jointLy and severaltywith Reed ELsevier PLC 4.422 4704

Financial instruments disclosures in respect of the borrowings covered by the above guarantees are given in note l8to the Reed Etsevier

combined financial statements
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Principtjointventures

%hotding

Reed ELsevier Group pLc

Incorporated and operating in Great Britain 18385 ordinary shares

1-3 Strand 18385 ordinary shares 100%

London WC2N 5JR 100000 7.5% cumulative preference non voting shares

Holding companyforoperating businesses involved in

science medical risk management legaland business

publishing and organisation of trade exhibitions Equivalent to 50% equity interest

ELsevier Reed Finance BV

Incorporated in the Netherlands 133 ordinary shares

Radarweg 29 205 ordinary shares 100%

1043 NX Amsterdam the Netherlands

Holding company forfinancing businesses Equivalent to 61% equity interest

The shares in Reed Elsevier Group plc and Elsevier Reed Finance BVand the non-voting preference shares in Reed Elsevier Group plc

are owned by Reed Elsevier PLC

In addition Reed Elsevier NV holds shareswith special dividend rights in Reed Elsevier Overseas By subsidiary of Reed Elsevier Group

plc with registered offices in Amsterdam These shares are included in the amount shown under investments in joint ventures and

enable Reed Elsevier NVto receive dividends from companies within the same taxjurisdiction

Alist of companies within Reed Elsevier isfiled with the Amsterdam Chamber of Commerce in the Netherlands

Approvil of financa1 stilernents

The consolidated financialstatements were signed and authorised for issue bythe Combined Board of directors on 27 February 2013

AJ Habgood

Chairman of the Supervisory Board

and the Combined Board

DJPaLmer

Chief Financial Officer

CD

CD
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Independent auditors report on the consolidated

financial statements to the shareholders of Reed Etsevier NV

Report on the consoLidated financiaL statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial

statements 2012 which are part of the financial statements of

Reed Elsevier NV Amsterdam which comprise the consolidated

statementoffinancialpositionasat3l December2Ol2the

consolidated income statement the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income the consolidated statement of cash

flows and the consolidated statement of changes in equity for

the yearthen ended and the notes comprising summary of

the accounting policies and other explanatory information

as set out in pages 176 to 187

Directors responsibility

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair

presentation of the consolidated financial statements in

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

as adopted by the European Union and with Part of Book of

the Dutch Civil Code and for the preparation of the report of

the Supervisory Board and the Executive Board in accordance

with Part9 of Book of the Dutch Civil Code Furthermore

the directors are responsible for such internalcontrolas it

determines necessaryto enable the preparation offinancial

statements that are free from material misstatement whether

duetofraud orerror

Auditors responsibiLity

Our responsibility isto express an opinion on the consolidated

financialstatements based on ouraudit We conducted ouraudit

in accordance with Dutch law including the Dutch Standards on

Auditing This requires thatwe complywith ethical requirements

and plan and perform the auditto obtain reasonable assurance

about whetherthe consolidated financial statements are free from

material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence

about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial

statements The procedures selected depend on the auditors

judgment including the assessment of the risks of material

misstatement of the consolidated financial statements whether

due to fraud or error

In making those risk assessments the auditor considers internal

control relevant to the entitys preparation and fair presentation

of the consolidated financialstatements in orderto design audit

procedures thatare appropriate in the circumstances but not

for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of

the entitys internal control An audit also includes evaluating

the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates made bythe directors

as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated

financialstatements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide basis for our audit opinion

Opinion with respect to the consoLidated financiaL statements

In our opinion the consolidated financialstatements give true

and fairview of the financial position of Reed ElsevierNVas at

31 December2012 and of its results and its cash ftowsfortheyear

then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting

Standards as adopted by the European Union and with Part of

Book2of the Dutch CivilCode

Report on other Legal and reguLatory requirements

Pursuanttothe legal requirement under 2393 sub ate and fof

the Dutch CivilCode we have no deficienciesto reportas result

of our examination whether the report of the Supervisory Board

and the Executive Board to the extent we can assess has been

prepared in accordance with Part9 of Book of this Code and

whetherthe information as required under section 2392 sub

at b-h has been annexed Furtherwe report that the report of the

Supervisory Board and the Executive Board to the extentwe can

assess is consistent with the consolidated financial statements

as required by2391 sub of the Dutch CivilCode

DeLoitte Accountants B.V

ASandler

Amsterdam

The Netherlands

27 February 2013
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Parent company profit and Loss account

FOR rHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012 2011

Cm

Administrative expenses

Dividends received from joint ventures 754

Finance income from joint ventures 20

Taxation

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 758 17

Parent company balance sheet

ASAI31 DECEMBER 2012 2011

Note Cm Cm

Fixed assets

Investments injointventures 3604 3602

Current assets

Amounts due from jointventures funding 1397 1084

Amounts due from joint ventures other

1401 1086

Cash

1402 1089

Creditors amounts falling due within one year

Taxation 51 51

Othercreditors 10

58 611

Netcurrentassets 1344 1028

Net assets 4948 4630

Capital and reserves

Share capital issued 54 54

Paid-insurptus 2189 2171

Shares held in treasury 477 336

Otherreserves 193 191

Reserves 2989 2550

Shareholders funds 4948 4630

The parent companyfinancialstatements were signed and authorised for issue by the Combined Board of directors on 27 February 2013

AJ Habgood Di PaLmer

Chairman of the Supervisory Board Chief Financial Officer
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REED ELSEVIERNV

Parent company reconciliation of shareholders funds

Share Shares

capital Paid-in held in Other

issued surplusiI treasury reservesliil Reservesliiil Total

Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm

At January2011 54 2169 336 175 2822 4884

Profitattributabtetoshareholders 17 17

Equitydividendspaid 289 289

Issue of shares net of expenses

Equityinstruments granted to employees of combined businesses 16 16

At January2012 54 2171 336 191 2550 4630

Profitattributabletoshareholders 758 758

Equitydividendspaid
1319 319

Repurchaseof shares 1141 1141

Issueofsharesnetofexpenses 18 18

Equityinstrumentsgrantedtoemployeesofcombinedbusinesses

At31 December2012 54 2189 477 193 2989 4948

Within paid-in surplus an amount of 2012m 2011 1994m is free of tax

ii Other reserves relate to equity instruments granted to employees of the combined businesses under share based remuneration

arrangements Other reserves do not form part of free reserves

iii Free reserves of the companyat 31 December2Ol2were 4701m 2011 4385m comprising reservesand paid-in surplus less

shares held in treasury

Parent company accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The parent companyfinancialstatements have been prepared

underthe historical cost convention As permitted by 2362

subsection of the Dutch CivilCodeforcompanieswith

international operations the parent company financial statements

have been prepared in accordance with UK GenerallyAccepted

Accounting Practice UK GAAP ensuring consistency The

financial information relating tothe company is recognised

in the consolidated financial statements

The parent company financialstatements are prepared on going

concern basis as explained on page 175

The Reed Elsevier NV accounting policies underUKGAAP are set

out below

Investments

Fixed asset investments in the combined businesses are stated at

cost less provision if appropriateforany impairment in value

The fairvalue of the award of share options and conditionalshares

over Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares to employees of the

Reed Elsevier combined businesses are treated as capital

contribution

Principaljointventures are set out in note 11 of the Reed Elsevier

NV consolidated financial statements

Short term investments are stated at the lower of cost and net

realisable value Other assets and liabilities are stated at

historical cost less provision ifappropriateforanyimpairment

in value

Shares heLd in treasury

The amount of consideration paid including directlyattributable

costs for shares repurchased is recognised as shares held in

treasury and presented as deduction from total equity Details

of share capitaland shares held intreasuryare set out in note 13

of the Reed Elsevier NV consolidated financial statements and

note 28 of the Reed Elsevier combined financialstatements

Foreign exchange transLation

Transactions entered into in foreign currencies are recorded at

the exchange rates applicable at the time of the transaction

Taxation

Deferred taxation is provided in fulifor timing differences using

the liability
method Deferred tax assets are only recognised to

the extent that they are considered recoverable in the short term

Deferred taxation balances are not discounted
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Notes to the parent company financial statements

Jther crEditors

Othercreditors include 7m 2011 8m of employee convertible debenture loans with weighted average interest rate of 2.65%

20113.13% Depending on the conversion terms the surrender of 200 parvalue debenture loans qualifies for 50 Reed Elsevier NV

ordinaryshares

ReconciLationstoconsotidatedfinanciastatements

reconciliation of the parent company profit attributable to ordinary shareholders prepared under UK GAAP and the consolidated

profit attributable to ordinary shareholders prepared under IFRS and presented underthe equity method is provided below

YEA ENDED 31 DEC EMBER 2012 2011

Cm

Parent company profit attributable to shareholders 758 17

Share of results ofjointventures 654 420

Dividends received from joint ventures 7541

ConsoLidated profit attributabLe to sharehoLders using the equity method 658 437

reconciliation between the parent company shareholdersfunds prepared under UK GAAP and the consolidated shareholdersfunds

prepared underlFRS and presented underthe equity method is provided below

ASAC31 DEcEMBEE 2012 2011

Cm

Parent company shareholders funds 4948 4630

Cumulative share of results ofjointventures less cumutative dividends received from jointventures 2427 2327

Cumulative currencytranslation adjustments 2621 214

Cumulative equalisation and otheradjustments 32 103

Share of treasury shares held by joint ventures employee benefit trust 941 96

Share of IFRS adjustments in joint ventures 6021

Equity instruments grantedto employees of combined businesses 1931 191

ConsoLidated sharehoLders funds using the equity method 1402 1303

Other mtters

Transactionswith members of the Executive Board including share based remuneration costs are set out in note 30 to the combined

financialstatements and details of the directors remuneration are included in the directors remuneration report on pages 74to 90

CD

CD
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Additional information

shares

Reed Elsevier NVhastwotypes of shares ordinaryshares of 0.07 nominalvalue and sharesof 0.70 nominalvalue Each share

is convertible into 10 ordinary shares and is entitled to cast 10 votes Otherwise it has the same rights as an ordinary share except that

Reed Elsevier NV maypaya lowerdividend on it but notlessthan 1% of the nominalvalue ofan share

Profit aLLocation

TheArticlesof Association providethatdistributions of dividend mayonly be made insofarasthe companys equityexceedsthe amount

of the paid in capital increased bythe reserveswhich must be kept byvirtue of the lawand may be made in cash or in shares atthe

proposalof the Combined Board Distribution of dividends on ordinary shares and on the class shares shalibe made in proportion to

the nominalvalue of each share The Combined Board may resolve that the dividend to be paid on each class share shall be tower than

the dividend to be paid on each ordinary share resolving atthe sametime what amount of dividend shall be paid on each ordinary share

and each class share respectively

pRoposALFoRALLocATIoNoFpRoriT 2012 2011

Cm

Final dividend on ordinaryshares for priorfinancialyear 228 212

Interim dividend on ordinary sharesforfinancialyear 91 77

Dividend on shares

Retained profit/floss 439 272

758 17
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Independent auditors report on the parent company
financial statements to the sharehol.ders of Reed Elsevier NV

193

Report on the company financiaL statements

We have audited the accompanying parent companyfinancial

statements 2012 which are part of the financial statements of

Reed Elsevier NV Amsterdam which comprise the parent

company balance sheet as at3l December 2012 the parent

company profit and loss accountfortheyearthen ended the

parent company reconciliation of shareholders funds and the

notes comprising summary of the accounting policies and

the additional information asset out in pages 189 to 192

Directors responsibiLity

The directors are responsible forthe preparation and fair

presentation of the parent companyfinancial statements both in

accordance with accounting practices generallyaccepted in the

United Kingdom and with Part of Book of the Dutch CivilCode

and forthe preparation of the report of the Supervisory Board

and the Executive Board in accordance with Part of Book of the

Dutch Civil Code Furthermore the directors are responsible for

such internalcontrolas it determines necessary to enable the

preparation of financialstatementsthatarefreefrom material

misstatement whether due to fraud or error

Auditors responsibiLity

Our responsibility isto express an opinion on the parent company

financialstatements based on our audit We conducted ouraudit

in accordance with Dutch law including the Dutch Standards on

Auditing This requires thatwe complywith ethical requirements

and plan and perform the auditto obtain reasonable assurance

aboutwhetherthe parentcompanyfinancialstatements arefree

from material misstatement

An audit involves performing proceduresto obtain audit evidence

aboutthe amounts and disclosures in the parent company

financialstatements The procedures selected depend on the

auditors judgment including the assessment of the risks of

material misstatement of the parent companyfinancial

statements whether due to fraud or error

In making those risk assessments the auditor considers internal

control relevant to the entitys preparation and fair presentation of

the parent companyfinancialstatements in order to design audit

proceduresthat are appropriate in the circumstances but notfor

the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

entitys internal control An audit also includes evaluating the

appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors

as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the parent

companyfinancialstatements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide basisforouraudit opinion

Opinion with respect to the parent company financiaL statements

In our opinion the parent companyfinancial statements give

true and fairview of the financial position of Reed Elsevier NV

asat 31 December2012 and of its results and its cash flows for

the year then ended in accordance with accounting practices

generallyaccepted in the United Kingdom and with Part of

Book of the Dutch Civil Code

Report on other LegaL and reguLatory requirements

Pursuantto the legal requirement under 2393 sub ate and fof

the Dutch Civil Code we have no deficiencies to report as result

of our examination whetherthe report of the Supervisory Board

and the Executive Board to the extent we can assess has been

prepared in accordance with Part of Book of this Code and

whether the information as required under section 2392 sub

at b-h has been annexed Furtherwe report that the report of

the Supervisory Board and the Executive Board to the extent

we can assess is consistent with the parent company financial

statements as required by 2391 sub of the Dutch Civil Code

DeLoitte Accountants B.V

ASandler

Amsterdam

The Netherlands

27 February 2013
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74 REED ELSEVIER NV

5yearsummary

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Note Cm Cm Cm Cm Cm

Combined financiaL information

Revenuecontinuingoperations 7523 6902 7084 6800 6721

Reported operating profit continuing operations 1670 1386 1.275 881 1135

Adjusted operating profit continuing operations 2107 1870 1819 1758 1737

Reported profit attributable to shareholders total operations 1315 874 751 438 587

Adjusted profitattributabletoshareholderstotaloperations 1400 1219 1150 1099 1159

Reed Etsevier NV consoLidated financiaL information

Reported profit attributable to shareholders 658 437 376 219 294

Adjusted profit attributable to shareholders 700 610 575 550 580

Reported earnings per ordinary share 0.90 0.59 0.51 0.32 0.44

Adjusted earnings per ordinary share 0.95 0.83 0.78 0.79 0.87

Dividend perordinaryshare 0.467 0436 0412 0400 0404

Adjusted figures are presented as additional performance measures used by management and are stated before amortisation

and impairment of acquired intangible assets and goodwill exceptional restructuring 2008-2010 and acquisition related costs

exceptional prioryeartax credits in 2012 only and in respect of attributable profit reflect tax rate that excludes the effect of

movements in deferred taxation assets and liabilities that are not expected to crystallise in the near term and includes the benefit

of tax amortisation where available on acquired goodwiltand intangible assets Acquisition related financing costs and profitand

loss from disposalgains and losses and other non operating items are also excluded from the adjusted figures

Revenue reported operating profitand adjusted operating profitare presented for continuing operations Net profitfrom

discontinued operations is included in profit attributable to shareholders

Dividend perordinaryshare is based onthe interim dividend and proposedfinaldividendforthe relevantyear and does not include

the 1767 per share specialdistribution in 2008
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Summary financial information in US dollars

BasIs of preparatlon

Eli .unin or rn oa nfor it on mpLe tr latron of the Oc ed umbrned fir enact statements into dolL 31
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2012 2012

Lit loller- to sterling 59 60 t62

Combined income statement

2012

US$rn Us

verru 9724 603

LEper itrng pofrt 2159 928

I- ufrtbeforotax 1887 lot
oUt 3t br tabk to paren ronparr Liii ahotders 11OO 1216

Ad1us ed oper rtrng ire it 2724 2602

Adjusted profit tax 2380 2226

Adji ted nrutrt attrrbutabl to pa ent co npanre shur ehotder 1809 696
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Combined statement of cash flows

JR HE YEAR ENIJ DELEMBEF1 2012 2011

US$m US$m

Net cash from operating activities 2237 2052

Net cash used in investing activities 757 11541

Net cash used in financing activities 1594 9681

Decrease in cash and cash equivaLents 114 t70

Movement in cash and cash equivaLents

Atstartofyear 1125 1158

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents 114 701

Exchange translation differences 27 37

Atendofyear 1038 1125

Adjusted operating cash fLow 2549 2424

Combined statement of financial position

CD

CD

AS 131 DECEMEFEF 2012 2011

US$m US$m

Non-current assets 13738 13812

Current assets 3624 3949

Assetsheldforsale 481 68

TotaLassets 17843 17829

Current liabilities 6347 6857

Non-current liabilities 7591 7541

Liabilities associated with assets held for sale 156 26

TotaLLiabiLities 14094 14424

Net assets 3749 3405

CD
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REED ELSEVIER PLC

Reed Elsevier PLC

Summaryfinancial information in US dollars

Basis of preparation

The summaryfinanciaL information isa simple translation of the Reed Elsevier PLC consolidated financial statements into US dollars

at the stated rates of exchange The financialinformation provided below is prepared under IFRS as used in the preparation of the

Reed Elsevier PLC consolidated financialstatements It does not represent restatement under US GAAP which would be different

in some significant respects

EXCHANGE RATES FOR TRANSLATION OFSTERLING $01 2012 2011

US$0 US$E

1.60

1.55

Income statement 1.59

Statement of financial position 1.62

Consolidated income statement

FORTHEYEARENDED31 DECEMBER 2012 2011

US$m US$m

Profit attributabLe to ordinary sharehoLders 878 622

Adjusted profit attributable to 52.9% interest in Reed Elsevier combined businesses 957 898

Share ofjoint ventures

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 1283 301

Acquisition related costs 13 27

Disposals and other non operating items 88 13

Exceptional prioryear tax credit 81

Deferred tax adjustments 70 86

Profit attributabLe to 52.9% interest in Reed ELsevier combined businesses 900 643

DATA PER AMERICAN DEPOSITARY SHARE ADS 2012 2011

uss uss

Earnings perADS based on 52.9% interest in Reed Elsevier combined businesses

Adjusted $3.19 $2.99

Basic $2.93 $2.07

Net dividend perADS declared in the year $1.39 $1.32

Net dividend perADS paid and proposed in relation to the financialyear $1.46 $1.38

Consolidated statement of financial position

A5AT31 DECEMBER 2012 2011

US$m US$m

SharehoLders equity 1.954 1781

Adjusted earnings perAmerican Depositary Share is based on Reed Elsevier PLC shareholders 52.9% share of the adjusted profit

attributable of the Reed Elsevier combined businesses which excludes amortisation of acquired intangible assets acquisition related

costs disposalgains and losses and other non operating items related tax effects exceptional prioryeartax credits in 2012 only

and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities that are not expected to crystallise in the nearterm and include the benef it of tax

amortisation where available on acquired goodwilLand intangible assets Adjusted figures are additional performance measures used

bymanagementand are described in note 9tothe Reed Elsevier PLC consolidated financialstatements

Reed Elsevier PLC shares are quoted on the NewYork Stock Exchange and trading is in the form of American Depositary Shares ADSs
evidenced byAmerican Depositary Receipts ADRs representing four Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary shares CUSIP No 758205207

trading symbol RUK Bank of NewYork istheADR Depositary
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Basis of preparation

The summaryfinancialinformation isa simple translation of the Reed Elsevier NV consolidated financial statements into US dollars

at the stated rates of exchange The financialinformation provided below is prepared under IFRS as used in the preparation of the

Reed Elsevier NV consolidated financialstatements It does not represent restatement under US GAAPwhich would be different

in some significant respects

EXCHANGE RATES OR TRANSLATION OF EURO $C1

Consolidated income statement

FORTHEYEAR END EO31 DECEMBER 2012 2011

US$m US$m

903 849Adjusted profit attributable to shareholders

Share ofjointventures

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 267

Acquisition related costs 13 126

Disposals and othernon operating items 83 14

Exceptional prioryeartax credit 76

Deferred tax adjustments 67 83

Profit attributabLe to sharehoLders 849 608

DATPERAMERICANDEPOSITARYSHAREADS 2012 2011

uss uss

Earnings perADS based on 50% interest in Reed Elseviercombined businesses

Adjusted $2.65 $2.31

Basic $2.32 $1.64

Net dividend perADS declared in the year $1.18 $1.15

Net dividend perADS paid and proposed in relation to the financialyear $1.20 $1.21

Consolidated statement of financial position

AST31DECEMBEF 2012 2011

US$m US$m

SharehoLders equity 1851 1683

Adjusted earnings perAmerican Depositary Share is based on Reed Elsevier NV shareholders 50% share of the adjusted profit

attributable of the Reed Elsevier combined businesses which excludes amortisation of acquired intangible assets acquisition related

costs disposalgains and losses and other non operating items related tax effects exceptional prioryeartax credits in 2012 only

and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities that are not expected to crystallise in the nearterm and include the benef it of tax

amortisation where available on acquired goodwilland intangible assets Adjusted figures are additional performance measures used

by management and are described in note 9to the Reed Elsevier NVconsolidated financialstatements

Reed Elsevier NV shares are quoted on the NewYork Stock Exchange and trading is in the form of American Depositary Shares ADSs
evidenced byAmerican Depositary Receipts ADRs representing two Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares CUSIP No 758204200

trading symbol ENL Bank of NewYork is the ADR Depositary

Income statement

Statement of financial position

2012

1.29

1.32

2011

US$

1.39

1.29

CD

CD
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Shareholderinformation

Annual Reports and Financial Statements 2012

The Annual Reports and FinancialStatements for the

Reed Elsevier combined businesses Reed Elsevier PLC and

Reed Elsevier NVfortheyearended 31 December2012 and

the Corporate Governance Statement of Reed Elsevier NV are

available on the Reed Elsevierwebsite and from the registered

offices of the respective parent companies shown on page 202

Additional financial information including the interim and

full-yearresults announcements Interim Management

Statements and presentations is also available on the

Reed Elsevier website www.reedelsevier.com

The Reed Elseviercombined financialstatements set out in

theAnnualReportsand FinancialStatementsareexpressed in

sterling with summary combined financial information expressed

in euros Thefinancialstatements of Reed Elsevier PLC and

Reed Elsevier NV are expressed in sterling and euros respectively

Interim results

Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV no longer publish

interim results in hard copy The interim results are available

on the Reed Elsevierwebsite www.reedelsevier.com

Share price information

Reed Elsevier PLCs ordinaryshares are quoted on the London

Stock Exchange

Reed Elsevier NVs ordinaryshares are quoted on the NYSE

Euronext Amsterdam Stock Exchange

The Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NVordinary shares are

quoted on the New York Stock Exchange in the form of American

Depositary Shares ADSs evidenced by American Depositary

Receipts ADRs Each Reed Elsevier PLC ADR represents four

Reed Elsevier PLC ordinaryshares Each Reed Elsevier NVADR

represents two Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares

The Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV ordinary share

prices and the ADR prices may be obtained from the Reed Elsevier

website other online sources and the financial pages of some

newspapers

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION VISITWWW.REEDELSEVIER.COM

Information for Reed Elsevier PLC

ordinary shareholders

Shareholder services

The Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary share register is administered

by Equiniti Limited Equiniti provides free online portalfor

shareholders at www.shareview.co.uk Shareview provides

shareholderswith instant access to details of theirshareholdings

and dividend payments with the ability to update personaldetails

and to register bank mandate for dividend payments Equinitis

contact details appear on page 202

ELectronic communications

While hard copy shareholder communications continue to be

available tothose shareholders requesting them in accordance

with the Companies Act 2006 and the companys Articles Reed

Etsevier PLC uses the Reed Elsevierwebsite as the main method

of communicating with shareholders By registering their details

online atShareview shareholders can be notified by emailwhen

shareholdercommunications are published on the website

Shareholders can also usethe Shareviewwebsiteto appoint

proxytovoteontheirbehalfatshareholdermeetings

Shareholders who hold their Reed Elsevier PLC shares through

CREST may appoint proxiesfor shareholder meetingsthrough

the CREST electronic proxy appointment service by using the

procedures described in the CREST manual

Dividend mandates

Shareholders are encouraged to havetheir dividends paid directly

into UK bank or building societyaccount This method of payment

reduces the risk of delay or loss of dividend cheques in the post

and ensures the account is credited on the dividend payment

date dividend mandate form can be obtained online at

www.shareview.co.uk or bycontacting Equiniti atthe address

shown on page 202

Equiniti has established service for overseas shareholders

in over90 countries which enables shareholdersto havetheir

dividends automatically converted from sterling and paid directly

into their nominated bank account Further details of this service

and the fees applicable are available at www.shareview.co.uk or

by contacting Equiniti at the address shown on page 202

Dividend Reinvestment PLan

Shareholders can choose to reinvesttheir Reed Elsevier PLC

dividends by purchasing further shares through the Dividend

Reinvestment Plan DRIP provided by Equiniti Further

information concerning the DRIP facility togetherwith the terms

and conditions and an application form can be obtained online at

www.shareview.co.uk/dividends or by contacting Equiniti at the

address shown on page 202

Share dealing service

telephone and internet dealing service is available through

Reed Elsevier PLCs Registrar Equiniti which provides simple

wayforUK-residentshareholderstobuyorsellReed ElsevierPLC

shares FortelephonedealingcallO8456037037between8.OOam

and 430pm Mondayto Friday andfor internet dealing log on to

www.shareview.co.uk/dealing You will need your shareholder

account number shown on your dividend tax voucher
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IndividuaL savings account tISAJ

single company ISA for Reed Elsevier PLC shares is available

through Equiniti Details may be obtained from

www.shareview.co.uk/ISA bywriting to Equiniti at the address

shown on page 202 or by calling their ISA helpline on 0871 3842244

ShareGift

The Orr Mackintosh Foundation operates charity share donation

scheme for shareholders with small parcels of shares whose

value makes it uneconomic to sell them Details of the scheme can

be obtained from the ShareGift website at www.sharegift.org

or by telephoning ShareGift on 020 7930 3737

Sub-division of ordinaryshares and share consoLidation

On 28July 1986 each Reed Elsevier PLC ordinaryshare offl

nominalvaluewas sub-divided intofourordinaryshares of25p

each On May 1997 each 25p ordinary share was sub-divided into

two ordinaryshares of 12.5p each On January 2008 the ordinary

shares of l2.5p each were consolidated on the basis of 58 new

ordinaryshares of l451A16p nominalvaluefor every 67 ordinary

shares of 12.5p each held

Capitatgainstax

The mid-market price of Reed Elsevier PLCsfl ordinaryshares

on 31 March 1982was 282p Adjusting forthe sub-divisions and

share consolidation referred to above results in an equivalent

mid-market price of 40.72pforeach existing ordinary share of

1451/imp nominalvalue

Warning to sharehoLders unsoLicited investment advice

Manycompanies have become awarethattheir shareholders have

received unsolicited phone calls orcorrespondence concerning

investment matters These are typically from overseas-based

brokers who target UK shareholders offering to sell them what

often turn out to be worthless or high-risk shares in US or UK

investments These operations are commonly known as boiler

room scams

Shareholders are advised to be very wary of any unsolicited

advice offers to buy shares at discount or offers of free company

reports If you receive any unsolicited investment advice check

that the person ororganisation is properlyauthorised by the FSA

before getting involved byvisiting www.fsa.gov.uk/fsaregister/

and contacting the firm using the details on the register If you

dealwith an unauthorised firm you will not be eligible to receive

payment underthe FinancialService Compensation Scheme

The FSA can be contacted at www.fsa.gov.uk/pages/doing/

regulated/law/aLerts/overseas.shtml

Information for Reed Ekevier NV

ordinary sharehoWers

SharehoLder enquiries

Enquiriesfrom holders of Reed Elsevier NV registered ordinary

shares in relation to share transfers dividends change of address

and bank accounts should be directed to the CompanySecretary

of Reed Elsevier NV at the registered office address shown on

page2O2

Dividends

Dividends on Reed Elsevier NVordinaryshares are declared and

paid in euros Registered shareholders in Reed Elsevier NVwill

receive dividends from the company bytransmission tothe bank

account which they have notified to the company Dividends on

shares in bearerform are paid through the intermediary of

bank or broker

Dividend Reinvestment PLan

By instructing their bank or intermediary shareholders can

choose to reinvest their Reed Elsevier NV dividends by purchasing

furthersharesthrough the Dividend Reinvestment Plan DRIP
provided byABNAMRO Bank NV Furtherinformation concerning

the DRIP facility can be obtained online atwww.securitiesinfo.nl

ConsoLidation of ordinary shares

On January2008 the Reed Elsevier NV ordinary share of 0.06

each were consolidated on the basis of 58 newordinary shares of

0.07 each forevery67 ordinary shares of 0.06 each held

Information for Reed Ekevier PLC and

Reed Ekevier NVADR hoWers

The Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NVADR Depositary is

BNY Mellon

Reed Elsevier PLCs CUSIP number is 758205207 and its trading

symbol is RUK Each Reed Elsevier PLC ADR represents four

Reed Elsevier PLC ordinaryshares

Reed Elsevier NVs CUSIP number is 758204200 and itstrading

symbol is EN Each Reed Elsevier NVADR represents two

Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares

ADR sharehoLder services

Enquiries concerning Reed Elsevier PLC or Reed Elsevier NV

ADRs should be addressed to theADR Depositary at the address

shown on page 202

Dividends

Dividend payments on Reed ElsevierPLC and Reed ElsevierNV

ADRs are converted into US dollars by the ADR Depositary

AnnuaL Report on Form 20-F

The Annual Report on Form 20-F forthe Reed Elsevier combined

businesses Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV is filed

electronicallywith the United States Securities and Exchange

Commission copy of Form 20-F is available on the Reed Elsevier

website or from the ADR Depositary at the address shown on

page2O2



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

CONTACTS

Contacts

Reed ELsevier PLC Reed ELsevier NV

1-3 Strand Radarweg 29

London WC2N 5JR 1043 NXAmsterdam

United Kingdom The Netherlands

Tel 44 020 7166 5500 Tel 310204852222

Fax4402071665799 Fax31 0204852032

Auditors

Deloitte LLP Deloitte Accountants BV

NewStreet Square Orlyplein 10

London EC4A3BZ 1043 DPAmsterdam

United Kingdom The Netherlands

Registrar Listing/paying agent

Equiniti Limited ABN AMRO Bank NV

Aspect House Gustav Mahlerlaan 10

Spencer Road 1082 PP Amsterdam

Lancing The Netherlands

West Sussex

BN99 6DA WWW.SECURITIESINFO.NL

United Kingdom

WWW.SHAREVIEW.CO.UK

Tel 0871 3842960

calls cost 8p per minute plus additional network charges

where applicable

Tel 44 121 415 7047 callers outside the UK

Reed ELsevier PLC and Reed Etsevier NVADR Depositary

BNY Mellon Depositary Receipts

PU Box 43006

Providence RI 02940-3006

USA

WWW.ADRBNY.COM

Email shrrelationsIbnymellon.com

Tel 888 269 2377

201 680 6825 callers outside the US
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2Ol3financia

28 February PLC/NV Results announcementfortheyearended 31 December2012

24ApriL PLC/NV Interim management statement issued in relation to the 2013 financialyear

24ApriL NV Annual General Meeting Reed Elsevier NV Hotel Okura Ferdinand Bolstraat 33 1072 LH Amsterdam

25Aprit PLC AnnualGeneral Meeting Reed Elsevier PLC Millennium Hotel GrosvenorSquare London W1K2HP
30 ApriL NV Ex-dividend date 2012 finaldividend Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares

May PLC/NV Ex-dividend date 2012 finaldividend Reed Elsevier PLC ordinary shares and ADRs and Reed Elsevier

NV AD Rs

May PLC/NV Record date 2012 finaldividend Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NVordinaryshares and ADRs

23 May PLC/NV Payment date2Ol2finaldividend Reed ElsevierPLCand Reed ElsevierNVordinary shares

30 May PLC/NV Payment date 2012 finaldividend Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NVADRs
25JuLy PLC/NV Interim resultsannouncementlorthe six months to 30 June 2013

7August PLC/NV Ex-dividend date 2013 interim dividend Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NVordinaryshares and ADRs

9August PLC/NV Record date 2013 interim dividend Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NVordinary shares and ADRs

29August PLC/NV Payment date 2013 interim dividend Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NV ordinary shares

5September PLC/NV Payment date 2013 interim dividend Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NVADRs
November PLC/NV Interim management statement issued in relation to the 2013 financial year

The following tables set out dividends paid torproposed in relation tothe threefinancialyears 20102012

per PLC ordinaryshare perNVordinaryshare Payment date

Finaldividend for2Ol2t l7.OOp 0337 23 May2013
Interim dividend for 2012 6.00p 0130 31 August 2012

Finaldividendfor20ll
l5.9Op 0326 21 May2012

Interim dividend for 2011
5.65p 0.11 26 August2011

Final dividend for 2010 5.OOp 0303 17 May2011
Interim dividend for 2010

5.4Op 0.1 09 27August 2010

Proposed dividend to be submitted forapprovalatthe respectiveAnnuai General Meetings of Reed Eisevier PLC and Reed Elsevier NVin April 2013

perPLCADR perNVADR Paymentdate

Finaldividendfor20l2 30 May2013
Interim dividend for 2012 $037898 $027638 September2012

Finaldividend for2Oll $100379 $070499 29 May2012
Interim dividend for 2011 $036860 $026875 September2011

Final dividend for 2010 $097236 $073118 24 May2011

Interim dividend for 2010 $033480 $023512 September2010

Paymentwiilbe determined using the appropriate /US$and /US$escharige rate on 23 May2013
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Lu4 PRINCIPALOPERATINGLOCATIONS

Principal operating locations

Reed ELsevier LexisNexis Risk SoLutions

1-3 Strand 1000 Alderman Drive

London WC2N 5JR UK Alpharetta GA30005 USA

Tel 44020 71665500 WWW.LEXISNEXIS.COM/RISK

Fax 44020 7166 5799

Reed Business Information

Radarweg 29
Quadrant House The Quadrant

1043 NXAmsterdam
Sutton SurreySM2 5AS UK

The Netherlands

Tel 31 020485 2222
WWW.REEDBUSINESS.CO.UK

Fax 31 020 485 2032

LexisNexis LegaL ProfessionaL

125 Park Avenue 23rd Floor 125 Park Avenue 23rd Floor

NewYork NY 10017 USA NewYork NY 10017 USA

Tel 2123098100 WWW.LEXISNEXIS.COM

Fax 2123098187

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION ORCONTACT
9443 Springboro Pike

Miamisburg OH 45342 USA

DETAILS PLEASE CONSULTOURWEBSITE

WWW.REEDELSEVIER.COM
Halsbury House 35 Chancery Lane

London WC2A EL UK

ELsevier WWW.LEXISNEXIS.CO.UK

Radarweg 29

1043 NXAmsterdam
Reed Exhibitions

The Netherlands

WWW.ELSEVIER.COM
Gateway House 28 The Quadrant

RichmondSurreyTW9 iON UK

WWW.REEDEXPO.COM

The Boulevard Langford Lane

Kidlington Oxford 0X5 1GB UK
ELsevier Reed Finance BV

Radarweg 29
l600John Kennedy Blvd

1043 NXAmsterdam
Suite 1800 Philadelphia

The Netherlands
PA 19103 USA

Tel 31 020485 2222

Fax 31 020485 2032

3251 Riverport Lane

Maryland Heights MO 63043 USA
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